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Switzeriand

(Jurisdiction of Subject Company’s Incorperation or Organization)

Benny Levene / Brian Azzopardi
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‘ (Title of Class of Subject Securities)
Not Applicable
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Xstrata ple, Bahnhofstrasse 2, 6301 Zug, Switzerland, tel: +41 41 726 6075
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PART I - INFORMATION SENT TO SECURITY HOLDERS
Item 1. Home Jurisdiction Documents

Exhibit number Description

2. Press release released February 26, 2002, providing
information about the formation and listing of Xstrata plc and
Xstrata AG’s proposed acquisition of coal businesses from
Glencore International.

2001 Xstrata Annual Report released February 26, 2002.

I

4, Merger Agreement (released February 27, 2002) between
Xstrata AG and Xstrata Ltd./Xstrata ple.

S. Information Memorandum (released February 27, 2002) for
the shareholders of Xstrata AG concerning the proposed
merger of Xstrata AG with Xstrata plc. :

Item 2. Information Legends
Legends are included with Exhibits 2, 3 and 5.

PART II - INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE SENT TO SECURITY
HOLDERS

Not applicable,
PART III - CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

A written irrevocable consent and power of attorney on Form F-X was filed by each
of Xstrata plc and Xstrata AG prior.to or concurrently with the furnishing of this
Form CB.
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PART 1V ~ SIGNATURES

(1}  Each person (or its authorized representative) on whosc behalf the Form is submitted
must sign the Form. If a person's authorized representative signs, and the authorized
representative is someone other than an executive officer or general partner, provide
evidence of the representative's authority with the Form.,

(2) Type or print the name and any title of each person who signs the Form beneath his
or her signature.

After due inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth
in this statement is true, complete and correct.

Comp rata Lid.
Bm Levene - Director (Signature) rian Azzopardi - Director
4
(Name and Title) / /[
reveuiey 997t
(Date)
Com atn AG

/\,\

Benny Levene - Officer (Signature) Bn'}{n Azzopardi - Officer

(Name and Title)
CePeUirey 27, 2002
(Date)
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Exhibit 2
Press release released February 26, 2002, providing information about the formation

and listing of Xstrata plc and Xstrata AG’s proposed acquisition of coal businesses
from Glencore International.
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The infermation contained hereln is restricted and is ot fsrrelease or distributisn in
Agstralis, Canada, Japan or Seuth Africa.

Kstrata AG

Prepssed Acaaisition of Australian & Seuth Alrican Ceal Businesses irsm Glancere International
fer aa enternrise value o1 C. USB2.5 billisn
Prenssed Fsrmation and Listing of Kstratapic

25 FEBRUARY 2002
PART 1814

SUMMARY

o Xstrata AG te acquire, subjoct ts cartaln cenditions, the Australian and Seuth Africaa Ceal Businassas of
Glencere (tho “Caal Businsssos™ fer am enternrise valus of USD2.5 killien (the “Acyuisition”) incinding
the repayment of deit.

« Xstrata AG ts merge, suhjsct ts certair cenditians, witk a xow cempany, Astrata pic (the “Margerl
Xstrata plc will sask admissien of its srdinary shares te the Official List of ths UK Listing Autherity and te
tradiuy on the Lentden Stack Exchange. tis expected that the Company will be censidered for ixclusien
in ths FTSE UK [ndex sories at the review Im inne 2002. Xstrata pic wiil sssk a sacendary listing en the
SWX Swiss Stack Exchanys, with appreval raceived im princinle fer incinsion In the SPlindex

« The parchase price payahie fer the Cazl Businosses will ke satisfied ky 2 mix of cash and skares in
Xstrata plc.

o The cash siemsnt of the considcratien ter the Acgrisition will e part funded by an issus of Kstrata pic
srdiuary shares and debt raised by Xstrata parsuant te a new USD2 billisn debt faclitty, which wiil aiss ke
used to refinance oxtsting Xstrata AG Greuip det and previds snysing weriing capital

o Ths Mergeris subject te Xstrata AS sharehelasr appreval and reguiatery cenditions and It is anticipated
that the Merger and Acxuisition will sccar simuhanseusiy with admission of Xstrata plc's shares to
trading anthe Lexden Steck Exchange.

« Under the Merger, axisting Xstrata AG sharshelders will receive sharss (n Xstrats ple, In prepertien to
their existing skarsheidings.

o Following the Acquisitien, the Marger and admission of Xstrata plc’'s shares to trading on the Londen
Steck Exchange [teyethor, the “Tramsaction™), Xsirata pic's siatus as a gishal preducor of natural
resatrces will be censidarably suhanced, with thres majer cammadity businsssas epsrating Inthe ceal,
zinc and ferrealloys markets.




Mick Davis, Chief Execulive of Xstrata, sald:

“The acqulsition of the Enex and Pulker coal busipesses realises s number of key benefiis for Xstrats
sharelsidars. TBo sddition of 8 third major commogHly basiness wiich bas g different pricing cycle and fa
Which we wlll baye 8 signiTeant markot peslifon, all grovide eritical mess snd sigalficantly enkance s2d
divershy sarsings. In additian, the cost compatithve, cash-paneratiye bature of the assets will previds stabla
Rradictabie cash ffows, which will sifow g3 (9 Ho-Joveraps the Baisocy sieol This Dagssction /s earnings
seCrotive [rom day ene and will g2r% rofures [ axcess of I cost of capiial a1 long-lorm Ansiraiien saport
ibermal coal prices as low as USD26/10an8.”

*The Loadag listing will Brasden access lo glokal capital markets, and will provide locressed liguldly fer
carrant apd prospective shareheiders.”

“Taken togother, the ransactions wo Daye ansounced thils merniny ostabilsh an sxtslandlng piatrerm lrom
wiich we Inteng ts grow 8 istigctive valzo-lacused diversified resonrce company. /a essesce Nstrale wiff
be transtarmed and Isusched onte e global melsls sud mininy piaying feld whers It will be wel?
positionsd to compets lor a0 lo creats vifze.”

For further injermation, ploase contact

Xstrata A6 '

Marc Gansalves, Gsuoral Manager Csrparats Aflalrs

Mabile: +11719715 83309

Tsl: +1141726 6038

Email; marc.gensalves@Xstrata.com

College Hlil Assaciates

Alex Sandherg a Archie Berens '
Tei: +44 20 7457 2020 (Calloge Hill main number)
Mabile: +14 7802 442486 (Archle Barens)

Emall: srchie.berens@cailegstiiLcsm

The Merger described in s press ralease will entail the sxchangs of shares of a Swiss csmpasy for a company
mcernaratad In England (which witl be the strviving cempanyl, and os effer of securities is belng made te any gersan [n
ANY Jurisdiction ts whom o¢ in which such offer is wniawful. Te the extant relatsd fisciesure requiremsits auply, they are
of 8 #9R-0S country snd sre diffsreat frem thess of the Onltsy Ststes.  Fnancisl stmsments sxd ether finsucial
infermation Inciuded In this press releass kave hssn prepares in accerdance with ferelyn scceunting standards that
maynst ko contparable te the financial statomsats o 1.5 campanlies.

It may ke €@Mcalt far yeu (as 2 sharehsidor of the meryed cempany recalving shares rem the surviving camsany) to
enferce yeur rights and any cialm ysu may have arising uader (e 8.5 Federal sscurttiss laws, siace the Isstier Is fscated
sutside the United States and same o7 all of ts efficers and directsrs may bs rostdont sutsids the Enitsd States. Veu may
Nl be abio 13 SHO & ROR-U.S cOmSARY of 1S oificers o7 dractars In & non-U.S. conrt for visistions of the U sscurittes
(aws. ltmey be difficalt te comne! 2 Ren-0.5. company and Its affiiates te sublect themssives ts & U.S. comt's judgsment.

LP. Nergan pic 1S aciing as fimancis] adviser ts Xsirata AS and Xstrata pic i reiatien te the Acouisitien sni the Mergsr.

Tho Manistad Lsag Arrangers and Jelnt Bagirunners of the skt te ks raised by Kstrata pic are Barclays Capital ithe
Ivestment banking dlvision of Barclays Bank PLC), Dresamer Kisinwert Wassersioin (acting threugh Dresdusr Bank
Lixemhonrg SA) ans LP. Mergan pic (adsitisnally acting a5 Ce-endinater).
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The infarmatisn centained berein Is restricted and is nst for reloass or distributisn in
Anstralla, Canada, Japan or Setith Africa.

Nstrata AG

Prepased Acquisitien of Rustralian & Ssuth African Coal Businesses fram Glencars Interwational
ferc.§SD2.5bilien
Prenesed Farmation and Listing of Xstratapi¢

25 FEBRUARY 2002
PART 2013
ACQUISITION OF CRAL BUSINESSES AXD THE MEBGER

Ths Acysisitian o1 the Ceai Businsssss

Ender the terms of the acquisitien agresment [the “Acyuisitisd Agresmest”), which was sntersd Iste on 20
Fehruary 2002, Xstrata pic will acsnire the Ceal Businassas at an enterprise valus of c. BS82.5 hilllen.

Underthe Acguisitien Ayresmont, Xsirata pic will pay censideration comprising:

= the ailetiwent of Such numboer of srdinary shares In Xstrata pic st the prics at whick any new shares in
Xstrata plc are Issued as will brixp Glsncers Intormallenal’s tetal heldiny of shares In Xstrata ple,
tagethor with the sharss it recelves under the Marger, te 40% of the Issuod capital; and

= ahalancing cash gayment

Kstrata pic will aise;
= assams USD318 miliion of net Mokt futhe Caal Basinessos; and

* precure (ke repayment te Clencers Intsrnatienal of sharebelder lsans i the Ceal Businssses in the
smesnt of §SE197 milllen.

The balancing cash payment wiil be such ameunt as snsurss that the tetal value of the censideration,
togother with the assumed deht is ¢. USD2.5 hilllen. This cash halanciny paymsnt of the purchass prics will
ho satisfisd In part from ths precssds 1 the issus ¢l Asirsta pic's srdinary shares with the remaindor frem
the naw dedi facliity.

Completion of the Acunisition of the Coal Businsssss Is conditienal npen, ameny sther things:

= the Meryer becoming effective In accerdance with Swiss law. The Merger will hocsme sffective
simuitanseusly with campistion of the Acquisitien;
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«  Nstrata pic having receiven, in torms satisfactery te It. canfirmations and/ar apprevals iram the renuisite
ropulstery autherities, incinging the Ssuth African Cempetitian Commission and (ke Troasurer of
Australla;

« admissien e Astrala pic's shares te the Official List of the UK Listing Amberity and te trading en the
Lenden Stack Exchangs;

« the sbtalning of writteu causonts, Intarms satisiactary te Kstrata pic, from relovant third parties.

Tho sffective date of the Acquisition will be 11anuary 2002.

Ths Margsr

Pursaant ta the Marger the estirs undsrtaking ef Xstrata AG, Including aki of its assets and Hahllities, will ke
transierred ts Kstrats dic In censideration ler which Xstrata pic will issus shares te the sharehsiders of
NAstrata AS in proportion ts thelr resuective holdings of Nstrata AR Shares, on the hasis of 10 ardinary shares
fer sach Astrata AG Shars kold.

The Morgsr will be effoctod as fellows:

»  Jstrataplc and Xstrata AG enter Inta the Merger Agreement;

= aresslutien te appreve the Merger will he sabimitiad te Ihe sharshelders of Xstrata AB st a moeting to he
cenvened for 19 March 2002 (the “Marger Besslutien™; and

» [ the Merger Reselutisn is passed, registration of the Merger in the Commsrcial Reglsier fer the Canten
o1 Tug, whareupen the assets and latilities of Xstrata AG will be vested In Xstrata plc.

The Morger is sxpecisd te hocsme effsctive simuitaneeusly with completion of the Acgnisitien. Upen the
cempistion of the Warger, Xstrata pic will ke the uitimate helding campasy of the Xstrata pic greup (the
“Enlarged Ersup”), which will Incinde the Coal Baslaesses.

Astrata AS has appeiatad Credit sdlssa ts ectas axchauge syentin connsctien with the Marger.

Furthor detalls of the Acqnisitisn and the Marger will ke confirmed in an (aformatien memerandam to bs
publishod shertly by Kstrata AR Tha 2602 Anmual Gensral Mesting of Xstrata A8 sharskeliers will be
convened for 19 March 2002. Atthat masting the Mergsr Resslutian will ks prepasad.

The board of directers of Astrata A kays appreved the Acyuisition and the Merger and will submit the Msrger
Agreemantte the sharshelders with ametion te appreve it

Greup Strategy

Fellswing the Acquisition and the Merger the strategy sf the Enfaryed Graup will ho ts achiovs srewth ss 2
natural researces business and enhance sveratl vaius for its sharehaiders. Kstrats pic ixtends ts parsue
thisstrateny by:

« Bsing its critfcal giass, streng cash fews apd financisl Rexibility te previde s pistform for
exnisitatien sf high quality acquisitisn spgertmnities as they arise;

« Increasing perfermance whiist maintaining its pesition as a cost compatitive preducer, thersdy
maximising returmns;

o actively managing its asset pertielis in srder ta increase lsnp-term returss; and
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« usingltslendenlisting te breaden access to the luternatienal capital markets.

Kay strongths
Xsirata AG bolleves that the key strenpths of tho Eniarged Greap will be:

« Sligaifican! praducer and cest competitive speratsr. The Exlarged Greup wiil he amsxgst the
largest preducers of cxpert thermal cosl, Zne metal ferrechromas ani primary vanadinm with
significant reserves of caal. chrome ere and yanadinm srs. Itszinc and ferrsalieys businesses
In particolar are amexyst the lewest cast preducers of their resnactive commetities;

o Diversified business. The Enlargsd Group will have s diversified husinsss, In torms of the range
of cammeidities it preduces, the gosgraphical Iecation of its 3ssets and its custemer hass;

« Preven ssnlsr managomont The Enlarged Gremp's ssnier managoment have sipaificamt
experience and 1achnical sxpertiss |» the natsral ressurces secter and intsrmatianal capital
markeis; and

« fageing trading refationship with Glencers. The Eniarged Greup's trading arrangemants with
Glencors witl previde It with additisnal marke! Intelligonce, access te customers and marketing
oxnertise,

Beard of Xstrata ple
Ths Baard ot Xstrata pic will camprise the sxisting Birsclers of Kstrata AG, tegethar with Michas) L Davis,

Trever L Rold, Santiage Zaldumbide, David Reugh, Ivan Glassakorg and Sir Stovs Rebsen. Their esllective
sxpericace shonld preve lnvalughle te Xstrata plc.

Exscative Birsctars
Michae! L Davis Chisf Executive
TreverL Reld : Finagcs Directer
Santiage Zaldumhide Exacative Dirsctar, Chief Ixecutive
ol the Zinc Business
Non-Exscutive Birecters
Willy R Strethstis Chalrman
David Reugh (1) Doputy Chairman
Or.Bets F.Bamsnicanl Non-axacutive Dirsctar
Ivan Glassoberg Kon-axscutive Directar
Panl Hazen . Nen-exocutive Dirscter
David issrsit Hom-executive Dirscter
Redert MacDanasll Non-executive Dirscter
Sir Steve Redson ) Nen-sxecutive Dirsctar
Dr Frederik Reux Men-sxecutive Dirocter

T Sxdld Reughs has agresd Lo heceme 2 non-sxecattve firacts! and Deputy Chaimian of strata yic with sfiect frem 1ARIT 2002

Fnandited pre farma combingd financia) Information ou 2 UK GAAP basis
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Ferthe year Is 31 Decomber 2001, Xstrata pic had pre ferma tumnever of GSD1647 miliion and profit before tax
of OSD287 militen. As a1 31 Decamber 2001, Xsirata pic had pre forms {angihle fixed assets of USD3 448 mliiien
and net assots of §301.839 milllen.

Unantited pre farma financial infermatisn has Seon prepared for Kstrata plc, as sot eut In Part 4 of this
ARneuzcenent which cotmhines the Xstrata AG Group, ths Enex Sreup and Bulker Group for the year snded 31
December 2001. The cetes te the wpaudited pre ferma Anaucial Information describe the basis upea which
this infermation has hesn compiled and the adjestmonts which have been made. Pisass nete that the
unaudited combined pro forma financial ixtormation differs frem the unaudited combined censtrocted
illustrative financial Informatisn shown [n Part 3 of this axneuncement. Thoe differencs Is cxpisined helew
and in mato 11te the ¥nandited nre farma financial Infermation In Part 4 of this anneuncsmont.

Immediately faliswing the cosmpistisn of the Merger and Acquisition It is cxpoctsd that Rlencars
intsrnzatons! wiil own appreximately 40% of the Issued srdiuary share capital of Xstrats pic and will be
reparied as a contrelling sharshelder of Kstrata pic fer the aurpess of the Unfted Kinydem Listing Rules.
Kstrata plc and Glsncers Istarnational will, therefers, snter ints 2 Relatisaship Ayresmeni, the princinal
purness st which will s te ensars that the Eniarged Gremp Is capahis of carrying on iis hmsiness
Indensngently sf Glencers and that transactions and reiationships with Glencare ars at aym's lsngth ans on
nermal commercial torms.

Glencare has sntersd inte variens ether agresments with membiers of the Enlaryed Group Including varises
A§ONCY agreements pursuant ts whick Glsncers prevides marketing services to memhsers of the Enlarged
Greup in exchange for an agsacy fes. Thosa sther syrasgements ars alse nepatialed en sn srw's length
Basis and are on nermal coammerciai tams.

Kstrata pic Intonds te adopt & pregrassive gividend pelicy which will take Inte accennt the underlying srawth
in sarnings of tho Enlaryad Graup, as well as its capital roquiraments and cash flsws, while malxtsining an
apprepriats lsvel of dividend caver. For [linstrative purpsses only and subject to thess financial paramsters
the Directars of Xstrata AG bave Indicated that had the Enlarged Graup besn in existence fer the full financial
yoar te 31 Bacsmbor 2001, Astrata plc wenld have anwsunced 8 pre ferma Elvidend por share for the yesr
ended 31Decomber 2001 the valus of which weuld intply a dividoad yield of 2.5% fer Astrats plc's Sharss.

Kstrata plc is sxpected te pay a final dividend 2 April 2003 in respsct of the ysar ending 31 Decomber 2062
and an Interim dividend lu Ssptember 2003 fellewing the sad of the half year te 30 Jums 2003. Thersatter, the
Dirscisrs Intend that Intorim and fizal dividonds will ho pald In Sontamber and April |n each year in the
preximate prepertions of ene-thirs ang twe-thirks of the tetal anmua! dividens, respsctively, Further
deotalis of the prapesed dividend pelicy will be cantalasd in listing particulars fer Xstrata pic te he publishsd
in due conrss.

Redging pelicy
In yunoral, Xstrata AG dsos sot sxpact that the Eslarged Greup will take dedpe nesitisns. Rewever, hedging

strategins may ho considerod for risk mitigation, not for active revenus gensratisn. In the svent that Astrata
Alcwas te take a hodge pesitden, ltwill reguirs appreval o1 the contral management team.
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Swiss Tax Rssidency

The Swiss Tax Autherities have cenfirmad (hat, ex the assumptisn that the affairs ¢f the csmpany are
conducted as tho diresters intend, they will repard Xstrata pic as 3 resident sf Switzeriand for the purpeses
of Swiss taxatien law and application of the Switzertand/9K Benbis Taxatien cenventisn. The BK Inlamd
Revenus has Indicatod Lhat, based on tho pregesed iscatien and structure of managcment asdoscrided ta It
Iy the directers, and su the assumiptisn that the aifalrs of the company are conducted astha directers intead
and sn the basis of the Swiss rullag reted ahave, it will ast regard Xstrata pic ss resident In the §X ler
surpesss of BN taxatien Iaw. The dirsctars of Xstrata gic intend te comduct the csmpany's alfairs as
doscrived Io Wk nland Revanus. Accardingly, sssuming the affairs are ss cenducted, Xstrata nic skonld he
treatad as resident in Switzerizad and net in the UX fer tax purpeses.

Bxpected timetahlie of principal events
Intsrmation memeransum tu bo available tasharokelders of Xstrats A8 26 Felruary 2002
Annusl gonsral meating sf Xstrata AG 19 March 2002

Bpoctsd date of compistion of the Merger and Acquisitien 26 March 2002

Each sf the dates in ths sbeve timatabie Is subject te Change.
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The iofermatien contained hereinisrestricted and is natfer releass or distribution in
Australla, Canada, Japan or Senth Alrica.

Prepased Acquisition of Australian 2 Senth African Csal Businessas frem Glsncere internatisnal
for c. ¥3825 billlen
Prepssad Fermation and Listing of Xstrata plc

25 FERRUARY 2002
PART 3814
ADBITIONAL INFORMATION

Sverviow of Ksiratapic

The Enlarged Grewn WINI he an Intsrnatienal natural reseurces sroup hoadauanisrsd in Zug, Swizeriand. The
Enlarged Greup will fecks an law cest eperations and Rave 3 sipnificant market share in coal, zinc and
primary vanadiam preduction and a leading market share In chrome predsction. The Enlarged Ereap wil)
comprise thres major businasses:

» The Ceal Businesses, with Interests in 26 spsrating cealmines, 12 of which are lecatad In Anstratia snd
4 of which are lscated in Seuth Rirlca;

o TheZiucBusiness comprising a zZinc mining, smaling and refininp speration in Spain; snd

« The Ferrealisys Business, cemprising ths chrems eperatiens and mulm lnmtllls. which has
Intepratad preductisn isciittios In Ssuth Africa and Anstraila.

In agdition, the Enlarged Group will ewn a magnesiom re-cyciing facility In Nerth America an# a ferestry
plastatdenin Chile.

The Company is a UK Incernerated company with a reyistarsd effics at Backst Heuss, 1 Lamhsth Palace Read,
lenden SE17EN. Itis sxpactod that the Company will he censidered ler inciusien In the FTSE UK index seriss at
the roview |n Jans 2002,

The Coal Businssses will be the mest significant of the Eniarged Grang's husiness in terms of taruever. Iitis
camprised of the Enex Anstrailan and Dulker Ssuth African ceal eperatisns and Is ene of the warfd's laryest
expert thermal caal praducers with Iaterests In a pertfolle of cost campetitive mines. (u the year ended 31
Bscember 2001, the Enex and Dolker Graups' cembined attributable sales wors 37 mililen tennss, with
appreximately 53% of thase sales coming fram the Enex Grexp. Ths Ceal Businessss fecuses primarily snthe
oxperiaf thormal col for use In slectricity paneration althanph it alse experts semi-ssft coal for uss In stesl
manufacturing and suppiies tharmsl ceal fer uss In domoestic sisctricity generatian and, In Senth Africa, ter
238 In varfeus Indzstrial appiications. At the current rate of preduction, Xsirata estimates that the Coal
Businesses’ coal reserve hass will suppert mining In excess of 20 ysars. Ths Ceal Dusinessss proven and
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mrebakis run of mine reserves sxceaded 16 hiilion tannss of ceal and Its measarod ani Indicated resenrce
basse sxcepded 6.8 hillisn 1annes of ceal.

A cast curve lrmﬁl by AME tor 2000-2001 ranks ths Owiker Seuth African ang Emex Australiam cesl
eperatisas, on & wolghted averags basis, In the secead guartile amenyg majer sxpert praducers of thermal
and somi-sofl coal werldwide. Whllo primarily bassd en 2000 pradactisn, the minss have kesn cested and

_ wolghtsd for tha purpssas of this cest carve using axchanye rates and squity ewnership sharss prevailing in

2001. Fer turthor infarmation en the canstructien of cast curves sse “Basis of praparatien - Cost Curves™ In
Partd af this sanenacement

Tinc Businsss

The Zinc Businsss, which lerms part of the existing Xstrats AG Granp Is ans of the largest Un terms of
capacity]l and ameng the lswest cest praducers of zZnc metal (n the werfl. The IInc Basiness's main
activities are the sreductian of Zuc metal and the miaing of dnc hearing sres. Its eperating Iacliities
comprise the Sam Juan de Nisva refining plast (whick, fellewing the 120,000 tennss per annum sxpansien of
the plaat's design prednction capacity In July 2001, has a rated design pretdxctiss capacity ¢ 340,000 taxnas
per annum), the Reocin mine, the Hinsjsde reasting faciiity and the Amas manufacturing plant Fer the yoar
snded 31 Becamtier 2001 the Zinc Busizess's tolal praductien of inc metal was appraximately 390 thensand
tonnes

Cest curvss praduced by Breok Huut far 2001 rank the Zinc Business's smeiting eperations in ths first
anarts of warldwide preductien of Zinc metal Fer further infarmatisn an the consirsction of cost curves soe
“Basis of proparation - Cast Curves” In Part 4 sl this annsnncement.

Chrome agoratisns. The chrsme sporations, which ferst part of the existing Xstrata Greup, ars the weri's
largest (in torms of beth atwtributabls preductien and attributakie sales) and ameng tho Tewest cest
areducers of {srrachramn with attributable ferrechrame areductiss capacity sxceeding 13 miilisn tenges
per annnm, represeuting anproximately 25% of glehal capacity. Ths chromme eporstions’ 2ssots are situated
1n Seuth Alrica and censist of four chremits mines and 16 feryschrome furnaces (tws of which are in a 50%
sreduction Jeint ventars). Tha stiribetable forrschremo predactien of the chrsme spsrations for the year
endod 31 Decomber 2001 was 860 theusand texnes.

Cest curves preduced by CRY Ioternatienal fer 2001 rank the chrome opsrations, o 2 walghiod average
hasis, Inthe first quartiie of weriéwide preductisn of high carhen ferrechreme. For further infermation en the
cenastruction of cost carves see “Rasis of preparation - Cast Curves” In Part 4 et this annsuncoment.

Vazadium operalions. Xsirata AS helloves the vanadium speratiens, which farm pant ef the oxisting Xstrata
Grewy, are sne of the lsading preducers ol primary vanadium, censisting of three Integrated miniug and
vanadizm pentexide recsvsry plants, twe sitzated In Seath Africa and sne in Australia, and » recently
cemmissiensd ferravanadiom cemversiss facliity In Seuth Alrica. Cembinsd capacity ler the vanadium
eperatisns’ thres piants is 46 miillen peunds of vanadinm pontexide eyuivalent per annum. which te
Enlarged Grewp sstimates represonts appreximately 18% of glebal capacity. Far the yoar ended 31 Dscomher
2001, tho vauadinm aporatisns’ tetal predsction was 38 milllsn peunds of vanadinm pentexids equivalent
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The Enlsrged Greup's additienal activities will bs camprised of 3 magnesizxm re-cycilng facility in Merth
America snd a ferestry plantatien in Ghile.

Tnaudited combined constructed iitustrative Anancial ixfarmation

The tahie hslew prevides unaudited combined canstructed iiustrative financisl infermation In relation to
the Eaiarged Greup fer the year endod 31 Decomber 2001 The Infermatien dess net torm part of the
unaudited pro fsrma financial isfermation sot o8t in Part 4, and ks beon propared an the basis setentin the
festuete ani as described In “Basis of preparation - Unaudited combined constructed Hiustrative financial
Iafermatian” In Part4 of this axnsnncement.

Fasr saiod 31 Becantber 2087
Txrnover 27
Locloalng shars of st (nciyaiey skare sf /oint
rentarss snd assecizizs) restzres sod ssseciates)
IS8 nilion IS8 miiow
Busixess/speraions
toal 1us 61% n 0%
Tne ] 0% L1 ™
famoalleys
Chroma 258 u% 59 5%
Vansuhmx [~} % “2 nm
Additens! activitiss b % w %
Grety coxthined helors cammen '
casts un 0% 891 100%
Less: commen cosis WA WA m | /7 )
Srouy combined 185 WA N L 7; )

Basis of pragarstion: The abeve takis Is far [Rustrative parpeses eily and Is nat intanded ts 3ve 0 true bicture of Muaacisl informstisn
relating te the Eniarged Eroup. This ntsrmation 1as hesa prepared [o Hisstrate the sarnisgs befors Intsrest and txxatisn et tiraever
of e Eolarged Crexp as If the Acguisitien and the sceuiskisns indartaien by the Astrata AC Graug asd the Insx Crenp in 2001 kad
sccarreil ax 1 lanusry 2001 and Inciudss the esrnings belere interest sad taxstien and turwever of Sakiridys axd Asturtsss frem 1
Ianuary 2001 ts thelr respective datss sf acquisitien tegethsr with an adiusiniest te refisct the smertisation of Jesswill on the
acauisitiens of Astoriana sad the Enex Crous.

Unandited prs forma financial Infarmation
The tabie helew sets eut summary unandited sre forma cambined financial infermation In ralatien to the

Enlarged Group. The infarmatisn Is sxiracted fram the snaudited ure forma financial Infermation contained
inPartd of this annstucoment,
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A3 Becamber 2081
Beryad oy Exlsrgod Gronp et Exitryod Sroem net
Leagiie Trod ERIToNt 853005 M35
ass8ts
P58 miltion IS0 mitiow 5D mition
Busioess/sperations _
Coal 287 m 2018
e 38 85 648
farreaiioys
Chrsme : bl 88 s
Vanadion ) ] 24 w
AsdRisn) activitiss [ 1 [ 1]
Unsllecsisd ] [¢)] {Lne
Greup Tetsl us n 1839

Basis of praparatien: The absvs tahie is for iilustrative purnsses anly and may net, kecauss of s nature, give @ trus piciare of the
Huancisl pesitisn of the Exiarges Grsup snd has been axtracted frew: the mnsudited 57e larma combinedl finsacial infermation contained
InPart4 of this snneancomsnt.

Kstrata AG Stack Market Dats [as sf the cless 20 Feirwary 2002)

Share Price CHF 218
§2weakhigh/lew CHF315/119
Namberafsharss sutstanding S milllen
Markel capitalisation CHF 128 billien
(Seurce: Datastream} _ ¥S00.74 bilifen
Swiss Stack Exchanye ) 11 ]

Reuters Cede XTRLS
Bissmborg Cade XTRSW
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The infsrmatien centained horeln Is restricted and Is nst fer release ar distridution In
Austraiia, Canada, Iapgan er Seuth Africa.

XstrataAG

Prapesel Acquisition of Ausiralian & Seuth African Coal Basinesses freim Gloncers Intornational
for c.USD2.5 hillien
Prenssed Fermatisn and Listing of Xstrataple

25 FRANARY 2002
PAETA 014
ABBITIONAL UNASRITES PRS FORMA FINANCIAL PESOSCTION AND RESERVE BATA

This ssctisa contains the follawing information:

=  Unauditsd pro ferma combined flusncial intormation for Xsirata pic;
= Estimated cash flow rexairements for Astrata pic;

= Sverview of tho Coal Businsss:

= Gvarview ofthe Coal Basinssses’ Australian apsratiens;

*  Bverviow of the Coal Businasses’ Santh African eperatisns; and

*  Dasiselproparation
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GNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED NET ASSETS OF NSTRATA PLC AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2001

The tsliewing unandited ars fermea statamest of combined uel s3sats of Xstrate yic a3 ot 31 Docenther 2001 is prepsred tar llinstrative
RuUTBesas enly sxd may ned, hacause of Bs nature, give a trae picturs of the Bnancial pasitisa of the Enlarged Sreun. Risprepared o
ifiustrate the cffact on the not assats of Xsirata pi¢ of the Acquisitiony of the Ewex Creup sud the Oniker Grenp ("the Acyuisitions”), the
Waryor sed the issue of Xstrats pic shares, as if the Acquisitisns.the Merper and the issus of skares, Rad takse piace s 31 December
2001 and is dasad o unsuilitad batance shests of Nstrata pic, Kstrata AR Biex and Buker arsnared In sccerdance with VX GAAP a3 0131
Secemiar 2001 Adjustments kave basu made o3 deseriisd n the nates below.

A1310ucosmber 2087
Fra forms
Astraiz ple sty
Anfust- o~
Ksoatapic Kstrata A8 ey aikar Sab-totel mests [ ¢
Motn1 Neots 1 oe1 ote? ote24 233818
oo osony 5808 oy 55008 [ B0y
Fusd Assats
Sardwil - 125,180 - - 125180 . 125160
Tangibis assets - Tsse 640,948 205351 18080 1828838 s
Leans - 533 - - 538 - §313
Bther - 1789 - - 1789 . 17188
Iavestments - 1284 1Bm s 82088 - 82048
- | 832863 660,818 204488 1838265 1829838 3888100
Current Assets
Sacks - WLIss 58m 24648 228,181 . 228,191
Rettars - b13))] 8350 5093 22m - mm
Cash and shert tarm
depasits . 45858 42804 na 1893 153.988) nm
373805 189094 80.982 648881 153.888) 594885
Crasers: ameunts falling
sus withiz sxe yaar . [221.128) oo,m9) (88,9431 [398,848) 108,988 [283.880)
NntCamest Assals - 151.019 88,015 12839 258,033 53,002 N0
Teta! Assets loss
Currem Lishilives - 1089.942 nasn 256,526 2098298 1882838 3913138
Croditers: smeunts
tailing gva after ’
mere than ene yenr - (421,980) (5211491 1300 1964.448) (828818) (1183384
Provisien lor Habiiities
anf charuss - (1268351 130,700 [618173] 285508 - 283,508}
- Mim wisn M8 868.344 1053820 1920264
Misority intorests - (884 mun - (611N - (stun
Netassets - 53913 68834 mM2nue 85203 1053.92¢ 1839123

Netes:

1 The canssllaated Aet 833013 81 XSIrata plc, AsUats AG, Enox ang Doikes at 31 Dscemahisr 2001 have Desn oxiractsd withest msterial
aSestnest frem the AcCeuRIInts' Bsparis ta be coxtained In teg Hsting Darticuiers 1 be Dublished n #uo courss.

2)  Acguisitisn reiated altscatises inciode:
8] payment of consigarstisn fiuciuding tha assummtion of Cortaln preoy BecTewingsk
b}  anestmate of the fair vaiue silwstment reqoired as iollews:
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[
Cansidoration fer the acguisities of Ensx 1035,000
Axjusted net assets of fasx 68,5341
Consitsration jor the scguisitien of Bulksr 1040998
Mdiusted net sssets of Dulker maus
Fairvalue allecatisn 1820838

A full assessment of falr vakies of assats and Habiikies will be andertakaa prisr Le the end of the first sceaunting peried of Kstrats pic
Tha afiustmonts reflect the preceeds of the lssas of shares aad saw debl, the repaymant sl axisting bisrrewings sod the related

4

fees ani cxpenses ncwred.

Ne sccount has heea takea of axy trading sr sther transactians sixce 31 Becsmier 2001 far Xstrata pic, Kstrata AG, Dufker and Exsx.

No account has bess takea of any sther turther lalr value adjustrents that may ke Recessary.
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UNASRITED PR FORMA COMEINED PEGFAT STATEMENT OF XSTRATA PLC FOR THE YEAR ENBED 31 DECEMBER 2001

Tho Isllowing anaudited nre fsrma combined prafit statsmest of lsirata pic for tho yesr exded 31 Becamboer 2001 Is sreparsd for
Mostrative parnsses ealy and may At Escaese of RS Bature, §ive 8 true Bicturs of tha results of the Enlarysd Srexp. Risprepared by
Iasirats the sffect an the preft far the your ol Xsirata pic af Ura Acqissitions, the Mergor and the lssus of Astrats pic sharss as ¥ the
Acguisitions, the Mergss and the issus ¢f shares had takes place an the Arst day of the poried snded 31 Decomber 2001 and is kased sn
mmandiied grefit and less scceunts of Kstrats AR, Enex sxd Buiker srepared Ix accordascs with UX GAAP {or the your ented 31 Docember
2001 Astrata gic did asttrade suring the perisd Adjusimoents hawe hean made in accertance mith the nstes referred s,

Yoszr sadod 31 Becomber 2081
Azt Pre forse
- el Kstrais pic
Kstraiz Ae Eonx Buitor Kstrata gic Xstrata ple
ot fotn2 Nota2 Sab-tatsl Noln2]
[ [/ F53088 30008 ysboce soNe
Tomever
Centinging sperations 48,9088 291189 b4 FyH] 1098483 -
Acguisitess 268834 MmMi2 - 831788 - lﬂ
(1-3.]1-3 §62,351 nas 1841278 - 180118
Dyerating costs 21150 ©esIm 1226820 11.254785) “s.600 (00,15
Oparating prait
Cextinxing casrations: nsas §1898 WA 253549 148.000) 201949
Acquisttiens um sane - Basi — 123583
92448 155838 134404 392488 148,000} UsAs4
Discontieusd sperations . . . - - : .
Csutinuing eperstiens:
Prafit/Tlsss) a1t dispesal of
sparatiens wssa s e S4308 " S4288
80482 153,168 201182 448,852 8000 400,852
Discerrtinued speratians:
Prefii/iess) on sale of
tartatiis fized a3sots 145038 un m 43420 - uanag
Exchangs diffsrsace - 28410 . 284131 20473 -
Nstintersst Payairle masa 1s6m L B3l (26355 Ll
Prefit sn erdinary activities
bofare taxstien . 3504 man 194219 319620 G2,912) 88708
Tax enprofit ent ordinary
actvitles 18.635} (23560 40,1331 0431291 8098 (65233
Praft sa ordinary aciivitiss
after taxation 1268 81838 154,088 265,291 43818 2415
Minerity interests:
Equity ' 25181 {13.185) - nazm - 15210
Prefit 17 the Ainancial year
atribatabio b mombers
of the parent comaeny 1253 8411 154,088 250080 3 g 208,264
Nstes:
§ lmerest an dsit raised as part o this transactien bas beon incingad, For this parnass, an amesat of USS36.385 millisn kss
hesnincindad hased upen an ieteresirats of 3.5% on incromental Intersst bearing deit.
6 The fair vaiwe slecatian arising on this acouisition is amartised ever the sstimated lives of the uaderiying assets.

) Where ansrenriste taxctien effacts of tha akeve stjustments hove been taken ints nctount
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SNASDITED PRO FORMA COMBINER SEGMEMTAL INFORMATISN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2001

Tho iellewisy snanditsd re farma cemblued sagments! infermation for the enlarnod Creup for the year ended 31 Bacomber 2001 is
nregared for Rinstrative purpeses snly ani nay net, becatiss of ity nature, §ive 8 trus pictars of the resuits of the Exjarged Grenp. Ris
progared te lustrato the sfisct en the semmentat axalysis of Xstrata pic of the Acguisitisns the Meruse and the lssus of Isirats pic shares,
3 H the Acquisians, the Msrusr and the tssus of shares kad taksa piace e the first dxy ol the yaar endad 31 Dscamber 2001, and ls kases
R ansudted Nuancial Infarmation of Astrata AS, Bnex and Buiker nrepared In accordance with GK GAAP [sr the yoar saded 31 Decomber

2001 Xstrata pit fid oot trade during the perisd Adinstrests Rave beon made In ccordance with the Retes referred i,

Tatal

Pramm beters txx
Chreme
Yazsdium
Cammntesis

Toual

Taasible fixed aceats
Coal
osc

Yansdhum

Total

Kstrais 48 brey Aiter Preforms
Yoar ades Yosr endod Yoz oavedl Yasr snaind
J1hec 2001  31Dec 2801  J1bec 2097 Toinl Adjastmosts  31Bec 2087

rseoos F52008 Boe0e [ S0 SRooes
- 862351 INIB 1033878 - 103718
268608 - - 2885 - 268838
251880 - - 251860 - 2515880
63498 - - 83498 - 63408
25801 - - 238M - 458n
813803 682351 M3 1841219 - 1841218

Astrata A& Foex F . 4 Pro larms
Yesr sided losronded Yo ondod Yosr onded
J100c 2001 J10sc 2087 J18wc 2087 Jote Almstmosns J18sc 2001

T58N08 o000 3poes 30008 5200 50009

- 2143 184219 35N8 148.800] 2898

44708 - - M - “uns
59,218 - - 50318 - 58,318
142.380) - - 142,380) - 132380)
¥y, ] - - uwam - Am
B 1] . . 3331 (6912} [40.283)
1380 121487 194219 339528 52910 288708
soate 48 foey Aniter Preiarms

J1bec2881  31kec2081 31D 2007 sl  Miwstmosts  J1Dsc 2087

yBo0y oo snvs 50000 50008 Iseoe
- 40848 205251 sa1297 1820838 267813
381785 - - 381185 - 301765
224261 - - 224287 - 228267
04801 - 104801 - 04401
2 - 2018 - 2418
22429 22428 2410
THgeo $40,848 205351 181187 1829538 3441813




Chreme
Yagadium

Basllecated ressurces

Tetal

Mot sssets Olats 10}
el

Tinc

Chrem

Vanatiam

Ferestry
Enaliacated assets

Taal

Net azsats (lots 10}
Ampricas

Alrica

Esrepe

Anstraissia
Onaliscated sssots

Tetsl

E I ]

Asorais 4@ o Qoiker Pre forme
JiBec2001  Jibec21 310 2081 Toisd  Adiwstwezss  T1iec 2001
o080 50008 sy 250088 3008 850009

- 82815 12839 10054 - 100854

854m - - gsam - 85An
938567 - - 98,857 - 83,857
amn - - 18 - um
L) - - 1 - 1
B4 - - 8240 53002 1802
151078 e8915 12839 253033 §53.002 3035
Ksorata A8 Lvex g Frs forms
a3l Al Asmat Asmtd1
Bec 2087 Bec 2081 Dec 2801 Toisl  Adiwstments Boc 2001
8oy arocs o208 &g 58000 oo

. 53834 maus 245080 1820838 2075918

540,385 - - 540383 - 540,365
181881 - 187881 - 19981
108,54 - 0854 . 106,644
7125 - ns - a125
1243.000) - - 1342500 onse L8l
§3g.122 638 mus 785.203 1053920 1831
Kstralz 48 Eogrx olter Pre formy
Asa31 As3! As 2131 As 131
Bec 2087 Bec 2001 Boc 2001 Irsl  Ajsstoents Boc 2081
50088 Fspocs e 55008 Fshoos soaeo
aus - - &1128 - ane
352197 - mas 520443 86351 12Rm
548000 - - 548008 - 543009
(31,565} §8834 - 71268 968,166 871435
(350840 - - 13508441 m5e6 L8580
S3ams 18R m2es 785200 1053.920 1839123

AL/ESTRIRLS rOPreSEnt IS DESINESS URITS SHiare of the Sro forma atiustmests reistisy to the Entaryed Erauy's aet sssets.
The shevs iafarmation Ras hesn pregared sa s pre forxa kssis and is kassd od infarmaation exiractad irem anssdited Anancial

Informatisn grapared (n sccardsocs with UK GAAP Is respect of Xsirata AS Enex axd Dulker axd inckifiss v roszits ol
steuisitions from the date o acunisitisn. I the rosults of the acguisitisns wers ta bs conseilisted frem the first day of the
ALCONNtIng Netiad, then th turnevar by sapment weuld b USD1 M5 aifilien, USD383 millien, USH258 milllen, USHE3 milken and
_§5026 milllsn far the coxl, z2inc, chyome, vanadim and sther husiness ualts rospoctively. Simflarty, EBIT for the caad, Zac,
chirsmms, vanadium ang {srestry husiness unlts wanld he BSSIT! miliisn, USHG] miFien, USBSS millien, S38(A2} milisn sud
BSR4 milfian resyactivaly and ERITAA DSDA18 muillon, $50701 mitilex, USEEA mifllen, USDA miillen sud $SBL2) milNen.
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ESTIMATED CASH FLOW REQUIREMENTS FOB XSTRATA PIC

8ot sut beiaw far lllustrative Durpesss enly. Is 3 summary of the estisted cash Mlews of the Entorged Groxn frem 1 )axuery 2002 ts 31
March 2004. The sstimates snd the sntertying sssmmptisns have been preparvd after dus and carsiul snuiry by Xstrats AG dut Rt is
emphasisad tht thess estimates de nsl canttitate 8 terstast, whather o1 prafits of stherwise, sad sheuid be rase in cenjumction with the
stSumptions sst oot beisw. The estinates ang assamytions underiylng the prajactions are Inhersntly mcernsia, based UBSN SVORts liat
kave net taken piacs, snd ars subject te significant sconemic, comystitive axd sther ancertaintios sud contingenciss beyend the contrel
ol the Entaryed Crenp. The sstiniatss and Umderivtng assmnetiens sasak snly &8s of the dste Rereol, and are suMect ts change
Conssnuently thers caa k9 59 assurances that the prejected resulis or cash flows can b realised or thal actun resuits or cash fisws will
net ko highar o lower than thess prelscted. and this ssmmary shsuld net ke relied coen 53 such.

rear fesr Tivee monihs
iy andiny ondliny
21 Decomiber 31 Rscesmcher 71 March
2002 2003 2084
559 nlows 530 miens 550 miless
Recelnts

Ternevsr : 11253 24833 1085
Issue of shares 14080 - -
Netnow berrewinps oot - 400
Mevements In werking capital 8) 22 v g3 )]
43098 24613 10887

Pamnents
Sash ensrating costs 14258 18543 e
Financing costs 602 549 na
Bepayment of barrewings - o nso
Capital sxpendityre 618 342 507
Costsf scquisition 2159 - -
ONidents pald - 533 -
Taxation 1134 1244 o
Netcash Now 2680 858 818
Ogsaing nst kalancs (11 ] ms b1 1]
Clesing net balance N9 3me 4887

Ths Ginstrative prelacted cosh flows should ke read In conjunction with the assumptions sst eut belew.

Turaover sud sperating costs
The turmever and operating cests are based an the relevant miseral reseurces to e eatracisd, the expsctad grade Structares of tha

saiesble rasenrces, mineral cancestrates suid preducts and the axpected exiracon and the fallowing commemity prices:

Tivres mesids

Yaxr sillng Yaar suding oulley

27 Becomber I ocomber 21 Karchk

Cammedy 2 207 2004
Cesl Australls sxpent ES8 porieuns 18350 3493 305403528 3300 1s 3848
Goal Aostrails dsmestic USH por tanns 124511832 Uizt 2213 NAIte 251
Ceal Samth Africa expant USE Rerteame 2980 35 305
Caal Ssuth Africa demestic BSE aertenne 822 125 m
e B30 pertenne 700 104208 11800
Femschrams UScperd ' 70 70 2300
Yansdiam Pentsxide $S0nerh 18 i 258
Ferrovanadinm $58 dartemns 140 1018 150

Eapits! sxpeniiture
Capital exporiiture kas beon prejectsd in e with the lsap-tsrm stratogic pians of the Entarped reun.

Acguisitiens snd dispesaly
for the pureeso #f the estimated cash Misws, i has bosn sssumied that the Exfarged Greup will mst make any majer acwulsitiens er
tispesals, aithsayh such acnuisitians and dispesals may I Isct eceur.
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Inllation
Axnual iafistisn has bean sstimsted by the Xsirata AR a3 §% In Sewth Alrica, 2.5% ia Australia, 2.5%In the U5 a0g 2.5% In Snaln In respect of
sdministrative exDenses threvgsut b perid

Tgxatisn
Cash tax ssSumed ROYARIS 23 @ porcentage of profit hafors Lix as folows:

Year sasing 31 December 2002 26%
Yesr sading 31Decomber 2003 24%
Year enging 31 0ocomshnr 2004 25%
interest rates
Interss? ralas are assumed te B9 0% Ber ARNUM 6N DASIVE Cash Kalancss and 3.35% per Annum sn corperats berrswings.
Exchangs fatsy
The tolowiny rates have been sdeptst:
For e yosr saded For e sy snded For e Sree meniks snsod
31 Secomiver 2082 J1December 2083 J7 Barch 29064
$S81=1AR 1100 . SSE=IRATLIB SNy
= U184 =A¥p185 =AUD-1.58
= RSL0 =10 =BiRe-109

Bthor significant assamptions

Thare will be ns changa In cwrrent legisiatien, taxatien or reguiations or currsatly sccopted practics Ua particular with regsrd b the
regeirsmmsnts assaciated with smvirsamental matters er concerainy the remittance of lunds s7 sxchange coutrals) ar siverss nluul.
econsinic or sscis! changss, which will sigalticantly affect Uis Enlarged Branw'’s eporstions.

There will bs ne matertal disraytisx ts the Enlarged Gremp's business duo ts industrial disputes, egnipnent kreakdswn, asiural disastors
o] sifverwise.

Finding reguinment

$50400 miRien fusdiny roguirsd (xet yst committsd) in March 2004 te reptace certaln doit.

Sensitivity sasiysis

:nmm:a:unmlmmmw%nmmuun-mummmmnamnmonmommmnnmn-mrw31
acember 2002.

BSImiiaes : -10% +10%
Rasscass 7m0

taal 1ns +918
e -138 +298
txrams 184 +183
amp +509 24
IR +41 539

Yave 2> F ey
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OVERVIEW OF THE COAL BUSINESSES

Tha tabila belew sets aut Enex sad Cutker's resauctive Asstralisn and Sauth Alrican coal resexrcd aud rossrve hase.

Reserves Mwezkie ln-siu Ressurces
(milNen toanes) (milion foanes!
Nossurod sad
Proves Probakle Narkstable indicatod Laforrod
Rosorves fosormes Reservos Mosearces Resourcss

Anstrafis (D s 538 185 3868 1832

ity Neuoged ) 251 2% L4 242 1

Logwe Monaged (3] -4 ’ & 258 s
Tetal Seuth Atrics 354 283 381 m 1618
Total Coal Businessas 802  74] 148 8630 1850
Note:

Fardafinitions of resaurces audl ressrves ses “Busis of preparation ~ Ore raserve and minermi resenrce reporting” in this Part 4 of this
muenptement

Tetais are sakject ts remnding.

1) Austrailsn Basstves and Researces as at 30 Neveniber 2001

2] Buiker mansged Rosorves ani Resonrces as at 31 Docsmbser 2001

31 Ingwe managed Sessrves and Beseurces oz ot 31 Dacemker 2000, Rlctsnruit and FTIY stivibotabis praductien Ter 2001 was 5.9 millien
teanss.

Praductisn

Ths tahie belew sets out the ming preduction. consalidiated sredzctien and attributakle greduction of the Coeal Businesses [Breken Sown
Ratwesa the Australlan sni Seath African sperstisns) ter the year endei 31 lugﬂu 2001

Taar saded 31 Docamber 20071
e Prodoctios [ milion oumes)
Austraiia g 4f ]
Sagth Airics 429
Tetal Casi Rusinesses 3
RrEwtahlv Pradiction
Austrafia 102
Sewmh Alrics m
Total Coal Ensinasses 319
Nete:
Far definitisns of nroduction terms ta¢ “Pregaration of infaruation - Preductien and Sales”
Tetals are subject ta reanding .

FAnancial information ox the Coal Rusinssses

The tabis belew prevides anaadiicd combined Consiructed ilustrative inancisl intsrmation i relatisn te the Ceal Business for the ysar
ended 31 Bocacxher 2001 The infermation fas Been extracted frem nats 11 ts the unausited are forma financial Infermation, sxul has boos
presared in accerdancs with "Nasis of pregarstisn - Unswdlted cambined constroctve (Iistrative fizancis! infermetien”, sot out In this
Part L ol thiz annsumcement

Fasr smsied s

31 Bocomber 2981 porcontage N

ozl Bysivesses SNe) e Cromp
Tamever 144828 1]
BITBA 118004 0
EBIT INASS 113
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SYERVIEW OF THE COAL BUSINESSES' AUSTRALIAN SPERATIONS

Key characteristics of the assels

Ainy puerstions

ArIng/2s350¢ 23809 bar Saws Dive Privcissl 2oty mive
Asstralis Sinky commenced
dotores! y_ A apvation

Sakhridee Crewp 885% N

Salys Opsacst 582% Ceermtim Spencat Bragiime, truck and shove} w3

SonthBaigaBnderyreund 582%  Bperatimy Smisryreund G deveisnmont sod ongwall satractisn /]

Sehans S82% et Sadsryreums 5l sevsispment and isugaral] axtraction nn

Suigalory Temm preject 582%  Prejest(D Sxdergrount CiM dovelopmont and langwall extraction /s

-Bagl Bonts 832%  Onsnation Undergronnd CM dovelopment suil lengwall sxtractien 14 i]

-Runsing Stresm praject 685%  Preject Spescat/ Spencm with anderprausd poteatisl 7

Sadsryreand

Macqusrie Cond W 80%

“West Wallsend 80% Sarating Saderurecnd CM dovetopmmont and langwall extraction %6

‘Westside 80% Opsrating Opencut Excavater and track .1

-ardits Barehals prejecl 80% Praject Bedsrpresnd CM sovelepmen, Hnited sxtractisn a»

-Mitchells Fst preject 80% Preject Undsroreund Undergreand and epsucat petemtint "a

‘Toruiba BO% Care snd Undsrgreund Care asd maimenance na

malatanance

Lisdell Cronp B15% :

Uil 615%  OGperating Bpencat Truck sad shieve! frem discrets pits 1889

-Blsndsll preject B15%  Prejsciil) faencnt Truck, and sheve! and oragHne with (1]

undergraund pelentia)
Tegara Narth prajsct 3% Project Saencat/ CM develspment and lengwall extractien, [ 7]
Snderyrennd trock and shovel

CEmpock BE%

‘ndergreand 84% Spenxting Undsryreund CM sevelopmeont and lougunti extractisa 1885

fpeacat 8% Project (1) [ 1111 Truck snd sheve! nls

Mot Swey _189% Operatiun  Opencmt _Trackanisheveliomacominiey 1983

Conk 5% aad [~ ] [; ]

Duited Operatiag Endsrgreund CM developmest Iutars lsngwall axtractien 1992

[T . .,

ian Bndergraund 90% Operating Sadergrannd CM develenment and lsugwall extractisn 1988

-Btan Spencut 20% Cpsrating Spentat Dragiiwe, truck sad shevel 1882

Netes:

SN mesas cantinssus miner.

1) Tebsdovelaped within the tarm of Exsx I8 of mins lerecssts.

1)  Brpisration adis communced drivage in Augest 2801

31 Baitans s ciass¥ied a5 a project Rewsver mining has commincad
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Summary of Fradactisn -Enex

2091 Prosiection (s miliee 2857 Saiss (In teiliion fonsss)
ases)

e foexy Mee  LrBwtable Toisiline  AyBatatle

1 Acribxtebly Froduction Production Sales Sales
Coaimine orest %
Saikridge Cromy
Buiss ”® 582 38 22 37 21
Seuth Suiga "% 582 25 u 24 13
Beltana () ] 682 00 8 as o0
Baal bsne ® 832 7 | u 24 14
Macunstie Coal
loint Yesture
West Wallsend be 1] 2] 22 3 18
Westsife oe  §:] 81 [ 1] 02 05
Teraina
Liddsi} Growp
Ligdel) oS 815 2] 13 2 18
Cummetk 1 ] 84 u 12 15 12
iR fwed ”© 100 a4 “ 44 [ ¥}
Salisd L ] 85 0.8 [+ 0s °
N
Dlsn Unsdergrennd Be 80 35 2 ¥ § 28
Hisn $penct ot 20 23 18 20 18
Tetal 24 02 203 5
Nate:

For turther infermatien on financial and technical termus s00 “Basis of preparation ~ Ore resarvss ani miseral rasenrcs reperting and

Preduction ani saiss” in this Part 4 of this sunsuncemest.

Fer year sndsd 31 Seconmtter 2001

Tetals stihject te reanding.

] 95 = Opencat, 08 = Unteryraund.

2 Akheugh BeRans dad stirfurtabie preductisn in 2001 and is expected te havs attridatable preduction in 2082, It is cumrently
clsssified as a prejest

Tetal sales of the Enex Anstralian opsrstisn’s mines

Ths {eflswing tahie sats sut the geepraphical breakdswm of axpiert saiss of the Enex Austrailas spsratisn’s mises is 2001 hasod va totad
Rting preduction:

Japan
other
Talwan
Kerea
fAnstrails

FRERELL;

Total

Nete:
" Ferdofinitions of presuction torms sas ‘Preparstion of infarmatian - Production and Sates”
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OVEBVIEW $F THE COAL BUSINESSE'S SOSTH AFRICAN SPERATIONS

Xoy characteristics of the assels

Raly misw
F commenced

Neision/Kine istwest  Twe ol mive Frincigsl miving method apersties
Dutker managed operatiens
Twestontsin divisien

Waternan 109% Undsrgreund and spsacast Drill and bisst, dezers, axtavatsr/irack 1330
Beschmans 00% Undergronsd Conitausns miner, il and biast un
Witcens 100% Uxdorgrosss Drit and dlest 1948
Seuth Withank wo% Unsersremnd Centinusas miney 845
Ripuaz fvision

Phesax 100% Snderyrsuni Dritl snd hlast 1938
Taviststk 100% Sadsryrsamd Caxtinsans miner, érill and blast 1338
Tew/TESAN

ATC 50% Sndergreand Contisusus miner 18N
ATCOR 50% Spcncant Oragiine, sxcavatsr/track 1892
NMpamaisays dvisien

Strathras 100% Ungdergreond Contixxsus mines 1888
Tsalentls 100% Opomcast speration Bazers, excavatar/rack 1999
Spitzkep 100% Ungargracnd and spancast Contiansus ines, #rill and biast

sxcavatesr/truck 19es

iagws manzycd sparxtises

Rlatsprukt i 50% Underground and epencast Contisusns mines, iragiing mid 19708
Denglas Tavisteck )V

Deuglas 18% Ontergrevnd and spaRcASt Continusus mines, dragiine, 1898

axeavater/irock

Middelaury 1% Upsncast Bragiine 1982
ins:

n aiditien te the sperating mines listed abeve, Buiker plans te Aegin sreductien fram 2 new nine in 2004. This new aiine is referred ta as

Reedgevendsn, and will consist of indsrursund sad spsncsst speratians.
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Ssmmary of Production - Oulker

2001 Production 20
st axbors Sw Lottt Arietabie
N Uit Prasection Arodactior Sales
Conlwise Meossi(y)  [miNiow emees] [~ ) Omiliog oames)
Ssaes)
Twestsateln Bivision
Waterpan oe/es 100 1 1 1
Beschmans (] 190 1] 0 18
Witcsas ] 100 10 10 w
Seuth Withank ” 100 as oA 3
[Mguaz! Bivitien
Phsalx ] 100 08 (1] (1]
Tavtstack ] 100 12 13 12
ATE 7] 50 18 1] (1)
ATCOM © 50 23 u 12
Mpwmalseys Bivisien
Strathrae ve 100 08 08 (T}
Testents o¢ 100 12 12 1
Soizken oc/e 100 u “ "
Minas sperated by IV partners '
Ristspruit et/ 50 3 19 18
Boagtas and Niddiebury o/ 1 252 u 3
Tetsi 2 a2 m [T
Nate:

For furthar infsrmation sx financisl ond techaical terms szu ‘Basis of areparation - Ore retsrves and mineral ressurcs reparting aod

Preduction and saies” in this Part 4 of this anneuncement

Foryesr anded 31 Docember 2001

Tetals sukiset le remaiiing.

m 0C = Gpencat, U = Undsrgreand.

@ 2001 Aurbintadie sales mckides 52 theusand tannes banght frem ether speraters setd iy Bulker and threush Bukker's Alchanis’
Bay Coal Terminal entitiomont.

Total sales of the Sonth Alrican eperatien’s minss

The fellowing tabls ssts sut the gesgraghical hreakiewn of sitributails saies ol the Sexth Alrican sperstioay’In 200t

Sales
Ewepe & Mediterransan 89%
Sauth Airica 25%
Other exzant %
Tetal 0%

Nate:
For definitians of preduction torms 530 "Pragaration of irfermatiod - Preduction and salss.”
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BASIS OFPREPARATION

Xstrata AG Grawm, Enex Srsup, Buiker Greup snd the Eniaryed Grsvn
In this annsuncemsnt:

o arelsresce to the Xstrata AR Greup Is te Xstrata AG and is subsidisties anil subsidiacy andertakings, ans where ths context reguires,
itz asseciated mudortakings, a3 censtituted immaiistely prise to the Merger axd the Acguisition:

. arammummmbulmnnmaumuummmnmlmmmnmum
regidres. iis assecisted undertakioos:

«  arsferenca ts tha Doiker Group is ts Buiker Mining (Pty) Ltd sast its subsisiaries sad subsidiary indertaldngs. and whers the coatext
reunires, its assecisted andertakings and Duiker Marketing AG: sad

. |Munnonmulmunmmumuuﬁmnmmmmnlmmmm
its assacisted uniertakings as cosstitutad ixunesistaly liewing the Maryer aad the Acquisitisx and facliudes the Exex Gronn asd
the Buiksr Gromp

Unauiited combines construcied lilusirative flnancis Ixfermatian

Unsudited cembingd csastrucisd Nustrative Rusncial inferreation bas beon preyarsd s I the Acquisitien Legather with the scquisitiens
of Rstariana ds Zne SA [by the Xstrata AG Creun) sad Saldiidge vy the Ensx Greuy) had sccurred o8 11anuary 2001 AS s resalt thisdess
ast represant prs forms fnancial infsrmation orepared tn accerdance with Chapter 12 of the fisting ratss of the UK Usting Authertty ss
inchrdes the resaits of campsuies sud busisesses scanired by the Xstraea AC Srans and the Enex Srocy duriny 2007 srisr Is the date 01
thelr respactive acouiskiss. The infsrmatisn hiss Nesn preparsd using Iniprmation sxtracied frem the wsauiiied pre ferma Nnancis)
Intsrmiation i Part 4 of this snssucement, nciuding Infermatisn relsting ts the rosults of the companies scuuired by thy Kstrats A Crewp
and the Ensx Grewp 137 Lhe Beried since 11snuary 2001 te ths dats of thely respective scquiskion. This infermstien Ras hesn afiustsd 1o
reflact the amortisstisn of yeowill on the Acguisition and the scouisitien 1 Astariana de Tinc SA Rased ob Infermation camained Inthe
meawiited pre forma Sxancind infsrnatisn st sut in Part & of this annsuncemsnt, Nsirata A4 belisves that Biess acjustrmests are
apyrepriate and reassnzhis, hewever, the unsudited combined construcied itustrative fixancial information is net Bectssartly indicative
ol the #aerating resuity or fizancial pesitisn that the Eniarged Sreun weald have schieved bad the Acqaisitien sad the sther scauisitiens
referrad to sbeve eccurred 5t 1 [ansary 2081 or o] whst the Exlaryed Cronp's resulls of sperations gy Ds for any future periad. Tha
cnsudited combined constructsd Emstrative fiazncist infsrmstiss is for [(astrativy purnesss enly and is Rot Intended te pive 8 thia
picture of Anancia Infermatien relsting ta the Entaryed Sremn.

Ore resarve and minerai ressarce regartiag

@re ressrves and minoral ressurces repacted in this azneancensent conply with ths “Austraississ Cade for RBeporting of kieatified Ninsral
Ressarces and Ore Resorves”. This Cods is subiitied “Repsrt of the inint Ore Ressrves Conmmitiss of the Axstraissian ingtitite of Miing
and Metaliursy, Aostralian (ssthnts of Gessclentists, asd Minerais Csunchl of Austrails”, and Is cammsenly referred to 23 the “108¢ Code”.
The sfitisn of the JORC Codls In ferce 23 st the date of this decament s dated Septomber 1980, The JSNC Code recegniaes o lundaineatsi
distigction detwess resenrces aaf resarves. Ressurces ars hased an misers! sceurrences anantified su (ke basis of ssalsnical data sant
an assuned cut-off grads, and are divided ints msasured, indicated sad inferrsd catsgeries rsfiecting decresing ceaflisace in
gealagica] axd yrade continuity  No allswancas ars lncludef ist dilutien oud lesses during mining. bt tha repertiag f ressores
sstimsiss carries the lmplicstien Diat Dher are ressansbis Dresyects for oveniual scenamic sxpioitatisn. BaSSuTCSS Dizy trorefers o
viewsd 53 the sstimatisn stags prisr ta tre appiication of mere stringent sconsmic criteria for ressive asfinitien, such as & rigsreusly
defined cut-a71 yrace and ming desipn extines, alews with aliswsness for filution and lesses diwing mining. Unider this system of
regsrting. It is coraensn practice for csmuanies ¢ fuciode I the reseurce catsgery material with 8 fiigh sxpuctatien of conversies (s
reserves, But for which the regulred detaiisd mine design werk ks cat yst hasn undartsken

Bra Besarves a3 dsiined iry the JRE Code are dasigasied a3 proves sad predsbie, any ars Serived iram the correspeniing messared gnd
Indicatss rosaurce sstimatas by incinding aliowsnces ter dlintisn and Isssss guriny minieg. R is 50 sxplichiy stated hritier requirement
that sther meditying scsasmic, mining, metallurgical, marksting, losal, savireamental secisi and govarnments! facters sise be taken inte
account Roparting conventisns that may be adetsd are to repertressurcs sstitates a3 incinding that pertien sszaratoly assisnsdta the
proved and prohabis cSLEESTY. 97 19 repart reseurces 83 atMitiensi (s that pertien saparately assigned ts the orovel and prebakis
catsgery.

[m TS 2ARBINCEMISAL rRSOATTH AN r3SAIVE CELMIALES a0 FOQSITON 33 at J1 Decomizer 2000, sxcont fon:

o  the Retsprult, Dangiss axd Middeiburs cealmines in Seuth Atrica tsr which resenrce and reserye sstimatos are renorted a3 at 31
Bacenker 20600; and

« ihsminesiuthe Enex Grevw for whick ressurce and rosarvs sstimates ave rapsitad a3 at 30 Nevember 200t
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Praduction and sales

inthis annemmcoment, praduczisa has bysy messared in twe ways:

Mixs sreduction o7 Tetal reguctisn or Telad ming production. Mine preductien of Istal preduction st tatal mine preductisn is
wmlnﬂnmlm-I'nnaurﬂc-lu.tuuuuﬂummnﬂlmnuﬂmlmnﬂllﬂlmsltlhtumln

. Atiritertable protimetion Attributabls preductien Is that part of mine, total of tatal mine procwetion in which the Asirats AS
Grexp, ths Enpx Greng or the Buiksr Group, 53 the ¢330 My b, Azl an scanamic Interest 2t the relovant Ume. R thersfers extindss
greduction attritutshis ts minsrity interests in controlled subsifisries and the intarests of Isint venture partnars.

I this sunsaacement, sales by veleme havs bess messured in twe ways:

. Tetaf sales. Total salss Is squsl to the tetal saies trem a particular mine or speratien for the whele year reyardiess of
ownsrship of that mine or (et eperstion.

. Auritwtable ssles. Auvibutshis sales s that part of sales (race » particuiar mins o speratien ia which the Astraia AG Srexp, the
Enex Graxp or the Buiktar Croug, 23 tho casa may be, had an econamic intorest atthe relevant tims. It tharelers sxciuziss saiss atiribetahle
te minerity interests n contrefied subsifiariss and the interests ot jeintvesture panners.

This snnsuncomeci cantains referonces ts "cest curves”. A cest curve Is & graghic representation in which the tatal preduction velume #1
2 piven comnedity 2cress tho relevant indsstry Is arranssd os the hasis of averags snil csats of productien irem lewest ts bhighast ts
pormit csmparisens of the ratatie coast pesitions of particalar preductien sRes, individual preducers o sreuys of producers scress e
werld o7 within » siven country of regisn. Senorally, o preduter's pasition sn o cost corve it deseriked Interms of the particutsr prartiis or
tarelin in which the precuction of 2 Biven piant ov prefute? or Srefg of Brecucers anpears.

The cest curves refarred ts In this aansancement have besn abiained by the Xstrata AR Gretp frem indspondont ixinstry analysts with
recennissd experiencs la constructing cest carves for the relsvant commeditiss, namsly AME Missral Econsmics AMET, Bresk Bust
Miaing 5. Mals! iugnsiry Consuitants CSresk Noat™) and CRU Wieraational ['TRUL To consiract cest carves. IRess analysts comslle
ixforeation irem g variety of ssurces, Inclulag ressrts mads svailahis by praducers, sits visity, persenal coutacts, trade pubiicatiens sod
other analysty’ reperts. Althesyh greducars may thas participats (e seins axtsnt [n the precess threngd which cast carves are
censtructad, they are typically unwiliiay te raliiste cost astalyses directly bocouss of cammuercial sansitivities. Inovitahly, sssamptiens
mest ke maga by the analyst with resgect ty data that such saalyst is unshie ts sktaln and judyomest must be braught ts bear ia the cass
of virtmafly all data hewever sbtaiad In additien, ths tims rexuired te produce cost cirrves means that oves the mest recest svailadle
exsruples will bo UE2NH 13 take sccount of recen! deveispmants: (n same £33, 1h MESt recent availahis cost curve may be based snt
dats that i sevare! ysars oid. Cests dats fer spacific prafucers may he Nased o0 Cests Incarred by (ke Droqucers over INeif rssPecive
ScCounting years: 1e (ke axiont thess fiffer, the direct comparshiilty of their costs may o Hmited. The cast curves refarred to In this
suRenscament reflect dirsct cash cests of praduction enly (which, la the case sf cesi caxves pregared by G4, [nciuges dstivery castsl,
and exclude nan-cash or indirect costs (sxch a3 depreciatien, interest and unreiated everhesd sxponses) and casts rsiating speciically
ts marksting and cxpert. Marssver, all a3t cxyves smbedy 2 navsber of signifcast sssunrptions with respect ts sxchaags rtes mnd sther
variables. in smmmtary, 1he manner in which cest carves ars censtructsd means that they have 8 namber of sipnificant iakerant
limitations.

In cortaln casss, cost carves praduced by mere thas ene repitakle Industyy ansiyst may exist with regard te 2 specific commesity. The
methedelogies smpisyss and conciusions resched by such anslysis may iifter. Nersever, (e refiability of any gives cost curve may be
ANNCER te 853438, 2% the ScCETATY of (e dats, and the rezsesabioncss ol the sssamEtiens on which It has een hasat ssuaily cannat be
tosted dirsctly. Particutsr preducers are, hewover, o & pesitien is validats the accarscy of the presestatisn with resssci te their ewn
costs, which can previde a usaiul indicatien of the rellability o » cest carve sverall st malwithstandisg thelr sherttomings,
Indepsniestly preduced cosl carves ars widsly sssd inthe indusiriss In which ths Xstrats AQ. Enex and Buiker Grouss operats.

The spacific cost Carves ts which this anueancament refers are the mest recent cest curves which have besa ohtainsd by the Xstrata AR
Group. AN txch cest carves ars Rased on 2007 st Whilst the dirsctors of Kstrata AR keve satisfied themsoives that the Xstrata AR
Grexp’s own preduction costs ars accarsisly represanted, ths Crong is nst In a pasitien to verily dirsctly the cost data sn sther sresncers
from which thess cast corves wers cstistructad or (o Uptiats sweh dats.
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This arnssncement bas boea lssued By Xstrata AG and IS the sals resnensihiity of Xstrata AS and has bsen appreved salely
fer the purpesss ¢of Sectien 21 of the Anancial Services axd Markets Act 2000 by LP. Mergaa pic (“/PMargan”) of 125 Lenten
Wail, Landsn EC2Y SA

IPNarga o its Eowinates affilstes Is acting for Xsirats AG ans Xstrats gle nd R e29 eisa In censectien Wi ths
Brepesed Tramsactien and will net be resgensikie te any sther garsan lor previding the pretections sfierded te cllonts of
1PMergas, erter previding sovice Ia ralaties s the sreussed Transsctisn.

This press relesse dess et contain Sr constituts au effer or Invitatisn to purchase or subscrie fsr awy secaritias of
Kstrata AG or Xstrata pic and sheutd not be relied on la connectien with suy decisian to parchsse er subscriis Isr suy suchk

The Mnsaclal infernatien In this press releass dees net comprise statutery eccounts of any company withis the msaning of
section 249 of the Companies Act 1985 of the United Kisydern. Ne audited accennts of Ksirata pic have beon Srepared

previsnsty.
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Exhibit 3

2001 Xstrata Annual Report released February 26, 2002.
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Chairman’s review

Dear Shareholder

The global ecanemic downturn in this past year has
had a profound effect on the demand for and price of
commodities. The financial results of the Group reflact
these difficult market conditions. However, the
Group’s ability to generate cash and income at the
trough of the commodity cycle is testimony to the
qualily of its asset partlolio and the prudent
management of its aperations.

Chrome [-30 per cent.), zinc [-24 per cent.] and
vanadium prices {-18B per cent.} all fell sharply in 2001.
in the case of chrome, demand fell away to such an
extent that production cutbacks were necessary.
However, our cash costs of production were reduced
to mitigate the loss in revenue.

In summary, operating eamings before effects of
disposals and impairment decreased ta USD 103.1
miltion [2000: USD 126.5 miltion). Cash provided by
operating activities after working capital movements
declined by 10.5 per cent. to USD 100.0 mitlion (2000:
USD 111.7 million). Net cash used in investing activities
was USD 520.5 million compared to the previous year
net inflow of USD 152.7 million, It is important to note
the acquisition of Asturiana de Zinc SA for USD 453.6
million. Asturiana contributed USD 47.5 mitlion to
operating earnings for the last 8 months of the year,

The acquisition of Asturiana represents a

development of the Group's strategy, providing both
geographical and product diversification, Following
the successful expansion of the San Juan de Nieva

plant five months earlier than anticipated, Asturiana
increased annual design production capacity from
340,000 tonnes to 450,000 tonnes of zinc metal. This
consolidates Asturiana’s position as one of the
world's targest lin terms of capacityl and among the
lowest cosl producers of zinc metal in the world.
Asturiana gives the Group a significant thirg metal
business to complement its existing chrome and
vanadium alloy operations,

In reviewing the Group’s portfolio it has been decided
- based on our current market view - to book an
impairment charge of USD 45.5 million against the
carrying value of the Windimurra vanadium aperations
in Western Austratia.

Disposals of operations during 2001 included the
Company's disposal of its coal interest in the United
mine in Australia for USD 44.0 million and the farestry
trading operations in Chile for USD 4.0 million. These
disposals resulted in a baok loss of USD 1.9 million.

Daniel Sauter and Jean Pierre Conrad resigned from
the Group during the course of 2001. On behalf of the
Board, | extend our gratitude for their able
stewardship of our Group over these pasl few years.
Mick Davis joined the Group as Chief Executive Olficer
on 1 October 2001 and Trevor Reid joined in January
2002 as Chief Financial Officer. The Board has every
contfidence that given their wealth of experience in this
industry and impressive track records that Xstrata's
future is in able hands.

1 - Xstrata annuat report 2308
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Prospects

The Board has approved a strategy designed to build
Xstrata into a diversified international naturat
resources group, which has a platform to seek value
enhancing growth opportunities. Inherent in this
strategy is the creation of a company which has
critical mass, low cost operations, 3 focused
management team and a diversified business.

However, the Board recognizes that this plalfarm for
growth has still to be created, to facilitate the pursuit
of this strategy. In this context the acquisitian of the
Australian and South Alrican cosl assets of Glencore
international AG by Xstrata, which was announced on
21 February 2002 is & crucial etement of realising our
vision. The purchase price of USD 2,500 miilion,
subject to an agreed working capital adjustment, will
be satisfied partly by cash and par:ly by shares, the
cash poriion being raised in the debt and equity
markets. It is our judgement that the equily capital
raising exercise is best done by a campany which has
its primary listing on the London Stock Exchange,
where a number of the wartd's leading diversified
mining companies are listed. This propesal is being
put to shareholders at a general meeting cn 19 March
2002.

Xstrata's Head Cffice will continue to be based in Zug,
Swilzerland and it will maintain its Swiss residence
for tax purposes. Xstrata intends to apply for a
secondary Listing on the Swiss Stock Exchange and

" seeks to be included in the approgriate index.

An exciting era far our Group is about to dawn and |
wish our new management team, under the
leadership of Mick Davis, well in their endeavours to
build a diversified internationat natural rescurces
group and the potential to enhance value for alt of it5
stakeholders,

Willy R. Strothotte
Chairrman
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Review of operations

Overview

The resulls of operations in 2001 reflect the difficult
conditions prevailing in the markets in which the
Company operates. Prices of ferrachrome, vanadium:
and zinc fell to historic lows during 2001. The effect of
lower product prices was offset in parl by the ongaing
lowering of unit production costs and by the
depreciation of the South African rand and Australian
dallar against the United States dollar. During the
year, the Campany completed the acquisition of the
Spanish zinc producer, Asturiana de Zinc SA
{"Asluriara). Asturiana is already making an
important contribulion te Group revenues and
earnings. In the last quarter of 2001, the Company
commenced the cammissioning of its magnesium
scrap recycling facitity in Indiana, USA.

The slowdown among the major world ecanomies
during 2001 resulted in a contraction in industrial
output in the United States, South East Asia and
Europe. Coupled with the impact of rising
manufacturing inventory levels, these conditions have
dampened commadity demand and prices. Cespite the
uncertainty created in the wake of the events of

11 Septernber 2001, management beliave there are
signs of incipient economic recovery in the major
economies. Supported by substantial cutbacks being
implemented by producers, this is expected 1o lead tu
reductions in inventory levels which should be
reflected in modest price improvements for mast
commodity praducts in 2002.

For the year under review, the Group reported net
earnings of USD 11.3 million [USD 1.95 per share] on
revenue of USD 413.4 million compared with net
earnings of USD 170.0 million (USD 29.44 per share}
on revenue of USD 597.9 million in the previous year.
Excluding the effect of dispasals and a one-off
provision taken against assets, the net earnings per
share for 2001 was USD 10.16 per share against USD
17.52 per share for 2000.

The acquisition of Asturiana represents an important
strategic development for the Group, providing both
geographicat and product diversification. Asturiana
reported operating earnings of USD 47.5 million for
the eight months ended 31 December 2001, despite a
declining zinc price.

The expansion of the San Juan de Nieva plant five
months ahead of schedule increases annual design
production capacily from 340,000 tonnes to 460,000
tonnes of zinc metal and further strengthens the
Group’s position as one of the largest in terms of
capacity and among the lowest cost producers of zinc
maetal in the world. It has given the Group a significant
third metal business to complement its ferrochrome
and vanadium operations.

Zinc prices declined by 24 per cent. in 2001, reflecting
the contraclion in wortd economic activity and decline
in 2inc consumption. Cutbacks and destacking by
consumers led to a reduction in zinc consumption of
1.8 per cent. to 8.7 million tonnes in 2001. Throughout
2001. treatment charges declined, reflecting the
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global reductian of zinc cancentrate stocks due to
mine cutbacks.

More than 80 per cent. of world ferrochrome
consumption is used in staintess steel production.
Weslern world consumption of stainless stea!
decreased in 2001 and is estimated to have fallen by
approximately 3 pei’ cent. with consumption in the
USA failing by approximately 13 per cenl. Most
ferroachrome producers at the start of this year were
burdened with high inventeries and, with lower
demand for primary chrome units, prices have been
under pressure.

To establish 3 better balance between supply and
demand, major ferrochrome producers lincluding
Xstrata) curtaited procuction in 2001 which is expected
to improve the market balance.

Vanadium consumption is linked closely to warld steel
praduction, which declined slightly in 2001. However,
the first hatl of that year also saw a rise in demand for
higher vanadium steels. Despite this, the industry
continues to suffer from overcapacity. With continuing
aversupply, it is unsurprising that prices felt in the
second hall 2001 and it is expected lo continue to
impact the market significantly. Prices are expected to
remain depressed.

Xstrata's vanadium operations centinue to benefit
Irom the offtake arrangement with Glencore
Internationa! AG, which provided a gquaranteed
minimum orice of USD 3.65 per pound far seven
million pounds of vanadium pentoxide production in
2001. The depreciation of the South African rand has
enabled the Group's South African operations 1o
remain competitive even at current depressed prices.
Following a review of the partlatia, an impairment
ctharge of USD 45.5 millian has been booked against
the carrying value of the Windimurra vanadium
operations in Western Australia.

The Group completed the construction of its
magnesium scrap recycling facility in Indiana, USA, on
schedule and within budget. The 25,000 tannes per
annum plant, which represented a capital invesiment of
USD 31.3 million, will recycle scrap generated by the
die-casting industry into high-purity magnesium alloys.
Demand for such alloys is growing, driven by increased
use in automotive applications.
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Metals & Minerals

Zinc

* Integration in the Xstrata Group
s Improved results in spite ¢f price collapse

* Expansion of capacity successfully commissioned
in July 2001

s Producticn increases tg record levels
* Jarolix process successiully commissioned

Markets

Zinc's main end-use markets, the construction and
automobile industries, were affected in 2091 by the
economic activity slowdown, cutbacks and de-slocking
by consumers in the USA and other western world
markets. nitial estimates poinrt to a reduction in 2inc
metal consumption of about 1.6 per cent. worldwide to
8.7 million tonnes in 2001. The contraction in zinc
demand took place mainly in the USA where zinc
cansumption is estimated to have decreased by 13 per
cent.

2inc prices weakened sharply during the year. The
LME cash settlement price for zinc fell from an initial
quotation of USD 1,012 per tonne at the start of the
year, to a low of USD 738 per tonne in November,
recovering slightly to end the year at USO 771 per
tonne, The resulting average settlement price for the
year was USD B87 per 1onne compared to an average
of USD 1,128 per tanne in the previous year, a
decrease of 21 per cent.

Operations

The Group acquired an interest of over 5% in
Asturiana in May 2001. The zinc business contributed
USD 266.6 millian to the Group's revenue and

USD 47.5 million lo operating earnings for the eight
month period ended 31 December 2001. The drop in
zinc prices was offset only partially by the 3 per cent.
strengthening of the USD against the PTA, However,
the impact was mitigated by the effect of the
expansion of production capacity at the San Juan de
Nieva ptam which was successtully commissioned in
July 2001, five months ahead of schedule and below
budget. In paraile! with the new 120,000 tonne
expansion, Asturiana upgraded most sections of its
existing 340,000 tonne per annum plant.
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The plant produced 390,792 tonnes of zinc in 2001, 15
per cent. mare than the previous year's output of
340,705 tonnes. Sulphuric acid production atso
increased by 14 per cent. to 584,426 tonnes.

The Hinojedo roasting plant processed almast 50,000
tonnes of zinc concentrates from the Reocin mine
producing 28,229 tonnes of liquid sulphur dioxide. Zinc
oxide continued to be the main product at the Arnao
facitities. Production in 2001 was 13,677 tonnes, an
increase of 23 per cent, over the previcus year. Mine
oulpul at the Reocin mine was 1,152,002 tannes of
ore in 2001, 7 per cent. maore than in the previous
year.

During 2007, all of the additional zinc production was
sold. Total 2inc sales increased to 376,607 tonres, an
increase ot 13.5 per cent. compared with 2000.

Sulphuric acid sales increased n 2001 by 18.9 per
cent. to 535,671 tonnes sold. Sales of germanium
ircreased from 4,901 kg in 2000 te 6,029 kg in 2001,

After 145 years of operation since it was opened in
1857, the Reocin mine is finally approaching the end
aof its life. Production is expected to continug until the
middle of 2003 when economic reserves will become
exhausted.

Outlook

With regard to zinc demand, there are reasons to be
cautiously optimistic about a recovery, given
management’s improved expectations for an upturn in
the US ecanomy and the high correlation of zinc
consumption with the level of econamic activity, we
feel confident that demand for zinc shoutd pick up
during 2002. However, a strong price rebound is not
expected in the short term,

Zinc mine closures are expected to tighten the
concentrates market, which might affect the level of
negotiated treatment charges for 2002, However, a
pertion of the contracted leed far the smelter has
treatment charges that had been fixed in previous
years at better terms,

China’s exports of zinc to the west are expected to
deccease in the short term. Production growth is
expected to be restrained by a lower availability of
feed material while domestic metal consumption
should continue growing at a last pace, resulting in a

reducticn in their supply surplus. These factors
should contribute to restoring the balance of zinc
supply and demand in the western world market,

Ferrochrome

e 5Sales volumes for the year were disappointing and
production curtailed accordingly

* Sound profitability maintained despite market
prices dropping to historic lows

» Jaint venture furnaces commissioned successfully

Markets

Western wortd ingot production of stainless steel,
which azcounts for more than 80 per cent. of
lerrochrome consumption, decreased from 18.7
million tonnes in 2000 to approximately 18 mitlion
tonnes in the year 2001 ~ a decrease of 4 per cent,
The USA was the worst perfarming market for
staintess steel, with output down by over 16 per cent,
High market prices for nickel encouraged stainless
steel producers lo maximise scrap usage, causing a
reguction in demand for virgin ferrochrome units as
nickel-containing scrap also contains approximately
18 per cent. chrome.

With most major ferrochrome producers still carrying
excess stock and demand for chrome units for
staintess steel reduced, prices came under severe
pressure, The weakening rand allowed South African
producers to compete at lower price levels.

Operations

The chrome business contributed USD 257.7 millicn to
Group revenue {2000: USD 419.3 million} and USD 66.2
mitlion to operating earnings (2000: USD 114.9
mitlion).

The ferrochrome operations consist of four chrome
mines and sixteen submerged arc electric furnaces
for the production of ferrochrome in the North West
and Mpumalanga provinces of South Africa, two of
which are operated in 3 joint venture with Samancor.
The results of these operations reflect the adverse
market condilions which prevailed during 2001. Sales
volumes were some 19 per cent. lower than those
achieved in 2000. Most of this reduction was
experienced during the first hall.
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To avoid an increase in stock and capital employed,
production of ferrochrome for the year was restricted
to 860,600 tonnes, 25 per cent. less than the 2000
production and substantially less than the rated
production capacity of the lerrochrome division, which
now totals 1.3 million tonnes per annum, During the
year, four furnaces were idled and the two furnaces
taken out of production at Lhe end of 2000 have not
been recommissianed. Despite the increased
overhead costs per unit, production costs were well
conlained in United States dellar terms also
reflecting the continuing weakening of the South
Alrican rand against the United States dollar.

Production of saleable ore at the Group's chrome
mines lor the year totalled 1.5 million tonnes against
the 1.9 miliion tonnes produzed in 2000, The mines
supplied more than 74 per cent. of the ore feed
required by the Greup's ferrochrome smetlers. The
balance was purchased from tocal third parties, the
bulk of which was obtained from platinum rmines in
the torm of chrome bearing tailings. Compared to the
more traditional chrome are feeds, these tailings,
when combined with the Group’s agglomeration
technology, continue to provide a compelitive source
of chramium units for the production of ferrochrome,

Outlook

Most major ferrochrome producers made significant
production cutbacks in 2001 and preducer stocks have
reduced to near normal lavels. With nickel prices
forecast to remain at around the USD 6,000 per tonne
leve!, scrap avalability in 2002 should be similar to
2001 lapproximately 4.7 million tonnas).

The fundamentals for stainless steel remain good
which it is hoped will lead to a recovery in
terrochrome prices and volumes.

Yanadium

= Continued oversupply preventing a recovery of
market prices

s Anincreased emphasis on ferrovanadium as
opposed to vanadium pentoxide sales

Markets

The consumption of vanadium is dependent on crude
steel praduction, as well as the intensity of vanadium
usage in the steel production process. The year 2001
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saw 2 slight overall decline in the total world steel
production when compared ta 2000. Fortunately for
the Company, the early part of 2001 saw a substantial
increase in the demand for higher vanadium-bearing
steels, resulting in an overall increase in demand for
vanadium during 2007, During the second half of the
year however, demand for vanadium units was
substantially lower than in the first half and this is
also reflected in the price trend.

The terrovanadium market price started the year at
just below USD 8.00 per kg and increased to just maore
than USD 8.50 per kg in the second quarter. It ended
the year at a recerd tow of USD 6.30 per kg. which
better reflected the market supply/demand balance
and inventary overhang.

~

Vanadium producers continued to be under pressure
during the course of this year. The vanadium
pentaxide market price was around USO 1.40 per
pound at the start of the year, firmed slightly during
the second quarter but softened gradually during the
remainder of the year to end arcund the USD 1.10
level,

Operations

The vanadium business contributed USD 43.5 mitlion
to Group revenue (2000: USD 68.5 miltion} and

USD 3.9 million [2000: USD 20.6 million} to operating
earnings before impairment of asset provisions.

The South African cperations were protected from the
full effect of the market by the price protection at USD
3.45 per pound they enjoyed fram Glencore lor seven
million pounds of their 2001 progduction. This
represented approximately 22 per cent. of all
equivalent sales volumes. The average price realised
during the year was therefore again slightly higher
than published market prices. This arrangement will
continue until the end of 2002 and wil! allow Xstrata
some flexibility in its production planning.

Unit production costs in South African rand terms
declined by more than 20 per cent., while the
weakening of the rand against the USD resulted in
average USD costs dropping by more than 35 per cent.
The Windimurra mine in Weslern Austratia continued
to improve its performance and produced 10.5 mittion
pouhds in 2001, against the 6.0 million pounds
produced in 2000 during the ramp up phase but at the
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end of 2001 took steps to reduce cests and vanadium
pentoxide production. Following a review, it has teen
decided o adjust the carrying vatue of Windimurra to
USD 28.0 million through an impairment provision of
USD 45.5 million.

Tota! vanadium pentoxide production for the year
totalled 38.9 million pounds, which represents an
increase of 37 per cent. over 2000. Ferrovanadium
production for the year was 6,118 tonnes, a fivefold
increase gver the quantity groduced in 2000, The
ferrovanadium plant improved its performance
conststently during the year and has proved that it is
able to exceed its design capacity of 6,000 tonnes per
year by at least 10 per cent.

Outlook

There is still 3 large imbalance in the market with
supply far exceeding the demand for vanadium units.
It is not expected that market prices will increase
aramatically from current levels untl @ material
reduction in supply takes place. it is expected that the
higher cest producers may not be able to sustain
production in the shart to medium term.

Magnesium business unit
* Construction completed on schedule and within
budget )

» Lower growth in 2001 results in reduced expected
scrap availability in 2002

* First commercial production to the markets

As new applications utilising magnesium are
introduced and the corresponding penetration of these
applications across vehicle lines occurs, the
generation of Class | serap magnesium is growing,
thus providing the catalyst for the development of the
magnesium scrap recycling industry.

The constructicn of both of the recyciing lines at the
Anderson, indiana, magnesium recycling facility has
been completed on schedule and within budget. Hot
commissioning of the first line was completed during
2001 and the first commercial grade production
recorded in November 2001,

Xstrala Magnesium’s plant will initially process two
different types of magnesium scrap; Class |
magnesium alloy scrap [clean, production scrapl and

Class It magnesium alloy scrap [commonly known as
post consumer scrapl.

Xstrata Magnesium plans to previde tolling services
for primary magnasium producers as well as die
casters. The balance of Xstata Magnesium’s business
will be on a buy/sell basis where scrap witl be
processed into magnesium ingot for resale to die
casters and other end users.

Indicalions are that there was an increase in the
intensity of use of magnesium in the US automotive
industry in 2001 which was partly offset by a decline in
car sales, The outlook for 2002 is that intensity of use
of magnesium in the autormiotive industry will continue
to increase due to new magnesium applications being
introduced on vehicles, even if vehicle production
remaine flat.

Energy

in May 2001, the Company disposed of its interest in
the United Coal Mine in New South Wales, Australia,
The effective date of the disposal is 1 January 2001
and the results of the coal business unit are not
included in the 31 December 2001 consolidated
financial statements.

Forestry

On 1 July 2001, a management buy-out was
completed between the management of the operating
subsidiary, Forestal del Sur Ltda ['FDS"|, and the
Company. The management of FDS bought all trading
activities and have entered into an agreement to
manage Forestal los Lagas | 'FLU). a business which
consists of a Eucaluyptus Globulus plantation that
was retained by the Company.

As a result of the managemant buy-out of FDS, the
results for the forestry operations were significantly
lawer than the previous year as FOS contributed
almost 97 per cent. of total operating activities. The
results for the year only include FDS trading activities
up ta 30 June 2001. Although the Company has
reduced its exposure to the forestry market fotlowing
the management buy-out of FDS, the outlaok for the
forestry operation for 2002 is subdued as woodchip
and pulplog prices are expecied to weaken further.
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Recent developments-

In February 2002 the Company entered inte a merger
agreement with Xstrata ple, a public limited company
incorporated in England and Wales specificalty for the
purpose of the merger. It is anticipated that prior to
completion of the mergar, the Company will transfer
the majerity of its assets and liabilities to a wholly-
owned subsidiary. Subject to the approval of the
Company's sharehalders at the general meeting to be
held on 19 March 2002, all of the assets and liabilities
of the Company will be transferred to Xstrata plc on
completion of the merger. In consideration for this
transfer, Xstrata plc will issue shares ta the
shareholders of the Company in proporticn to their
respective haldings.

In February 2002 the Company and Xsirata pic enterad
inta 3n acquisition agreement with Glencore
‘nternational AG. Pursuant to this agreement Xstrata
plc agreed to purchase Glencare Internationat AG's
coal assets (n Australia and South Africa tor USD
2,500 million, subject to an agreed working capital
adjustmen:. The purchase price is to be satisfied in
part by cash and in part by shares. The cash part of
the price will be funded by a facility af USD 2,000
millian, a portion of which will be used to refinance
existing debt, and from the proceeds of an offering of
new ordinary shares in Xstrata plc. It is expected that
Xstrata plc will apply to have its ordinary shares
admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing Authonty
and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s
market for listed securities,

The acquisition agreement is subject to 2 number of
conditions, including regulatory and third party
consents.
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Consolidated financiat statements

Accounting palicles

Basis of preparation

Xstrata AG |the "Company™, or together with
subsidiaries, the "Group™| prepares consolidated
financial statements in accerdance with standards
issued by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards
Board lIASBI, interpretations issued by the Standing
Interpretations Cammiltee of the |ASB and Swiss legal
requirements. These financial statements were
approved by the Board of Directors on 13 February
2002.

The financial slatements are prepared on lhe 2asis of
historical costs and do not take inlo account changing
money values or, except where stated, current
valuations af non-current assels. The reporting
currency of the Company is the United States dollar
[USD) since its business is predominantly conducted
in this currency.

for the year ended 31 December 2001, the Company
adopted the following new/revised accounting
standards as prescribed by the IASB: IAS 12 [revised
2000] Income Taxes, 1AS 19 {revised 2000} Employee
Benefits, IAS 39 lrevised 2000} Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and IAS 40 investment
Properties,

Principles of cansalidation

Enlities in which the Company both directly and
indirectly controls more than 50 per cent. of the voting
equily and is able to exercise control over operations
are consolidated ysing the line-Dy-line method of

consofidation. The equity method of accounting is
used for those entities in which the Company has
directly or indirectly significant influence and normally
owns 20 per cent. to 50 per cent. of the voting equity.
Entities in which the Company has less than 20 per
cent. of the voting equity are accounted for at fair
value. Investments in partnerships and joint ventures
are accounted lor under the proportionate
consolidation methed. All significant inter-company
accounts and transactions are eliminated.

Foreign currency translation

The revenues and expenses of subsidiaries which
repart in foreign currencies are translated into USD at
average exchange rates and the assets and liabilities
are translated at year end exchange rates. Exchange
differences on tne transiation of net assets ot
subsidiaries and investments in partnerships and joint
ventures, less offsetting exchange differences on
foreign currency loans financing these assels, are
recorded in a separate component of shareholders'

equity.

Foreign currency transaclions in Group companies are
accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dale of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assels and liabilities
denominated in fareign currencies, are recognised in
the income statement as a compenent ¢l Other
income/expense. Such balances are translated at the
year end exchange rates.
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The fallowing exchange rates were used:

Currency rates 31Dec Average  31Dec  Average
{1usDI 2001 2001 2000 200¢
Australia dollars {AUD) 19556 19352 17984  1.725%
Chile pesos ICLP] 654.79 637.87 573.45 54208
Euros [EUR] 19301 11178 10658 1.0840
Great Britain pounds {GBP) 0.6875  D.694)  0.6698  0.65%9%
South Alrica rands [ZAR] 12.0900 B8.6249  7.5550  4.9387
Swiss francs (CHF] 1.6749  1.6884  1.6199  1.4901

Cash and cash equivalents
Comprises cash on hand and in barks and short-term
deposits.

Marketable securities
Marketable securilies are slated at market value,

Inventories

Inventeries are carried at the lower of cost or net
realisable value. Cost is cetermined on a weighted
average basis or using a first-in first-out [FIFOl basis
and applying full absorption costing lcost of direct
materials and labour and a proportion of )
manufacturing overheads based on normal eperating
capacity).

Property, plant and equipment

With the exception of freehold tand which is stated at
cost, items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided an a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the individual assets.

The estimated useful lives of the assels are as
follows:

Plant and equipment 20 -30years
Buildings 15 -25years
Furniture and fixtures 10 -15 years
Other 3 -Syears

The carrying amounts of non-current assets are
periodically reviewed to determine whether they are in
excess of their recoverable amount. If the carrying
amount of 3 non-current asset exceeds the
recoverable amount, a provision is recorded to reflect
the asset at the lower amount. !n assessing
recoverable amounts for property, plant and
equipment and investments in associates, the relevant
future cash fiows expected to arise from the

continuing use of such assets and from their disposal
have been discounted to their present value.

Costs of acquiring mineral properties are charged to
earnings in the year in which they are incurred, except
where these costs relate to specific properties for
which economically recoverable reserves exist, in
which case they are deferred.

Deferred costs include interest and financing costs
relating to the canstruction of plant and equipment
and operating costs net of revenues prior to the
commencement of commerciat production, Interest
and financing costs are capitalised only for those
projects for which funds have been borrowed.

Mineral properties and deferred costs are, upon
commencement of production, amortised using the
unit of production method based an the estimated life
of the orebody to which they relate or are wrilten off if
the property is abandoned or whenthereis a
permanent impairment in value.

Plantations are recorded at cost. Development
expenditure, interest and financing costs relating to
the development of the plantations are deferred and
amortised upon commencement of commercial
praduction, on a unit of production basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation, as a result of past events, and it is
prehable that an outflow of resources that can be
reliably estimated will be required to settle such
obligation.

Government grants

Grants and subsidies from the government are
recognised at fair value where there is reasonatle
assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when all significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset sold are
transferred.

Income tax

Provisions for current income tax are based on
current year earnings and are calculated according to
the laws and regulaticns in each applicable
jurisdiction.
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Deferred income tax is provided using the liability
method and arises from temporary differences
between the tax bases cf assets and liabilities and
their respective balance sheet carrying amounts. Ne
deferred tax liability is recognised in those
circumstances where the initial recognition of an
asset or liability has no impact on accounting profit or
taxable income. Deferred tax assets are recognised
when it is probable that taxable prefits will be
available against which the deferred tax asset can be
utilised.

Prevision is mace for potential withholding tax which
will arise on the remittance of retained earnings of
subsidiaries where there is a current intention to
declare such earnings as dividends.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group is exposed to changes in currency
exthange rates, commadity prices and interest rales
in the course of business. Derivative transactions are
entered into solely to hedge these risks and it is the
Group's poticy not 1o trade in derivative linancial
mstrumenls.

For the purposes o} hedge accounting, hadges are
classifted into fair value hedges which hedge the
exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability and cash flow hedges, which hedge
exposure to vaniability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a forecasted
transacticn.

In relation to lair value hedges that meet the
conditions tor special hecge accaunting, any gain or
loss from re-measuring the hedging instrument at fair
value is recognised immaediately in the income
statement,

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the
canditions for special hedge accounting, the portion of
the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is
determined to be an effective hedge is recognised
directly in equity through the statement of changes in
equity and the ineffective portion is recognised in the
income statement.

12 - Rstrata anrcal rapert 2600

For hedges that do not qualify for special hedge
accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instryment are taken directly to the income statement
for the period.

Pension and other post-retirement obligations

The Group operates a number of pension plans, the
assels of which are generally held in separate
trustee-administered funds. The pension plans are
generatly funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies, taking account of the
recommendaticn of independent qualified actuaries.
The Group's contributions 1o ils defined contribution
pension plans are charged to the income statement in
the year to which they relate. For its defined benefit
plans, the Group recognises the estimated liability on
an accrual basis over the estimated working life of the
eligible participants.

Environmental protection, rehabilitation and closure
costs

Expenditures related lo environmental grotection,
reclamation and site restoration undertaken during
operaticns are expensed as incurred. Costs to be
incurred at or subsequent to the closing of an
operation are estimated and charged against earnings
over the estimated life of such operation.

Stock options

The Company has a stock option plan under which it
grants options to purchase its shares to directors,
eligible officers and key employees of the Group. The
carrying cost incurred by the Company in connection
with the oplions granted is considered to be personnel
expense ang is booked as incurred. The Company
purchases from time to time its shares.to hedge its

- exposure under the options granted. As shares are

purchased, the amount of consideration paid is
recognised as a charge to equity and reported in the
balance sheet as treasury shares.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year items have been reclassified in
order to conform with the current year presentation.




Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 Cecernbder [USD 000) 2001 2000
Revenue 613,603 597,871
Cost of goods sotd 1474,482) (449,737}
Deprecialion and amontisation 135,998) {21,458)
Ogerating earnings before effects of disposals and impairment 103,123 128,476
Disposal of operations {1,954} 68,917
impairment of assets 145,500) -
Operating earnings 55,669 195,393
Interest income 2,134 2,550
interest expense {23,690} §14,068)
Other income 5,857 M
Other expense 114,068) 12,054}
Earning before tax and minority interest 23,904 187,932
Income tax {10,635) 117,951}
éarnings before minorily interest 13,249 149,981
Minarity interest {2,018) -
Net earnings 11,253 169,981
Adjusted earnings per share {USD} 1.95 29.44
Weighted average shares cutstanding 5,779,211 5.769.547
Shares outstanding at year end 5,779,957 5,777,530
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Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 December (USD GOO) Noles 2001 2000
Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 45,886 44,736
Accounts receivable 10 188,170 133,174
Inventories 1" 144,768 114,837
Total current assets 378,804 292,747
Non-current assets

Investments 12 S5 i1
Praperty, plant and equipment 13 771,680 604,236
Intangible assels 14 125,160 5,365
Deferred tax assets 7 17,611 2,499
Other assets 15 13,027 4513
Total non-current assets 927,533 617,024
Total assets 1,304,337 909.771
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Currenl liabitities

Current borrowings 16 80,343 9.542
Accounts payable 17 148,782 107,334
Total current liabilities 229,125 116,876
Non-current liabilities

Non-current borrowings 18 421,990 34,502
Deferred tax liabilities 7 100,999 112,176
Cther liabilities 19,20 55,767 6,020
Total non-current liabilities 578,754 152,698
Minarity interest 8 1,994 41
Sharehelders’ equity

Share capital 41,569 41,569
Additional paid-in capital 293,882 293,882
Treasury shares 122,941) 1235131
Retained earnings 512,473 506,220
Net unrealised loss on financial instruments 113,827) -
Translation adjustment 1319,894) (178,002}
Total shareholders' equity 494,462 $40,156
Total liabilities & shareholders’ equity 1,304,337 909.771
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Far the year ended 31 December [USD 000) Notes 2001 2000

Dperating activities

Net earnings 11,2583 149,981

Minority interest 8 2,016 -
Depreciation and amortisation 35,998 21,658
Loss/[gain] on disposal of operations 2 1,954 68,9171
Impairment of assels 3 45,500 -

Provisions, deferred tax and other non-cash items 14,402 120,901)
Cash flow before working capital movermnents 111,123 101,821

[increasel/decrease in accounts receivable {3,893) 2,498
Decreage/lincrease) in inventories 28,622 (5,027}
{Decrease)/increase in accounts payable {35,830) 12,220
Net cash provided by operating activities 100,022 111,712
Investing activities

Capital expenditure 1134,212| 156,132}
Disposal of operations 1 47,281 213,034
Acquisitions 1 1453,583] [4.185)
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities [520,514] 152,719

Financing activities

Increase/ldecraase] in current borrowings 35,907 164.497]
Increase/ldecrease] in non-current barrawings 349,161 (161,382l
{Purchasesl/disposals of treasury shares, net {572) 1,429

Net cash provided by/[used in} financing activities 404,496 {226,450)
Cash from acgquired operations 18,006 -

Cash in group tompanies disposed (1880) (1,031]
Net increase/|decreasel in cash and cash equivalents 1,130 36,950

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 44,736 7.786

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9 45,864 44,734

Supplementary cash flow information

Income tax paid, net 11,802 1.300

Interest paid, net 20,305 13,340
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Fer the year ended 31 December [USD 000) 2001 2000
Share capitat

Balance at beginning of year 41,569 41,569
Balance at end of year 41,569 41,5469

Additicnal pajd-in capital

Balance at beginning of year 293,982 293,819
Reclassifications - 3,110}
Other - 1173
Balance at end of year ‘ 293,882 293,882
Treasury shares

Balance at baginning of year {23,513) (21,026}
Treasury shares 572 {2,487}
Balance at end of year 122,941] (23,513}

Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year 506,220 345,834
Net earnings 11,283 169,981
Changes in group companies - {11,043}
Reclassifications - 1,110
Other - 354
Balance at end of year 517,473 506,220

Net unrealised loss on financial instruments

Balance at baginning of year - -
Net unrealised loss on adoption of IAS 39 19,979} -
Net movement on USD forward contracts 13,648] -
Balance at end of year 113,627) -

Translation adjustments

Balance at beginning of year {178,002} (66,128}
Translation adjustments {141,8921 (141,874}
Batance at end of year {319,894} (178,002}
Total shareholders’ equity 496,462 640,156
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1.. Changes in group companies

In May 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Glencore International AG IGlencore] 1o dispose its
wholly owned subsidiaries Xstrata Coal Py Ltd and Winarch Pty Ltg. Xstrata Coal Ply Ltd owns a 92 per cent.
undivided beneficial interest in the United Joint Venture coal mine in New South Wales, Australia. Glencore is the
manager cf the Uniled Joint Venture coal mine. In addition to buying the shares of the disposed entities, Glancore
repaid all loans outstanding 10 the Company at the completion date. The aggregate censideration amounted to
USD 44.0 miltian, eguivalent to the net book value of the investment and toans adjusted for currency fluctuations.
The results of the coal business unit are nat censolidated for the year ended 31 December 2001 as the elfective
date of disposal was 1 January 2001.

Effective 3 May 2001, the Campany thraugh its whotly owned subsidiary Xstrata Spain 5L, acquired 95.5 per cent.
of the cutstanding share capital of Asturiana de Zinc SA, a Spanish public company, for a total consideration of
USD 453.6 million including capitalised cost. In December 2001, the Company acquired a further 2.8 per cent. by
means of a de-listing olfer of Asturiana de Zinc SA. It is anticipated that a merger process will be completed by
mid March 2002 and Xstrata Spain SL will change its name and stalus to Asturiana de Zinc SA. The surplus of the
purchase consigeration over the fair value of net tangible assets acquired amounting to USD 112.1 millicn, was
attributed to goodwill and is being amortised over twenty years.

On F July 2001 Xsirata Forestry AG was merged into Xstrata AG. Effective 1 July 2001 the Chilean foresiry trading
company Forestal det Sur Ltda was sold of for a net consideration of USD 4.0 millien. The Company received USD
3.3 million in November 2001 and the balance of USD 0.7 million is due in October 2002. Pursuant to this
transaction, Forestal Los Lagos SA, which owns the Eucalyptus plantation, is a fully owned subsidiary of Xstrata
AG and constitutes the Group's only forestry interest.

The Company incorporated Xstrata Magnesium Cerporation and Xstrata Magnesium AG on 6 July 2000 and §
August 2000 respectively, in connection with the construction of a magnesium scrap recycling facility in the United
States. Following the completion of the feasibility study, the Company approved a USD 31.3 millicn expenditure
plan for the construction of the facility.

An agreement lo convert the 40 per cent. interest in the Windimurra vanadium project owned by Precious Metals
Australia Lid [PMA], the joint venture partner, inta a royally was entered into in October 2000. As a result, the
Group row owns 100 per cenl. in the Windimurra vanadium project, and the 5 year calt option held by PMA was
cancelled. The elfective date at which risk and rewards of ownership passed to Xstrata was 28 September 2000.
In consideration for the 40 per cent. interest acquired, the Group paid AUD 7.7 millien (USD 4.2 million] ta PMA
including stamp duty and cther costs, and redeemed the loan granted to FMA amounting to AUD 23.1 miltian
{USD 12.4 million} including interest due thereon. The aggregate consideration amounts to AUD 30.8 million (USD
16.8 million}]. The fair vatue of the proportionate share of net tangible assets acquired was AUD 50.0 mitlion (USD
217.2 million). The arising deficit on acquisition was offset against the residuat value of development costs and
mining rights. PMA retains an ecanomic benelit in the project through a royalty agreement which, provided
certain conditions are met, entails an annual royalty payment equivalent to 15 per cent. of the project’s earnings
before interest and taxes.

On 7 June 2000 the Company entered into an agreement with Pecom Energia SA to dispose of its wholly-owned
subsidiary Stdelektra Argentina, which owns an undivided beneficial inlerest in the Santa Cruz | oil & gas fields
in Argentina. The sale was made effective 1 January 2000. The aggregate consideration net of certain
adjustments amounts to USD 118.4 million and was settled in September 2000. The results of SUdelekira
Argentina are not consolidated for the year ended 31 December 2000 as the effective disposal date was 1 January
2000.
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On 31 March 2000, the Company entered into an agrzement with Century Aluminum Corporatian to dispose of its
23 per cent. undivided beneficial interest in the Mt Holly atuminium reduction facility. This interest was sold with
effect 31 March 2000 for an aggregate consideration net of certain adjustments of USD 94.7 million. The results
of the Mt Holly aluminium reduction facility have been consclidated up to 3% March 2000, the effective date of
disposal.

2. Disposal of operations
The lass on disposal of discontinuing operations amounting to USD 1.9 miltion [2000: USD 68.8 million gain}
relates ta the sale of the Group’s interest in the forestry trading and coal businesses.

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabitities of the discontiauing operations as reflected in the batance
sheet are as follows:

1USD 000) 31.12.01 31.12.00
Foreslry trading business:

Total assets - 19389
Totat Liabilities - (42.591)
Net assets - 4,778
Coal:

Total assets - 47,564
Total liabitities - : {7,702
Net assets - 39,862

The results of operations of the discontinuing operaticns as reflected in the income statement are as follows:

{USD-Cud) - . .. R . 2001 2000
Ferestry trading business:

Reverue 23,814 54,764
Expenses 121,624} 152,655)
Operating earnings before loss on disposal 2,190 2,109
Loss an disposat (1,782] -
Operating earnings 408 2,109
Other (593) 1428)
income tax charge 154 1185}
Net {loss)/ earnings 1239) 1,498
{USH Daol 2001 2000
Coal:

Revenue - 35,350
Expenses - 138,958}
Operating earnings before gain on disposal - 13,608)
Loss on dispasal (172 -
Operating loss (172} 13,608}
Other - 122
Income tax credit - 308
Net loss (172 (3,180}
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{UsD 650! 2001 2000

Alurninium:

Revenue - 18,081

Expenses - [12,045)
Cperating earnings before gain on disposal - 1,034

Gain on disposat - 128
Qperating earnings - 1,184
Other - (208]
Income tax charge - 115)
Net earnings - 941

[UsE cog) 2001 2000
0il & Gas:

Revenue - -
Expenses . - -
Operating earnings before gain on disposal - -
Gain on disposal - 48,789
QOperating earnings - 68,789
Other - -
Income tax charge - -
Net earnings - 48,789

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinuing operations as rzflected in the cash flow statement are as

follows: .

LISD 63G ’ 2001 2000
Forestry trading business:

Operating activities (489) 1.543
Dispasal of forestry trading business 3.381 -
Investing activities {47) 42
Financing activities 1,059 1569}
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,904 1.004
iUS0 030) . 2009 2000
Coal:

Operating activities - 87¢
Disposal of coal assets 44,000 -
Investing activities - {1,274}
Financing activities - -
Increase/(decreasel in cash and cash equivalents - 44,000 {3951
1USD 0no) 2001 2000
Aluminium: ‘

Qperating activities - 492
Disposal of aluminium assets - 94,669
Investing activities - {187}
Financing activities - 1305)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents - 94,669
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(usD godi 2001 2000
il & Gas:

Operating activities - -
Disposal of oll & gas assets - 118,347
Investing aclivities - -
Financing activities - -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents - 118,367

3. Impairment of assets

1UsD 000l 2001 2000
impairment of assets 45,500 -

Due to depressed markel conditions and operational difficulties, a provision of USD 45.5 mitlion was recorded to
reflect an impairment in the carrying value of the Windimurra vanadiumn plant in Australia. The fair value of the
investment is very sensitive 10 the long term USD/AUD exchange rate and vanadium pentoxide price.
Management has performed discounted cash flow [DCF) analysis using various assumptions for the main value
drivers. Fair value was detarmined on the basis of a weighted combination of the resulting DCF valuations. A
discount rate of 9 per cent. was used.

4. Personnel expenses

Cost of goods sold include USD 72.8 million (2000: USO 4.0 million) of personnel expenses.

5. Other income

luso 50) 2001 2003
Income from securities - 20
Other sundry income 3,042 5.284
Foreign exchange gain 2,815 5,817
Total 5,857 a2

Foreign exchange gain, net includes an unrealised net gain of USD 0.1 million (2000: USD 4.3 million).

6. Other expense

fusn 060! ’ 2001 20C0
Foreign exchange loss 10,820 3,303
Other sundry expense 5,248 3.741
Total ) 14,068 7,084

The foreign exchange toss includes an unrealised lass of USD 7.2 million 12033: USD 2.7 million].
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7. Income tax

The Company is incorporated in Switzerland but operates in various countries with different tax regimes.
Furthermore, the Group's earnings before income tax provisions arise primarily outside of Switzer{and.
Consequently, the weighted average statutory tax raté may vary from period to period reflecting taxable earnings
arising in different tax jurisdictions.

The income tax credit/[charge) is made up as follows:

(Uso aag! 2001 2000
Current income tax {1,440) {12,979}
Deferred income tax 19,195] (4,972)
Total income tax charge {10,635} {17,951)

The statulory tax provision at tha weighted average rate is generally calculated on the basis of pre-tax earnings
or lesses in aach country and the applicable statutary tax rates. The difference between the effective provision for
income tax and the statutory tax provision at the weighted average tax rate is reconciled as follows:

fUsD 00a) 2001 2000
Statutory provision for income tax at weighted

average rate 16,574] 127.5%) {30,516l [16.2%)
Permanent differerces 14,061} (17.0%]} 13,893 7.4%
Other - - {1,328) {0.7%)}
Etfective provision for income tax (10,635) {44.5%) (17,951 - 19.5%)

The effective tax rales have been skewed by material gains and losses on disposal of operations and impairments
of assets. !t these items are excluded the effective tax rates are 14.9 per cent. for 2001 and 15.1 per cent. for 2000.

Ceferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2001 and 20C0 reflect the impact of temporary differences between
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts of such assets and liabilities
as measured for lax purposes.

Temnporary ditfererces and carry forwards that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities include the following:

200% 2000
Deferred tax : Ocferred (ax
{usD 000) Assets Liabilities Assets Lizbitities
Net operaling loss carry farwards 15,751 - 2499 -
Cepreciation and amortisation
Mineral properties - (36,119} - (84,998}
Other nan-current assels 1,860 {84,860) - (47.178)
Total 17,611 {100,999} 2,497 112,176)

Other deferred tax assets include a net provision for mine closure far the Reocin zinc mine, Spain.
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8. Minority interest

IusD 200} 31.12.2001 21.12.2000
a) Balance sheet

Puerto Panitac Ltda, Chile - 41
Asturiana de Zinc SA, Spain 1,994 -
Total 1,994 41
{USE 520) 2001 2000
b} Income statement

Puerto Panitao Ltda, Chile - -
Asturiana de Zinc SA, Spain 2,016 -
Tatal 2,014 -
9. Cash and cash equivalents

IUSD a0l 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Cash 18,458 7474
Time depasits 29,408 372,262
Total 45,866 44,736
10. Accounts receivable

SO 300i 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Trade receivables other than from related party 112,709 97.235
Receivables. related party 26,786 22,022
Advances and deposits 508 987
Recoverable sates tax and prepaid income tax - 22,440 7,648
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income 32,074 5,303
Provision (6,589) i21)
Total 188,170 133,174

Other receivables include a Spanish government grant of USD 25.7 million in relation to the zinc plant expansion,

the majority of which was received in January 2002.

31. Inventories

Uso 300} 31.12.200% 31.12.2000
Finished goods 72,069 a1, 17
Raw materials, spares and work in process 71,687 34,589
Provision {3,968) (969}
Total 144,768 114,837
12. Investments

{UsD G661 31.12,2001 31.12.2000
Mount Thorley Coal Loading Ltd, Australia [13.90%) - 293
Newcastle Coal Shippers Pty Ltd, Australia [0.56%) - 118
Corpanhia Paraibuna de Metais, Brazil (0.188%I §5 -
Total §5 41
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13, Property, ptant and equipment

Mineral properties Capilal work

Land and  and Development in progress Total
Cost {USD 000} Plant expenditure Plantation and Other 2001
Beginning of periot 340,478 297,094 21,228 59,120 717,920
Reclassifications 29,082 6,365 - {35,085} 362
Additions 96,719 542 3,372 29,020 129,653
Change in Group Companies 581,350 26,438 - 26,741 434,727
Disposals 2,572 - 11,206} {1,123) 14,901}
Impairment adjustments {24,184] {23,411) 11,215) - 148,814}
Translation adjustments 1142,681) 1106,519) 12,594} 121,251) (273,045}
End of period 878,192 200,707 19,581 57,422 1.155,902
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
Beginning of period {74,420) (26,192} - 13,0724 {113,684}
Reclassifications - - - (242 (244]
Change in Group Companies {253,093} {25,651) - 113,829 (292,573}
Deprecialion an¢ amortisation {28,741] 17.833) - 13,172 {39,746)
Dispesals 828 - - 858 1,685
Impairment adjustments 870 819 - - 1.689
Translaticn adjustments 38,879 13,066 - 6,725 58,670
End of periad 315,697} [45,791) - 122,234) (384,222)
Net book value at
year end 2001 562,495 154,914 19,581 34,688 771,680
Net book value at
year end 2000 264,058 270,902 21,228 44,048 404,236

Plantations, mineral properlies and development expenditure, including capitalised interest of USD 0.8 miltion

12000: USD 6.9 million], is amortised based on the eslimated life of reserves/plantation using the unit of

production method. Land and Plant includes land amounting to USD 24.7 million [2000: USD 17.2 miltion).

14, Intangible assets

Forrewing

{USD D2e) Goodwiil costs Other Total
Opening net book value 127) 1,744 1,648 5,365
Additions - 9,316 3,895 13,211
Changes in Group Companies 12121 - 2.058 114,179
Reclassifications - - {232} (232}
Translation adjustments {384) - {373} (757
Amortisation {3.995) {1,797 (814} {6,606)
Net book value at

year end 2001 107,715 9,243 8,182 125,160
At 31 December 2001

Cost 111,439 11,254 27,838 150,523
Accumulated amortisation (3,724} 11,991} {19.448) {25,363)
Net book vaive 107,715 9,263 8,182 125,140

Goodwill is amortised aver 20 years whilst borrowing costs are amortised over the life of the firancing facitity.
Cther intangible assets comprise principally acquisition and development costs that are amortised over the

commercial lile of 3 project.
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15. Other assets

1USD 300) 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Loans 10 joint venture partners - 2424
Laans to third parties 5,313 1,534
Other 7.714 555
Total 13,027 4513

Other inctudes funds due from the Reocin regional government, Spain for a discounted vatue of USD 7.0 mitlion,

payable upon the closure of the Reacin zinc mine.

16. Current borrowings

1USD 000} 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Bank overdralts and short-term debt 80,343 9.542
Total 80,343 9542

The Group maintains various credit lines with a number of banks. Assets pledged as security in respect of these
credit lines are disclosed in Note 21. USO current borrowings bear interest at a weighted average rate of 0.8 per
cent. {2000: 0.8 per cent.] per annum above the barrowing base rate. ZAR current borrowings bear interest at
South African prime rate that averaged 13.8 per cent. per annum during 2001 (2000: 14.4 per cent]. Total unused
current credit lines at 31 December 2001 amounted to USD 120.8 million [31 December 2C00: USD 150.6 mitlion).

17. Accounts payable

[ vgeliin)} 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Trade payables other than with related party 92,160 70.703
Payables, related party 9,950 2,479
Other payables, accruals and provisions 43,997 15,774
Income tax 2,675 14,378
Total 148,782 107,334
18, Non-current borrowings

[[SEjeR et 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Long-term debt 421,990 34,502
Total 421,990 34,502
Non-current borrowing at year-end fall due as foltows:

[USD 4co)

2002 78,994 -
2003 - 2008 414,990 2,500
2007 and thereafter 7,000 32,002
Totat 500,984 34,502
Less current portion of long-term debt 78,994 -
Total 421,990 34,502
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On 12 April 2001, the Company entered into a EUR 600 million term loan and revolving credit facility comprising a
EUR 250 million term loan tranche with a one year repayment grace period and 5 equal semi-annual repayments
thereafter, and EUR 350 million revolving credit tranche with a 4 year maturity.

The proceeds of the term loan and revolving credit facility were used to finance the acquisition of Asturiana de
Zinc SA and for general corporate purpeses. The new facility requires the Company to meet certain financial and
other covenants, including minimum tangible net worth and interest cover ratios. Ouring the first year, the
borrowing margin has been fixed at 150 basis points above EURIBOR or LIBOR, Thereafter, interest is payable
based on EURIBOR or LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 65 1o 125 basis poims, depending on certain financial
covenants. The USDO 300 mittion mullicurrency revolving credit facil:ty concluded on 5 July 2000 was cancelled.

Total unused nen-current cradit lines at 31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000 amounted to USO 556.4 million
and USD 302.5 million, respectively.

Assets pledged as a security for non-current borrowings are disclosed in Note 21.

19, Other liabitities and provisions

HUS0 00o! 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Pension and posl relirement benefits 18,754 4,853
Provisicns 16,024 872
Qther 20,992 295
Totat 55,787 6,020

Cther liabilities mainly comprise an obligation for (he purchase of mining rights in South Africa.

20. Provisions

WS cagy

Beginning cf period

Changes in Group comparies
Trans(ation adjustments
Additional provisions
Amourts used

End of period

Other Total 2001
872 872
16,270 15,230
1312} (212)
246 268
{115 " {115)

15,941 16,021

Other provisions mainly retate to the Reocin zinc mine, Spain, to cover mine closure and land restoration costs.

21. Assets pledged

HUSD £00}

3l Current borrowings
Tetal assets pledged
Total current borrowings secured

b} Non-current borrowings
Total assets pledged
Tolal non-current berrowings secured

31.12.2001 31.12.2600
- 10,821

- 7.015

14,699 16,274
12,600 12,000
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22, Financiat instruments

Financial risk management and policies

The Company is exposed to market risk and uses derivative financial instruments ia connection with its risk
management activities. The Company does not hald or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes.

Foreign currency risk

The Group produces and sells its products in severat countries and, 3s a result, is exposed to movements in
foreign currency exchange rates. From time to ime the Group uses forward exchange cantracts to hedge future
transactions and cash flows on identifiable foreign currency expasures.

Commodity price risk

For a three year period ending 31 December 2000, Xstrata entered into an offtake agreement with its marketing
agent for all its Seuth African vanadium pentoxide production at a fixed price of USD 3.50 per pound. Any surplus
arising between the fixed price and the delivered customer price is shared between the company and its agent.
With effect Irom 1 January 2000, the offtake agreemant was restructured in such 3 way that half of the vanadium
ctiake enlitlement for the year 2000 was allocated equally to the years 2001 and 2002 at the fixed price
incremented by an interest element {USD 3.45 per pound and USD 3.80 per pound, respectivelyl.

The Group makes use of zinc futures contracts on the Londan Metal Exchange to hedge against the risk of zinc
price movements, The Group is exposed to 2inc price movements in respect of;

{1l zinc concentrate inventaries and zinc in-cireuit up to the point of sale; and

liil cwn production of cencentrate [Reocin mine} and discounts obtained on purchases of concentrates and free
zinc urits.

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of trade receivables. Given the geographical and industry spread of
the Group's customers, credit risk is believed to be timited.

Derivative financial instruments

0n 1 Januzry 2001, the Company adopted IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
Standard requires the Company to recognise.all dervatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that do
not qualify for hedge accounting must be adjusted to fair value through the income statemment. If a derivative is 2
hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives are either offset against the
fair value of assets, liabitities, or firm commitments through earnings or recognised in 2 separate compenent of
equity unlil the hedged item is recognised in earnings. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value
wiil be immediately recognised in earnings.

The fair value ot derivative financial instruments included in the batance sheet are as follows:

{USD 000} 31.12.2001
Qerivatives held as cash flow hedges:

Forward exchange contracts {other currend provisions) 7,399
Forward exchange contracts (other non-current liabilities) 5,472

Derivatives held as fair value hedges:
Zinc futures contracts {other current receivadles) 7,143
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Cash flow hedges

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge fulure transactions and cash Hlows on identifiable foreign
currency exposures. As at 31 December 2003, the Group had entered into several USD/EUR forward exchange
contracts to hedge its USD-denaminated expenditure incurred in the normal course of business. The estimated
delerred gains or lasses on the open forward contracts have been determined based on pertinent market
information avaitable as at 31 Oecember 2001, The contractual exchange rates of these contracts are as folfows:

Average Forward

exchange rates contract

{usp caa) EUR/USD values
3 months or less . 0.9939 60,000
Over 3 months to 6 months 1.1389 60,000
Over 4 months to 12 months 1.1823 5,000
Over 12 months to 24 months 1.0451 65,000

23. Future commitments

The Group has contractual commitments for future capital expenditure in the amount of USD 3.3 million [2000:
USD 14.2 millionl.

24. Dperating lease arrangements

iUsD gee) 2001 2000
Lease payments included in operating earnings 340 89

At balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments urder non-cancellable operating lezses, which
fall due as follows:

1UsD €63l 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Not later than one year 425 89
Later than one year and not later than five years 6,104 765
Later than live years 2,600 -

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for mobile and office equipment.

25. Contingent liabilities

On 3 August 2001, 3 claim was filed but not yet served by Fluor Daniel Pty Ltd against Xstrata Windimurra Pty Ltd
and Precious Metals Australia Limited seeking payment of AUD 4.9 million for variatians carried out under an
engineering services agreement. A counter claim was subsequently filed by Xstrata Windimurra Pty Ltd and
Precious Metals Australia Limited against Fluar Daniel Pty Lid in amount of AUD 3.0 million for its failure to
perform the obligations under that agreement. A settlement offer of AUD 1.5 million has been made to Fluor
Daniel Pty Ltd, That ofler remains open for acceptance, Precious Melals Australia Limited ceased to be 3 joint
venture participant from 28 Septernber 2000 but remains liable for 40 per cent. of claims made under the
dispule.

in conrecticn with the expansion at the San Juan de Nieva plant, the Company has issued bank guarantees for
the amount of EUR 39.0 miltion (USD 34.5 miltien). The bank guarantees have been issued in respect of grants
received from regional and federal autharities. The guarantees will be released once the authorities are satisfied
that the Group has met all its obligations in connection with the receipt of the grants.
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The Group has contractual obligations for various expenditures such as royalties, exploration and development.
Such expenditures accrue when the related revenue is earned in the ordinary course of business. No other
contingent liability warrants disclosure at 31 Oecembar 2001 and 2000.

26, Post retirement benefits

Pension and provident funds - defined contribution plans

The Group operates variaus definad cantribution pension plans covering substantially all current employees, All
pension ptans are lully funded and the assets are held separately from those of the Group, being generally
invested with insurance companies and regulated by local legislation.

In general, the pension plans provide benefits to participants at retirement or other life contingencies. The
benelits vary from severance payments to retirement pensions on termination of employment. On retirement or
other legitimate life contingency, the employees are eligible to a severance lump sum payment or an annuity
equal io their share of the fund.

Contributions to the funds are made by the Group and, in some cases, jointly by employees, based on a fixed
percentage of the basic annual salary ranging from 10 per cent. to Z0 per cent. Payments under the pension plan
schemes are recognised as an expense for each respective year. Such expenses for 2001 amounted to US0 11.8
miltion {2000: USD 5.4 million).

Pension and provident funds - defined benefit plans

Soairi

The Group operates a defined benelit plan for entitied retired employees. No individuals were added Lo the plan
during 2001 nor will any be added in future years. During 2C01, no contributions were made to the plan,

Benefits are provided for retired personnel that consists of a life-long post retirement pension where S0 per cent.
is payable to the spouse upan the death of the retired employee. The future commitments under this plan were
fully pravided for according to an actuarial study conducled as at 31 December 2001. The retired personnel at this
date amaunted to 349 individuals with an average age of 72 years old.

The Spanish Law 14/200C of 29 December 2000 on Tax, Administration and Social Measures has set 16 November
2002 as the deadline for the externalisation of pensian commitments assumed by companies with respect to their
employees [either through insurance contracts or the formalisation of pension plans), in accordance with the
stiputations of Law 30/1995 on Private Insurance. The same rule also establishes the maximum periods for
amaertisaticn of the deficit, based on the way in which the externalisation of these commitments has been
instrumented. This process is not loreseen to give rise to further tiabilities in addition to those already recorded.

{USO 6Ol 31.12.2001
Balance at beginning of year -
Changes in group companies 17,732
Increase in provision charged to income statement 701
Payments made (1,604]
Transiation adjustments (34}
Balance al end of year 16,795

Key assumptions used:

inflation rate 2%
Interest rate 5%
Martality tables Spanish PERM/F-2000
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South Africa .
The Group operates a defined benefit plan for entitled retired employees. No individuals were added to the plan
during 2001 nor will any be added in future years. During 2001, no contributions were made to the plan.

The pension costs are determined with the advice of independent quatified actuaries on the basis of triennial
vatuations using the projected unit credit method with the mast recent valuations conducted as at 31 December
1999 by a qualilied independent actuary detailed as follows:

1USD got! 31.12.1999
Market value of scheme’s assets 5.512
Present value of retirement banefits [3.187)
Surplus 2325
Key assumptions used:

Rate of return on scheme'’s assels 16.0%
Rate of salary increases g 11.5%
Rate of pension increases ?2.1%

The scheme’s assets and liabilities are not included in the Group balance sheet at 31 December 2001 as the fund
is in the process of being translerred to a third party insurance company and there is a surplus of assets which
will be allocated to the members.

Medical aid benelits

The Group provides post-retirement medical aid benefits for a number of its employees in South Africa. The
Group recognises the estimaled liability on an accrual basis over the working lite of the eligible employees.
Entitlement to these benefits was dependent upon the employee remaining in service until retirement age but for
members retiring on or after 1 January 2002 witl cease to receive any subsidy towards medical aid contributions.
At 31 December 2001 the fund had 54 members wilh an average age of 58 years old.

The accumulated post-retirement medical aid obligations and the annual cost of these benefits were determined
by independent actuaries as at 31 December 2001. The assumptions used include estimates of life expectancy
and long-term estimates ol the increases in medical costs, appropriata discount rates and the level of claims
based on the Group's pasl experience. Actuarial valuations will be conducted every three years at which time any
surplus or shartfall will be adjusted through the income statement. Between actuarial valuations, the pravision
will be adjusted in accordance with rates supplied by the actuaries.

Balance sheet USD GO0 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Other non-current liabilities 1,929 2.597

Key assumptions used: .
Heallh care cost inflation 9.0%
Discount rate 11.0%
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27. Jointly controlled entities

The following amounts represent the Group’s share of the assets and liabilities and operating earnings/{ioss] of
the proportionate consclidated investments:

Balance sheaet {USD 000) 31.12.2001 . 31.12.2000
Current assets - 5,153
Non-current assets - 42,411
Current liabilities - 5,851
Non-current liabilities - 1,851
Net asset value - 39,862
tncome statemant (USD 000] 31.12.2001 31.12.200C
Operating [loss|/earnings - (3,608}
28. Related party transactions

{usb co0) 2004 2000
Sales FeV, V205, Zinc 147,958 67,384
Purchases Char, Coke, Zinc Concentrate 30,293 32,063
[nterest expense : 615 596
Agency lees expense 10,177 18,343
Service fee and cther expense 2,770 2.692

Some of the Campany’'s operating subsidiaries have entered into long term agency agreements with Glencore
international AG |Glencore] and/or its subsidiaries under which Glencore provides marketing services in exchange
tor an agency fee. Agency lees are negotiated on arms’ length terms and range fram 3.5 per cent. to § per cent.
of the free on boa-d sales revenue. Glencore acts as collecting agent and also assumes 40 per cent. of the non-
payment risk of the Group’s ferrochrome trade receivables.

In December 1997, Xstrata Marketing Corporation, a wholly awned subsidiary, entered into an offtzke agreement
with Glencore in connection with the acquisiticn of Rhoex and Vanadium Technotogy. Under this three year

agreement, Glencore acts as the exclusive offtaker of the entire South African vanadium pentoxide and

ferrovanadium production at a fixed price of USD 3.5C per pound of vanadium pentoxide and USD 14.80 per kilogram
vanagium contained in ferravanadium. Xstratz Marketing Corporation shares equally with Glencere any surplus
arising between the fixed delivered price to Glencore and the delivered customer price. With etfect frem 1 January
2000, the offtake agreement was restructured in such a way thal half of the vanadium ofltake entitlement for the
year 2000 was allocated equally to the years 2001 and 2002 at USD 3.65 per pound and USD 3.80 per pound

respectively.

The Company has also entered into a management service agreement with Glencore. Fees under these
agreements are determined annually and approved by the Board of the Company. Aggregate fees incurred under
such agreement during 2001 amounted to USD 1.6 million {2000: USD 1.8 miltion). This agreement has been

cancelled effective Y January 2002,

29. Stock option Incentive plan and Board of Directors’ remuneration

The Company grants stock options on its shares to its officers and key emplayees to align the interests of the
management with the interests of shareholders. Under the rules of the Xstrata Group Management and
Employee Share incentive Scheme (Schemel, eligible participants are required to purchase Company shares at
market prices which shares remain blocked during a two year vesting period. The Company then allocales
options in propertion to shares purchased. The stock options have a two year vesting period followed by a three
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year exercisa period. The Company issued an aggregate of 70,000 series 2002 options. The 2002 series options
are valid until 31 January 2007 and vest on 31 January 2004. The 2001 series opticns are valid until 31 January
2006 and vest on 31 January 2003. 2000 Series options are valid until 31 January 2005 and vested on 31 January
2002. The 1998 series options are valid until 11 Septmber 2003 and vested 11 September 2000, There are no
series 1999 options. Of the series 1998 options, no options were exercised during 2001,

Members of the Board of Directors are entitled ta certain benefits as provided for by the Directors’ Compensation
Scherne under which the annual directors’ fees are a function of the Group’s net earnings. The directors have to
take a minimum of 50 per cent. of the fees in shares, stock optians, or a combination thereof, with the balance in
cash. As at the date of issuing the annual report the Directors’ Compensation Scheme was yet lo finaiise the
amount of shares avaiatle for purchase and options to be issued. The Series 1997 options are valid untit

4 September 2002 and vested on 4 September 1999. The Series 1999 and 2000 options are valid until 31 January
2004 and 31 January 2005, respectively. These options vested on 14 March 2001 and 31 January 2002 respectively.
Of the series 1997 and 1999 opticns, no aptions were exercised during 2001. ‘

As at 31 December 2001, the Company held 120,043 shares [2000: 122,470 shares] lo hedge its exposure uhder
these stock option plans. These shares are disclosed as Treasury shares in Shareholders’ equily.

30. Share capital

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of Sharehalders on 6 March 2001, approval to increase the authorized share
capital ot CHF 29,500,000 par value was granted to the Board of Directors, The Board of Directors is authorized to
increase the share capital until § March 2003 by issuing 2,950,000 bearer shares with a par value of CHF 10.00
each to be tully pa:d up. Increases in partial ameunts are permitted. The Board of Birectars will determine the
applicable 1ssuing price, the type of cantributions to be made for the new shares and the time as from which the
new shares give right ta dividends. The shares are intended. for placement with the existing shareholders,
however under certain conditions, the Board of Director is entitled to exclude the subscription rights of the
shareholders for up to 10 per cent. of the shares issued, as of the date of the capital issuance.

31. Subsequent events

In February 2002 the Company entered into a merger agreement with Xstrata plc, a public limited company
incorporated in England and Wales specifically for the purpose of the merger. [t is articipated that prior to
completion of the merger, the Company will transfer the majority of its assets and liabilities to a wholly-owned
subsidiary. Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the general meeting to be held on 19 March
2002, all of the assets and lizbilities of the Company will be transferred to Xstrata plc on completion of the
merger. In consideration lcr this transfer, Xstrata pic will issue shares to the shareholders of the Company in
proportion to their respective holdings.

In February 2002 the Company and Xstrata plc entered into an acquisition agreement with Glencare International
AG. Pursuant to this agreement Xstrata plc agreed to purchase Glencare International AG's ¢oal assets in
Australia and South Africa for USD 2,500 miltion, subject to an agreed werking capital adjustment. The purchase
price is to be satisfied in part by cash and in pant by shares. The cash part of the price will bs funded by a facility
of USD 2,00C miltion, a portion of which will be used to refinance existing debt, and from the proceeds of an
offering of new ordinary shares in Xstrata plc. It is expected that Xstrata plc will apply to have its ordinary shares
admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and to trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for
listed secunities.

The acquisition agreement is subject to a number of conditions, including regulatory and third party consents.
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32. Segment information

Metals & Minerals Energy Forestry
2001 Ferra Vanadium Zinc Magresium  Qil & Gas Ccal Pulpwood Gther Tatal
{USD 000) Chrome
Revenue 257,659 63498 266,634 25 - - 25,787 - 613,603
Depreciation and amortisation 4,944 £,094 21,136 Q44 - - 2N 2,649 35,998
EBITDA 71143 10,012 68,858 {4,085) - - 1,133 {7.738) 139,11
Operaling earnings before
disposal of operations and
impairment of assets 66,199 3518 47520 15,029) - - 902 {10,387} 103,123
Operating earnings 66,199 (41,582} 47,520 {5.029) - - (880) {10559} 55,649
Net earnings 50,40t [43351) 32183 3,445) - - 11362} (23173) 11,253
Capital expenditure 30,511 4,025 69473 21,839 - - 3,650 13,366 142,884
Property, plant and
equipment 224,267 104,607 387,745 21,757 - - 32,418 672 771,680
Capital employed 252,157 104,852 548,105 25,344 - - 33,782 32554 998,794
Total assets 341,490 139,859 708,044 28,097 - - 35,201 33,846 1,306,337
Total liabilities 173.500 33,217 180,035 2,753 - - 13,419 424,957 807,881
No. of Employees 3.34% 470 1301 38 - - 13 14 5377
Metals & Minerals . Energy Forestry
2000 Ferro Vanadium Aluminium Magnesium  Oit & Gas Coal  Puipwood Ocher Total
[1JS0 000} Chrome
Revenue 419,334 68,474 18,081 - - 35,350 54,632 - 59787
Depreciation and amortisation 10,205 5,559 1,230 - - 3,344 445 875 21,658
EBITDA 125,149 26,120 2266 - - [264) 2,818 17,955) 148,134
Cperating earnings before
disposal of operations and
impairment of assets 114,944 20567 1,036 - - 13,608) 2,373 18,8301 126,476
Operating earnings 114,944 20,561 1,184 - 48,789 {3.608) 2,373 (8,8301 195,393
Net earnings 91335 23,220 841 - 48,789 13,1801 2,106 13,2500 149,981
Capital expenditure 27542 15,797 - 2,581 - 1,044 6,300 2,848 56,132
Property, plant and
equipment 317,964 207,389 - 870 - 37,967 39,348 678 804,238
Capital employed 343,515 206,213 - 3.725 - 39,862 50,538 20,387 484,240
Total assets 522,737 251,571 - 3.127 - 47,564 57,426 26,346 909,77
Total liabilities 183,401 46,100 - 402 - 7,702 25916 6,053 289574
No. of Employees kAR 843 - 2 - 147 79 15 4,000
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32. Segment information [continued)

Revenue by customer tocation

2001 ‘
{U=D 000} Americas Africa Europe Ausiralasia Total
Ferrochrome 20,485 11.332 144,136 81,706 257,659
Vanadium 11,860 3 42,197 9,438 63,498
Zinc 2,651 5.257 258,221 505 264,834
Magnesium 25 - - - 25
Pulpwood 6,235 - 5.588 13,964 25,787
Total 41,254 16,592 450,142 105,813 613,603
2000

1USD 0G0} Americas Africa Eurnpe Australasia Tolal
Ferrochrome 99,131 8,935 186,247 125,421 419,334
Vanzdium 8,085 - 44,791 15,598 68474
Alumintum 18,081 - - - 18,081
Coal - - 155 35,195 35.350
Pulpwood 11,499 - 7.674 37,459 56,632
Total 136,796 8,535 238,867 213,673 597,871
Total assets

2001

{Ust 6203 Americas Africa Eurape Australasia Totat
Ferrochrome - 361,490 - - 361,490
Vanadium - 103,888 - 35971 139,859
Magnesium 28,097 - - - 28,097
Zinc - - 708,044 - 708,044
Putpwood 35.207 - - - 35,201
Other - - 33,446 - 33,646
Total 63,298 - 445,378 741,690 35,971 1,304,337
2000

(Us0 000) Americas Africa Europe Australasia Tetal
Ferrochrome - §22.737 - - 522,737
Vanadium - 167913 - 83,458 25157
Magnesium 4,127 - - - 4127
Coal - - - 47,564 47 564
Pulpwood 57,426 - - - 57,426
Cther - - 26,3458 - 26,346
Total 41,553 690.650 26,346 131,222 909.771
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32. Segment information (continued)

Capital expenditure

2001

1USD 090) Americas Africa turope Australasia Tatal
Ferrochrome - 30,511 - - 30,511
Vanadium - 1,630 - 2,395 4,025
Magnesium 21,839 - - - 21,839
Zine - - 69,473 - 89,473
Pulpwood 3,650 - - - 3,650
Qther - - 13,344 - 13,366
Total 25,489 32,141 82,839 2,395 142,864
2aaa

fUsD gDt Americas Africa Surope Australasia Tetat
Ferrocnrome - 27,562 - - 27,562
Vanadium - 5143 - 10,448 15,797
Magresium 2.581 - - - 2,581
Coal - - - 1,044 1,044
Pulpwood 6,300 - - - 6,300
Cther - - 2,848 - 2,848
Total 8,881 32,711 2,848 11,692 56,132

33. Consolidated companies and interests

The more significant subsidiaries and associated undertakings of the Group at 31 December 2001 and the Group
percentage of equity capital are set out below:

Entity Censalication
meathod Currency Cagital % interest

Xstrata AG, Switzerland CHF 59,000,000

Metals & Minerals

Xstrata South Africa {Pty] Ltd, South Africa FULL 24AR 4135 100.0
Xstrata Zinc BV, Holland FULL EUR 20,000 100.0
Xstrata Spain S.L., Spain FULL EUR 4,000 100.0
Asturiana de Zinc S5.A., Spain FULL EUR 127,027,000 98.3
Xstrata Vanadium Pty Ltd, Austratia FULL AUD 1 180.0
Xstrata Windimurra Pty Ltd, Australia FULL AUD 1 100.0
Xstrata Magnesium AG, Switzerland FULL CHF 100,000 100.0
Xstrata Magnesium Corp., USA FuLL ush 300 100.0
Forestry
Forestal Los Lagos SA, Chile FULL CLP  12,453,370,556 100.0
Other
Xstrata Marketing Corparation AYV., Aruba FULL Uso 1 100.0
Xstrata Capital Corp. AVV, Aruba FULL uso 6,000 100.0
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Report of the Group Auditors

Re;;orl of the Group Auditors to the General Meeting
of Xstrata AG, Zug

As auditors of the group, we have audited the
consolidated financial statements (income statement,
balance sheet, cash flow statement, statement of
changes in equily and notes / pages 10 to 34] of
Xstrata AG for the year ended December 31, 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are the
respensibility of the board of directors. Qur
respensibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on aur audit.
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements
concerning professional‘qualificalion and
independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing
standards promulgated by the Swiss prafession and
with the Internaticnal Standards on Auditing issued by
the International Federation of Accountants [{FACI,
which require that an audit be planned and performed
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement, We have examined on a test
basis evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements,
We have also assessed the accounting principles
used, significant estimates made and the averall
consolidated financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides 3 reasonable basis for
our opinion,

In cur apinion, the consolidated tinancial statements
give a true and lair view of the linancial position, the
results of operations and the cash flows in accordance
with {nternational Accounting Standards [1AS] and
comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial
statements submitted to you be approved.

Zurich, 19 February 2002

Ernst & Young Ltd

f'/_f.’fu/f?i __“_:

Reto Hofer
Certified Accountant

Hans-Peter Rudolf
Certilied Public Accountant
{in-charge of the audit}
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Company financial statements

Company income statement

Far the year ended 31 December [CHF 000) Notes 2001 2000
Income

Dividends and other income from group companies 1 46,150 66,640
Interest income 1 1,436 3.142
Qther 0 847
Gain on dispesal of subsidiary 13,538 Q
Total income 81,924 70,629
Expenses

Interest experse and bank charges 27179 9,298
Depreciation/Amortisation 4,276 1,479
Administrative expense 1 134,B49 12,758
Foreign exchange (gain}toss 137,210) 3490
Total expenses 129.092 27.025
Net {loss)/earnings [47,948) 43,604
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Company balance sheet

At 31 December [CHF 00D) e Notes 2001 2000
Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash eguivatents 21,891 31,409
Receivables

- From related party - 524
- Account receivables third parties 262 479
Prepaid expenses 13469 172
Total current assets 23,522 32,584
Non-current assets

Irvestments 2 1,586,511 772325
Loans to group comparies 3 100,002 202,207
Loans to third parties 1,208 496
Intangible assets 18,376 5362
Fixed assets 781 957
Treasury shares 4 37,033 38,136
Total non-current assets 1,743,911 1,019,483
Total assets 1,762,433 1,052,067
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Liabilities

Bank borrowings 5 764,241 -
Payables 245 541
Due to group companies 76.418 76,919
Due to related party - 1,381
Accrued liatilities 8,252 . 5,001
Total tiabilities 847,156 83,822
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 59,000 59,000
Legal reserve 373.213 372110
Unrestricted reserve 83,000 88,000
Reserve for Treasury shares 37,033 38,136
Retained earnings, opening balance 410,999 367,395
Net {loss}/earnings {47,948) 43,604
Total retained earnings ‘8 343,031 410,999
Tolal shareholders’ equity 920,277 968,245
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,767,433 1,052,047
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1. Income and Expenses

The 2001 income from group companies comprised ol dividends of CHF 4.9 miltion and commissions of CHF 1.2
million. The total interest income in 2001 does not include any interest income from group companies. Personnel
expense for the year 2001 was CHF 5.9 miltion [2000: CHF 7.4 million). The increase in administrative expense is
mainly due to the provisional impairment of the loan to Xstrata Windimurra Pty Ltd of CHF $7.2 mitlion and the
merger loss on Xstrata Forestry AG of CHF 26.4 million,

2. Investments

Changes in group companies and investments of the Company are shown in Note 1 and Note 33 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The increase in investments is mainly due to the “paid in surplus” to Xstrata Capital Corporation AW.

J. Loans to group companies

The toans to group companies decreased to CHF 100 mitlion {2000: CHF 202.2 miltion} mainly due to the disposal
of Xstrata Coal Pty and to the provisional amartisation of the loan ta Xstrata Windimurra Pty Ltd.

4, Treasury shares

During 230!, the Company decreased Treasury shares from CHF 38.1 million to CHF 37.0 miltion. [Refer to Note
29 of the Consolidated Financiat Statements.}

The following table illus:rates the mavements in Treasyry shares during 2001:

Numbar of shares CHF Q00
Balance at beginning of periogd 122,470 38,136
Additions 4,169 1810
Disposals (6,596} [2.913)
Balance at end of period 120,043 37,033

5. Bank borrowings

The increase in bank borrowings is due ta the acquisition of the shares in Asturiana de Zinc SA. [ses Note 18 to
the Consolidated Financial Statementsl.
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6. Available amount of capital increase

{CHF 006} 31,12.2001 31.12.2000
The available amount of the approved capital increase is: 29,500 0
The available amount of the conditional capital increase is: 5,000 5.000

7. Contingent Llabilities

Xstrata AG has issued a guarantee on behalf of Forestal los Lagos in the amaount of CHF 20.3 million [USD 12.1
million}.

8. Additional information

Significant shareholders:
Significant shareholders of the Company are listed on page 41 of the annual report,

Fire snsurance value of hixed assets: (CHF 000] 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
1,160 1,140

Proposed Appropriation of Retained Earnings

{CHF 000) 31.12.2001 31.12,2000
Retained earnings, opening balance 410,999 367,395
(Loss¥/profit for the period (47,968) 43,604
Total retained earnings 363,031 410,999
Proposed distributian ‘ - -
To be carried forward 363,031 410,999

The Board of Directors does not propose to pay any dividends for 2001 (2000: nill.
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Report of the Statutory Auditors

Report of the Statutory Auditors to the General
Meeting of Xstrata AG, Zug

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting
records and the financial statements lincome
statement, balance sheet and notes / pages 36 to 36
of Xstrata AG tor the year ended 31 December 2001.

These financial statements are the responsibility of
the board of directors. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these linancial statements based on our
audit. We confirm that we meet the legal
requirements concerning professional qualification
and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing
standards promulgated by the Swiss profession, which
require that an audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial siatements are free from material
misstatement. We have examined en a test basis
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, We have also assessed lhe
accounting principles used, significant estimates
made and the overal( financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our apinion.

ta our opinion, the accounting records and financial
statements and the proposed appropriation of
available earnings comply with Swiss law and the
cempany’s articles of incarporation,
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We recommend that the financial statements
submitted to you be approved.

Zurich, 13 February 2002

Ernst & Young Ltd

HF fmfr{(fi

" Hans-Peter Rudolf Reto Hofer

Certified Public Accountant Certified Accountant

fin charge of the audit}
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Investor Infarmation

Registered Office and Head Office
Xstrata AG

Bahnhofstrasse 2,

4300 Zug

Switzeriand

Telephone: [++41} +41 726 6070
Telefax: [++41] +41 724 6089
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Exhibits:
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Preamble

The board of directors of Xstrata has concluded to reorganize the Xstrata group structure
and to expand its businesses in order to considerably increase its world-wide position in the
interests of the group, its clients and business assaciates, its shareholders and employees,
In this context, Xstrata has already formed a new Swiss subsidiary (Revolution AG (to be
renamed Xstrata (Swizerland) AG, “Revolution AG™)) and will shortly transfer its assets
and liabilities to said company in exchange of newly issued shares of it, essentially Jeaving
Xstrata with a shareholding in its new sub-holding (comprising its prior business) as sole
asset. In 8 next step, Xstrata intends to merge with Xstrata PLC on the terms set out in this
agreement. The parties have agreed to structure the merger as a take-over of all assets and
liabilities of Xstrata by Xstrata PLC by way of an international (cross-border) merger
without liquidation of Xstrata inter alia in corapliance with Ast. 748 of the Swiss Code of
Obligations (“CO™) end also applicable laws of England. The implementation of the
merger will be interconditional with the closing of the acquisitions referred to hereafter.

Xstrata PLC and future subsidiaties of it have also concluded a share purchase agreement
(the "SPA") with Glencore International AG {“Glencore™) and certain subsidiaries of Glen-
core regarding the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Glencore Overseas AG, Dui-
ker Mining Ltd. and Duiker Marketing AG (the “Glencore Targets”). Xstrata PLC will
finance these acquisitions partly with newly issued shares and for the rest with debt facili-
ties (the “Debt Facilities”} and through 8 global offering to institutional investors (the
“Global Offer”). It is planned to optimize — by reasonable cross conditioning of related
completions ~ comfort to all parties involved that both the merger and the acquisitions will
ectually be implemented. All shares of Xstrata PLC will be listed on the London Stock
Exchange with a secondary/dual listing on the SWX Swiss Exchange. The parties involved
believe that the merger must be prepared and completed quickly.

The board of Xstrata has concluded after negotiations and after having sought independent
advice of a highly reputed financial advisor that the agreed exchange ratio (Xstrata shares
for Xstrata PLC shares) is fair to the shareholders of Xstrata.

THE PARTIES THEREFORE AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

X16224406 doc
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1.1

12,

13.

14.

1.5.

The Merger

Agreement to Merge: The parties hereby agree that Xstrata shall merge with Xstrata
PLC in accordance with the provisions of this merger agreement and (to the extent
applicable to a cross-border merger) Art. 748 CO and the laws of England. Xstrata
PLC shall be the surviving and Xstrata the absorbed company.

Accounting Basis, For accounting and consolidation purposes, the merger shalt take
effect at book value and be henceforth accounted for as from 1 January 2002 and be
based on the following accounts, accordingly:

(a) the audited annual financials of Xstrata (holding company) as of 31 Decem-
ber 2001 as set out in Exhibit 1.2.(g);

() the audited annual consalidated financials of Xstrata and its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2001 as set out in Exhibit 1,2.(b);

(c) the pro-forma interim (holding company) balance sheet of Xstrata reflecting
its financial situation following completion of the contribution of assets and
liabilities to Revolution AG in connection with the share capital increase of
the latter pursuant to Sec. 3.5. below as set out in Exhibit 1.2.(c),

Xstrata PLC shall carry the assets and liabilities transferred to it pursnant to the
merger in its balance sheet at their previous book values,

Effectiveness. The merger, including the transfer of assets of Xstrata to Xstrata
PLC and the assumption by Xstrata PLC of Xstrata’s obligations and liabilities,
shall become legally effective with the entry of the merper (and of the dissolution
of Xstrata) in the diary of the Commercial Register of the canton of Zug, Switzer-
land (the "C'Reg").

Acceptance by Xstrata PIC, Xstrata PLC agrees to accept the transfer of all the
assets end lisbilities of Xstrata (including all other legal positions and obligations)
pertaining to its business including as per the pro-forma interim balance shest in
Exhibit 1,2,(c). Xstrata PLC particularly undertakes, for the benefit of cach person
to whom Xstrata owes any obligation or has any liability, upan the legal effective-
ness of the merger to perform such obligations and discharge such liabilities as if it
originally owed or had them instead of Xstrata.

Completion. The transfer of the assets and liabilities of Xstrata (including all other
legal positions and obligations) shall be effected by universal succession and by

X16224406 doe ¥
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implementing the other completion measures herein agreed, all with legal effect as
of the entry in the diary of the C'Reg as per Sec. L.3..

2. Exchange of Shares

2.1. Xstrata PL.C-Shares to be Issued

Pursuant to the mesger, before the Xstrata shareholders' meeting as per 19 March
2002 (the "Xstrata Sharcholders' Meeting") the Xstrata PLCshareholders shall have
authorized its directors to:

() allot to the, former shareholders of Xstrata or their nominee(s), upon effec-
tveness of the merger, 10 (ten) ordinary shares in Xstrata PLC with a par
value of USD 0.50 each, credited as fully paid, in respect of each share in
Xstrata, representing a total of 59 million ordinary shares in Xstrata PLC;

(b) allot at least 130 million such new ordinary shares of Xswata PLC to Glen-
core as part of the consideration for the acquisitions and to subscribers for
cash under the Global Offer in conjunction with the admission of the shares
of Xstrata PLC to listing on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and
trading on the London Stock Exchange, simultaneously with the effectiveness
of the merger and completion of the acquisitions under the SPA;

(c) allot at least 19.5 million additional such ordinary shares of Xstrata PLC and
to issue these shares in whole or in part upon request of and at the offer price
to J.PMorgan Securities Ltd and to Glencore inter alia, to cover over-
allotments, if any, in conrection with the Global Offer and to cover short po-
sitions resulting from stabilization transactions as well as to serve as further
consideration under the SPA.

2.2.  Exchange Ratio, In completion of this merger, the shareholders of Xstrata shall
receive 10 (ten) newly issued registered shares of Xstrata PLC with a par value of
USD 0.50 each for each bearer share of Xstrata,

This exchange ratio was established by the parties amongst other things, giving re-
gard to the further transactions to be completed at or prior to completion of the
merger (particularly completion of the acquisitions by Xstrata PLC (or future sub-
sidiaries of Xstrata PLC) of the Glencore-Targets), and being aware of the faimess
opinion rendered by J.P. Morgan plc, London, attached hereto as Exhibit 2.2,

X16224406.d0¢ %
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2.3. Completion of Share Exchange

On or before the legal effectiveness of the merger pursuant to Sec. 1.3., Xstrata
PLC shall issue and deliver its new shares determined for the Xstrata sharcholders
(pursuant to Sec. 2.1.(b)) to Credit Suisse as exchange agent (the "Exchange
Agent") who, pending the exchange with the Xstrata-shares and registration of
Xstrata-shareholders in Xstrata PLC’s share register, shall be registered as the
holder of Xstrata PLC shares ecting as nominee for cach sharcholder of Xstrata
pursuant to Sec. 2.4.(b). Subject to and with effact as from the Jegal effectiveness of
the merger as per Sec. 1.3., the Exchange Agent shall hold such shares as nominee
for and on behalf of the Xstrata-shareholders and coupled with the obligation of the
Exchange Agent immediately upon such legal effectiveness of the merger to trans-
fer legal title to such shares of Xstrata PLC to the former Xstrata-shareholders in
exchange for delivery (or re-booking) by them of their Xstrata-shares on the basis
of the exchange ratio as per Sec. 2.2.. For such purposes, the parties will enter into
8 separate agreement with the Exchange Agent.

24. Registration of Xstrata-Sh 1d archolders

() Xstrata PLC shall promptly register in its share register as holders of the
Xstrata PLC-shares all former shareholders of Xstrata who have obtained le-
gal title to such following delivery of their Xstrata-shares to the Exchange
Agent pursuant to Sec. 2.3.. ’

(b) Pending such registration of Xstrata-shareholders, the Exchange Agent shall,
upon issue of the Xstrata PLC-shares to it as per Sec. 3.2, be registered in
Xstrata PLC's share register as holder of the Xstrata PLC shares to which the
Xstrata-shareholders are entitled and act as nominee for such shareholders of
Xstrata with effect as from the legal effectiveness of the merger pursuant to
Sec. 1.3.. As from such effectiveness, Xstrata-shareholders shall be entitled to
call for the nominee to transfer the legal title to the Xstrata PLC-shares to
which they are entitled to them and to account to them for all entitlements
arising from those Xstrata PLC-shares, against delivery of their Xstrats-
shares to the Exchange Agent for exchange against transfer of the legal title to
the Xatrata PLC-shares,

25. ' Listing of Xstrata PLC-Shares on the London Stock Exchange. Prior to completion
of the merger as per Sec. 5. the UK Listing Authority shall have granted permission

for the admission of all nowly issued Xstrata PLC-shares (including for avoidance

X162244061 .doc %
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of doubt all the shares issuable to or for the benefit of the Xstrata-shareholders and
those to be issued as consideration to Glencore and to new subscribers in the Global
Offer) to the Official List and the London Stock Exchange plc shall have agreed to
admit such shares to trading on its markets for listed securities, subject to allotment
of those shares.

2.6. Secondarv/Dual Listing of Xstrata PLC-Shares on SWX Swiss Exchange. Prior to

completion of the merger as per Sec. 5., the Swiss Admission Board shell have
agreed to admit the newly issued Xstrata PLC-shares to trading on the SWX Stock
Exchange, subject to admission to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and
from the same date as the shares are admitted to trading on the London Stock Ex-
change.

2.7. Globsl Offer, Prior to the legal effectiveness of the merger as per Sec. 1.3., Xstrata
PLC shal) have issued the new shares required as consideration for Glencore under
the SPA and made and successfully completed an offering to certain professional
investors of in the aggregate at least 130 million newly issued registered shares
with g par value of USD 0.50 esch. The present shareholders of Xstrata PLC and
the (former) Xstrata-sharcholders will not be accorded any subscription (pre-
emption) rights in respect of such shares issued for the Global Offer and as consid-
eration under the SPA.

3. Further Preparations for Implementation of the Merger

3.1, Amicles of Association of Xstrata PL.C. Prior to the Xstrata Sharcholders’ Meeting,
Xstrata PLC shall have adopted articles of association substantially in the form set

out in Exhibit 3.1..

3.2. Board of Directors o Prior to the Xstrata Shareholders’ Meeting, the
board of directors of Xstrata PLC shall have been reconstituted so as to comprise

the following members:

¢ Willy R. Stxothotte, Chairman

»  Michael L. Davis, CEOQ

s TrevorL. Reid, CFO -
*  Santiago Zaldumbide

¢ Reto F. Domeniconi

e Ivan Glasenberg

s Pau) Hazen

X16224406 doc é
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33.

34,

3.5.

e David Issroff

¢ Robert MacDonnell

e SirSteve Robson

e Frederik Roux

o David Rough shall be appointed as Deputy-Chairman in April

Management Stmcture of Xstrata PLC, Prior to the Xstrata Shareholders’ Meeting,

the management of the affairs of Xstrata PLC shall have been structured as follows:

(a) Xstrata PLC will only undertake high-level strategic management and super-
vision of the group. It will have no employees other than its directors and it
will be managed almost entirely through board or comumittee meetings, all of
which will be held in Switzetland;

(®) RevolutionAG will uadertake a group co-ordination and holding company
role. It will be responsible for all major group decistons, other than those very
high level matters reserved to Xswrata PLC. Less significant matters, such as
decisions relating to day-to day management, financing and treasury matters,
et¢., will be delegated to a management group.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Xstrata PLC shall remain incorporated in England
and Wales and retain its regigtered office in London.

Auditors of Xstrata PLC. Auditors of Xstrata PLC shall be Emst & Young LLP.,
London. ‘

It Pnor to the Xstmta Shareholdcrs Mcetnng, Revolution AG shall have mcrcascd
its share capital by an amount of CHF 497°900'000.—, divided into 497'900 regis-
tered shares with a par value of CHF 1'000.— each, all of which new shares shall
have been issued to Xstrata in consideration for Xstrata contributing and transfer-
ring its business with practically all of its assets (except its shareholding in Revolu-
tion AG, its Xstrata treasury shares and its rights under agreements with third par-
ties relating to the preparations for the transactions herein referred to (“Revolution
Trensaction Agreements™)) and all of its liabilities (except certain liabilities in con-
nection with its board and management share incentive schemes and such under the
Revolution Transaction Agreements) to Revolution AG as a contribution in kind
("Sacheinlage”), all on the basis of respective book values of Xstrata as at
31/12/2001 and with risks and benefits passing as from 01/01/2002, with the excess

X16224406,800
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balance of assets over liabilities in the amount of CHF 883'144'521.~ contributed
to be allocated and carried onwards by Revolution AG as follows: CHF
497°900'000.— on account of payment of the nominal value for the new shares and
CHF 385'244°521.~ on account of contributed surplus (“Agio”).

36. Tax Structure The parties shall use best efforts to the effect that Xstrata PLC will
be (exclusively) subject to taxation in Switzerland in all respects as Xstrata pres-
ently is.

37 pe Agent. Prior to the

filing of the apphcatxon regan'hng the merger w:th the C'ch. Xstrata shall deliver
the endorsed share certificates representing all outstanding shares of Revolution AG
to the Exchange Agent (as per Sec. 2.3.) who, pending the legal effectiveness of the
merger, shall hold these as nominee for and on behalf of Xstrata. Subject to and

with effect as from the legal effectiveness of the merger as per Sec, 1.3, the Ex-
change Agent shall forthwith hold all such shares as nominee for and on behalf of
Xstrata PLC and coupled with the obligation of the Exchange Agent immediately
upon such effectiveness of the merger to transfer legal title to such shares of Revo-
lution AG to Xstrata PLC by delivery of endorsed share certificates representing
such shares.

4. Corporate Approvals aud Other Conditions for Completion

4.1. Board Approval of Xstrata PL.C. Xstrata PLC confirms that ar the meeting held on
20 February 2002 its board of directors has approved of the signing and perform-
ance of the present merger agreement and all other agreements and transactions
herein envisaged or referred to, Xstrata PLC represents and warrants that no share-
holders' approval or other corporate authorizations are required on its side for such
purposes, except for the shareholders resolutions required to implernent the follow-
ing all of which shall have been validly adopted befors the Xstrata Shareholders'
Meeting;

. adoption of new articles of association
. clection of new directors
. election of auditors

» Xstrata PLC share capital increase(s)

X16224406.doc J
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. Authorisation of the directors to issue share capital pursuant to this agree-
ment, the Global Offer and the SPA.

4.2, nditions to be Me
ing the Application 1o the C'Reg:

Beforé the Xstrata Shareholders’ Meeting or the filing of the application for the en-
try of the merger into the C'Reg (as specified), the following further measures shall
have been implemented:

4.2.1. Merger Clearances

(2) It is noted that the Merger Task Force of the European Commission has ad-
vised that the ecquisitions and other transactions contemplated in connection
with the merger arc not considered to be a concentration requiring a merger
notification, wherefore no such notification has been or will be submitted.

(b) On or before the filing of the application regarding the merger with the CReg
in Switzerland, advice from the Secretariat of the Swiss Competition Com-
mission shall have been obtained to the effect that the transactions contem-
plated do not entail a change of control triggering a merger notification re-
quirement under the Swiss Law on Cartels, or, alternatively, following a re-
lated formal notification, confirmation on behalf of the Swiss Competition
Commission shall have been obtained that the merger and other transactions
contemplated in connection with it may be completed.

4.2.2, Relating to Glencore Target Share Purchase Agreement

On or before the (final) filing of the application regarding the merger with the
C'Reg, satisfaction of all conditions to completion of the SPA other than the admis-
sion of Xstrata PLC-shares to listing and the merger becoming effective.

4.2.3. Relating to Debt Finance

On or before the (final) filing of the application regarding the merger with the
CReg, the syndicated loan agreement on the Debt Facilities shall have been signed
and afl conditions for drawdown (other than the admission of the Xstrata PLC-
shares for listing and the merger becoming legally effective) shall have been satis-

fied.
X16224406.00 p
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4.24, Related to the Global Offer

On or before the (final) filing of the application regarding the merger with the
CReg, all conditions. to the obligations of the underwriters under the underwriting
agreement relating to the Global Offer shall have been satisfied (other than the ad-
mission of Xstrata PLC-shares to listing and the merger becoming effective).

42.5. Related to Xstrata Debt Calls to its Creditors

At or before the filing of the application regarding the merger with the CReg, all
Jjustified requests of creditors of Xstrata for payment of or posting security in re-
spect of their claims in response.to the related debt calls of Xstrata shall have been
appropriately fulfilled in accordance with Swiss law. With a view to Xstrata PLC
assuming all liabilities and other obligations of Xstrata pursuant to the merger, sub-
ject to the merger becoming legelly effective pursuant to Sec. 1.3., Xstrata PLC, for
the benefit of all related creditors, herewith subjects itself to the non-exclusive ju-
risdiction of the courts of Zug with respect to any disputes arising out of or in con-
nection with any liabilities or other obligations assumed by Xstrata PLC from
Xstrata in connection with the merger.

4.2.6. Related to the Xstrata Stock Option Plans

The parties hereto will enter into a separats agreement appropriately providing for
the preservation of the rights of the participants under Xstrata's stock option plans
existing or having accrued as of the legal effectiveness of the merger pursuant to
Sec. 1.3,

4.2.7. No Prohibition

Any statutory, court or official prohibitions to complete the merger shall have ex- '
pired or be terminated, or if not, failure to comply with such would not have mate-
rially adverse consequences for one or both parties.

428 Third Party Consents

Before the filing of the application regarding the merger with the CReg, Xstrata
and Revolution AG shall have obtained unconditional consent and/or waivers from
the agent on behalf of the banks to the transfer by Xstrata of all of its rights and ob-
ligations under the EUR 600m. credit facility agreement to Revolution AG pursuant
to the Xstrata Spin-Off without triggering any acceleration or other adverse conse-

X 16224406 d0c J
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quences for Xstrata or Revolution AG or other obligors thereunder, relicving
Xstrata from its obligations and other liabilities thereunder accordingly.

4.2.9. Relating to Xstrata Spin-Off

Before the filing of the application regarding the merger with the CReg, the Xstrata
Spin-Off (and the related share capital increase of Revolution AG) shall have been
entered in the CReg.

43. Approval by Shareholders’ Meeting of Xstrata. The board of directors of Xstrata
shall submit this merger agreement to the shareholders’ mesting of Xstrata with a

motion to approve the rmerger which meeting is envisaged to taks place on 19
March 2002. The merger shall be deemed approved if the Xstrata Shareholders’
Meeting adopts a resolution on the approval of the merger pursuant to this agree-
ment and the dissolution of the company without liquidetion with a two thirds ma-
jority of the votes represented at the meeting.

Without such shareholder approval, the merger shall not be completed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the board of directors of Xstrata shall have the right

to postpone such sharcholders’ resolution and/or to move to reject such rasolution,

in case one or several of the prerequisites as per Sec. 2.5. through 2.7. and this Sec.

4 are not met to its satisfaction by the time of the shareholders’ meeting as required '
and/or if it comes to the conclusicn that the relevant prerequisites will not be met in

time for the merger to become legally effective before the termination dats as per

Sec. 10.2..

5. Completion of the Merger

S.L

QR_e& The apphcauon regardmg the merger to the CReg shall be ﬁled as soon as
practicable following the approval of the merger by the Xstrata Shareholders' Meet-
ing, the chairman or the vice-chairman of the board of directors of Xstrata remain-
ing authorized, however, to refrain from filing such application in case one or sev-
eral prerequisites as per Sec. 2.5, through 2.7. and See, 4.2, (the non-fulfillment of
which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the contemplated transactions as
2 whole) are not met (or not expected to be met) to their satisfaction, including par-
ticularly the completion of the SPA end payment of the consideration thercunder.

52. Supplementary Completion Measures
X16224406.doc é
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5.2.1. Relating to Xstrata Liabilities

Subject only to the merger becoming legally effective as per Sec. 1.3., and with ef-
fect as from the date of such effectivencss, Xstrata PLC hereby assumes from
Xstrata 2l] lisbilities (including all other legal positions and obligations thereto re-
lating) 10 be transferred to it in connection with the merger as further specified in
Sec. 1. Without limiting the generelity of the foregoing, such liabilities and obliga-
tions shall include the (direct or indirect) liabilitics of Xstrata in connection with its
board and management share option incentive schemes, the lisbilities which Xstrata
could not transfer to Revolution AG in the Xstrata Spin-Off due 10 Jack of a third
party consent and which Xstrata has to fulfill as a fiduciary for and on behalf and
on account of Revolution AG, the liabilities and obligations relating to Revolution
Transaction Agreements and Xstrata’s contingent liabilities vis-3-vis its (former)
creditors following completion of the Xstrata Spin-Off.

52.2. Relating to Xstrata Shareholding in Revolution AG

Following the legal effectiveness of the merger as per Sec, 1.3, the Exchange
Agent shall hold all Revolution-shares exclusively for Xstrata PL.C and deliver such
to Xstrata PLC as further specified in Sec. 3.7..

5.2.3. Relating to New Xstrata PLC-Shares

Following the legal effectiveness of the merger as per Sec. 1.3, the Exchange
Agent shall hold the new shares of Xstrata PLC as nominee for the (former)
Xstrata-shageholdzars as further specified in Sec. 2.3..

6. Procedure and Organization

6.1.  General. The parties undertake to use their best efforts to consummate the transac-
tions contemplated in this agreement as quickly as possible. To this end they shall
co-operate closely and specifically co-ordinate the necessary contacts with the au-
thorities, the employees and the public, the latter pursuant to Sec. 8.

6.2. Rescrvation of Right ta Amend, The chairman or vice-chaicman of the board of
directors of Xstrata and the chairman or vice-chaimman of the board of directors of

Xstrata PLC may change provisions of this merger agreement and the motions pre-
sented for resolution to the shareholders’ meetings and the procedure for this pro-
ject by joint decision if necessary, provided that the material contents of this merger

X16224406 d0c J
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7.1

7.2,

agreement is maintained and the validity of the shareholders’ resolutions and/or the
prompt implementation will thereby not be adversely affected.

Conduct of Business

Share Capital Increase of Revolution AG and Contrbution of Xstrata Business to
It. Xstrata PLC expressly acknowledges and agrees that, in advance of completion

of the merger, Xstrata will contribute its business to Revolution AG, disposing all
of its assets other than its sharcholding in Revolution AG, furthermore that, while
Xstrata will therewith also transfer its liabilities to Revolution AG, Xstrata will
continue to be jointly and severally liable for such liabilities with Revolution AG
for a period of two years which continued contingent liability of Xstrata will be in-
cluded in those assumed by Xstrata PLC as consequence of the merger.

Qtherwise: In the Ordinary Course. Subject to Sec. 7.1. and the othec trangactions
expressly herein provided for (including the creation of new shares by Xstrata PLC
for the Xstrata shareholders and completion of the SPA together with the related fi-
nancing from the Global Offer and debt), during the period between the signing of
this merger agreement and the completion of the merger, the parties shall refrain
from the following acts, unless herein provided for or the other party agrees:

(a) Issuing new shares not presently registered in the C'Reg or otherwise pres-
ently legally issued or the granting of rights on such shares; the issue of new
shares as envisaged in this agreement or pursuant to previous commitments
and existing direstors’ and employee share option plans remaing permitted.

(b) Acquisitions or divestments with a valuc‘exceedlng CHF 10 million and
transactions of unusual strategic importance, including transactions by affili-
ated companies.

(¢) Material changes in the employment contracts of management staff or general
changes in the working conditions of the parties or their effilisted companies.

(d) The payout of dividends or distribution of bonus shares,
Announcements

The parties shall notify the public, their shareholders and employees and the au-
thorities, stock exchangss and employees committees in accordance with the mutu-
ally agreed programs.

X16224406.d0¢
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9, Miscellaneous

9.1. Confidentiality. The contents of the merger negotiations and of the documents and
information exchanged in this context shall be treated 2s confidential by all parties.
This shall not apply to statutory and regulatory obligations to provide information
to authorities, courts and to stock exchanges.

92. Notices. Notices in connection with this merger agreement shall be legally binding
if they are communicated in writing or by telefax to the following recipieats:

(@) In case of Xstrata: to the Chief Legal Counsel
Bahnhofstrasse 2
6301 Zug
Fax 0041/41 726 6089

with copy to: Dr. Peter 1. Kienast
' Bir & Karrer
Secfeldstrasse 19
8024 Zirich
Fax 0041758 261 5001

(®) Incase of Xstrata PLC;t0 the Chief Legal Counsel
Bahnhofstrasse 2
6301 Zug
Fax 0041/4] 726 6089

with copy to: Neil Radford
PFreshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
65 Fleat Street
London EC4Y 1HS
Fax 0044/20 7832 7001

9.3. Costs. Each party shall bear its own costs incurred in negotiating this merger
agresment in the event that this merger is not completed, Joiatly incurred costs shall

be evenly divided.
94. Changes end Modifications of the Agreement, Changes to this merger agreement
must be made in writing.

If at all possible, each provision of this merger agreement shall be interpreted so
that it is valid and eoforceable under applicable law. If a provision of this merger
"agreement should be unenforceable or invalid, it shall enly be invalid to the extent
that it is unenforceable or invalid and shall be otherwise replaced by a valid and en-
forceable provision which a party acting in good faith would regard as an adequate

X16224406.d0¢ 2
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commercial replacement for the provision which is invalid or unenforceable. The
other provisions of this merger agreement shall remain binding and in force under
all circumstances.

9.5. Absence of Waiver, The waiver of a contractual right in an individual case, shall
not be regarded as a general waiver of this right or other rights arising out of this

merger agreement.

10,  Entryinto Force and Termination

10.1. Eafry jnto Force. This merger agreement shall enter into force upon its signing.

10.2. Tgmmination. This merger agreement shall be automatically terminated:
(a) If the shareholders’ meeting of Xstrata does not approve of the merger;

(b) If the merger is not entered in the C'Reg pursuant to Sec. 1.3. with legal ef-
fect at the latest on 30 June 2002. Sec. 6.2. remains reserved.

The termination of the merger agreement shall also terminate all rights and obliga-
tions arising out of the merger agreamsnt with the exception of those in Sec. 9 and
11, which shall continue to be valid.

1. Applicable Law and Arbitration

11.1. Applicable Law. This agreement shall be governed by the (domestic substantive)
laws of Switzerland.

11.2. Arbitration, All disputes arising out of or in connection with the present agreement
shall be finally sattled under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber
of Commerce by three arbitrators appointed in accordance with the said Rules. Seat
of the arbitration shall be Zurich, language of the arbitration shall be English.

Zug, 20 February 2002

Xstrata AG : EXECUTED as a DEED
by XSTRATA PLC acting by
twq/flirectors/a director and the

L. L. DAL B.S. Jevere

genna Lﬂ.\ltm

W k. Aol X16224408 doc
%\;Lmk Oencbor
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Company financial statements

Company income statement

For the year ended 3) Decemnber {CHF 000) Notes 2001 2000
Incema

Dividends ard other ingeme from group cempanies 1 66,150 66,640
Interest income 1 1436 3,142
Dther Q 887
CGzin on disposel of subsidiery 13,530 g .
Total incame 81,124 70,629
Expenses

Interest expense and bank charges 22179 9.298
Depresiation/Amortisaticn 4,274 1479
Administrative expense ' 134,849 12,758
Fareign exchange (gainl/loss {37,210) 3,490
Total expenses i 129,072 27.025
Net (lossl/earnings 147,948) 43,404
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Company balance sheet
At 3) December [CHF 000! Notes 2001 2000
Assets
Current assets
Cagh and cash equivalents 21,691 31,409
Receivables
- From related party - 524
= Account receivabiles third parties 262 479
Prapaid expenses 1349 172
Total current assets 5,52 32,584
Non-turrent assets
Investments 2 1,504,511 772328
Loans to group eompanies 3 100,002 202,207
Loans to third parties 1208 498
Inangidte assats 18,378 5,342
Fixed assets 781 957
Treasury shares 4 37,033 38136
Total non=current assets 1,743,911 1,019,483
Total assets 1,787,439 1.052,067
Liabilities and shareholdaers' equity
Ligbilities
Bank borrewings 5 764,241 -
Payables 245 541 '
Due to group companies 75,418 76,919
Dve to related party - 1,381
Azcrued liabilities 4,262 5.00%
Total liabilitiss 847,158 83,822
Shareholders equity
Share capiat 59,000 59,000
Legal reserve 373,213 721
Unrestricted reserve 89,009 88,000
Reserve for Trgasury shares 37,033 38,136
Retained earnings, opening balance 410,999 387395
Nat llesslaarnings (87,948} 43,604
Total retained sarnings ;] 363,034 410,959
Total shareholders’ equity 920,277 968,245
Total liabililies and shareholders’ equity 1,767,433 1,052,067

PAEE Gb F 224
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Notes to the Company financlal statements

1. Incoma and Expenses

The 2001 income from group cempanies comgrised o! dividends of CHF 649 millian and commissions of CHF 1.2
million, The total interest income in 2001 dors not include any interast income trom group companies, Personnel
expense for the year 2001 was CKF 5.9 million (2000 CHF 7.4 million], The increase in administrative sxpense is
mainty due to the provisional impairment of the loan to Xstrata Windimyrra Pty Lid of CHF §7.2 million and the
merger loss an Xstrata Forestry AG of CHF 26.4 million,

2 Investments

Changes in group companies and investments ¢! the Campany are shown in Note 1 and Note 33 of the
Censolidated Financial Statements.

The increase in investments is mainly due to the “paid in surplus” to Xstrats Capital Corporation AW,

3. Loans to group companies

The loans to group companies decreased to CHF 100 million 12000; CHF 202.2 million) mainly dua to the disposal
ol Xstrata Coal Py and to the provisional amortisation of the loan to Xsirata Windimurea Pry Ltd.

4, Treasury shares

During 2001, the Company decreased Treasury shares from CHF 38.1 million to CHF 37.0 million. [Relfer to Note
29 of the Consolidated Rinancial Statements.)

The fotlowing table itiustrates the mavements in Treasury shares during 2001:

Numbsr of shares CHF 000
Batance at beqinning of paricd 122470 39,138
Additions 4,169 1,810
Disposats [4.59¢) (2,913}
Balance at end of pariod 120,043 37,023

5. Bank borrowings

The increase in bank borrowings is due Lo the acquisition of the shares in Asturians de 2ine SA. laee Note 18 1o
the Consolidated Financial Statementsl.

Pty € 97 0F D2y
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& Available amount of capital Increase

[cHE Qo) 31,12.2081 31122000
The available arnount ol the approved capital increase is: 29,600 0

The available amourt of the conditional cspitat .ncrease is: 5,000 5.000

7. Continpent Liabilitles

Xstrata AG has issuad @ quarantee on behalf of Farestal los Lagos in the smount of CHF 20.3 mittian [USD 12.4
million).

8, Additonal information

Significant shareholders:

Signilicant shareholders of the Company are listed on page 41 of the annual report.

Fire snsyrance valye ol fixed assets: (CHF 008) 3192280 31.12.2000
1,180 1.160

Proposed Appropriatian of Retained Earnings

(CHF 600) .12 31,12.2000
Reldined earnings, opening balance 410,95y 367,395
{Lass}/profit for the pericd 147,948) 43,604
Tocal retained esrnings 343,031 410,999
Proposed distribution - -
To be carried lorward 363,001 410,979 *

The Board of Directors does not propose ta pay any dividends for 2001 12000; nill,

Qe 9% 0F 24




XSTRATA +41 41 726 60 89

Report of the Statutory Auditors

Report of the Statutory Auditors to the General We recommend that che financial statements
Meeting of Xsirata AG, Zug submirlad (o you be spproved.

As statutery auditers, we have audited the accounting Zunch, 13 February 2002
reccrds and tha finaneial statements [income Ernst & Young Ltd
statament, halance sheat and rotes / pages 36 lo 39}

ol Xstrats AG for the yesr ended 31 Decamber 2001,
These Fnancial statements are the responsibility of /{F
the board cf directors, Our resgonsibility 15 lo express '

an gpinion on thesa financial statements based on gur

dit W firm th the legal Hans-Peter Rudolf Reto Hofer
2y ':’ & confirm ¢ 't_m me:l .e elga ticati Certified Public Accountant Cartified Accountant
requirements cencerning professional quatification lin charge of the sudid

ang indepandence,

Our audit was conducled in accordance with auditing
standards pramulgated by the Swiss profess:on, which
require that an audit ba plannad and performed to
chiain reasenable assurance about whether the
financial e2ataments are freg from materiat
misstatement, We have examined on a tast basis
esdence supporting the amounts and diselssures in
tha finangiat statements. We have also assessed the
actounting principles used, significant estimates
made and the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that eur audit provides a
reasonable Basis for dur opinien.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial
stataments and the proposed apprepriation of
awailable earnings comply with Swiss law and the
company's articlos of incorporation.

Pace 99 0¥ 224
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Exnar [.2(5)

Consolidated insome statemont

For the year ended 33 Decernber (U$D 000) Notes 2801 000
Revenue 813409 - 597,671
Cost of goods sold & 674,482} 1449.737)
Depreciation and amortisation 135,998} {21,458
Operating earnings bafore eiects of disposals and impairment 0,123 128478
Disposal of oparations 2 [1,954) 8.9Nn?
Impairment of assats _ 3 14s,5001 -
Cperating earnings 85,469 195,393
Interest income 2,13% 2,550
Interest expense 123,490 {14,088
Orher income 5 £,857 Hin
Other expense . é (16,060 (7.0641
Earning before tax and minority interest 23,904 187,932
Income tax ? {10,428) {17.981)
Earnings before minarlly interest 13,249 149.98% .
Minority intersst 8 12,018) -
Net earaings 11,25 169,981
Adjusted earnings per share [USDI 1.5 2948
Waighted avernge shares autstanding 5,779,211 5,749,347
Shares outstanding at year end 5,779,957 5,777,530

PéyE (00 OF 04
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Cansolidated balance sheet

At 31 December (USC 000 Notes 200t 2000
Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equwvalents H 45,848 44,736
Accounts receivable 10 188,170 133,174
{rventories T 144,768 114,837
Total currant asgats 379,804 202,747
Non-qurrent sssats

Investments 1 55 &
Praperty, plant and squipment 13 771,680 404,235
imangible assets 14 125,140 5,365
Deterred tax assets 7 17,611 2,499
Other assels 15 13,027 4513
Tatal mon-current assats 927,593 $17.024
Tatal assets 1,308,337 $09.771
Liabilities and sharsholders® equity

Current liabilities .

Current borrowings 14 80,243 ?.542
Accounts paysble 17 148,782 107,334
Total current lisbilities 229,123 116,876 '

Non-current linbilities

Non-current borrowings 18 421,990 34,502

Deferrad tax lisbilitias 7 100,999 112,126

Othar liabilities 19,20 ' 55,787 4,020

Total non-currant Uabilities 578,756 152,698
Minority intsrast 8 1,994 41

Sharshelders’ eguity .

Share capital 41,549 41,589

Additional paid-in capital 293,382 293,882

Treasury shares (22,941) @53l
Retained earnings 817473 806,220

Net unrealised lags on financiat instrumants 113,520 -
Translation adjustment . 1319,894) (178,802}
Total sharsheldars’ squity 456,452 440,156

Tetal Ushilities & shareheldars’ equity 1,304,337 909,771

Pce for or Dl
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December [USD 000} Notes 2081 2000
Operating activities .

Net earnings 11,263 159,981
Minority interest 8 2,016 -
Depreciation and amertisation 35,993 21658
Loss/gain) on disposal of operations 2 1,954 (489171
Impairmant of assets 3 45,500 -
Provisions, deferred tax ang other non-cash items 14,402 {20,901}
Cash flow before working capital moverments 11,129 101,821
increasel/decrease In sccounts receivable o o {3,893 2,498
Decrease/lincrease] in inventaries 20422 {5,027)
|Decreasalfincreasa in accounts paysble 135,830 12220
Net cash provided by operating activities 100,022 MMn2
Invasting activities

Cagital expanditure 1134,212) (55,1321
Disposal of operstions 1 87,20 213034
Acquisitions 1 (653,583) {£.188)
Net cash lusad inl/provided by Investing activities " (520,514 152,719
Fmancing sctivitles

Incrasse/ldecraasal in current berrowings 35,907 166,497 .
Increase/{decreasel in non-current borrowings 349,141 {181,382)
[Purchases)/disposals of treasury shares, net (572) 1,629
Net cash provided by/lused In) financing activities 404,495 (224,430}
Cash fram acquired operatiens 18,006 -
Caeh in group companies digpased (669) 11,031}
Nst Increase/{decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 1,130 36,950
Cash and cash ecuivalents at beginning of year 44,736 7,786
Cash and cash equivalents at end ol year 9 A5, 844 44,736

Supplementary cash flow infarmation
Income tax paid, net 11,802 1300
Interest paid, nat 20,305 13,340

PAGE 102 bF 22¢
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Conseolldated statement of changes in equity

For tha yaar ended 31 Decamber (USO 000! 2001 2000
Share capital » .

Balance at beginning of yesr . £1,569 £1,569
Balance st end of year 41,549 41,569
Additional pald-in capitat

Balance at beginning of year 293,202 w3019
Reclassificatians - {1116
Other - 1123
Balanca at and of year 293,862 292,882
Treasury shares

Balance at beginning of year 123,5131 121,026
Teeasury shares sT2 (2.487)
Balance at end of year 122.941) 123.513)
Retained sarnings

Balance 3! beginning of year 5Ds,220 345,835
Net earnings 1,253 169,981
Changes in group companies - [11.043) .
Reclassdfications - 1110
Other : - 386
Balance at end of year  B174n 506,220
Net unreatised loss on financlal instruments

Balance at beginning of year - -
Net unrealised loss on adogtion of IAS 39 19,929) -
Net moverneat an USD lorward cantracts {3,848) -
Balance at end of year 113.827) -
Transiation adjustmants

Balance at beginning of year (179,002) {6¢.128)
Translation adjustments (141,892) 1111,874)
Balance 3t end of year {319,894} [178,002)
Total shareholders equity 498,452 640,134

N
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements

1. Changss In group compazies

In May 2081, the Company enterad into an agreement wilh Glencore International AG {Glencore] to disposa its
whally owned subsidiaries Xstrata Coal Pty Ltd and Winarch Pty Ltd. Xstrate Coal Pty Ltd owns 3 95 per cent.
undivided baneficial interast in the United Joint Yenture coal mine in New South Wales, Ausiralis. Glancare is the
manager of the United Joint Veniure coal mine. [n addition to buying the shares of the disposed entities, Glencore
repaid all ioans cutstanding ta the Company at the complation datv. The aggregete consideration smounted to
USD 44.0 mitlion, equivalent to the net back value of the investment and loans adjusted fer currency Ructuations.
The results of tha coal dusiness unit are Aot consolidated for the yesr andad 33 Decernber 2001 as the sHective
date of disposal was I January 2001.

Elfective 3 Mgy 2001, the Company through its wholly owned subsidiary Xstrata Spain SL, acquired 95.5 per cent,
of the oulstanding share capital of Asturiana de Zinc SA. a Spanish public company, for a tetal considaration of
USB 483.4 million including capitalised cost. In Dscember 2001, the Company acquired a further 2.8 par cenl. by
means of a de-1isting offer of Asturiana de Zine SA. 1t is anticipated that 2 merger process will be completed by
mid March 2002 end Xstrats Spain SL will ehange its name and status to Asturians de Zinc SA. The surplus of the
purchase consideration cver the fair valus of mat tangible assats acquired amounting to USO 112.1 million, was
attributed to goodwill and is baing amartised ovar twenty yaars.

On 1 July 2001 Xstrata Forestry AG was merged into Xstrata AG, Effective 3 July 2001 the Chilean forestry trading
company Foresial del Sur Lida was scld of tor a net consideration of USD 4.0 mitticn. The Company received USD
3.3 miltion in Novernber 2001 and the balance st USD 0.7 million is due in October 2002. Pursuant to this
transaction, Forestal Los Lagos SA, which awns the Eucslyptus plantation, is a fully owned subsidis sy of Xstrata
AG and constitutes the Group's anly forestry interast.

The Company incarporated Xstrata Magnesium Corporation 4nd Xitrata Magnesium AG an & July 2000 and 9
August 2000 respectively, in connection with the construction of a magnesium scrap recyeling facitity in the United
States. Following the comptation of the feasibility study, the Company approved a USD 31.3 million expenditure
plan for the construction of the facility.

An agresment to convert the 40 per cent, interast in the Windimurra vanadiurn project owned by Precious Metals
Austraiia Ltd (PMAJ, the joint venture partner, into 8 royalty was entered into in October 2000, As a result, the
Group naw owns 100 per ¢ent, in the Windimurra vanadivrn project, and the S year call option held by PMA was
cancelled. The effective date at wnich risk and rewsrds of ownership passed o Xstrata was 28 September 2000,
In consideration for the 40 per cent. interest scquired, the Group paid AUOD 7.7 miltian (USO 4.2 millian) to PMA
including stamp duty and ether costs, and redeamed the loxn granted to PMA amounting to AUD 23.1 million
(USD 12.4 mitdion] Including intarast due therecn, The aggregate canaiderslion emounts to AUD 30.8 million (USD
16.9 millionl. The fair vatue of the proportionats share of net tangible assets acquired was AUD 50.0 million (USD
27.2 millionl. The arising deficit on s¢quisition was offsat against the residual velue of devalopment eosts and
mining rights. PMA retains en economic banefit in the project through 8 royally sgreement which, provided
certain canditions are mal, entails an anmual royzity payment equivalent to 15 per cent. of the project’s eacnings
belore interest gnd taxes, '

On 7 June 2000 [he Company entered into an agreement with Pecam Energia SA to dispese of its wholly-owned
subsidiary Siidetakira Argentina, which owns sa undivided beneficial interest in the Santa Cruz | eil & gas fields
in Argertina. The sale wos made eflective 1 Jamvary 2000, The aggregate cansideration net af cartain
adjustments amounts to USD 118.4 milion and was sattied in Septemnber 2000. The results of SUdelektra

Argenting are not consolidated for the year ended 31 Oecember 2000 as the eective disposal date was 1 January
2000.
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0On 34 March 2090, the Company entered into an agreament with Cancury Aluminum Cerporation 0 dispase of itg
23 per cent, undivided beneficiat interast i tha Mt Motty aturninium reduction faeiity. This interest was sold with
effect 31 March 2000 for an sggregate considaration net of cartain adjustments of UST 94.7 mitlion, The results
of the Mt Holly aluminium reduction facilily have deen consolideted up to 31 Mareh 2000, the elfective date of
dispasal.

2 Dtsposal of operations ‘
The loss on disposal of discontinuing aperatisns amounting te USD 1.9 million [2000: UST 48.9 miltion gain)
relates to the sale of the Group's imerest in the forestry trading and coal businesses.

The carrying amaunts of the total sssets and liabilities of the discontinuing cperations as refiected in the balanke
shest are 35 follows:

1usD 000) ' 31120 31.12.00
Farestry trading business:

Tolal assets - 19,369
Tolal liabilities - {12.5%1)
Net assets - 5,778
Coal:

Tetal assets - 47564
Total lishilities - {7,702)
Net 3ssets - 39,862

Tne resulls of operations of the discontinuing operstions as reflactad in the income statement ara as lotlows:

{USD 060) 2001 2000
Farestry trading business:

Revenue 23,914 84,764 ’
Expensss [21,624) 152,455
Operiling earnings belors loss an disposat p 2,190 2,109
Less on dispass! {1,782) -
Opersting earnings 408 2109
Other : . 1893 1628)
Ineeme tax charge 154) 1185)
Net {loss) eamiags {239) 1498
(UsD toe) 2001 2000
Coal:

Revenue - 35,350
Expenses - (38,958}
Operating earnings before gain on dispasat - {3,608}
Loss on disposal . 1172 -
Operating loss 11721 13.608]
Other - i
income tax cradit ) - 330
Net s 172) 13,180}
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1USD 000) 2001 2000
Aluminivm: .

Revenue - 18,097
Expenses - [17,045)
Dperating aarnings belore gain en dispasal - 1,038
Bain on disposal - 128
Operating edrnings - 1,144
Other - 1208)
Income tax charge - (18]
Net earnings - 961
{UsSD 00} 2001 2000
Oit & Qas:

Revenue - -
Expenses -~ -
Operating earnings belore gain on disposal - -
Gain on disposat - 48,769
Operating earnings - £8,78¢9
Qther - -
Income tax charge - -
Net earnings - £3,789

The net cash Hows attributabla to the discontinuing operaticns as reflecled in the cash flow siatement are as

follows:

USD 000l 200t 2000
Forestry trading business: ’
Dperating activities 14891 1,543
Disposal of foresiry trading business 3,391 -
Investing activities (471 62
Financing activities 1,859 (549)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,904 1.036
|us0 ooa) 001 2000
Coal:

Operating activitiss ) - 879
Disposat of coal assats 64,000 -
Investing setivities - {1.274)
Financing activities - -
Increase/ldecrnase) In tash and cash equivalents 64,000 {295}
{USD 000! 2001 2000
Aluminfum:

Operaling sctivities - 492
Dispesatl of aluminium 3ssets - 94,649
Inwesting activities - 187
Financing aclivitias - (305)
Increada in cash and cash rquivalents - 94,649
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jush oca) . aan 2000
Oil & Oas:

Operating activities - -
Disposal of oit & gas assels - 118,367
Investing activities : - -
Financing activitias Lo -
Increase In cash and cash equivalents - 118,367

3, Impalrment of assels

{usD ooat . 2001 220
Impairment of assets 45,500 : -

Due to depressed market conditions and operational difficuities. s provision of USD 43.8 million was recorded 1o
rsflect an impairment in the tarrying value of the Windimurra vanadium plant in Austratia, The firvalue of the
investment is very sensitive ta the long term USD/AUD exchangs fate and vanadium penloxide price.
Management has performed discounted cash How [OCF) snalysis using various assumpuons for the main vatue
drivers. Fair valus was decermined on the basis of 3 weighted combination of the resulting DCF valuations, A
discount rate of 9 per cant. was used.

&, Personnel «xpenses
Cast of goods sold include USD 72.8 million (2000: USG 64.8 million) of personnel axpenses.

S, Other inceme

{UsD 000! 2001 2000 '
Income trom sacurities - 20
Qther sundry income 3,062 5.28¢
Foreign exchange gain 2,815 5817
Total 5.857 1.9

Foreign exchange gain, net includes an unrealised net gain of USD 0.1 million [2000: USD 4.3 million].

& Othar sxpenss

1USD 000l 2001 2000
Ferexyn exchange loss 10,820 3,303
Other sundry sxpense 5,248 3,261
Total 16,048 7.084

The foreign exchange loss includes an unrealised loss of USD 7.2 mitlien (2000: USD 2.7 enitlian].
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The Company is incorparated in Switzerland bul aperates in various cauntries with different tax regimes.
Furthermore, the Group's earnings betore income tax provisions arise primarily outside of Switzerland.
Consequently, the weighted average statutory tax rats may vary from period to period reflecting taxable earnings

arising in different tax jyrisdictians.

The income tax credit/{charge] is made up as follows:

(VS0 0001 2001 2000
Current income tax (1,440 (129781
Deferred income tax {9,195) 14,9721
Total incsma lax charge (10,435) (12,951]

The s1atutary tax provision at the waighted average rate is generally calculated an the basis of pre-tax earnings
or Logses in aach cauntry and the applicabla stetutory lax rates. The diterence between the affeclive provision for .
income tax and Ihe statutory tax provision at the waighted average lax rale is reconciled as foltows:

1USO 0001 2007 2000
Statulory prevision far incame tax at weighted

average rate 14,524} 122.5%) (305181 (16.2%)
Permanent differences (4,041} {17.0%]) 13.693 1.4%
Dthar - - 11.328 {0.9%
Effective provigion for income tax 110,835) (44.5%) {17,95%) {9.5%I

The effective tax rates have been skawed by maariat gains and losses on disposal of operations and impairments
ol gssets. If these items are exciuded the affective tax rates are 14.9 per cent, for 2001 and 15,1 per cent. for 2000,

Delerred income tax assats and liabilities for 2001 ang ZC00 reflect :ne impact af amporary differences between
armounts of assets and liabilities for linancial reporting purpases and the 3mounts of such 3ssets and Labilities

as measured for iax purpeses.

Temporary differences and carry forwards thal give rise ta deferred tax assets and liabilitias includa the tollowing:

200¢ 2000
Delerred tax Deferred tax
{USD 000) Assets Linbilties Assets Liabilities
Net operating loss carry lorwards 15,751 - 2499 -
Cepreciation and amortisation
Minaral prazartiss - 136,119} - (84,998}
Other non-current assets 1,840 (64,8801 - [42,178]
Tetal 17411 1100,989¢ 2499 {112.174]

Gther deferred tax assets include a net provisien lor mine closure for the Reotin 2ine mine, Spain,
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B. Minority interast
1UsD 0081 31.12.200¢ 31.12.2000
al Balance shaet
Pyerto Panitao Lids, Chile - 4
Asturiana de Zinc SA, Spain 1,994 -
Tatal 1,994 [
fuso 000l 2001 2000
b) Incoma statamant
Puerto Panitac Lida, Chile - e
Astvriana de Zinc 5A, Spain 2,014 -
Total 2,016 -
9. Cash and cash equivatents
USD 006} 31.12.2001 31.12.2000
Cash 16,450 7474
Time depasits 29,408 37,262
Total 48,968 44,736
10. Accounts recelvable
USD 000l 31.12.2001 31122000
Trade receivables ather than from reiated party 112,709 97,235
Receivables, related party 26,786 22,022
Agvances and daposits ] 987
Recoverable sates tax and prepaid income tax 22,680 7.648
Other recaivables, prapaymants and acerued [ncome 32076 5303
Provision (6.549) {21}
Tolal 188,170 133.174

Other receivables include 8 Spanish government grant of USD 25.7 millien in retation to the zine plant expansien,

the majority of which was received in Janusry 2002,

71, inventories
1usD (o0 31.12.2001 11,122000
Finished goods 77,069 a.217
Raw materials, spares and work in process 71,647 34,569
Provision 13,953) {pé9)
Tetal 144,748 114,837
12 lnvestments
1USD 000 31,12.2001 31,12.2000
Mcunt Thorley Coal Loading Ltd, Ausiralia {13.90%) - 293
* Newesstle Coal Shippers Ply Ltd, Australia (0.56%] - 13
Companhia Paraibuna de Matais, Brazil {0.188%} 55 -
Tatal =3 41
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13. Praperty, plant and equipment

Hineral properties Capitat work

Land and  and Development in progress Totasl
Cast (USD 00Q) Plant axpenditure Plaptation snd Othar 2001
Begmning of pariad - 340478 297,096 71,228 9,120 717,920
Reclassifications © 29,082 6,388 - 135,085) a2
Additions 9,19 542 3N 19,00 129,683
Change in Group Companies 581,350 26,624 - 26,741 804,727
Disposals [2.572) - {1,204} 123} %.001)
Impairment adjusiments 124,184) 123411) 0,219 - {48,814)
Tranglation sdjustments  [1462,681) (106.519) {2.59¢) 121,281} (273,048)
£nd of pariod 978,192 200,707 79,581 STALL 1,155,702
Accumulated depreciation and amertisation
Beginning of period 174,620 - 126,192 - 113,072 (113,584)
Reclassitications - - ~ (244) (264
Change in Group Comgpanies (253,093 (25,451 - (13,8251 {292,510
Depreciahion and amortisatian (28,761 (7.8331 - {3.172) 139,786)
Dicposals . 88 - - 858 1,484
Impairment adjusiments 870 B1Y - - 1,689
Transiation adjustments 39,879 13.066 - 6,725 §8,470
End of period 136.,497) 185,791 - (22,734 1084.222)
Net book value nt
year end 2001 562,495 184,914 19,501 34,488 771,680
Nat beok value st
year end 2000 266,058 270,902 21,228 46,048 604,236 s

Plantaticns, mineral properties and development eapenditure, including capitalised interest of USD 0.8 million
12000: USD 6.9 million). is amontised based on the estimated life of reserves/plantation using the unit of
production method, Land and Plant includes land amounting to USD 24.7 million [2000: USD 17.2 miltion).

14. Intangible assats

Berrewing
{UsD col Goodwill casts Qhver Total
Opening net beck valus 1271 1744 3,648 5,345
Additigns - 2316 3,895 1321
Changes in Group Cormnpanies NN - 058 114,179
Reclassifications - - {282} {232}
Translation adjustments s - {373} (157
Amortisation 13.995) 11,797) 1814} 16,408)
Nt baok valua at
year end 2001 107,715 9,263 8,162 126,140
Al 31 December 2001
Cost 111,439 11,254 27830 150,523
Accumulaled amartisation 13.724) [1,991) [19.648) 125.343)
Nat book value 107,71S 9,243 8,162 125,160

Goodwill |s amortised over 20 years whilst borrowing casts are amortised over the Ul of the financing facily.
QOther intangitle sssats comprica principally acquisition and development costs that are amortised over the
commercial Life ol a project,
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15. Other assats

1US0 000) 3122001 31,12.2000
Lgans w joint venture partners - 2424
Loans to third parties 5,913 1,536
Other 7,794 985
Totat 13.027 4513

Other includes funds dus from the Reocin regional government, Sgain for a discounted value of USD 7.0 millien,
payable upsn the closure ol the Reocin zinc mine.

14, Current borrowings ‘
[usD 000) 31,12.2001 33,92,2000

Bank overdralts and shori-term debt 80,343 9,542
Totat 80,343 9,542

The Group maintains various cradit lines with a number of banks. Assets pledged as securily in respect of these
credit lines are disclosed in Note 21, USD current borrewings beac interest ot a weighled average rate 0! 0.8 per
cent, [2000: 0.8 per cent.) per annum above the borrawing base rate. ZAR current borrowings bear interest ot
Soulh Afncan prime rate that averaged 13,8 per cunt, per annum during 2001 [2000: 14.4 per cent). Total unused
current credit lines et 31 December 2001 amounted to USD 120.8 million {31 December 2000: USD 150.6 miltionl,

17, Accounts payable

{ysh 000y 31.12.2001 31,12.2000
Trade peyables other than with related party 92,140 70103 '
Payables, reisted party 2,950 2471
Other peyables, accrusls and provisions 43,997 19,074
Incarmne tax 475 14,378
Total 148,782 107,334

10, Notecurrent barramings i
1U$0 oonl 21.12.2001 31.12.2000

Long-term debt 421,990 34,502
Total 421,990 34,502

Non-current harrowing st year-end fell due as follows:

{Us0 000

2002 70,394 -
2003 - 2008 &£14,990 2500
2007 and thereafter ) 7,000 32,002
Total 500,984 34,802
Less current portion of tong-term debt 78,994 -
Total 421,990 34,502

PAy e t) oF 234




26. FEB. 2002 14:44 XSTRATA 441 4! 726 60 89 NO. 6195 P 38

On 12 April 2008, the Company entered ints a EUR 400 million term lean and revolving cradit facility comprising a
EUR 250 mitlion term (oan tranche with a ons yesr repayment grce period and 5 agual sermi-annual repayments
therealter, and EUR 330 miltion revolving credit trancha wilh a 4 ynar maturisy.

The proceads of the term loan and. revalving crydit facility were used to finance the acquisition of Asturiana de
Zinc 5A snd for general corporate purposes, The new facility requires the Company to meet certain financiat and
other covenants, including minimum tangible net worth and interest cover ravos. During Ihe first yesr, ihe
borrowing margin has been fixed at 150 basis points above EURIBOR or LIBOR. Thereaker, interest is payable
based on EURIBOR or LIBGR plus 8 margin ranging from 65 to 125 basis points. depending on certain financial
covenants. The USD 300 millian multicurrency ravolving credit facility concluded on § July 2000 wat eancalled.

Totat unused nane-cuerent credit lines at 31 Dacember 200) and 31 Qecember 2000 amounted to USD 54.8 mitlion
and USD 302.5 million, respectively.

Assets pledged as a security for nan-current borrowings are disclosed in Note 23,

19. Other Liabilities and provisions

{USD 000} N2 33122000
Pengian and post retirement benefits 19,754 . 4,853
Prawisions 14,021 872
Other 20,992 295
Total 55,767 4,020

Other tiabilities mainly comprise an obligatisn for the purchase of mining rights in South Africa,

29, Provisians .
1UsSD ongl Restrucluring Other Total 2001

Beginning of period - 872 872

Changes in Group companies {40) 15,270 15,230

Tranglation adjustments 100 {312 212}

Additional provisions - 26 254

Ameunis used - {115 {118}

End of period 40 15,961 16,021

Other provisions mainty ralate to the Reocin zing ming, Spain, 1o cover mine closure and land restoralion costs.
21, Assets pledged

1USD 089) 31.12.2001 31,12.2000
a3l Current borrowings

Total assets piadged - 10.821
Total current borrowings secured - .08

bl Non-current borrowings
Total assets pledged 14,699 14,274
Total non-current borrawings secured ) 12,000 12.000
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2. Finandial instruments

Financisl risk management and potlcies

The Company is exposed 1o market risk and uses derivative financial instruments in connection with its rigk
managemant activities. The Company does not hold or issue dervative financlal instruments for trading
purpeses.

Foreign currency risk :

The Group produces and salls its products in ceveral countries and, os & result, is exposed lo movernents in
foreign currancy exchange rates. From time to tims the Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge future
transactions and cash Illaws on identifizbla foreign currency expasures,

Commodity price risk

Fer n threw yoor pericd ending 31 Qecember 2000, Xstrata entered ints an ofitake agreement with ils markeling
agent for all its Scuth Atrican vanadium pentoxida productian at & fised price of USO 3,50 per pound. Any surplus
ariging between the fixed price and the delivered cuslomar price it shared belween the company ana its agent,
With effect from 1 January 2000, the offlake agreemant was restryctured in such a way thal haif of the vanadium
afftake entitfemnent for the year 2000 was aflacated equally to the years 2001 and 2002 at the fixed price
incremented by an interest element (USD 3.63 per pound and USO 3.90 per pound, respectivelyl.

Tha Group makes use af zine lutures contracts on the London Msiat Exchange to hedge against the risk of 2ine .
price movements. The Group is expesed to zinc price movaments in respect of:
{il zine concantrate inventaries and zine in-circuit up te the peint of ssle; and
fiil own areduction a! concentrate {Reocin minej and discounts abtained on purehases of concentratas and free
zine units.

Credit risk .
The Broup is expased to credit risk in respect of trade recevables, Given the geagraphical and industry spread of
the Group's custorners, cradit risk is believed to be Umited,

Desivative financial instrumants

On 1 Jenuary 2001, the Company adapted IAS 39, Financial instruments: Reedgnition and Measurement. The
Standard raquires the Cempany to recognise all derivatives on the balance sheg! ai fair value, Derivalives that do
nor quatity for hedge aceaunting must be adjusted % lair value through the income statement, If a derivativa is @
hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair vatus of derivaiives are sither ofiset against the
hir value of assats, lisbilities, or firm commitments through earnings or recognised in @ separate component of
equity until the hedged item s recognised in earnings. The inaffective partion of a derivative’s change in fair value
will be immediately recognised in earnings.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments included in the batance sheet are as follows:

[uso o00) 3122001
Derivatives held as cash How hedges:

Forward exchange contracts [othar eurrent provisions) .39
Forwand exchange contracts {other non-current liabilitiss) 5472

Oerivatives hald 93 fair value hedges:
2inc futures contracts {other current recsivables] ‘ 2143
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Cash flow hedges

The Group uses forward exchange conlracts lo hadge future transactions and cash flows on identifiatla tareign
currency exposures. As at 31 December 2001, the Group had entered into severa! USD/EUR forward exchange
cantracts to hedge its U5D-denominated expenditure incurred in the normal course of business. The estimated
oeferrad gains er losses on the open forward contracts have bean determined based on pertinent market
infermatian availabla as at 31 Dacernber 2001. Tha centractua! axchange rates of thase centracls are ag lallows:

Average Ferward

mehanga rates eontract

(USD 000] EUR/USD VIIIE:_
3 menths or lesg 0.993% 60,000
Over 3 months to é months 1.138¢9 40,000
Over & monthe te 12 manths 1.1823 5,000
Ovar 12 months to 24 menths 1.0481 45,000

23. Future commitmants

The Group has contractual commitments for future capital eapenditure in the amount of U_SD 3.3 million (2000:
USD 14.2 millign),

24, Operating leass arrangements

{UsD 0008 2001 2000
Lease payments included in operating earnings 340 89

Al balance sheat date, tha Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable aperating Leases, which
fall due as fotlows:

{usD £o) 31,12.2000 31.12.2000
Not later than one year T 428 [}
Later than one year and not tater than five years 8,104 745
Later than five years 2,500 .

Operating lease payments reprasant renlals payable by the Group for mabile and office equipment,

25, Contingent Uabiiities

On 3 August 2001, a claim was liled but not yet served by Fluor Qaniel Pty Led against Xszrata Windimurrs Pty Lig
and Precious Melats Australia Limited seeking payment of AUD 4.9 million for variations carriad aut under an
engineering services agreernent. A counter claim was subsequently filed by Xstrata Windimurrs Pty Ltd and
Precious Matals Austratia Limited against Fluor Daniel Pty Lid in amount of AUD 3.0 miltlen ler its Raitura to
parform the 0blgations ynder Lhat agreement. A seltlement affer of AUD 1.8 milion has been made to Fluar
Qanial Pty Led. That offer remains apen lor Beeeptance, Precious Metats Australia Limited ceased to be 8 jsint
ventyre participant from 23 September 2000 but remains liable for 40 per cent, of claims made under the
dispute,

In cennection with the expansion ot the San Juan de Nieva plant, the Company has issued bank guarantees for
the amount of EUR 39.0 million {USD 34.5 miltion). The bank guarsntaes have been issued in respect of granta
recaivad from regionsl and federal authorities. The guarantees will be released once the authorities sre satisfied
that the Group has met all its obligations in connection with the receipt of the grants.

NO. 6196
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The Group has contractual ebligations for various expenditures such as reyailies, exploration and development.
Such expenditures accrue when the related reveniue Is earned In tha ordinary course of business. No other
contingent liability warrants disctosure at 31 December 2001 and 2000.

28, Post retirement benefits

Pension and provident funds - defined contridution plans

The Graup operales various defined contribution pension plans covering substantiatly all currant employwes. All
pension plans are [ully funded and the sssets are held saparataly from those of the Group, being generally
invesied with insurance companies and regulated by local legislation.

1n ganerat, the pension plans provide benelits to participants ot retirernent or other life conungencies. The
danefits vary from severance pdyments to retisement pensions on termination of employment. On retirement or
other legitimate life contingency, the amployses are aligible to a sevarsnce lump sum payment or an annuily
equal to their share ¢f the fund,

Centributions to the funds are mads by the Group and, in some cases, jointly by ampleyees, based on g fixed
percentage of the basic annual salary ranging from 1€ per cent. to 20 per cent. Payments under the pansien plan
schemes are recognised as an expanse for each nespective year. Sueh expenses for 2001 amounted to USD 11.8
miilion (2000: USO 5.4 mitlien).

Penslon and provident funds - defined benafit plans

Spain

The Broup operates a defined benalit ptan for entitled retired employees. No individuals were sdded 1o the plan
during 2001 nor will any be added in huture ysars, During 2001, no contributions wers mads to the plan,

Benefits are provided for retired personnel that consists of a lile-long post retirement pension where 50 per cent.
is payable to the spouse upen tha denth of tha retired employse. The future commitments undar this plan were
fully provided lor according to an actuarial study conductad as at 31 December 2001. The relired personnel at this
date amauntad to 349 Individuals with Bn avaraga age of 72 years old.

The Spanish Law 14/2000 of 27 December 2000 on Tax, Administration and Social Measures has set 16 November
2002 as the deadline for the externalisation of pension commitments assumed by companies with respect to their
employses {eithar through insurance cantracts or the formalisation of pension plans], in sccordance with the
stipulations of Law 30/1995 on Private Insurance. The same rule also establighes the maximum periods for
amaortisation of the deficit, based on the way in which the externalisation of these commitments has bean
instrumanted, This pracess is nor foreseen Lo give rise to further liabilities in addition to those stready recorded.

[UsD 0oo} 31.12.2000

Balance at beginning of year -
Changes in group companies 7
Increasa in provision charged to income statement m

Payments made 11,604}
Translation adjusments . 134)
Balance 3! end of year 18,795

Key assumpticns vsed:

Inflation rate 2%
Interact rato 5%

Mortality tables Spanish PERM/F-2000
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South Alrica
The Group opsrales 3 defined benefit plan for entitled ratired employees. No individuals were added to the plan
during 2001 nar will any be added in futurs yesrs, During 2003, no contributlons were made ta the plan.

The pension costs ere detertined with the advies of independent qualified actuaries on the hasis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method with the most recent valuations conducted as at 31 Dacemnber
1999 by a qualified independent actuary detailed as follows:

{USD 000} FIRYALL
Market value of scheme’s assels 5512
Present value of retirement henefits {3.187
Surplus 2325
Key assumplions used:

Rate of return on scheme's assels 18.0%
Roate of salary increases 11.5%
Rate of pension increases 9.1%

The acheme’s sssets and liabilities are not included in the Group balonce sheat 3t 31 Decomber 2001 as the lund
is in the process of Jeing translerred to a third party insurance company and there is a surptus of assets which
will be allocated to the members. ’

Madical aid baneflits

The Group provides pest.retirament medical aid benefits for 8 number o! its employess in South Alrics, The

Group recognises tha estimated liabliity on an accrual basis over the working life of the eligibla employees.

Entitlernent to these benelits was dependent upon the smployes remaining in service until retiremant age but for

mambers retiring on or after 1 January 2002 will cease to receive any subsidy tawards medical aid contributions.

At 31 December 2001 the lund had 54 members wilh an average 3ge of 58 ysars old. N

The accumulated post-retirernant medical aid cbligations and Ihe annual cost of these banefity were determined
by independent actuaries #s at 31 December 2001, The assumptions used include estimates of Lile expectancy
and lang-term estimates of the increases in medical costs. 3ppropriste discount rates and the level of claims
based on the Greup's past axperiance. Actuarial vatuations will be conducted every three years at which time any
surplus or sharthall witl be adjusted through the income statement. Between actuarial valuations, the provision
will be adjusted in sccordance with rates supplied by the actueries.

Balance shest (50 000) .12.2001 31.12.2000
Other non-cyrrent labilities 1,929 2,597
Key assumptions used:

Health care cost inflation 9.0%
Biscount rate 11.0%
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27. Jointly controllad entities

The following amounts represent the Group's shars of the assets and Uabilities end aperating earningsfiloss) cf
tne proportionate consolidated investments:

Balance sheet 1USD 000} 31.12.2001 31,12.2000
Current assels - 5153

Non-gyrrent assets - L2411

Current liskitivies - 5851

Non-currant lizbilities ’ - 1,851

Net asset value - 39,842
Income statemant [USD 000) 31.12.2000 31.12.2000
Operating [lassl/earnings - 13,6081
21. Ralated party transactions

|sD 000) 200 2000
Sales FeV, V205, Zinc 147,958 - 87384
Purchases Char, Ccke, Zing Concentrate 30,293 32,063
Interest expense 815 5%
Agancy lass expenss 10,177 18383
Service lee and other expense 2,77 2672

Soma of the Company's cperating subsidiaries have entered into long term agency agreements wilh Glencare
Internstional AG [Glencore) and/or its subsiiaries under which Glencore provides markating ssrvicas in exchange
for 3n agency fes. Agency fees are negstiated on arms” length terms and range from 3.5 par cent. to § per cent.
of the free on board sales revenue, Glencore acts as collecting agent and alsc assumea 40 par cent. of the aon-
paymen risk of the Group's ferrachrome trade receivablas,

In Decembar 1997, Xatrata Marketing Corparation, 8 wholly whed subsidiary, entered into an offtake agreement
with Glencore in connectian with the acquisition of Rhoax snd Vanadium Technology. Under this three year
agreecnent, Glencore acts as the wxclusive sfitaker of the entire South Alrican vanadium pentoxide and
ferrovanadium production at a fixed price of USD 3.50 per pound of vanadium pentoxide and USD 14,80 per kilogram
vanadium contained in ferrovanadium. Xstrata Marketing Corporation shares equsally with Glancore any surplus
anising between the fixed daliversd prica to Blencore and the doliversd customer price, With sffect from 1 Janvary
2000, the olftake agreement was restructured in such a way that half of the vanadium offtake entitlement lor the
year 2000 was allocated equaily (o the yaars 2001 and 2002 st USD 245 per pound and USD 3.80 per pound
respectively.

The Company has alsc entered into @ management service agreamant with Glencore. Fags under these
agreements are determined annualty and approved by the Board of the Company, Aggregate teas incurred under
such agreement during 2001 amounted ta USD 1.4 millien 12000: USB 1.8 million], This agreement has been
cancelled effactive 1 January 2002

29, Stock optioa incantive plan and Saard of Directars” remunerstion
The Company grancs stock options on it shares 19 ity officers and key emnployees 16 2lign the interests of the

. managermen? with the interests of shgreholders, Under the rules of the Xstrats Groug Management and

Employee Share Incentive Scheime {Scheme), eligibta participants are required to purchase Company shares at
market prices which shares remain blocked during a two year vesting period, The Company then allocates
pptians in proportion to shares purchased. The stock options have 8 two year vesting period followed by a three
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year sxercise period, The Company 1ssued an aggregate of 90,000 serigs 2002 options. The 2002 series options
are valid until 31 January 2007 and vest on 31 January 2004 The 2001 series cptions are valid until 31 January
2006 and vest on 31 January 2003. 2000 Series eptions are valid until 31 January 2005 and vested on 31 Janvary
2002, The 1998 series options are valid until 11 Septmber 2003 snd vested 11 Seplember 2000. There are no
series 1999 aptions. QF the series 1978 options, no options were exercised during 2001,

Members af the Baard of Dirsctars are enlitlad to cartzin benelits as provided for by the Direstors’ Compensation
Scheme under which the anayal directors’ 049 3/ 3 tunction of the Group’s net eamings, The directors have lo
take a minimum of 50 per cent. of the fees in ghares, SLock 03tians, ae a combination thereo!, with the balanze in
cash. As at the data of igsuing the anaqal report the Direttors’ Compensation Scheme was yet ta finalise the
amount of sharas available for purchase and options to be issued. The Series 1997 aptions are velid until

& September 2002 and vestad on & Septamber 1999, The Series 1999 and 2000 opticas are valid unzil 3% January
2004 and 31 January 2005, respectively. These options vested on 14 March 2001 and 31 January 2002 respectively.
Of the series 1797 and 1799 options, no apticns wers exercised dunng 2001,

As at 31 Decernber 2001, the Company held 120,043 shares (2000: 122,470 shares) 1o hedge its exposure under
these stock option plans. Thase shares are disclosed as Treasury shasesin Sharehelders’ equity.

30. Share capital

At the Extraordinary Genersl Meeting of Sharehalders on 6 March 2001, approval to increase 1he sutherized share
capital et CHF 29,500,000 par value was granted to the Baard of Directors. The Board ol Dirsetdrs is sutherzed to
increase the share capital until § March 2003 by issuing 2,950,000 bearer shares with a per value of CHF 10.00
each to be fully paid up, Ingreases in.partial amounts are permitted. The Boanrd of Directors will determine the
applicable issuing price, the type ol contributions to be made for the new shares and the time a5 from which the
new shares give right 1y dividends. Tne shares are intended for placement with the axisting shareholders,
hawever undes certain conditions, the Baard of Director is entitled to exclude the subscription rights of the
shareholders for up 10 10 per cent. of the shares issued, as of the date of the capital issuance.

T1. Subssquent events

In February 2002 the Company entersd into ® merger agreement with Xstrats ple, B public limited company
incorporated in England gnd Wales specifically for the purpose of the merger. |t is anticipated that prior o
completion of the merger, ihe Company will transler the majority of its assets and Labdilities to a wholty-owned
subsidiary. Subject to the 3pproval of the Company's shareholders st the genergl meeling 1o be held on 19 March
2002, all ot the assets and liabilities of the Company will be transferred to Xairats ple 0 completion of the
merger: In consideration tor this Iranséer, Xstrata plc will issue shares to the sharsholders of the Company in
propartion 1o their respective holdings.

in Febryary 2002 the Company and Xatrats ple entered into an acquisition agreemant with Glancare International
AG, Pursuant to this 3greement Xstrata plc agreed to purchase Glencore Internstional AG's coal assets in
Australia and Seuth Africe for USD 2,500 milllen, subjact to an agreed working capital adjustment. The purchase
prics is to be satisfied in part by eash and In part by shares. The cash part of the price witl ba funded by a iclity
ef LSO 2,000 million, a portion ot which will bg used to refingnce existing debt, and trom the proceeds of an
oHering of new ordinary shares in Xstrata ole. It is expected that Xsirala ple will apply to have its ordinary shares
admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing Autherity and o irading on the Londan Steck Exchange’s market for
listed securilfe&

The acquisition sgreement is subject to a number of conditions, including regulatory and third party consents.
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32. Segmand information )
Matals & Minerals Enargy Forestry

200! Ferro  Vanadium Tinc Magnesium  Oil & Gas Coal Pulpwood Clher Total
{usD 000l Chrome
Revenue 87659 43498 264,634 5 - - 25,787 - 613,603
Depreciation and amertisation 4,944 609 21,138 (773 - - p)] 3049 35598
€BITOA 71043 10012 4B4SA (¢083) - - 1133 (77380 139,12t
Operating earnings betore
disposal of eperations and
impairment of assets 66,199 3910 47520 {5,029! - - $02 (103871 103,122
Operating earnings 86,199  {&1562) 47520 {5.029} - - s8] {10,359} 55,849
Net earnings 50401 [43351) 32,183 {3.443] - - (182 (231731 11,289
Capital expendilure 30.51% 4,025 69473 21.83¢ - - 3450 13386 142,884
Property. plant ang
equipmaent 26287 106601 387,745 4,757 - - 2.4 872 T80
Capital amployad 252,157 104,852 548,05 2534 - - 33,782 32554 994,794
Total assets 341490 139,857 708,044 28,097 - - 35201 33,448 1,308,337
Total liabilities 173,500 33,217 180,035 2,753 - - 13,419 424,957 807,891
No. of Employees 3,341 470 1,301, 38 - - 13 14 5377
Metals & Minerals Eneryy Forestry
2000 Ferro Vanadivm Aluminium Magnesivm  Qil & Gas Coal Pulpwood Oiher Totat
1Us0 000! Chrome
Revenue RPN VS TR T : T B0 56632 - 597871 '
Depreciation and amortisation 10,205 8,559 1,230 - - 3348 §A5 8§75 21,658
EBITDA 128949 25,10 2,256 - - {244) 2918 {2955 148134
Qperating earnings before
dispossl of aperations and
impairment of ussets 114984 20,54 1.038 - - R,408] 2371 {8.800] 126.675
Operating earnings 114946 20,589 1,184 - 48789 (34080 2373 [B.EIO) 195393
Net earnings 91,355 23,220 3] - 4B.78% {3.180) 2,06 {13250 149.931
Capital expenditure 27842 15797 - 2,581 - 1,044 4,300 2648 54132
Proparty, plant end
equipment 37564 207,389 - 670 - 37957 29,348 678 604,236
Capitel employed 3515 206,213 - 3725 - 39882 50838 20367 433240
Tolal assets §22737 251571 - 8327 - 47588 57426 26346 9097
Total liabilities 183.40Y 44,100 ~ 402 - 7.702 25918 4083 249574
No. ol Employees ans 841 - 2 - 147 79 15 4.000
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12. Segment informatian (continued)

Revenus by customer location

2001

(usD 600l Americas Alrica « Europe Australasia Totat
Ferrochrame ).485 1,332 144134 81,704 297,659
Vanadium 11,860 3 42,197 9,438 83,499
Zine 2481 §.287 - 258,221 505 206434
Magnesium 25 - - - ]
Pulowead 4,233 - 8,506 13944 25,797
Total 41,258 14,592 450,142 108,613 413,603
200

{usD oo} Americas Alica Europe Australasia Tatal
Ferrochrome 97,131 8.535 186,247 12540 19,332
Vanadium 8.08S - 44,791 15598 43474
Aluminium 18,081 - - - 18,081
Coal - - 158 35,195 35.3%0
Pulpwood 11499 - 7.674 37489 56,632
Tolal 135,294 8,335 238,867 213473 597,871
Total assets

2001

{UsD qos) Americas Alrica Eurcpe Australasia Total
Ferrochrome - 361,690 - - 361,490
Vanadium - 103,889 - 3591 139,85¢
Magnesium 20,097 - - - 20,997 '
ding - - 709,044 - 708,044
Pulpwood /2 - - - 35,201
Qther - - 33,644 - 33,644
Total 43,298 448,370 741,690 35,971 1,304,337
2000

[USD 000} Amnericas Alrics Eurcpe Australasia Totat
Ferrochrome - §22.737 - - 522.737
Vanadivm - 187,913 - 83,558 251.5M
Magnesium 6,127 - - . 4127
Coal - - - 47,564 47,564
Pulpwood 57,424 - - - 57426
Qther - - 26,346 - 26348
Total 41553 690,450 24,344 131,222 909,771
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32, Segment Information (continued)

Capital expenditure

2001

{USD 600! Americas Alrica Eurspe Australasia Total
Ferrochrome - 30.511 - - 30,571
Yanadivm - 1,630 - 2,395 4,028
Magnesium 21,837 - - - 21,839
Zinc - - 89473 - $9.473
Pulpwood 3,650 b - - 3,650
Other - - 13,366 - 13,348
Totat 75489 32,141 82,539 3,375 142,064
2000

{USD pad) Amaricas Alrica Europe Ausirelasia Tatal
Ferrochrame - 27562 - - 27,582
Vanadium - 5,49 - 10,648 15,297
Magrusivm 2581 - - - 2.581
Coal - - - 1,046 1,044
Pulpwiood 6,900 - - - 4,300
Cther - - 2,848 - 2849
Tetal B.,881 32,714 2.948 11,492 56,132

33, Coasoldated companies and interests

The more signifieant subsidiaries and agsocisted underidkings of the Group at 31 December 2001 and tha Group
paccantage of equity capital sre set oyl below:

Entity Consotidation .
mathod Cutrengy  * Capital % interast
Xstrata AG, Switzerland ' CHF 59,000,000
Metals & Minarals
Xstraty South Alrica [Pyl Lid, South Africa FULL ZAR 4125 " 1000
Xstrata 2inc BY, Holland FULL EUR 20,000 100.0
Xstrata Spain S.L., Spain FULL EUR £,000 1000
Asturiana de 2Zinc SA, Spain FULL EUR 127.027,000 983
Xstrata Vanadium Pty Ltd, Australia FULL AUD 1 100.0
Xstrata Windimurra Pty Ltd, Australia FULL AUD 1 100,0
Xsirata Magnasium AG, Switzarisnd FULL CHF 100,000 1000
Xstrata Magnesium Cerp., USA FULL usb 300 1000
Farestry
Forestal Los Lagos SA, Chils FULL CLP  12453,370,554 10,0
Other
, Xstrate Marketing Corporation AVY, Aruba FULL uso 1 100.0
Xstrata Capital Corp, AVLY, Aruba FULL usp 4,000 100.0
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Report of the Group Auditors

Ruport of the Group Auditers to the General Maeting
of Xstrata AG, Zug

As auditors of the group, we have sudited tha
consolidated financial statermnents (income statement,
balsnce sheet, cash Row stalemant, statement of
changes in equity and notes / pages 10 to 35) of
Astrata AG for the year ended December 31, 2001.

These consalidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the beard of directers. Our
responsibility 18 1o express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statemenls based an our sudit.
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements
concerning professional qualifizaticn and
independence.

Qur audit was conduczed in accordance with auditing
standards gromulgated by the Swiss professian and
with the International Standards on Avditing issyed by
the Internatonal Federation o! Accountants {IFAC),
which raquire that an audil be planned and performed
te 9btain reasonabie assurance about whether the
consolidated linancial statements are Iree from
material misstaternent. We have examined on 2 tes!
basis endence supparting the amounts and
disclogsures in the conaclidated Financial statements,
We have alse assessed the accounling principles
used, signilicant estimales made angd the overall
consolidated financial statemert presentation, We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis lor
our opinion.

In our apinion, the consolidated financial satements
give 3 true and fair view of the financial position, the
results of operations and the cash Nlews in accordance
wilh International Accounling Standards tAS) and
comply with Swiss taw.

We recommend Lhat the consolidated financial
staternents submitted to you be approved.

2urich, 19 Fabruasy 2002

Emst & Young Lto

HERAE-

Hang-Peter Rudelf Reto Holer
Certified Pyblic Accountant Certified Accountant
fin charge of the audit!
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JPMorgan
g Edarigr 2.2
The Board of Directors HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL
Xstrata AG
Bahnhofstrasse 2
P.O.Box 102
6301 Zug
Switzeriand 21 Rebruary 2002

Attn:  Mr. Mick Davis, Chief Executive Officer

Centlemen:

You have requested that J.P. Morgan plc (“JPMorgan™ provide an opinion as to the falmcss, from a
financlal point of view, to Xstrata AG (the “Company™), of the Exchange Ratio (a8 defined below)
negotiazed between the Company and Xstrata Ple (UK Neweo™), with réspect to the proposed merger to
be implemented by the Company and UK Newco (the “Merger™) pursuant to the merger agreement daled
as of 20 February 2002 (the “Marger Agreement') between ths Company and UK Newco. You have also
requested that JPMorgan provide an opinion as to the faimess, from a financial point of view, to the
Company, of the Acquisition Value (as defined below) negotiated between the Company and Glencore
International AG (“Glencore'), with respect 10 the proposed sale and purchase of the shares in Gleacore
Overseas AG, Duiker Marketing AG and Duiker Mining (Proprietary) Limited (together, the “Target
Companies™) to be Implemented by the Company and Glencom (the "Acquisition™) pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement dated 21 February 2002 (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement™) between, inter
alia. the Company and Glencore. [n addidon to the Merger and the Acquisition, UK Newco will also
undeqiake a global offering to certain institutiona] investors (the “Globat Offering'™.

The completion of the Acquisition Is condltional upon, inter alia, the Merger becoming effective in
accordance with Swiss Law, and admiseion of UK Newco shares to the official list of the UK Listng
Autharity and to trading on London Stock Exchange ple’s market for listed securitles.

Under the terms of the Mefger Agreement, the Company will merge with znd into UK Newco,
whereupon UK Newco will be the surviving corporation in the merger (the “Merged Entity™). Each
bearer share of the Company will be convested into 10 ordinary shares of UK Neweo (the “Exchange
Ratio™).

Thbe Company and Glencore have agreed that the Company or subsidiaries of the Company will acquire
the cutirs issued share capital of the Target Companies for an aggregate amount of USS2.5 billion, plus
o agreed adjustment to reflect changes in working capital from the cffecdve date of 1 January 2002 to
completion of the Acquisition of US$73 million (the “Acquisition Valuz™), to be satistied partly in cash,
partly by the issue of shares in UK Newca, pantly by the assumption of debt and patly by the repayment
to Cllencore of shareholder loans,

1. Mergan pic - 10 Aldermanbury, London, EQV 77F

o Telephone: 020 7742 4000
oy L uQIWMM@NMWﬁM“dNWMM
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Please be advised that while certain provisicns of the Merger and Acquisition are summarised above, the
terms of the Merger and Acquisition are more fully set ot in the Merger Agreement and the Sale and
Purchase Agresment respectively. As a result, the description of the Merger and Acquisition and certain
other information contained herein is qualified in its entirety by reference o the Merger Agreement and
the Sale and Purchase Agreement,

In ariving at oor opinion, we have reviewed certain information including (1) the Merger Agreement; (ii)
the Sale and Purchass Agreement: (jii) certain publicly available information concerning the business of
the Company and the Targer Companies, and of certain other companies thar we have desmed
comparable; (iv) the reported market prices for the securlties of certain other companies that we have
deemad comparable; (v) publicly available terms of cerwin transactioas involving companies comparable
to the Carmpany and the Tarpet Companies. and the consideration paid in such transactions; (vi) current
and historical markst prices of the ¢rdinary shares of the Company; (vii) the audited fnznclal statements
of the Company for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2000, (vili} the unaudited financial statements of
the Company for the period ended 31 December 2001; (ix) cermin internal financlal analyses and
forecasts prepared by the Company and Glencore and their respective management: and (x) analyses
produced by other advisers and consultants fnstucted by the Company, including the financial
information set out in the draft Listing Particulars relating to the Global Offering dated 15 February
2002,

In addition, we have held discussions with certain members of the manegement of the Company and the
Target Companies, and other advisers and consultants instructed by the Company, and have relied upon
their views, with respect to the past and ewrrent business eperations of tha Company and the Target
Companics, the financial condition and future prospects and operations of the Company, the effects of
the Acquisition and the Merger on the financial condition and future prospects of ths Company, and
certain other matters we believed necessary or appropriate to owr ioquiry. Wo have visited certain
representative facilities of the Company and the Target Companies and we have reviewed such other
information as we decmed appropriate for the purpases of this opinion,

In performing such analysis, we bave used such valustion methodologies as we have deemed necessary
or appropriate for the purposes of this opinion. Our oplnicn is based on (i) our consideration of the
information the Company and Glencore and their respective representatives and advisers have supplied
to us to date; (ii) our understanding of the tenms upon which the Company and UK Newco intend o
consummate the Merger, including, without limitation, those with respect to govenence asd control of
the Merged Entity after consummation of the Merger: (il1) our understanding of the termms upoa which the
Company and Glencore intend to consummats the Acquisition; (iv) the curently contemplated capita]
structure and the onticipated credit standing of the Merged Entity and its subsidiaries upon
consunmmation of the Merger; (v) the assumption that the Global Offering will be consummated as
currently contemplated; and (vi) the ascumpdon that the Meper and the Acquisidon will be
consummated within the time periods soatemplated by the Merger Agreement and the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, respectively,

4
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In giving our opinion, we have relied upon and assumed, without independent verification, the aceuracy
and completeness of all infoemation that was publiely available or was fumished to wm by the Company
and Glencore and their respective representatives and advisers or otherwise reviewed by us, We have not
verified the accuracy or completeness of any such information and we bave not conducted any evaluation
or appraisal of any assets or liabilities, nor have any such valuations o 2ppraisals been provided to us. In
selying on financial analyses and forecasts provided to us, we have assurned that they have been
reasonably prepared based on assuraptions refiecting the best curremly available estmates and
judpments by management of the Company snd other advisers and consultants Insoucted by the
Company as 10 the expected future results of operations and financial condidon of the company to which
such analyses or forecasts relate and we enpress no opinion as to such forecasts or the assumptions an
which they are based. We have also assumed that the Merger and the Acquisition will have the tax
consequences described in the discussions with apd materials provided 1o us by representatives and
advisers of the Company. In particular we have astumed that the Merger and Acquisition will be
accounted for under gensrally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom.

Our opinion is necessurily based on economic, market and other conditdons as in effact on, and the
information made available to us as of, the date hereof, It should be understood that subsequent
developments may affect this opinion end that we do not have any obligation to update, revise, or
reaffirm this opinion.

In the ordinary coursa of their businesses, affiliates of JPMorgan may actively trade in the debt and

. equity securities of the Company and UK Newco and their respective affiliates, for their own aceounts,
or for the accounts of customers, and accordingly, may at any time hold & Jong or short position in such
securities.

We are expressing no opinion herein as to the price at which any securities of either the Company or UK
Newco will trade at any time or the price at which the Globa] Offering can be effected.  Other factors

. after the date hereof may affect the value of the businesses of the Company, UK Newco and the Target
Companies either before or after consummation of the Merger and Acquistdon. including but niot limited
to (i) the total or paral disposition of the equity securities of the Cormpany or UK Newco by their
respective shareholders within 2 short period of time afier the effective date of the Merger (il) changes in
prevailing imterest tates and other factors which genenally influence the price of securities; (iii) adverse
changes in the carrent capital markets; (iv) the occurreace of adverse changes in the financial conditlon,
business, assets, results of operations or prospects of the Company, UK Newco or the Target Companics;
(v) any aclions taken or restrictions imposed by any govemmental agencies or regulstory authorities; and
(vi) timely axecution of all necessary agreements 10 complets the Merger and the Acquisition 0 tezms
and conditions that are acceptable to all parties at interest.  No opimion is expressed whether any
alernative transaction might be more bepeficial to the Company.

JPMorgan was not authorised to and did not investigate any alternative transaction. This opinion
addresses ooly the faimess of the Exchange Ratio and the Acquisition Value from a financial point of
view and does not address any other terms of the Merger Agresment or the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. JPMorgan has net been requested to opine as to, and our opinion does nct in any manner
address, the Company’s underlying business decition to effect the Merger and the Acquisition, or the
terms or pricing of the Global Offering, which will be determined by the Company in conjunction with
its advisers having regard to the level of demand in the Global Offering.

4
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We have actad as financial adviser to the Company and UK Newro with respect 10 the fropased Matger
and Acquisition and will receive a fee for our services. We will also receive an additional fee if the
propased Merger and Acquisition s consummated or in certain other circumstances. Please be advised
that we have had and continue to have significant and on-going financial advisory and other relationships
with the Company and anticipate having such relationships with UK Neweo. In particular, we will act as
sponscr to UK Newco If the proposed Acquisition and Merger are consummated. In addition, an affiliate
of JPMorgan has been appointed to a1 a8 the Global Co-ordinator and Joint Bookrunnier of the Global

Offering.

On the basis of and subject w ths feregoing, it is our opinion as of the date hereof that the Exchange
Ratio in the proposed Merger Is fair, from a financlal point of view, to the shareholders of the Company
taken a3 a whole, and the Acquisition Value In the proposed Acquisition is fair, from a financial point of

view, 10 the Company,

This leaer is not Intended by us (o give rise to any right, which is enforceable by any third party, by
virtue of the Conmacts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 of the United Kingdom or otherwise, and is
provided solely for the information and assistance of the Board of Directors of the Company (and no
other person) in connection with. and for the purposes of, their evaluation of the Merger and Acquisition,
and js not on behalf of, and shall not confer rights or remedies tpon. any shareholder of the Company,
UK Newco, Glencare, or any other person or be used for any other purpose. This opinion may not be
used or relied upon by, or dlsclased, refesred to or communicated by you (in whole or in part) to any
third party for any purpose whatsoever except with our prior writien consent in each instance, This
opinion does not constitute a recommendation 10 any sharcholder of the Company as to how such
shareholder should vote with respect to the Merger, and should not be relied upoe by any sharcholder as
such. This opinion may be reproduced in full as an annex 1o the Merger Agreement and in the
information stutement made available to sharcholders of the Company with the invitatlon to the
extracrdinary general meeting at which shareholders of the Company will vote in respect of the Merger,
but may not otherwise be disclosed publicly by the Corpany in any mamer without our prior written
approval. We understand that the Merger Agresmeat will be filed with the Zug Commereisl Register for
the entry therein of the Merger and will, therewpon, become part of that Register’s publicly accessible
records.

Vezy truly yours,

J.P. MORGAN PLC

By: \&E\
Name: Nicholas Draper

Tide: Managing Director
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exercise of any power contained in these Articles includes any committee consisting
of one or more directors, any director holding executive office and any local or
divisional board, manager or agent of the Company to which or, as the case may be,
to whom the power in question has been validly delegated; (c) no power of delegation
shall be limited by the existence or, except where expressly provided by the terms of
delegation, the exercise of that or any other power of delegation; and (d) except
where expressly provided by the terms of delegation, the delegation of a power shall
not exclude the concurrent exercise of that power by any other body or person who is
for the time being authorised to exercise it under these Articles or under another

delegation of the power.

SHARE CAPITAL

4. The share capital of the Company on the adoption of these Articles is o
divided into 50,000 non-voting deferred shares of £1 each, e ordinary shares of
US $0.50 each and one special voting share of US $0.50.

5. The non-voting deferred shares of £1 each (deferred shares) have the
following Aghts and restrictions:

(2)  on a winding-up or other return of capital, the deferred shares shall entitle the
holders of the shares only to payment of the amounts paid up on those shares,
after repayment to the holders of the ordinary shares of the nominal amount
paid up on the ordinary shares held by them respectively and the payment of
[£100,000] on each ordinary share;

{b)  the deferred shares shall not entitle the holders of the shares to the payment of
any dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the Company; '

(c) the deferred shares shall not, save as provided in paragraph (d) below, be
transferable;

(d)  the deferred shares shall confer irrevocable authority on the Company to
appoint any person to execute on behalf of the holders of any deferred shares
an instrument of transfer of the shares, and/or an agreement to transfer the
shares, to such person or persons as the Company may determine as a
custodian of the shares or to purchase or to cancel the shares in accordance
with the provisions of the Act in any such case for not more than £1 for each
share being transferred, purchased or cancelled to be paid to the registered
relevant holder of the shares without obtaining the sanction of the holder or
holders of the shares, and pending such transfer or purchase or cancellation to
retain the certificate for such deferred shares; and

(e) the Company may at its option at any time after the creation of any deferred
shares but subject to the nature of the minimum capital requirement of the Act
redeem all of those deferred shares then in issue at a price not exceeding £1
for each share redeemed at any one time to be paid to the relevant registered
holders of the shares, upon giving the holders of the deferred shares not less
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than 28 days' previous notice in writing of its intention so to do, fixing a time
and place for the redemption.

6. The special voting share shall confer on the holder of such share the rights set
out in Articles 102, 103, 184 and 222. The rights attaching to the special voting share
may only be varied with the consent of the holder of the special voting share.

7. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and without prejudice to any
rights attached to any existing shares or class of shares, any share may be issued with
such rights or restrictions as the Company may by ordinary resolution determine or,
subject to and in default of such determination, as the board shall determine.

8. The board may issue share warrants to bearer in respect of any fully paid
shares under a sea! of the Company or in any other manner authorised by the board.
Any share while represented by such a warrant shall be transferable by delivery of the
warrant relating to it. In any case in which a warrant is so issued, the board may
provide for the payment of dividends or other moneys on the shares represented by
the warrant by coupons or otherwise. The board may decide, either generally or in
any particular case or cases, that any signature on a warrant may be applied by
electronic or mechanical means or printed on it or that the warrant need not be signed
by any person.

9. The board may determine, and from time to time vary, the conditions on
which share warrants to bearer shall be issued and, in particular, the conditions on
which:

() a new warrant or coupon shall be issued in place of one wom-out, defaced,
lost or destroyed (but no new warrant shall be issued unless the Company is
satisfied beyond reasonable doubt that the original has been destroyed); or

(®) the bearer shall be entitled to attend and vote at general meetings; or

() a warrant may be sumrendered and the name of the bearer entered in the
register in respect of the shares specified in the warrant.

The bearer of such a warrant shall be subject to the conditions for the time being in
force in relation to the warrant, whether made before or after the issue of the warrant.
Subject to those conditions and to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the bearer
shall be deemed to be a member of the Company and shall have the same rights and
privileges as he would have if his name had been included in the register as the holder
of the shares comprised in the warrant,

10.  The Company shall not be bound by or be compelled in any way to recognise
any right in respect of the share represented by a share warrant other than the bearer's
absolute right to the warrant.

11.  Subject to the provisions of the Regulations, the board may permit the holding
of shares in any class of shares in uncertificated form and the transfer of title to shares
in that class by means of a relevant system and may determine that any class of shares
shall cease to be a participating security. '
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Not separate 12, Shares in the capital of the Company that fall within a certain class shall not
“lassofshar  form a separate class of shares from other shares in that class because any share in
that class: '

(a)  isheld in uncertificated form; or

(b}  is permitted in accordance with the Regulations to become a participating

security.
Exercise of 13.  Where any class of shares is a participating security and the Company is
Company s »  entitled under any provision of the Companies Acts, the Regulations or these Articles
respect of to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, forfeit, re-allot, accept the surrender of or

tneeruficated  otherwise enforce a lien over a share held in uncertificated form, the Company shall
be entitled, subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the Regulations, these
Articles and the facilities and requirements of the relevant system:

(a)  to require the holder of that uncertificated share by notice to change that share
into certificated form within the period specified in the notice and to hold that
share in certificated form so long as required by the Company;

(b) to require the holder of that uncertificated share by notice to give any
instructions necessary to transfer title to that share by means of the relevant
system within the period specified in the notice;

(¢)  to require the holder of that uncertificated share by notice to appoint any
person to take any step, including without limitation the giving of any
instructions by means of the relevant system, necessary to transfer that share
within the period specified in the notice;

(d)  to require the Operator to convert that uncertificated share into certificated
form in accordance with Regulation 32(2)(c) of the Regulations; and

(e) to take any action that the board considers appropriate to achieve the sale,
transfer, disposal, forfeiture, re-allotment or surrender of that share or
otherwise to enforce a lien in respect of that share.

Section 80 14.  Subject to the provisions of the Act, the board has general and unconditional

ruthority authority to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities up to
an aggregate nominal amount equal to the section 80 amount, for each prescribed
period.

Section 89 15.  The board is empowered for each prescribed period to allot equity securities

disapplieation  for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Article 14 as if section 89(1) of the Act
did not apply to any such allotment, provided that its power shall be limited to:

{a)  the allotment of equity securities in connection with a pre-emptive issue; and

(®b) the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to Article 15(a)) of equity securities up
to an aggregate nominal amount equal to the section 89 amount.
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16.  Before the expiry of a prescribed period the Company may make an offer or
agreement which would or might require equity securities or other relevant securities
to be allotted after such expiry. The board may allot equity securities or other
relevant securities in pursuance of that offer or agreement as if the prescribed period
during which that offer or agreement was made had not expired.

17. In this Article and Articles 14, 15 and 16:

prescribed period means any period for which the authority conferred by Article 14 is
given by ordinary or special resolution stating the section 80 amount and/or the power
conferred by Article 15 is given by special resolution stating the section 89 amount;

pre-emptive issue means an offer of equity securities to ordinary shareholders or an
invitation to ordinary shareholders to apply to subscribe for equity securities and, if in
accordance with their rights the board so determines, holders of other equity securities
of any class (whether by way of rights issue, open offer or otherwisc) where the
equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of ordinary shareholders or
holders of other equity securities, if applicable are proportionate (as nearly as
practicable) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares or other equity securities, as
the case may be held by them, but subject, in each case, to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the board may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or any legal, regulatory or practical problems under the laws or
regulations of any oversecas territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or
stock exchange;

section 80 amount means, for any prescribed period, the amount stated in the relevant
ordinary or special resolution; and

section 89 amount means, for any prescribed period, the amount stated in the relevant
special resolution.

18.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts relating to authority, pre-
emption rights or otherwise and of any resolution of the Company in general meeting
passed pursuant to those provisions, and, in the case of redeemable shares, the
provisions of Article 19:

(a) all unissued shares for the time being in the capital of the Company shall be at
the disposal of the board; and

(b)  the board may allot (with or without conferring a right of renunciation), grant
options over, or otherwise dispose of them to such persons on such terms and
conditions and at such times as it thinks fit. :

19.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, and without prejudice to any
rights attached to any existing shares or class of shares, shares may be issued which
are to be redeemed or are to be liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or
the holder on such terms and in such manner as may be provided by these Articles.

20. The Company may exercise all powers of paying commissions or brokerage
conferred or permitted by the Companies Acts. Subject to the provisions of the
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Companies Acts, any such commission or brokerage may be satisfied by the payment
of cash or by the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in one way and
partly in the other.

Trusts aot 21.  Except as required by law, the Company shall recognise no person as holding

Fecognised any share on any trust and (except as otherwise provided by these Articles or by law)
the Company shall not be bound by or recognise any interest in any share (or in any
fractiona) part of a share) except the holder's absolute right to the entirety of the share
(or fractional part of the share). .

VARIATION OF RIGHTS

Method of 22,  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, Articles 101 and 102 and to

varyimEFiEhS (he rights attached to any class of share, the rights attached to any class of share may
(unless otherwise provided by the terms of allotment of the shares of that class) be
varied or abrogated, whether or not the Company is being wound up, either:

(@ in such manner (if any) as may be provided by those rights; or

(b) in the absence of any provision, either with the consent of the holders of three-
quarters in nominal value of the issued shares of the class, which consent shall
be by means of one or more instruments or contained in one or more
electronic communications sent to such address (if any) for the time being
notified by or on behalf of the Company for that purpose or a combination of
both or with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a separate
general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class,

but not otherwise.

whenrights 23, For the purposes of Article 22, unless otherwise expressly provided by the
deemedlobe  riohts attached to any share or class of shares, those rights shall be deemed to be
varied by:

{a)  the reduction of the capital paid up on that share or class of shares otherwise
than by a purchase or redemption by the Company of its own shares; and

(b} the allotment of another share or shares ranking in priority for payment of a
dividend or in respect of capital or which confers on its holder voting rights
more favourable than those conferred by that share or class of shares,

but shall not be deemed to be varied by:

©) the creation or issue of another share ranking equally with, or subsequent to,
that share or class of shares (but in no respect in priority thereto) or by the
purchase or redemption by the Company of any of its own shares; or

(d)  the Company permitting, in accordance with the Regulations, the holding of
and transfer of title to shares of that or any other class in uncertificated form
by means of a refevant system.
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SHARE CERTIFICATES

Members' rights 24,  Every member, on becoming the holder of any certificated share (except a

tocertificates  recognised person in respect of whom the Company is not required by law to
complete and have ready for delivery a certificate) shall be entitled, without payment,
to one certificate for all the certificated shares of each class held by him (and, on
transferring a part of his holding of certificated shares of any class, to a certificate for
the balance of his holding of certificated shares) within one month after allotment or,
in the case of a transfer of fully paid shares, within five business days after lodgement
of the transfer or, in the case of a transfer of partly paid shares, within two months
after lodgement of the transfer. He may elect to receive one or more additional
certificates for any of his certificated shares if he pays for every certificate after the
first a reasonable sum determined from time to time by the board. Every certificate
shall:

(a) be executed under the seal or otherwise in accordance with Article 179 or in
such other manner as the board may approve; and

(b)  specify the number, class and distinguishing numbers (if any) of the shares to
which it relates and the amount or respective amounts paid up on the shares.

The Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate for certificated
shares held jointly by more than one person and delivery of a certificate to one joint
holder shall be a sufficient delivery to all of them. Shares of different classes may not
be included in the same certificate.

Replacement 25 If a share certificate is defaced, worn out, lost or destroyed, it may be renewed
certificates . . . . X
on such terms (if any) as to evidence and indemnity and payment of any exceptional
out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by the Company in investigating evidence
and preparing the requisite form of indemnity as the board may determine but
otherwise free of charge, and (in the case of defacement or wearing out) on delivery
up of the old certificate.

LIEN

:‘:‘ncu::;\;: 26. The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share (not being

shares a fully paid share) for all moneys payable to the Company (whether presently or not)
in respect of that share. The board may at any time (generally or in a particular case)
waive any lien or declare any share to be wholly or in part exempt from the provisions
of this Article. The Company's lien on a share shall extend to any amount (including
without limitation dividends) payable in respect of it.

5::':;?;:"' of 27.  The Company may sell, in such manner as the board determines, any share on
which the Company has a lien if a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently
payable and is not paid within 14 clear days after notice has been sent to the holder of
the share, or to the person entitled to it by transmission, demanding payment and
stating that if the notice is not complied with the share may be sold.

Gilvinz efectto 28, To give effect to such sale as set out in Article 27 the board may, if the share
e is a certificated share, authorise any person to execute an instrument of transfer in
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" respect of the share sold to, or in accordance with the directions of, the buyer. If the

share is an uncertificated share, the board may exercise any of the Company’s powers
under Article 13 to effect the sale of the share to, or in accordance with the directions
of, the buyer. The buyver shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase
money and his title to the share shall not be affected by any irregularity in or
invalidity of the proceedings in relation to the sale.

29.  The net proceeds of the sale, after payment of the costs, shall be applied in or
towards payment or satisfaction of so much of the sum in respect of which the lien
exists as is presently payable. Any residue shall (if the share sold is a certificated
share, on swrrender to the Company for cancellation of the certificate in respect of the
share sold and, whether the share sold is a certificated or uncertificated share, subject
to a like lien for any moneys not presently payable as existed on the share before the
sale) be paid to the person entitled to the share at the date of the sale.

CALLS ON SHARES

30. Subject to the terms of allotment, the board may from time to time make calls
on the members in respect of any moneys unpaid on their shares (whether in respect
of nominal value or premium). Each member shall (subject to receiving at least 14
clear days' notice specifying when and where payment is to be made) pay to the
Company the amount called on his shares as required by the notice. A call may be
required to be paid by instalments. A call may be revoked in whole or part and the
time fixed for payment of a call may be postponed in whole or part as the board may
determine. A person on whom a call is made shall remain liable for calls made on
him even if the shares in respect of which the call was made are subsequently
transferred.

31. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of
the board authorising the call was passed.

32.  The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls
in respect of it.

33.  If a call or any instalment of a call remains unpaid in whole or in part after it
has become due and payable the person from whom it is due and payable shall pay
interest on the amount unpaid from the day it became due and payable until it is paid.
Interest shall be paid at the rate fixed by the terms of allotment of the share or in the
notice of the call or, if no rate is fixed, the rate determined by the board, not
exceeding 15 per cent. per annum, or, if higher, the appropriate rate (as defined in the
Act), but the board may in respect of any individual member waive payment of such
interest wholly or in part.

34.  An amount payable in respect of a share on allotment or at any fixed date,
whether in respect of nominal value or premium or as an instalment of a call, shall be
deemed to be a call duly made and notified and payable on the date so fixed or in
accordance with the terms of the allotment. If it is not paid the provisions of these
Articles shall apply as if that amount had become due and payable by virtue of a call
duly made and notified. '
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Diffcrentiation 35, Subject to the terms of allotment, the board may make arrangements on the
on calls issue of shares for a difference between the allottees or holders in the amounts and
times of payment of calls on their shares.

Faymentofealls 36 The board may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member all or part of the
moneys uncalled and unpaid on any share held by him. Such payment in advance of
calls shall extinguish the liability on the share in respect of which it is made to the
extent of payment.

FORFEITURE AND SURRENDER

Noticerequiring 37, If a call or any instalment of a call remains unpaid in whole or in part after it

paymentafeall 125 become due and payable, the board may give the person from whom it is due not
less than 14 clear days' notice requiring payment of the amount unpaid together with
any interest which may have accrued and any costs, charges and expenses incurred by
the Company by reason of such non-payment. The notice shall name the time and
place where payment is to be made and shall state that if the notice is not complied
with the shares in respect of which the call was made will be liable to be forfeited.

Forfeiturefor 38,  [f that notice is not complied with, any share in respect of which it was sent

non-campliance  nay, at any time before the payment required by the notice has been made, be
forfeited by a resolution of the board. The forfeiture shall include all dividends or
other moneys payable in respect of the forfeited share which have not been paid
before the forfeiture. When a share has been forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be
sent to the person who was the holder of the share before the forfeiture. Where the
forfeited share is held in certificated form, an entry shall be made promptly in the
register opposite the entry of the share showing that notice has been sent, that the
share has been forfeited and the date of forfeiture. No forfeiture shall be invalidated
by the omission or neglect to send that notice or to make those entries.

saleofforfeited  39.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, a forfeited share shall be

shares deemed to belong to the Company and may be sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed
of on such terms and in such manner as the board determines, either to the person who
was the holder before the forfeiture or to any other person. At any time before sale,
re-allotment or other disposal, the forfeiture may be cancelled on such terms as the
board thinks fit. Where for the purposes of its disposal a forfeited share held in
certificated form is to be transferred to any person, the board may authorise any
person to execute an instrument of transfer of the share to that person. Where for the
purposes of its disposal a forfeited share held in uncertificated form is to be
transferred to any person, the board may exercise any of the Company’s powers under
Article 13. The Company may receive the consideration given for the share on its
disposal and may register the transferee as holder of the share.

Liability 40. A person shall cease to be a member in respect of any share which has been
fooming forfeited and shall, if the share is a certificated share, surrender the certificate for any

forfeited share to the Company for cancellation. The person shall remain liable to the
Company for all moneys which at the date of forfeiture were presently payable by
him to the Company in respect of that share with interest on that amount at the rate at
which interest was payable on those moneys before the forfeiture or, if no interest was
so payable, at the rate determined by the board, not exceeding 15 per cent. per annum
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or, if higher, the appropriate rate (as defined in the Act), from the date of forfeiture
until payment. The board may waive payment wholly or in part or enforce payment
without any allowance for the value of the share at the time of forfelture or for any
consideration received on its disposal.

Surrender 4].  The board may accept the surrender of any share which it is in a position to
forfeit on such terms and conditions as may be agreed. Subject to those terms and
conditions, a surrendered share shall be treated as if it had been forfeited.

Extinctionof 42, The forfeiture of a share shall involve the extinction at the time of forfeiture of

rights all interest in and all claims and demands against the Company in respect of the share
and all other rights and liabilities incidental to the share as between the person whose
share is forfeited and the Company, except only those rights and liabilities expressly
saved by these Articles, or as are given or imposed in the case of past members by the
Companies Acts.

Evidence of 43, A statutory declaration by a director or the secretary that a share has been duly

forfeiture ot forfeited or surrendered on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of the facts
stated in it as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share. The declaration
shall (subject if necessary to the execution of an instrument of transfer or transfer by
means of the relevant system, as the case may be) constitute a good title to the share.
The person to whom the share is disposed of shall not be bound to see to the
application of the purchase money, if any, and his title to the share shall not be
affected by any irregularity in, or invalidity of, the proceedings in reference to the
forfeiture, surrender, sale, re-allotment or disposal of the share.

TRANSFER OF SHARES
Formand 44, The instrument of transfer of a certificated share may be in any usual form or
i in any other form which the board may approve. An instrument of transfer shall be
C;rﬁﬁ"'ed signed by or on behalf of the transferor and, unless the share is fully paid, by or on
sare behalf of the transferee. An instrument of transfer need not be under seal.

Tm:s;crs_:f 45.  The board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving any reason,
D aared refuse to register the transfer of a certificated share which is not fully paid, provided
shares that the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares of that class in the Company from

taking place on an open and proper basis.

Invalidtransfers 46,  The board may also refuse to register the transfer of a certificated share unless

{ certificated .
:h.c:‘.,' cate the instrument of transfer:

(a) is lodged, duly stamped (if stampable), at the office or at another place
appointed by the board accompanied by the certificate for the share to which it
relates and such other evidence as the board may reasonably require to show
the right of the transferor to make the transfer;

(b) is in réspect of only one class of shares; and

(c) is in favour of not more than four transferees.
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47.  In the case of a transfer of a certificated share by a recognised person, the
lodging of a share centificate will only be necessary if and to the extent that a
certificate has been issued in respect of the share in question.

48.  If the board refuses to register a transfer of a share in certificated form, it shall
send the transferee notice of its refusal within two months after the date on which the

instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company.

49,  The registration of transfers of shares or of transfers of any class of shares
may be suspended at such times and for such periods (not exceeding 30 days in any
year) as the board may determine, except that the board may not suspend the
registration of transfers of any participating security without the consent of the
operator of the relevant system.

50. No fee shall be charged for the registration of any instrument of transfer or
other document relating to or affecting the title to a share.

51. The Company shall be entitled to retain an instrument of transfer which is
registered, but an instrument of transfer which the board refuses to register shall be
retumed to the person lodging it when notice of the refusal is sent.

52. The board shall decline to register any transfer of the special voting share
unless approved in accordance with the voting agreement in place between the
Company and the holder of the special voting share.

53.  Save as set out in Articles 44-52 abovce or as required by the Companies Act or
other applicable law, the Company shall not impose restrictions on the transfer of

shares.
TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

54.  If a member dies, the survivor or survivors where he was a joint holder, and
his personal representatives where he was a sole holder or the only survivor of joint
holders, shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having any title to
his interest. Nothing in these Articles shall release the estate of a deceased member
(whether a sole or joint holder) from any liability in respect of any share held by him.

55. A person becoming entitled by transmission to a share may, on production of
any evidence as to his entitlement properly required by the board, elect either to
become the holder of the share or to have another person nominated by him registered
as the transferee. If he elects to become the holder he shall send notice to the
Company to that effect. If he elects to have another person registered and the share is
a certificated share, he shall execute an instrument of transfer of the share to that
person. If he elects to have himself or another person registered and the share is an
uncertificated sharc, he shall take any action the board may require (including without
limitation the execution of any document and the giving of any instruction by means
of a relevant system) to enable himself or that person to be registered as the holder of
the share. All the provisions of these Articles relating to the transfer of shares apply
to that notice or instrument of transfer as if it were an instrument of transfer executed
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by the member and the death or bankruptcy of the member or other event giving rise
to the transmission had not occurred.

Elections 56.  The board may at any time send a notice requiring any such person to elect

required either to be registered himself or to transfer the share. If the notice is not complied
with within 60 days, the board may after the expiry of that period withhold payment
of all dividends or other moneys payable in respect of the share until the requirements
of the notice have been complied with.

Rights of 57. A person becoming entitled by transmission to a share shall, on production of

D oo ANy evidence as to his entitlement properly required by the board and subject to the
requirements of Article 55 (elections permitted) and Article 190 (permitted
deductions and retentions), have the same rights in relation to the share as he would
have had if he were the holder of the share. That person may give a discharge for all
dividends and other moneys payable in respect of the share, but he shall not, before
being registered as the holder of the share, be entitled in respect of it to receive notice
of, or to attend or vote at, any meeting of the Company or to receive notice of, or to
attend or vote at, any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the
capital of the Company.

ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

aterastionsby 58, Subject to Articles 101 (Class Rights Actions) and 101 (voting on Class
ordinary Rights Actions), the Company may by ordinary resolution:

resolution

(2) Increase its share capital by such sum to be divided into shares of such amount
as the resolution prescribes;

(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger
amount than its existing shares;

(c) subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, sub-divide its shares, or any
of them, into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the Memorandum and
the resolution may determine that, as between the shares resulting from the
sub-division, any of them may have any preference or advantage as compared
with the others; and

(d) cancel shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been
taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its share
capital by the amount of the shares so cancclled, save that, for the avoidance
of doubt, shares issued to the exchange agent for exchange pursuant to the
merger between the Company and Xstrata AG pursuant to the merger
agreement dated 20 February 2002 (the Merger) shall not be cancelled
notwithstanding that any holders of Xstrata AG shares do not tender their
shares in Xstrata AG for exchange pursuant to the Merger.

New shares 59, All shares created by ordinary resolution pursuant to Article 58 shall be:
subject to these
Artlcles
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DRAFT EXHIBIT 3.1 TO MERGER AGREEMENT DATED 20/02/2002

(a) subject to all the provisions of these Articles, including without limitation
provisions relating to payment of calls, lien, forfeiture, transfer and
transmission; and

(b)  unclassified, unless otherwise provided by these Articles, by the resolution
creating the shares or by the terms of allotment of the shares.

60.  Whenever any fractions arise as a result of a consolidation or sub-division of
shares, provided that no member is deprived of his membership of the Company, the
board may on behalf of the members deal with the fractions as it thinks fit. In
particular, without limitation (but subject to the proviso in the previous sentence), the
board may sell shares representing fractions to which any members would otherwise
become entitled to any person (including, subject to the provisions of the Companies
Acts, the Company) and distribute the net proceeds of sale in due proportion among
those members. Where the shares to be sold are held in certificated form the board
may authorise some person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares to, or in
accordance with the directions of, the buyer. Where the shares to be sold are held in
uncertificated form, the board may do all acts and things it considers necessary or
expedient to effect the transfer of the shares to, or in accordance with the directions
of, the buyer. The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase moneys and his title to the shares shall not be affected by any irregularity in,
or invalidity of, the proceedings in relation to the sale.

61.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and to any rights conferred on
the holders of any class of shares, the Company may by special resolution reduce its
share capital, capital redemption reserve and share premium account in any way.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

62.  Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, no alteration or change
to these Articles shall be valid which would cause a member to cease to be a member
of the Company or to take away such a member’s right to speak and vote at general
meetings, to be paid a dividend if declared in respect of his shares and his right to
receive liquidation proceeds on winding-up.

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

63.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, and to any relevant special
rights attached to any class of shares, the Company may purchase any of its own
shares of any class (including without limitation redeemable shares) in any way and at
any price (whether at par or above or below par).

GENERAL MEETINGS
64.  All general meetings of the Company other than annual general meetings shall
be called extraordinary general meetings. The board shall convene and the Company

shall hold general meetings as annual geperal meetings in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Acts.
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65.  All provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings of the Company
shall, mutatis mutandis, apply to every separate general meeting of the holders of any
class of shares in the capital of the Company, except that:

(a)  the necessary quorum shall be two persons holding or representing by proxy at
least one-third in nominal value of the issued shares of the class or, at any
adjourned meeting of such holders, one holder present in person or by proxy,
whatever the amount of his holding, who shall be deemed to constitute a
meeting;

{(b)  any holder of shares of the class present in person or by proxy may demand a
poll; and

(c) each holder of shares of the class shall, on a poll, have one vote in respect of
every share of the class held by him.

Every resolution that could be passed at a class meeting may be passed by written
resolution of all members of that class.

66.  The board may call general meetings whenever and at such times and places
as it shall determine. On the requisition of members pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Acts, the board shall promptly convene an extraordinary general meeting
in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts.

67. In addition to the rights granted to members under Section 376 of the Act (to
have members’ resolutions circulated), the Company shall on the requisition in
writing of a member or members holding a number of ordinary shares whose total
nominal value (based on prevailing exchange rates at the time such a request is made)
is not less than the equivalent of CHF 1 million and at the expense of the
requisitionists, give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of general
meetings, notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at an annual general meeting by such requisitionists. The Company is not
baund to give notice of a resolution unless a copy of the requisition signed by the
requisitionists is deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 6
weeks before the relevant annual general meeting.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

68.  An annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting called for the
passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least 21 clear days' notice. All
other extraordinary general meetings shall be called by at least 20 clear days' notice.

69.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, to the provisions of these
Articles and to any restrictions imposed on any shares, the notice shall be sent to all
the members, 1o each of the directors and to the auditors.

70.  The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting (including without
limitation any satellite meeting place arranged for the purposes of Article 73, which
shall be identified as such in the notice) and the general nature of all business that is
to be transacted at the meeting. All business that is transacted at an extraordinary

LVYOO3IRGVGIQ. XX/ 16+ (106327-0012) Page |7
‘ paCy

1eea

B

A




Contents of
notice:
additional
requirements

Article 75
arrangements

General
meetings at
more than one
place

Interruption or
adjournment
where facilities
inadequate

DRAFT EXHIBIT 3.1 TO MERGER AGREEMENT DATED 20/02/2002

general meeting shall be deemed special. All business transacted at an annual general
meeting shall be deemed special except:

(a) the declaration of dividends;

(b) the consideration and adoption of the accounts and balance sheet and the
reports of the directors and auditors and other documents required to be
annexed to the accounts;

(¢)  the appointment and re-appointment of directors;

(d)  the appointment of auditors where special notice of the resolution for such
appointment is not required by the Companies Acts; and

() the fixing of, or the determining of the method of fixing, the remuneration of
the directors or auditors.

71.  In the case of an annual general meeting, the notice shall specify the meeting
as such. In the case of a meeting to pass a special or extraordinary resolution, the
notice shall specify the intention to propose the resolution as a special or
extraordinary resolution, as the case may be.

72.  The notice shall include details of any arrangements made for the purpose of
Article 75 (making clear that participation in those arrangements will not amount to
attendance at the meeting to which the notice relates).

73.  The board may resolve to enable persons entitled to attend a general meeting
to do so by simultaneous attendance and participation at a satellite meeting place
anywhere in the world. If a general meeting is not held in Switzerland then
arrangements will be made for a satellite meeting place in Switzerland. The members
present in person or by proxy at satellite meeting places shall be counted in the
quorum for, and entitled to vote at, the general meeting in question, and that meeting
shall be duly constituted and its proceedings valid if the chairman of the general
meeting is satisfied that adequate facilities are available throughout the general
meeting to ensure that members attending at all the meeting places are able to:

(a)  participate in the business for which the meeting has been convened;

b) hear and see all persons who speak (whether by the use of microphones,
loudspeakers, audio-visual communications equipment or otherwise) in the
principal meeting place and any satellite meeting place; and

(c)  be heard and seen by all other persons so present in the same way.

The chairman of the general meeting shall be present at, and the meeting shall be
deemed to take place at, the principal meeting place.

74.  Ifit aﬁpears to the chairman of the general meeting that the facilities at the
principal meeting place or any satellite meeting place have become inadequate for the
purposes referred to in Article 73, then the chairman may, without the consent of the
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meeting, interrupt or adjourn the general meeting. All business conducted at that
general meeting up to the time of that adjournment shall be valid. The provisions of
Article 88 shall apply to that adjournment.

75.  The board may make arrangements for persons entitled to attend a general
meeting or an adjourned general meeting to be able to view and hear the proceedings
of the general meeting or adjourned general meeting and to speak at the meeting
(whether by the use of microphones, loudspeakers, audio-visual communications
equipment or otherwise) by attending at a venue anywhere in the world not being a
satellite meeting place. Those attending at any such venue shall not be regarded as
present at the general meeting or adjourned general meeting and shall not be entitled
to vote at the meeting at or from that venue. The inability for any reason of any
member present in person or by proxy at such a venue to view or hear all or any of the
proceedings of the meeting or to speak at the meeting shall not in any way affect the
validity of the proceedings of the meeting.

76.  The board may from time to time make any arrangements for controlling the
level of attendance at any venue for which arrangements have been made pursuant to
Article 75 (including without limitation the issue of tickets or the imposition of some
other means of selection) it in its absolute discretion considers appropriate, and may
from time to time change those arrangements. If a member, pursuant to those
arrangements, is not entitled to attend in person or by proxy at a particular venue, he
shall be entitled to attend in person or by proxy at any other venue for which
arrangements have been made pursuant to Article 75. The entitlement of any member
to be present at such venue in person or by proxy shall be subject to any such
arrangement then in force and stated by the notice of meeting or adjourned meeting to
apply to the meeting.

77.  Subject to Article 81, if after the sending of notice of a general meeting but
before the meeting is held, or after the adjournment of a general meeting but before
the adjourned meeting is held (whether or not notice of the adjourned meeting is
required), the board decides that it is impracticable or unreasonable, for a reason
beyond its control, to hold the meeting at the declared place {or any of the declared
places, in the case of a meeting to which Article 73 applies) and/or time, it may
change the place (or any of the places, in the case of a meeting to which Article 73

- applies) and/or postpone the time at which the meeting is to be held. If such a

decision is made, the board may then change the place (or any of the places, in the
case of a meeting to which Article 73 applies) and/or postpone the time again if it
decides that it is reasonable to do so.

78.  For the purposes of Articles 73, 74, 75, 76 and 77, the right of a member to
participate in the business of any general meeting shall include without limitation the
right to speak, vote on a show of hands, vote on a poll, be represented by a proxy and
have access to all documents which are required by the Companies Acts or these
Articles to be made available at the meeting.

79.  The accidental omission to send a notice of a meeting, or to send any
notification where required by the Companies Acts or these Articles in relation to the
publication of a notice of meeting on a website, or to send a form of proxy where
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required by the Companies Acts or these Articles, to any person entitled to receive it,
or the non-receipt for any reason of any such natice or notification or form of proxy
by that person, whether or not the Company is aware of such omission or non-receipt,
shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

80. The board and, at any general meeting, the chairman may make any
arrangement and impose any requirement or restriction it or he considers appropriate
to ensure the security of a general meeting including, without limitation, requirements
for evidence of identity to be produced by those attending the meeting, the searching
of their personal property and the restriction of items that may be taken into the
meeting place. The board and, at any general meeting, the chairman are entitled to
refuse entry to a person who refuses to comply with these arrangements, requirements
or restrictions.

NOTICE OF ADJOURNMENT

81.  Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, at least 20 clear days’
notice shall be given to members of any adjourned meeting unless (i) such adjourned
meeting is held only to take place on the same day as the original meeting or (ii) such
adjourned meeting is held only to announce the results of a vote held at the original
meeting.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

82.  No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is
present at the time the meeting proceeds to business, but the absence of a quorum
shall not preclude the choice or appointment of a chairman, which shall not be treated
as part of the business of the meeting. Save as otherwise provided by these Articles,
two persons present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the business to be
transacted shall be a quorum.

83. Where a Class Rights Action (see Article 101) is to be considered at a general
meeting, one of the persons present {in person or by proxy) must be the holder of the
special voting share.

84.  If such a quorum is not present within five minutes (or such longer time not
exceeding 30 minutes as the chairman of the meeting may decide to wait) from the
time appointed for the meeting, or if during a meeting such a quorum ceases to be
present, the meeting, if convened on the requisition of members, shall be dissolved,
and in any other case shall stand adjourned to such time and place as the chairman of
the meeting may determine. The adjourned meeting shall be dissolved if a quorum is
not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting.

85.  The chairman, if any, of the board or, in his absence, any deputy chairman of
the Company or, in his absence, some other director nominated by the board, shall
preside as chairman of the meeting. If neither the chairman, deputy chairman nor
such other director (if any) is present within five minutes after the time appointed for
holding the meeting or is not willing to act as chairman, the directors present shall
clect one of their number to be chairman. If there is only one director present and
willing to act, he shall be chairman. If no director is willing to act as chairman, or if
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no director is present within five minutes after the time appointed for holding the
meeting, the members present and entitled to vote shall choose one of their number to
be chairman.

86. A director shall, notwithstanding that he is not a member, be entitled to attend
and speak at any general meeting and at any separate meeting of the holders of any
class of shares in the capital of the Company. ‘

87.  Subject always to Articles 81 and 83, the chairman may, with the consent of a
meeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by the meeting),
adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place. No business shall be
transacted at an adjourned meeting other than business which might properly have
been transacted at the meeting had the adjournment not taken place. In addition (and
without prejudice to the chairman's power to adjourn a meeting conferred by Article
74), the chairman may adjourn the meeting to another time and place without such
consent if it appears to him that:

(a) it is likely to be impracticable to hold or continue that meeting because of the
number of members wishing to attend who are not present; or

(b)  the unruly conduct of persons attending the meeting prevents or is likely to
prevent the orderly continuation of the business of the meeting; or

(c) an adjournment is otherwise necessary so that the business of the meeting may
be properly conducted.

38, Any such adjournment may, subject to Article 81 (notice), the second sentence

of Article 73 (satellite place in Switzerland), and Article 83, be for such time and to
such other place (or, in the case of a meeting held at a principal meeting place and a
satellite meeting place, such other places) as the chairman may, in his absolute
discretion determine, notwithstanding that by reason of such adjournment some
members may be unable to be present at the adjourned meeting. Any such member
may nevertheless appoint a proxy for the adjourned meeting in accordance with
Article 119.

89.  If an amendment is proposed to any resolution under consideration but is in
good faith ruled out of order by the chairman, the proceedings on the substantive
resolution shall not be invalidated by any error in such ruling. With the consent of the
chairman, an amendment may be withdrawn by its proposer before it is voted on. No
amendment to a resolution duly proposed as a special or extraordinary resolution may
be considered or voted on (other than a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error). No amendment to a resolution duly proposed as an ordinary resolution may be
considered or voted on (other than a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error)} unless either (a) at least 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the ordinary resolution is to be considered,
notice of the terms of the amendment and the intention to move it has been delivered
by means of an instrument to the office or to such other place as may be specified by
or on behalf of the Company for that purpose, or received in an electronic
communication at such address (if any) for the time being notified by or on behalf of
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the Company for that purpose, or (b) the chairman in his absolute discretion decides
that the amendment may be considered and voted on.

90. A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be decided on a show of
hands unless (i) before or on the declaration of the result of a vote on the show of
hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll, a poll is duly demanded or
(i1) a poll is required in accordance with Article 91. Subject to the provisions of the
Companies Acts, 2 poll may be demanded by:

(a) the chairman of the meeting; or

(b)  atleast five members present in person or by proxy having the right to vote at
the meeting; or .

(¢)  any member or members present in person or by proxy representing not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right to
vote at the meeting; or

(d) any member or members present in persen or by proxy holding shares
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up
on all the shares conferring that right.

A demand by a person as proxy for 2 member shall be the same as a demand by the
member.

91.  Any resolution to be considered at a general meeting in relation to which the
holder of the special voting share is entitled to vote shall be decided on a poll.

92.  Unless a poll is duly demanded (and the demand is not withdrawn before the
poll is taken) a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has been carried or
carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, or not carried by a particular
majority shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or
proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against the resolution.

93.  In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll,
the chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the
poll is demanded shall be entitled to a casting vote in addition to any other vote he
may have.

94.  The demand for a poll may be withdrawn before the poll is taken, but only
with the consent of the chairman. A demand so withdrawn shall not be taken to have
invalidated the result of a show of hands declared before the demand was made. If
the demand for a poll is withdrawn, the chairman or any other member entitled may
demand a poll.

95.  Subject to Article 96, a poll shall be taken as the chairman directs and he may,
and shall if required by the meeting, appoint scrutineers (who need not be members)
and fix a time and place for declaring the result of the poll. The result of the poll shall
be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.
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96.  All special and extraordinary resolutions shall be taken on a poll. A poll
demanded on the election of a chairman or on a question of adjournment shall be
taken at the meeting at which it is demanded. A poll demanded on any other question
shall be taken either at the meeting or at such time and place as the chairman directs
not being more than 30 days after the poll is demanded. The demand for a poll shall
not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any business other than
the question on which the poll was demanded. If a poll is demanded before the
declaration of the result of a show of hands and the demand is duly withdrawn, the
meeting shall continue as if the demand had not been made.

97.  The Chairman may determine that any poll may close at different times for
different classes of shareholder entitled to vote on the relevant resolution.

68.  No notice need be sent of a poll not taken at the meeting at which it is
demanded if the time and place at which it is to be taken are announced at the
meeting. In any other case notice shall be sent at least seven clear days before the
taking of the poll specifying the time and place at which the poll is to be taken.

99.  Where for any purpose an ordinary resolution of the Company is required, a
special or extraordinary resolution shall also be effective. Where for any purpose an
extraordinary resolution is required, a special resolution shall also be effective.

100. No members’ resolutions in writing shall be effective.
CLASS RIGHTS ACTIONS
101. The following actions constitute Class Rights Actions:

(@) any amendment to, or removal of, or alteration to the effect of (which shall
include any ratification of any breach of) any entrenched provision; and

(b) the doing of anything which the Board determines (either in a particular case
or generally) should be approved as a Class Rights Action.

102. If the Company proposes to take any Class Rights Action such action shall
require approval by special resolution passed at a general meeting of the members of
the Company in relation to which the holder of ordinary shares and the holder of the
special voting share are entitled to vote as a single class on a poll. On such a
resolution, the holder of the special voting share shall have sufficient votes to defeat
the resolution, as provided in Article 103,

VOTES OF MEMBERS

103.  Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any class of shares by or in
accordance with these Articles:

(a) on a show of hands:

(i) subject to paragraplfs (ii) and (iii), each member present in person or
by proxy has one vote;
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(i) the holder of the special voting share and holders of the deferred shares
. shall not be entitled to vote;

(iii) a proxy appointed by a member (in respect of part or all of such
shareholding) on behalf of the beneficial owner(s) of such member’s
shareholding (a Nominee Proxy) shall also have one vote;

(b) onapoll

(i) every member who is present in person or by proxy (except the holder
of the special voting share or holders of the deferred shares) shall have:

(A)  one vote for each fully paid share of which he is the holder;

(B) subject to Article 106, for each partly-paid share, such
proportion of the votes attached to a fully-paid share as would
mean that such proportion is the same as the proportion that the
amount paid up or agreed to be considered as paid up on the
total issue price of that share at the time the poll is taken bears
to the total issue price of the share; and

(ii) the holder of the special voting share shall, on a Class Rights Action,
have enough votes to defeat the resolution and, on votes relating to all
other decisions, shall have zero votes;

(iii) the holders of the deferred shares shall not be entitled to vote.

104. In the case of joint holders of a share, the vote of the senior who tenders a
vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of
the other joint holders. For this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in
which the names of the holders stand in the register.

105. A member in respect of whom an order has been made by a court or official
having jurisdiction (whether in the United Kingdom or elsewhere) in matters
concermning mental disorder may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his
receiver, curator bonis or other person authorised for that purpose appointed by that
court or official. That receiver, curator bonis or other person may, on a poll, vote by
proxy. The right to vote shall be exercisable only if evidence satisfactory to the board
of the authority of the person claiming to exercise the right to vote has been delivered
to the office, or another place specified in accordance with these Articles for the
delivery of proxy appointments, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the right to vote is to be exercised.

106. No member shall be entitled to vote at a general meeting or at a separate
meeting of the holders of any class of sharcs in the capital of the Company, either in
person or by proxy, in respect of any share held by him unless all moneys presently
payable by him in respect of that share have been paid.
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107. If at any time the board is satisfied that any member, or any other person
appearing to be interested in shares held by such member, has been duly served with a
notice under section 212 of the Act (a section 212 notice) and is in default for the
prescribed period in supplying to the Company the information thereby required, or,
in purported compliance with such a notice, has made a statement which is false or
inadequate in a material particular, then the board may, in its absolute discretion at
any time thereafter by notice (a direction notice) to such member direct that;

(a) in respect of the shares in relation to which the default occurred (the default
shares, which expression includes any shares issued after the date of the
section 212 notice in respect of those shares) the member shall not be entitled
to attend or vote either personally or by proxy at a general meeting or at a
separate meeting of the holders of that class of shares or on a poll or to
exercise any other right conferred by membership in relation to such meetings;
and

(b)  where the default shares represent at least ¥ of one per cent. in nominal value
of the issued shares of their class, the direction notice may additionally direct
that in respect of the default shares:

(i) no payment shall be made by way of dividend and no share shall be
allotted pursuant to Article 188;

(ii) no transfer of any default share shall be registered unless:

(A)  the member is not himself in default as regards supplying the
information requested and the transfer when presented for
registration is accompanied by a certificate by the member in
such form as the board may in its absolute discretion require to
the effect that after due and careful enquiry the member is
satisfied that no person in default as regards supplying such
information is interested in any of the shares the subject of the
transfer; or

(B) the transfer is an approved transfer; or
(C)  registration of the transfer is required by the Regulations.

108. The Company shall send the direction notice to each other person appearing to
be interested in the default shares, but the failure or omission by the Company to do
so shall not invalidate such notice.

109.  Any direction notice shall cease to have effect not more than seven days after
the eatlier of receipt by the Company of:

(a) a notice of an approved transfer, but only in relation to the shares transferred,;
or

{b) all the information required by the relevant section 212 notice, in a form
satisfactory to the board.
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110. The board may at any time send a notice cancelling a direction notice.

111. The Company may exercise any of its powers under Article 13 in respect of
any default share that is held in uncertificated form.

112.  For the purposes of this Article and Articles 107, 108, 109, 110 and 111:

(a) a person shall be treated as appearing to be interested in any shares if the
member holding such shares has sent to the Company a notification under
section 212 of the Act which either (i) names such person as being so
interested or (ii) fails to establish the identities of all those interested in the
shares, and (after taking into account the said notification and any other
relevant section 212 notification) the Company knows or has reasonable cause
to believe that the person in question is or may be interested in the shares;

(b)  the prescribed period is 14 days from the date of service of the section 212
notice; and

(<) a transfer of shares is an approved transfer if:

(i) it is a transfer of shares pursuant to an acceptance of a takeover offer
(within the meaning of section 428(1) of the Act); or

(ii) the board is satisfied that the transfer is made pursuant to a sale of the
whole of the beneficial ownership of the shares the subject of the
transfer to a party unconnected with the member or with any other
person appearing to be interested in the shares; or

(iii) the transfer results from a sale made through a recognised investment
exchange as defined in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 or
any other stock exchange outside the United Kingdom on which the
Company’s shares are normally traded.

113. Nothing contained in Articles 107, 108, 109, 110, 111 or 112 limits the power
of the Company under section 216 of the Act (which provides that the Company may

~ apply to have, inter alia, transfer and voting rights attached to shares restricted by the

Frrorsin voting

Objection to
voting

Court for breaches of section 212 of the Act),

114, If any votes are counted which ought not to have been counted, or might have
been rejected, the error shall not vitiate the resuit of the voting unless it is pointed out
at the same meeting, or at any adjournment of the meeting, and, in the opinion of the
chairman, it is of sufficient magnitude to vitiate the result of the voting.

115. No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the
meeting or adjourned meeting or poll at which the vote objected to is tendered. Every
vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid and every vote not counted which
ought to have been counted shall be disregarded. Any objection made in due time
shall be referred to the chairman whose decision shall be final and conclusive.
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116. On a poll, votes may be given either personally or by proxy. A member
entitled to more than one vote need not, if he votes, use all his votes or cast all the
votes he uses in the same way.

PROXIES AND CORPORATE REPRESENTATIVES

117. The appointment of a proxy, whether by means of an instrument or contained
in an electronic communication, shall be executed in such manner as the board may
approve. Subject thereto, the appointment of a proxy shall be executed by the
appointor or his attoney or, if the appointor is a corporation, executed by a duly
authorised officer, attorney or other authorised person or under its common seal. For
the purpose of this Article and Articles 118, 119, 120, 121 and 122, an electronic
communication which contains a proxy appointment need not comprise writing if the
board so determines and in such a case, if the board so determines, the appointment
need not be executed but shall instead be subject to such conditions as the board may
approve.

118. The appointment of a proxy shall be in any usual form or in any other form
which the board may approve. Subject thereto, the appointment of a proxy may be:

(a) by means of an instrument; or

(b)  contained in an electronic communication sent to such address (if any) for the
time being notified by or on behalf of the Company for that purpose, provided
that the electronic comumnunication is received in accordance with Article 119
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting (or any postponed time appointed for holding the meeting
pursuant to Article 77) or, where a poll is taken more than 48 hours after it is
demanded, after the poll has been demanded and not less than 24 hours before
the time appointed for the taking of the poll.

The board may, if it thinks fit, but subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, at
the Company's expense send forms of proxy for use at the meeting and issue
invitations contained in electronic communications to appoint a proxy in relation to
the meeting in such form as may be approved by the board. The appointment of a
proxy shall not preclude a member from attending and voting in person at the meeting
or poll concermned. Subject to Article 122, a member may appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion provided that, in any such case, the member
states in an instrument appointing each such proxy the number of shares in respect of
which that proxy has authority to cast votes and may not appoint more than one proxy
to act at the same time in respect of the same share.

119.  Without prejudice to Article 79 or to the second sentence of Article 88, the
appointment of a proxy shall, except in relation to an instrument deposited by the
holder of the special voting share:

{2)  inthe case of an instrument, be delivered personally or by post to the office or
such other place as may be specified by or on behalf of the Company for that

purpose:
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(i) in the notice convening the meeting, or

(i) in any form of proxy sent by or on behalf of the Company in relation to
the meeting,

not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting (or any postponed time appointed for holding the meeting
pursuant to Article 77) at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote; or

in the case of an appointment contained in an electronic communication,
where an address has been specified by or on behalf of the Company for the
purpose of receiving electronic communications: '

(1) in the notice convening the meeting, or

(i) in any form of proxy sent by or on behalf of the Company in relation to
the meeting, or

(iii) in any invitation contained in an electronic communication to appoint a
proxy issued by or on behalf of the Company in relation to the
meeting,

be received at that address not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting (or any postponed time appointed
for holding the meeting pursuant to Article 77) at which the person named in
the appointment proposes to vote; or

in either case, where a poll is taken more than 48 hours after it is demanded,

be delivered or received as aforesaid afier the poll has been demanded and not
less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; or

in the case only of an instrument, where a poll is not taken forthwith but is
taken not more than 48 hours after it was demanded, be delivered at the
meeting at which the poll was demanded to the chairman or to the secretary or
to any director.

A proxy deposited by the holder of the special voting share will be valid if it is

received by or delivered to the chairman of the meeting before the close of the poll to
which it relates,

121.

Any power of attorney or other written authority under which a proxy

appointment is executed or an office or notarially certified copy or a copy certified in
accordance with the Powers of Attorney Act 1971 of such power or written authority

shall be:

(a) delivered personally or by post to the office, or to such other place within the
United Kingdom as may be specified by or on behalf of the Company in
accordance with Article 119(a), not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting (or any postponed
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time appointed for holding the meeting pursuant to Article 77) at which the
person named in the appointment proposes to vote; or

{b) where a poll is taken more than 48 hours after it is demanded, be delivered as
aforesaid after the poll has been demanded and not less than 24 hours before

the time appointed for the taking of the poll; or

(c) in the case only of a proxy appointment by means of an instrument, where a
poll is not taken forthwith but is taken not more than 48 hours after it was
demanded, be delivered at the meeting at which the poll was demanded to the
chairman or to the secretary or to any director together with the proxy
appointment to which it relates.

122. A proxy appointment which is not delivered or received in accordance with
Article 119 or, as the case may be, Article 120, or in respect of which Article 121 has
not been complied with, shall be invalid. No proxy appointment shall be valid more
than twelve months after the date stated in it as the date of its execution. When two or
more valid proxy appointments are delivered or received in respect of the same share
for use at the same meeting, the one which was executed last shall be treated as
replacing and revoking the others as regards that share; if the Company is unable to
determine which was executed last, none of them shall be treated as valid in respect of
that share.

123. A proxy appointment shall be deemed to include the right to demand, or join
in demanding, a poll and shall confer a right to speak at a meeting. The proxy
appointment shall also be deemed to confer authority to vote on any amendment of a
resolution put to the meeting for which it is given as the proxy thinks fit. The proxy
appointment shall, unless it provides to the contrary, be valid for any adjournment of
the meeting as well as for the meeting to which it relates.

124. Any corporation which is a member of the Company (in this Article the
grantor) may, by resolution of its directors or other govermning body, authorise such
person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company or at
any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares. A person so authorised
shall be entitled to exercise the same power on behalf of the grantor as the grantor
could exercise if it were an individual member of the Company, save that a director,
the secretary or other person authorised for the purpose by the secretary or the board
may require such person to produce a certified copy of the resolution of authorisation
before permitting him to exercise his powers. The grantor shall for the purposes of
these Articles be deemed to be present in person at any such meeting if a person so
authorised is present at it,

125. A vote given or poll demanded by a proxy or by the duly authorised
representative of a corporation shall be valid notwithstanding the previous
determination of the authority of the person voting or demanding the poll unless
notice of the determination was either delivered or received as mentioned in the
following sentence at least three hours before the start of the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the vote is given or the poll demanded or (in the case of a poll taken
otherwise than on the same day as the meeting or adjourned meeting) the time
appointed for taking the poll. Such notice of determination shall be either by means
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of an instrument delivered to the office or to such other place as may be specified by
or on behalf of the Company in accordance with Article 119(a) or contained in an
electronic communication received at the address (if any) specified by or on behalf of
the Company in accordance with Article 119(b), regardless of whether any relevant
proxy appointment was effected by means of an instrument or contained in an
electronic communication. For the purpose of this Article, an electronic
communication which contains such notice of determination need not comprise
writing if the board has determined that the electronic communication which contains
the relevant proxy appointment need not comprise writing.

NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

126. Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution, the number of directors
(other than alternate directors) shall not be subject to any maximum but shall not be
less than 2.

APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

127. At the first general meeting after the date of adoption of these Articles all the
directors shall retire from office, and at every subsequent annual general meeting one-
third of the directors or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third shall retire from office; but:

(a) if any director has at the start of the annual general meeting been in office for
more than three years since his last appointment or re-appointment, he shall
retire; and :

(b) if there is only one director who is subject to retirement by rotation, he shall
retire.

128. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and these Articles, the
directors to retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last appointment or re-appointment. As between persons who became or were last re-
appointed directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot. The directors to retire on each occasion
{both as to number and identity) shall be determined by the composition of the board
at the date of the notice convening the annual general meeting, No director shall be
required to retire or be relieved from retiring or be retired by reason of any change in
the number or identity of the directors after the date of the notice but before the close
of the meeting.

129. No person other than a director retiring by rotation shall be appointed a
director at any general meeting unless:

(a) he is recommended by the-board; or
(b) not less than seven nor more than 42 days before the date appointed for the
meeting, notice executed by a member qualified to vote at the meeting (not

being the person to be proposed) has been received by the Company at its
registered office of the intention to propose that person for appointment stating
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the particulars which would, if he were so appointed, be required to be
included in the Company’s register of directors, together with notice executed
by that person of his willingness to be appointed.

Separate 130. Except as otherwise authorised by the Companies Acts, the appointment of

e any person proposed as a director shall be effected by a separate resolution.

Additional 131.  Subject as aforesaid, the Company may by ordinary resolution appoint a

Do ¢ person who is willing to act to be a director either to fill a vacancy or as an additional
director and may also determine the rotation in which any additional directors are to
retire. The appointment of a person to fill a vacancy or as an additional director shall
take effect from the end of the meeting.

No appointment 132,  The board may not appoint a director (either to fill a vacancy or as an

by board additional director). :

Position of 133. A director who retires at an annual general meeting may, if willing to act, be

feiring re-appointed. If he is not re-appointed, he shall retain office until the meeting
appoints someone in his piace, or if it does not do so, until the end of the meeting.

Age limit 134. No person shall be disqualified from being appointed or re-appointed a
director, and no director shall be required to vacate that office, by reason only of the
fact that he has attained the age of 70 years or any other age nor shall it be necessary
by reason of his age to give special notice under the Companies Acts of any
resolution. Where the board convenes any general meeting of the Company at which
(to the knowledge of the board) a director will be proposed for appointment or re-
appointment who at the date for which the meeting is convened will have attained the
age of 70 or more, the board shall give notice of his age in years in the notice
convening the meeting or in any document sent with the notice, but the accidental
omission to do so shall not invalidate any proceedings, or any appointment or re-
appointment of that director, at that meeting.

No share 135. A director shall not be required to hold any shares in the capitat of the

qualifieation company by way of qualification.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Pawer to 136. Any director (other than an alternate director) may appoint any other director,

s or any other person approved by ordinary resolution of the shareholders and willing to
act, to be an alternate director. o

Alternates 137.  An alternate director shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of the

et ice  board and of all meetings of committees of the board of which his appointor is a

member, to attend and vote at any such meeting at which his appointor is not
personally present, and generally to perform all the functions of his appointor (except
as regards power to appoint an alternate) as a director in his absence.

I V0O3REI1H.DOC/ 16+ (106327-0012) Page 31
(A Ty Qe 20




Alternates
representing
more than one
director

Expenscs and
remuneration of
alternates

Termination of
appointment

Method of
appeintment
and revocalion

Alternate not an
agent of
appolntor

Dclegation

DRAFT EXHIBIT 3.1 TO MERGER AGREEMENT DATED 20/0272002

138. A director or any other person may act as alternate director to represent more
than one director, and an alternate director shall be entitled at meetings of the board or
any committee of the board to one vote for every director whom he represents (and
who is not present) in addition to his own vote (if any) as a director, but he shall count
as only one for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present.

139. An alternate director may be repaid by the Company such expenses as might
properly have been repaid to him if he had been a director but shall not be entitled to
receive any remuneration from the Company in respect of his services as an altemate
director except such part (if any) of the remuneration otherwise payable to his
appointor as such appointor may by notice to the Company from time to time direct.
An alternate director shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company to the same
extent as if he were a director.

140. An alternate director shall cease to be an alternate director:

(a)  if removed by written notice given on behalf of the director for whom he acts
as nominee;

(b)  if his appointor ceases to be a dircctor; but, if a director retires by rotation or
otherwise but is re-appointed or deemed to have been re-appointed at the
meeting at which he retires, any appointment of an alternate director made by
him which was in force immediately prior to his retirement shall continue after
his re-appointment; or

(c) on the happening of any event which, if he were a director, would cause him
to vacate his office as director; or

(d)  ifhe resigns his office by notice to the Company.

141.  Any appointment or removal of an alternate director shall be by notice to the
Company executed by the director making or revoking the appointment and shall take
effect in accordance with the terms of the notice (subject to any approval required by
Article 136) on receipt of such notice by the Company which shall, in the case of a
notice contained in an instrument, be at the office or, in the case of a notice contained
in an electronic communication, be at such address (if any) for the time being notified
by or on behalf of the Company for that purpose.

142. Except as otherwise expressly provided in these Articles, an alternate director
shall be deemed for all purposes to be a director. Accordingly, except where the
context otherwise requires, a reference to a director shall be deemed to include a
reference to an alternate director. An alternate director shall alone be responsible for
his own acts and defaults and he shall not be deemed to be the agent of the director
appointing him.

143.  Other than by the delegation to an aiternate director (by ordinary resolution as
required by Article 136) or in accordance with Articles 147 - 149, a director may not
delegate his authority as a director, whether by agency, substitution, power of attorney
or otherwise,
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POWERS OF THE BOARD

144,  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the Memorandum and these
Articles and to any directions given by special resolution, the business of the
Company shall be managed by the board which may pay all expenses incurred in
forming and registering the Company and may exercise all the powers of the
Company, including without limitation the power to dispose of all or any part of the
undentaking of the Company. No alteration of the Memorandum or Articles and no
such direction shall invalidate any prior act of the board which would have been valid
if that alteration had not been made or that direction had not been given. The powers
given by this Article shall not be limited by any special power given to the board by
these Articles. A meeting of the board at which a quorum is present may exercise all
powers exercisable by the board.

145. The board may exercise the voting power conferred by the shares in any body
corporate held or owned by the Company in such manner in all respects as it thinks fit
(including without limitation the exercise of that power in favour of any resolution
appointing i1s members or any of them directors of such body corporate, or voting or
providing for the payment of remuneration to the directors of such body corporate).

BORROWING POWERS

146. The board may exercise all powers of the company to borrow money, to
guarantee, to indemnify, to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property, assets
(present and future) and uncalled capital, and to issue debentures and other securities
whether outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation of the
Company or of any third party. There is no requirement on the directors to restrict the
borrowings of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DELEGATION OF POWERS OF THE BOARD

147. The board may delegate any of its powers to any committee consisting of one
or more directors. The board may also delegate to any director holding any executive
office such of its powers as the board considers desirable to be exercised by him. Any
such delegation shall, in the absence of express provision to the contrary in the terms
of delegation, be deemed to include authority to sub-delegate to one or more directors
(whether or not acting as a commiittee) or to any employee or agent of the Company
all or any of the powers delegated and may be made subject to such conditions as the
board may specify, and may be revoked or altered. The board may co-opt on to any
such committee persons other than directors, who may enjoy voting rights in the
committee. The co-opted members shall be less than one-half of the -total
membership of the committee and a resolution of any committee shall be effective
only if a majority of the members present are directors. Subject to any conditions
imposed by the board, the proceedings of a committee with two or more members
shall be governed by these Articles regulating the proceedings of directors so far as
they are capable of applying.

148. The board may, by power of attorney or otherwise, appoint any person to be
the agent of the Company for such purposes, with such powers, authorities and
discretions (not exceeding those vested in the board) and on such conditions as the
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board determines, including without limitation authority for the agent to delegate all
or any of his powers, authorities and discretions, and may revoke or vary such
delegation.

149, The board may appoint any person to any office or employment having a
designation or title inciuding the word "director” or attach to any existing office or
employment with the Company such a designation or title and may terminate any
such appointment or the use of any such designation or title. The inclusion of the
word "director” in the designation or title of any such office or employment shall not
imply that the holder is a director of the Company, and the holder shall not thereby be
empowered in any respect to act as, or be deemed to be, 2 director of the Company for
any of the purposes of these Articles.

DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVYAL OF DIRECTORS
150. The office of a director shall be vacated if:

(2) he ceases to be a director by virtue of any provisions of the Companies Acts or
these Articles or he becomes prohibited by law from being a director; or

() he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his
creditors generally or shall apply to the court for an interim order under
section 253 of the Insolvency Act 1986 in connection with a voluntary
arrangement under that Act; or

(c) he is, or may be, suffering from mental disorder and either:

(i} he is admitted to hospital in pursuance of an application for admission
for treatment under the Mental Health Act 1983 or, in Scotland, an
application for admission under the Mental Health (Scotland) Act
1984, or

(ii) an order is made by a court having jurisdiction (whether in the United
Kingdom or elsewhere) in matters concerning mental disorder for his
detention or for the appointment of a receiver, curator bonis or other
person to exercise powers with respect to his property or affairs; or

d) he resigns his office by notice to the Company or, having been appointed for a
fixed term, the term expires; or

{(e) he has been absent for more than six consecutive months without permission
of the board from meetings of the board held during that period and his
alternate director (if any) has not attended in his place during that period and
the board resolves that his office be vacated; or

) he is requested to resign in writing by not less than three quarters of the other
directors. In calculating the number of directors who are required to make
such a request to the director, (i) an alternate director appointed by him acting
in his capacity as such shall be excluded; and (ii) a director and any alternate
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director appointed by him and acting in his capacity as such shall constitute a
single director for this purpose, so that execution by either shall be sufficient.

Power of 151. The Company may, without prejudice to the provisions of the Companies

Companyto . Acts, by ordinary resolution remove any director from office (notwithstanding any
provision of these Articles or of any agreement between the Company and such
director, but without prejudice to any claim he may have for damages for breach of
any such agreement). No special notice need be given of any resolution to remove a
director in accordance with this Article and no director proposed to be removed in_
accordance with this Article has any special right to protest against his removal. The
Company may, by ordinary resolution, appoint another person in place of a director
removed from office in accordance with this Article. Any person so appointed shall,
for the purpose of determining the time at which he or any other director is to retire by
rotation, be treated as if he had become a director on the day on which the director in
whose place he is appointed was last elected a director. In default of such
appointment the vacancy arising on the removal of a director from office may be
filled as a casual vacancy.

REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ordinary 152.  The ordinary remuneration of the directors who do not hold executive office

remuncration  for their services (excluding amounts payable under any other provision of these
Articles) shall not exceed in aggregate £1,000,000 per annum or such higher amount
as the Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution determine. Subject
thereto, each such director shall be paid a fec (which shall be deemed to accrue from
day to day) at such rate as may from time to time be determined by the board.

Additional 153. Any director who does not hold executive office and who serves on any
forspecial . committee of the board, who by the request of the board goes or resides abroad for
services any purpose of the Company or otherwise performs special services which in the
opinion of the board are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a director, may
(without prejudice to the provisions of Article 152) be paid such extra remuneration

by way of salary, commission or otherwise as the board may determine.
DIRECTORS' EXPENSES

Directorsmay 154, The directors may be paid all travelling, hotel, and other expenses properly

bepald expenses 1 curred by them in connection with their attendance at meetings of the board or
committees of the board, general meetings or separate meetings of the holders of any
class of shares or of debentures of the Company or otherwise in connection with the
discharge of their duties.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Appoimmentto 155, Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the board may appoint one or
erecutiveolice more of its body to be the holder of any executive office (except that of auditor) in the
Company and may enter into an agreement or arrangement with any director for his
employment by the Company or for the provision by him of any services outside the
scope of the ordinary duties of a director. Any such appointment, agreement or
arrangement may be made on such terms, including without limitation terms as to
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remuneration, as the board determines. The board may revoke or vary any such
appointment but without prejudice to any rights or claims which the person whose
appointment is revoked or varied may have against the Company because of the
revocation or variation.

156. Any appointment of a director to an executive office shall terminate if he
ceases to be a director but without prejudice to any rights or claims which he may
have against the Company by reason of such cessation. A director appointed to an
executive office shall not cease to be a director merely because his appointment to
such executive office terminates.

Emolumentsto 157, The emoluments of any director holding executive office for his services as
:;.':,f:';’;'::d such shall be determined by the board, and may be of any description, including
without limitation admission to, or continuance of, membership of any scheme
(including any share acquisition scheme) or fund instituted or established or financed
or contributed to by the Company for the provision of pensions, life assurance or
other benefits for employees or their dependants, or the payment of a pension or other
benefits to him or his dependants on or afler retirement or death, apart from

membership of any such scheme or fund.
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

Dircctors may 158. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, and provided that he has
e Company _ disclosed to the board the nature and extent of any material interest of his, a director
notwithstanding his office:

(a) may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement
with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested,

(b)  may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company
(otherwise than as auditor) and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration
for professional services as if he were not a director;

(c)  may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any
transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any body
corporate promoted by the Company or in which the Company is otherwise
interested; and

(d)  shall not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any
benefit which he derives from any such office or employment or from any
such transaction or arrangement or from any interest in any such body
corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided
on the ground of any such interest or benefit.

Notificationof 159, For the purposes of Article 158:

interests

{(a) a general notice given to the board that a director is to be regarded as having
an interest of the nature and extent specified in the notice in any transaction or
arrangement in which a specified person or class of persons is interested shall
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be deemed to be a disclosure that the director has an interest in any such
transaction of the nature and extent so specified; and

(b) an interest of which a director has no knowledge and of which it is
unreasonable to expect him to have knowledge shall not be treated as an
interest of his.

GRATUITIES, PENSIONS AND INSURANCE

160. The board may (by establishment of, or maintenance of, schemes or
otherwise) provide benefits, whether by the payment of gratuities or pensions or by
insurance or otherwise, for any past or present director or employee of the Company
or any of its subsidiary undertakings or any body corporate associated with, or any
business acquired by, any of them, and for any member of his family (including a
spouse and a former spouse) or any person who is or was dependent on him, and may
(as well before as after he ceases to hold such office or employment) contribute to any
fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any such benefit.

161. Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 224, the board may exercise all
the powers of the Company to purchase and maintain insurance for or for the benefit
of any person who is or was:

(a) a director, officer[,] [or] employee [or auditor] of the Company, or any body
which is or was the holding company or subsidiary undertaking of the
Company, or in which the Company or such holding company or subsidiary
undertaking has or had any interest (whether direct or indirect) or with which
the Company or such holding company or subsidiary undertaking is or was in
any way allied or associated; or

(b)  a trustee of any pension fund in which employees of the Company or any
other body referred to in Article 161(a) is or has been interested,

including without limitation insurance against any liability incurred by such person in
respect of any act or omission in the actual or purported execution or discharge of his
duties or in the exercise or purported exercise of his powers or otherwise in relation to
his duties, powers or offices in relation to the relevant body or fund.

162. No director or former director shall be accountable to the Company or the
members for any benefit provided pursuant to this Article. The receipt of any such
benefit shall not disqualify any person from being or becoming a director of the
Company. ‘

163. Pursuant to section 719 of the Act, the board is hereby authorised to make
such provision as may seem appropriate for the benefit of any persons employed or
formerly employed by the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings in
connection with the cessation or the transfer of the whole or part of the undertaking of
the Company or any subsidiary undertaking. Any such provision shall be made by a
resolution of the board in accordance with section 719.

1LVOO3X69619.30C/ e+ (106327-0012) Page 37




Convening
meetings

Quorsm

Powers of
directors if
nomber falls
below minimum

Chairman and
deputy
chairman

Validity af acts
of the board

Resolutions in
writing

DRAFT EXHIBIT 3.1 TO MERGER AGREEMENT DATED 20/02/2002

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD

164. Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the board may regulate its
proceedings as it thinks fit. A director may, and the secretary at the request of a
director shall, call a meeting of the board. Board meetings shall take place in
Switzerland. Notice of a board meeting shall be deemed to be properly sent to a
director if it is given to him personally or by word of mouth or sent by instrument to
him, at his last known address or such other address (if any) as may for the time being
be notified by him or on his behalf to the Company for that purpose, or sent using
electronic communications to such address (if any) for the time being notified by him
or on his behalf to the Company for that purpose. Questions arising at a meeting shall
be decided by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the chairman
shall have a second or casting vote. Any director may waive notice of a meeting and
any such waiver may be retrospective. Any electronic communication pursuant to
this Article need not comprise writing if the board so determines.

165. The quorum for the transaction of the business of the board may be fixed by
the board and unless so fixed at any other number shall be two. A person who holds
office only as an alternate director shall, if his appointor is not present, be counted in
the quorum. Any director who ceases to be a director at a board meeting may
continue to be present and to act as a director and be counted in the quorum until the
termination of the board meeting if no director objects.

166. The continuing directors or a sole continuing director may act notwithstanding
any vacancies in their number, but, if the number of directors is less than the number
fixed as the quorum, the continuing directors or director may act only for the purpose
of filling vacancies or of calling a general meeting,.

167. The board may appoint one of their number to be the chairman, and one of
their number to be the deputy chaimman, of the board and may at any time remove
either of them from such office. Unless he is unwilling to do so, the director
appointed as chairman, or in his stead the director appointed as deputy chairman, shall
preside at every meeting of the board at which he is present. If there is no director
holding either of those offices, or if neither the chairman nor the deputy chairman is
willing to preside or neither of them is present within five minutes after the time
appointed for the meeting, the directors present may appoint one of their number to be
chairman of the meeting.

168.  All acts done by a meeting of the board, or of a committee of the board, or by
a person acting as a director or alternate director, shall, notwithstanding that it be
afterwards discovered that there was a defect in the appointment of any director or
any member of the committee or alternate director or that any of them were
disqualified from holding office, or had vacated office, or were not entitled to vote, be
as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified and had
continued to be a director or, as the case may be, an alternate director and had been

- entitled to vote.

169. A resolution in writing executed by all the directors entitled to receive notice
of meeting qf the board or of a committece of the board (not being less than the
number of directors required to form a quorum of the board) shall be as valid and

1. VOUIR69619.DOC/ 16+ (106327-0012) Page 38




Moectings by
telephone ete.

Directors® pawer
to vote on
contracts in
which they are
interested

DRAFT EXHIBIT 3.1 TO MERGER AGREEMENT DATED 20/0272002

effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the board or (as the case may be) a
committee of the board duly convened and held. For this purpose:

(a) a resolution may be by means of an instrument or contained in an electronic
communication sent to such address (if any) for the time being notified by the
Company for that purpose;

(b) a resolution may consist of several instruments or several electronic
communications, each executed by one or more directors, or a combination of
both; 4

{c)  aresolution executed by an alternate director need not also be executed by his
appointor; and

(d)  a resolution executed by a director who has appointed an alternate director
need not also be executed by the alternate director in that capacity.

170. Without prejudice to the first sentence of Article 164, a person entitled to be
present at a meeting of the board or of a committee of the board shall be deemed to be
present if he is able (directly or by telephonic communication) to speak to and be
heard by all those present or deemed to be present simultaneously. A director so
deemed to be present shall be entitled to vote, but shall not be counted in a quorum.
A quorum must be present in Switzerland. The word meeting in these Articles shall
be construed accordingly.

171.  Except as otherwise provided by these Articles, a director shall not vote at a
meeting of the board or a committee of the board on any resolution of the board
concerning a matter in which he has an interest (other than by virtue of his interests in
shares or debentures or other securities of, or otherwise in or through, the Company)
which (together with any interest of any person connected with him) is to his
knowledge material unless his interest arises only because the resolution concerns one
or more of the following matters:

{(a) the giving of a guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of money lent or
obligations incurred by him or any other person at the request of or for the
benefit of, the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings;

(b)  the giving of a guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of a debt or
obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for which the
director has assumed responsibility (in whole or part and whether alone or
jointly with others) under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of
security; :

(c) a contract, arrangement, fransaction or proposal conceming an offer of shares,
debentures or other securities of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings for subscription or purchase, in which offer he is or may be
entitled to participate as a holder of securities or in the underwriting or sub-
underwriting of which he is to participate;
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(d)  a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal concerning any other body
corporate in which he or any person connected with him is interested, directly
or indirectly, and whether as an officer, shareholder, creditor or otherwise, if
he and any persons connected with him do not to his knowledge hold an
interest (as that term is used in sections 198 to 211 of the Act) representing
one per cent. or more of either any class of the equity share capital of such
body corporate (or any other body corporate through which his interest is
derived) or of the voting rights available to members of the relevant body
corporate (any such interest being deemed for the purpose of this Article to be
a material interest in all circumstances); ‘

(e)  a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal for the benefit of employees
of the Company or of any of its subsidiary undertakings which does not award
him any privilege or benefit not generally accorded to the employees to whom
the arrangement relates; and

6] a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal concerning any insurance
which the Company is empowered to purchase or maintain for, or for the
benefit of, any directors of the Company or for persons who include directors
of the Company.

172.  For the purposes of Article 171, an interest of a person who is, for any purpose
of the Companies Acts (excluding any statutory modification of the Companies Acts
not in force when this Article is adopted), connected with a director shall be treated as
an interest of the director and, in relation 1o an alternate director, an interest of his
appointor shall be treated as an interest of the alternate director without prejudice to
any interest which the alternate director has otherwise.

173. The Company may by ordinary resolution suspend or relax to any extent,
either generally or in respect of any particular matter, any provision of these Articles
prohibiting a director from voting at a meeting of directors or of a committee of
directors.

174. Where proposals are under consideration concerning the appointment
(including without limitation fixing or varying the terms of appointment) of two or
more directors to offices or employments with the Company or any body corporate in
which the Company is interested, the proposals may be divided and considered in
relation to each director separately. In such cases each of the directors concemed
shall be entitled to vote in respect of each resolution except that conceming his own
appointment.

175. If a question arises at a meeting of the board or of a committee of the board as
to the entitlement of a director to vote, the question may, before the conclusion of the
meeting, be referred to the chairman of the meeting and his ruling in relation to any
director other than himself shall be final and conclusive except in a case where the
nature or extent of the intercsts of the director concerned have not been fairly
disclosed. If any such question arises in respect of the chairman of the meeting, it
shall be decided by resolution of the board (on which the chairman shall not vote) and
such resolution will be final and conclusive except in a case where the nature and
extent of the interests of the chairman have not been fairly disclosed.
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S;CRETARY

176. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the secretary shall be
appointed by the board for such term, at such remuneration and on such conditions as
it may think fit. Any secretary so appointed may be removed by the board, but
without prejudice to any claim for damages for breach of any contract of service
between the secretary and the Company.

MINUTES

177. The board shall cause minutes to be made in books kept for the purpose of:
(a)  all appointments of officers made by the board; and

(b)  all proceedings at meetings of the Company, the holders of any class of shares
in the capital of the Company, the board and committees of the board,
including the names of the directors present at each such meeting.

178.  Any such minutes, if purporting to be executed by the chairman of the meeting
to which they relate or of the meeting at which they are read, shall be sufficient
evidence of the proceedings at the meeting without any further proof of the facts
stated in them.

THE SEAL

179.  The seal shall only be used by the authority of a resolution of the board. The
board may determine who shall sign any instrument executed under the seal. If they
do not, it shall be signed by at least one director and the secretary or by at least two
directors. Any instrument may be executed under the seal by impressing the seal by
mechanical means or by printing the seal or a facsimile of it on the instrument or by
applying the seal or a facsimile of it by any other means to the insttument. A
instrument executed, with the authority of a resolution of the board, by a director and
the secretary or by two directors and expressed (in whatever form of words) to be
executed by the Company has the same effect as if executed under the seal. For the
purpose of the preceding sentence only, “secretary” shall have the same meaning as in
the Act and not the meaning given to it by Article 2.

180. The board may by resolution determine cither generally or in any particular
case that any certificate for shares or debentures or representing any other form of
security may have any signature affixed to it by some mechanical or electronic means,
or printed on it or, in the case of a certificate executed under the seal, need not bear
any signature.

181. The Company may exercise the powers conferred by section 39 of the Act
with regard to having an official seal for use abroad.

REGISTERS

182.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and the Regulations, the
Company may keep an overseas or local or other register in any place, and the board
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may make, amend and revoke any regulations it thinks fit about the keeping of that
register.

183.  Any director or the secretary or any other person appointed by the board for
the purpose shall have power to authenticate and certify as true copies of and extracts
from:

(a) any document comprising or affecting the constitution of the Company,
whether in physical form or electronic form;

(b)  any resolution passed by the Company, the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company, the board or any committee of the board, whether
in physical form or electronic form; and

(c)  any book, record and document relating to the business of the Company,
whether in physical form or electronic form (including without limitation the
accounts).

If certified in this way, a document purporting to be a copy of a resolution, or the
minutes or an extract from the minutes of a meeting of the Company, the holders of
any class of shares in the capital of the Company, the board or a committee of the
board, whether in physical form or electronic form, shall be conclusive evidence in
favour of all persons dealing with the Company in reliance on it or them that the
resolution was duly passed or that the minutes are, or the extract from the minutes is,
a true and accurate record of proceedings at a duly constituted meeting.

DIVIDENDS

184.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the Company may by
ordinary resolution declare dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the
members, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the board.
Neither the special voting share nor the deferred shares shall carry any right to receive
a dividend.

185. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts, the board may pay interim
dividends if it appears to the board that they are justified by the profits of the
Company available for distribution. If the share capital is divided into different
classes, the board may pay interim dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-
preferred rights with regard to dividend as well as on shares which confer preferential
rights with regard to dividend, but no interim dividend shall be paid on shares
carrying deferred or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any preferential
dividend is in arrear. The board may also pay at intervals settled by it any dividend
payable at a fixed rate if it appears to the board that the profits available for
distribution justify the payment. If the board acts in good faith it shall not incur any
liability to the holders of shares conferring preferred rights for any loss they may
suffer by the lawful payment of an interim dividend on any shares having deferred or
non-preferred rights.

186. Except as otherwise provided by the rights attached to shares, all dividends
shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the shares on which
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the dividend is paid; but no amount paid on a share in advance of the date on which a
call is payable shall be treated for the purpose of this Article as paid on the share. All
dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the
shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is
paid; but, if any share is allotted or issued on terms providing that it shall rank for
dividend as from a particular date, that share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

187. A general meeting declaring a dividend may, on the recommendation of the
board, by ordinary resolution direct that it shall be satisfied wholly or partly by the
distribution of assets, including without limitation paid up shares or debentures of
another body corporate. The board may make any arrangements it thinks fit to settle
any difficulty arising in connection with the distribution, including without limitation
(a) the fixing of the value for distribution of any assets, (b) the payment of cash to any
member on the basis of that value in order to adjust the rights of members, and (c) the
vesting of any asset in a trustee.

188. The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of the Company (the
Resolution), offer any holder of shares the right to elect to receive shares, credited as
fully paid, instead of cash in respect of the whole (or some part, to be determined by
the board) of all or any dividend speclﬁed by the Resolution. The offer shall be on
the terms and conditions and be made in the manner spemﬁed in Article 189 or,
subject to those provisions, specified in the Resolution.

189. The following provisions shall apply to the Resolution and any offer made
pursuant to it and Article 188.

(a)  The Resolution may specify a particular dividend, or may specify all or any
dividends declared within a specified period.

(b) Each holder of shares shall be entitled to that number of new shares as are
together as nearly as possible equal in value to (but not greater than) the cash
amount (disregarding any tax credit) of the dividend that such holder elects to
forgo (each a new share). For this purpose, the value of each new share shall
be:

(i) equal to the average quotation for the Company's ordinary shares, that
is, [the average of the middle market quotations for those shares on the
London Stock Exchange plec, as derived from the Daily Official List,
on the day on which such shares are first quoted ex the relevant
dividend and the four subsequent dealing days]; or

(i) calculated in any other manner specified by the Resolution,
but shall never be less than the par value of the new share,

A certificate or report by the auditors as to the value of a new share in respect
of any dividend shall be conclusive evidence of that value.

(¢)  On or as soon as practicable after announcing that any dividend is to be
declared or recommended, the board, if it intends to offer an election in
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respect of that dividend, shall also announce that intention. If, after
determining the basis of allotment, the board decides to proceed with the offer,
it shall notify the holders of shares of the terms and conditions of the right of
election offered to them, specifying the procedure to be followed and place at
which, and the latest time by which, elections or' notices amending or
terminating existing elections must be delivered in order to be effective.

The board shall not proceed with any election unless the Company has
sufficient unissued shares authorised for issue and sufficient reserves or funds
that may be appropriated to give effect to it after the basis of allotment is
determined.

The board may exclude from any offer any holders of shares where the board
believes the making of the offer to them would or might involve the
contravention of the laws of any territory or that for any other reason the offer
should not be made to them.

The dividend (or that part of the dividend in respect of which a right of
election has been offered) shall not be payable in cash on shares in respect of
which an election has been made (the elected shares) and instead such number
of new shares shall be allotted to each holder of elected shares as is arrived at

on the basis stated in Article 189(b). For that purpose the board shall

appropriate out of any amount for the time being standing to the credit of any
reserve or fund (including without limitation the profit and loss account),
whether or not it is available for distribution, 2 sum equal to the aggregate
nominal amount of the new shares to be allotted and apply it in paying up in
full the appropriate number of new shares for allotment and distribution to
each holder of elected shares as is arrived at on the basis stated in Article
189(b).

The new shares when allotted shall rank equaily in all respects with the fully
paid shares of the same class then in issue except that they shall not be entitled
to participate in the relevant dividend.

No fraction of a share shall be allotted. The board may make such provision
as it thinks fit for any fractional entitlements including without limitation
payment in cash to holders in respect of their fractional entitlements, provision
for the accrual, retention or accumulation of all or part of the benefit of
fractional entitlements to or by the Company or to or by or on behalf of any
holder or the application of any accrual, retention or accumulation to the
allotment of fully paid shares to any holder.

The board may do all acts and things it considers necessary or expedient to
give effect to the allotment and issue of any share pursuant to this Article or
otherwise in connection with any offer made pursuant to this Article and may
authorise any person, acting on behalf of the holders concerned, to enter into
an agreement with the Company providing for such allotment or issue and
incidental matters. Any agreement made under such authority shall be
effective and binding on all concerned.
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4)) The board may, at its discretion, amend, suspend or terminate any offer
pursuant to this Article.

190. The board may deduct from any dividend or other moneys payable to any
member in respect of a share any moneys presently payable by him to the Company in
respect of that share. Where a person is entitled by transmission to a share, the board
may retain any dividend payable in respect of that share until that person (or that
person's transferee) becomes the holder of that share.

191. Any dividend or other moneys payable in respect of a share may be paid:
(a) in cash; or

(b) by cheque or warrant made payable to or to the order of the holder or person
entitled to payment; or

{©) by any direct debit, bank or other funds transfer system to the holder or person
entitled to payment or, if practicable, to a person designated by notice to the
Company by the holder or person entitled to payment; or

(d) by any other method approved by the board and agreed (in such form as the
Company thinks appropriate) by the holder or person entitled to payment
including without limitation in respect of an uncertificated share by means of
the relevant system (subject to the facilities and requirements of the relevant
system).

192. If two or more persons are registered as joint holders of any share, or are
entitled by transmission jointly to a share, the Company may:

(a)  pay any dividend or other moneys payable in respect of the share to any one of
them and any one of them may give effectual receipt for that payment; and

(b) for the purpose of Article 191, rely in relation to the share on the written
direction, designation or agreement of, or notice to the Company by, any one
of them.

193. A cheque or warrant may be sent by post:

(a) where a share is held by a sole holder, to the registered address of the holder
of the share; or

(b)  if two or more persons are the holders, to the registered address of the person
who is first named in the register; or

(c)  ifaperson is entitled by transmission to the share, as if it were a notice to be
sent under Article 212; or

(d)  in any case, to such person and to such address as the person entitled to
payment may direct by notice to the Company.
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194. Payment of a cheque or warrant by the bank on which it was drawn or the
transfer of funds by the bank instructed to make the transfer or, in respect of an
uncertificated share, the making of payment in accordance with the facilities and
requirements of the relevant system (which, if the relevant system is CREST, may be
the creation of an assured payment obligation in respect of the dividend or other
moneys payable in favour of the settlement bank of the member or other person
concerned) shall be a good discharge to the Company. Every cheque or warrant sent
in accordance with these Articles shall be at the risk of the holder or person entitled.
The Company shall have no responsibility for any sums lost or delayed in the course
of payment by any other method used by the Company in accordance with
Article 191.

195. No dividend or other moneys payable in respect of a share shall bear interest
against the Company unless otherwise provided by the rights attached to the share.

196. Any dividend which has remained unclaimed for 12 years from the date when
it became due for payment shall, if the board so resolves, be forfeited and cease to
remain owing by the Company. The payment of any unclaimed dividend or other
moneys payable in respect of a share may (but need not) be paid by the Company into
an account separate from the Company's own account. Such payment shall not
constitute the Company a trustee in respect of it. The Company shall be entitled to
cease sending dividend warrants and cheques by post or otherwise to a member if
those instruments have been returned undelivered to, or left uncashed by, that member
on at least two consecutive occasions, or, following one such occasion, reasonable
enquiries have failed to establish the member's new address. The entitlement
conferred on the Company by this Article in respect of any member shall cease if the
member claims a dividend or cashes a dividend warrant or cheque.

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES
197. The board may with the authority of an ordinary resolution of the Company:

(a) subject to the provisions of this Article, resolve to capitalise any undistributed
profits of the Company not required for paying any preferential dividend
(whether or not they are available for distribution) or any sum standing to the
credit of any reserve or other fund, including without limitation the Company's
share premium account and capital redemption reserve, if any;

(b) appropriate the sum resolved to be capitalised to the members or any class of
members on the record date specified in the relevant resolution who would
have been entitled to it if it were distributed by way of dividend and in the
same proportions;

()  apply that sum on their behalf either in or towards paying up the amounts, if
any, for the time being unpaid on any shares held by them respectively, or in
paying up in full unissued shares, debentures or other obligations of the
Company of a nominal amount equal to that sum but the share premium
account, the capital redemption reserve, and any profits which are not
available for distribution may, for the purposes of this Article, only be applied
in paying up unissued shares to be allotted to members credited as fully paid;
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allot the shares, debentures or other obligations credited as fully paid to those
members, or as they may direct, in those proportions, or partly in one way and
partly in the other;

where shares or debentures become, or would otherwise become, distributable
under this Article in fractions, make such provision as they think fit for any
fractional entitlements including without limitation authorising their sale and
transfer to any person, resolving that the distribution be made as nearly as
practicable in the correct proportion but not exactly so, ignoring fractions
altogether or resolving that cash payments be made to any members in order to
adjust the rights of all parties;

authorise any person to enter into an agreement with the Company on behalf
of all the members concemed providing for either:

(i) the allotment to the members respectively, credited as fully paid, of
any shares, debentures or other obligations to which they are entitled
on the capitalisation; or.

(ii) the payment up by the Company on behalf of the members of the
amounts, or any part of the amounts, remaining unpaid on their
existing shares by the application of their respective proportions of the
sum resolved to be capitalised,

and any agreement made under that authority shall be binding on all such
members; and

generally do all acts and things required to give effect to the ordinary
resolution.

RECORD DATES

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Company or the

board may:

(2)

)

fix any date as the record date for any dividend, distribution, allotment or
issue, which may be on or at any time before or after any date on which the
dividend, distribution, allotment or issue is declared, paid or made;

for the purpose of determining which persons are entitled to attend and vote at
a general meeting of the Company, or a separate general meeting of the
holders of any class of shares in the capital of the Company, and how many
votes such persons may cast, specify in the notice of meeting a time, not more
than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting, by which a person must
be entered on the register in order to have the right to attend or vote at the
meeting; changes to the register after the time specified by virtue of this
Article 198(b) shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to
attend or vote at the meeting; and
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(c) for the purpose of sending notices of general meetings of the Company, or
separate general meetings of the holders of any class of shares in the capital of
the Company, under these Articles, determine that persons entitled to receive
such notices are those persons entered on the register at the close of business
on a day determined by the Company or the board, which day may not be
more than 21 days before the day that notices of the meeting are sent.

ACCOUNTS

199. No member shall (as such) have any right to inspect any accounting records or
other book or document of the Company except as conferred by statute or authorised
by the board or by ordinary resolution of the Company or order of a court of
competent jurisdiction or to the extent determined by the board to be necessary (and
the board may determine in its absolute discretion that such inspection is unnecessary
if business secrets or other interests of the Company are or may be, in the opinion of
the board, jeopardised by such disclosure).

200. Subject to the Companies Acts, a copy of the Company’s annual accounts,
together with a copy of the directors' report for that financial year and the auditors’
report on those accounts shall, at least 21 clear days before the date of the meeting at
which copies of those documents are to be laid in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Acts, be sent to every member and to every holder of the Company's
debentures of whose address the Company is aware, and to every other person who is
entitled to receive notice of meetings from the Company under the provisions of the
Companies Acts or of these Articles or, in the case of joint holders of any share or
debenture, to one of the joint holders.

201. Subject to the Companies Acts, the requirements of Article 200 shall be
deemed satisfied in relation to any person by sending to the person, instead of such
copies, a summary financial statement derived from the Company's annual accounts
and the directors’ report, which shall be in the form and containing the information
prescribed by the Companies Acts and any regulations made under the Companies
Acts.

RIGHT TO SPECIAL EXAMINATION

202. Notwithstanding the right set out in section 249B(2) of the Act (allowing
members to require an audit of the Company in certain circumstances), any member
or members holding not less than 10 per cent. of the nominal value of all outstanding
shares or a number of ordinary shares whose aggregate nominal value (based on
prevailing exchange rates at the time the request is made) is not less than
CHF 2 million may, provided he can establish that the Company has violated the law
and/or the Articles and thereby damaged the Company and/or its members, request
that the Court appoint a special examiner to examine the business records of the
Company and to report to the Court as to its findings. The Court may, in its
discretion, order disclosure of such findings to the members.
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NoOTICES

203. Any notice to be sent to or by any person pursuant to these Articles (other than
a notice calling a meeting of the board) shall be in writing. Any such notice may be
sent using electronic communications to such address (if any) for the time being
notified for that purpose to the person sending the notice by or on behalf of the person

to whom the notice is sent.

204. The Company shall send any notice or other document pursuant to these
Articles to a member by whichever of the following methods it may in its absolute

discretion determine:
(a) personally; or

(b) by posting the notice or other document in a prepaid envelope addressed, in
the case of a member, to his registered address, or in any other case, to the
person’s usual address; or

(c) by leaving the notice or other document at that address; or

(d) by sending the notice or other document using electronic communications to
such address (if any) for the time being notified to the Company by or on
behalf of the member for that purpose; or

(e) in accordance with Article205; or
(f by any other method approved by the board.

205. Subject to the Companies Acts, the Company may also send any notice or
other document pursuant to these Articles to a member by publishing that notice or
other document on a website where:

(a) the Company and the member have agreed to him having access to the notice
or document on a website (instead of it being sent to him);,

(b}  the notice or document is one to which that agreement applies;

{c) the member is notified, in a manner for the time being agreed between him
and the Company for the purpose, of:

(i) the publication of the notice or document on a website;
(ii) the address of that website; and

(iii) the place on that website where the notice or document may be
accessed, and how it may be accessed; and

(d) the notice or document is published on that website throughout the publication
period, provided that, if the notice or document is published on that website
for a part, but not all of, the publication period, the notice or document shall
be treated as being published throughout that period if the failure to publish
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that notice or document throughout that period is wholly attributable to
circumstances which it would not be reasonable to have expected the
Company to prevent or avoid.

206. In Article 205 publication period means:

(2) in the case of a notice of an adjourned meeting pursuant to Article 88, a period
of not less than seven clear days before the date of the adjourned meeting,
beginning on the day following that on which the notification referred to in
sub-paragraph (c) above is sent or (if later) is deemed sent;

(b)  inthe case of a notice of a poll pursuant to Article 98, a period of not less than
seven clear days before the taking of the poll, beginning on the day following
that on which the notification referred to in sub-paragraph (c) above is sent or
(if later) is deemed sent; and

(© in any other case, a period of not less than 21 days, beginning on the day
following that on which the notification referred to in sub-paragraph (c) above
is sent or (if later) is deemed sent.

207. Unless otherwise provided by these Articles, a member or a person entitled by
transmission to a share shall send any notice or other document pursuant to these
Articles to the Company by whichever of the following methods he may in his
absolute discretion determine:

(a) by posting the notice or other document in a prepaid envelope addressed to the
office; or

(b) by leaving the notice or other document at the office; or

(c) by sending the notice or other document using electronic communications to
such address (if any) for the time being notified by or on behalf of the
Company for that purpose.

208. In the case of joint holders of a share, all notices or other documents shall be
sent to the joint holder whose name stands first in the register in respect of the joint
holding. Any notice or other document so sent shall be deemed for all purposes sent
to all the joint holders.

209. A member whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom or
Switzerland and who sends to the Company an address within the United Kingdom or
Switzerland at which a notice or other document may be sent to him by instrument or
an address to which a notice or other document may be sent using electronic
communications shall (provided that, in the case of electronic communications, the
Company so agrees) be entitled to have notices or other documents sent to him at that
address but otherwise:

(a) no such member shall be entitled to receive any notice or other document from
the Company; and
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COMPANY NO. 4345939

COMPANIES ACT 1985

A PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of
Xstrata ple

(adopted by special resolution passed on & 2002)

PRELIMINARY

1. The regulations in Table A of the Companies (Tables A to F) Regulations
1985 as in force at the date of the incorporation of the Company shall not apply to the

Company.
2, In these Articles, except where the subject or context otherwise requires:

Act means the Companies Act 1985 including any modification or re-enactment of it
for the time being in force; '

address, in relation to electronic communications, includes any number or address
used for the purposes of such communications;

Articles means these articles of association as altered from time to time by special
resolution;

auditors means the auditors of the Company;

the board means the directors or any of them acting as the board of directors of the
Company;

certificated share means a share in the capital of the Company that is not an
uncertificated share and references in these Articles to a share being held in
certificated form shall be construed accordingly;

Class Rights Action means any of the actions listed in Article 101;
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clear days in relation to the sending of a natice means the period excluding the day on
which a notice is sent or deemed to be sent and the day for which it is sent or on
which it is to take effect;

Companies Acts has the meaning given by section 744 of the Act and includes any
enactment passed after those Acts which may, by virtue of that or any other such
enactment, be cited together with those Acts as the "Companies Acts" (with or
without the addition of an indication of the date of any such enactment);

director means a director of the Company;
dividend means dividend or bonus;

electronic signature has the meaning given by section 7(2) of the Electronic
Communications Act 2000;

employees’ share scheme has the meaning given by section 743 of the Act;

entitled by transmissiorn means, in relation to a share in the capital of the Company,
entitled as a consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder or otherwise by
operation of law;

entrenched provision means:

the definitions in this Article 2 of Class Rights Action, entrenched provision, ordinary
shares and special voting share;

(a) clause & of the Company’s Memorandum of Association as in force at the date
of adoption of these Articles;

(b) the first sentence of Article 60 (fractions arising);
(c) Article 62 (shareholder rights);

(d) Article 67 (Swiss convening rights);

(e) the second sentence of Article 68 (period of notice);
03] Article 81 (notice of adjournment);

(g) Article 100 (no resolutions in writing);

(h)  Anicle 101 (Class Rights Actions);

(i) Article 102 (voting on Class Rights Actions)

G) Article 103 (right to vote);

(k) Article 132 (no appointment by board);

Q)] Article 143 (delegation);
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(m)  Article 199 (Right to inspect records);
(n) Article 202 (right to special examination);
(o)  Article 217 (Swiss publication);

holder in relation to a share in the capital of the Company means the member whose
name is entered in the register as the holder of that share;

member means a member of the Company;

Memorandum means the memorandum of association of the Company as amended
from time to time;

ordinary shares means the ordinary shares in the capital of the Company from time to
time, excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the special voting share;

office means the registered office of the Company;
paid means paid or credited as paid;

recognised person means a recognised clearing house or a nominee of a recognised
clearing house or of a recognised investment exchange, each of which terms has the
meaning given to it by section 185(4) of the Act;

register means either or both of the issuer register of members and the Operator
register of members of the Company;

Regulations means the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 including any
modification or re-enactment of them for the time being in force;

seal means the common seal of the Company and includes any official seal kept by
the Company by virtue of section 39 or 40 of the Act;

secretary means the secretary of the Company and includes a joint, assistant, deputy
or temporary secretary and any other person appointed to perform the duties of the
secretary;

special voting share means the speéiél voting share in the c'épital‘ ‘of the Company
having the rights set out and referred to in these Articles;

uncertificated share means (subject to Regulation 42(11)(a) of the Regulations) a
share in the capital of the Company title to which is recorded on the Operator register
of members of the Company and which may, by virtue of the Regulations, be
transferred by means of a relevant system and references in these articles to a share
being held in uncertificated form shall be construed accordingly; and

United Kingdom means Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

Construction 3, References to a document include, unless the context otherwise requires,
references to an electronic communication.

LYOD3R6I619.7XK/ 16+ (106327-0012) Page 3 :
YA | o oM




DRAFT EXHIBIT 3.1 TO MERGER AGREEMENT DATED 20/02/2002

References to an electronic communication mean, unless the contrary is stated, an
electronic communication (as defined in the Act) comprising writing.

References to a document being executed include references to its being executed
under hand or under seal or, in the case of an electronic communication, by electronic
signature.

References to an instrument mean, unless the contrary is stated, a written document
having tangible form and not comprised in an electronic communication (as defined
in the Act).

Where, in relation to a share, these Articles refer to a relevant system, the reference is
to the relevant system in which that share is a participating security at the relevant
time.

References to a notice or other document being sent or given to or by a person mean
such notice or other document, or a copy of such notice or other document, being
sent, given, delivered, issued or made available to or by, or served on or by, or
deposited with or by that person by any method authorised by these Articles, and
sending and giving shall be construed accordingly.

References to writing mean the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or
other information in a visible form by any method or combination of methods,
whether comprised in an electronic communication (as defined in the Act) or
otherwise, and written shall be construed accordingly.

Words denoting the singular number include the plural number and vice versa; words
denoting the masculine gender include the feminine gender; and words denoting
persons include corporations.

Words or expressions contained in these Articles which are not defined in Article 2
but are defined in the Act have the same meaning as in the Act (but excluding any
modification of the Act not in force at the date of adoption of these Articles) unless
inconsistent with the subject or context.

Words or expressions contained in these Articles which are not defined in Article 2
but are defined in the Regulations have the same meaning as in the Regulations (but
excluding any modification of the Regulations not in force at the date of adoption of
these Articles) unless inconsistent with the subject or context.

Subject to the preceding two paragraphs, references to any provision of any enactment
or of any subordinate legislation (as defined by section 21(1) of the Interpretation Act
1978) include any modification or re-enactment of that provision for the time being in
force.

Headings and marginal notes are inserted for convenience only and do not affect the
construction of these Articles.

In these Articles, (a) powers of delegation shall not be restrictively construed but the
widest interpretation shall be given to them; (b) the word board in the context of the
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{b)  without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any notice of a general
meeting of the Company which is in fact sent or purports to be sent to such
member shall be ignored for the purpose of determining the validity of the
proceedings at such general meeting.

210. A member present, either in person or by proxy, at any meeting of the

Company or of the holders of any class of shares in the capital of the Company shall
be deemed to have been semt notice of the meeting and, where requisite, of the
purposes for which it was called.

211. The board may from time to time issue, endorse or adopt terms and conditions
relating to the use of electronic communications for the sending of notices, other
documents and proxy appointments by the Company to members or persons entitled
by transmission and by members or persons entitled by transmission to the Company.

212. A notice or other document may be sent by the Company to the person or
persons entitled by transmission to a share by sending it in any manner the Company
may choose authorised by these Articles for the sending of a notice or other document
to a member, addressed to them by name, or by the title of representative of the
deceased, or trustee of the bankrupt or by any similar description at the address (if
any) in the United Kingdom as may be supplied for that purpose by or on behalf of
the person or persons claiming to be so entitled. Until such an address has been
supplied, a notice or other document may be sent in any manner in which it might
have been sent if the death or bankruptcy or other event giving rise to the transmission
had not occurred.

213.  Every person who becomes entitled to a share shali be bound by any notice in
respect of that share which, before his name is entered in the register, has been sent to
a person from whom he derives his title, provided that no person who becomes
entitled by transmission to a share shall be bound by any direction notice sent under
Article 107 to a person from whom he derives his title.

214. Proof that an envelope containing a notice or other document was properly
addressed, prepaid and posted shall be conclusive evidence that the notice or
document was sent. Proof that a notice or other document contained in an electronic
communication was sent in accordance with guidance issued by the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators current at the date of adoption of these
Articles, or, if the board so resolves, any subsequent gunidance so issued, shall be
conclusive evidence that the notice or document was sent. A notice or other
document sent by the Company to a member by post shall be deemed to be sent:

(a) if sent by first class post or special delivery post from an address in the United
Kingdom to another address in the United Kingdom, or by a postal service
similar to first class post or special delivery post from an address in another
country to another address in that other country, on the day following that on
which the envelope containing it was posted;

(b) if sent by airmail from an address in the United Kingdom to an address outside
the United Kingdom, or from an address in another country to an address
outside that country (including without limitation an address in the United
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Kingdom), on the third day following that on which the envelope containing it
was posted;

{c) in any other case, on the second day following that on which the envelope
containing it was posted.

Whennotices 215, A notice or other document sent by the Company to a member contained in an
f,';,,":,",:f,:’,f " electronic communication shall be deemed sent to the member on the day following
communication  that on which the electronic communication was sent to the member. Such a notice or
other document shall be deemed sent by the Company to the member on that day
notwithstanding that the Company becomes aware that the member has failed to
receive the relevant notice or other document for any reason and notwithstanding that
the Company subsequently sends a copy of such notice or other document by post to

the member.

Noticeinctudes 216,  Except when the subject or context otherwise requires, in Articles 204, 207,

e eion 208,209, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214 and 215, references to a notice include without
limitation references to any notification required by the Companies Acts or these
Articles in relation to the publication of any notices or other documents on a website.

Swiss 217. Notices if general meetings by the Company to members must also be made
publicstion by publication in the Swiss Commercial Gazette and in at least one newspaper having
a circulation in Switzerland.

?;;trl:e‘qurin}; 218. If at any time the Company is unable effectively to convene a general meeting
soniies ¢ by notices sent through the post in the United Kingdom or in Switzerland as a result
of the suspension or curtailment of postal services, notice of general meeting may be
sufficiently given by advertisement in the United Kingdom and Switzerland. Any
notice given by advertisement for the purpose of this Article shall be advertised in at
least one newspaper having a circulation in the UK and in at least one newspaper
having a circulation in Switzerland. If advertised in more than one newspaper, the
advertisemnents shall appear on the same date. Such notice shall be deemed to have
been sent to all persons who are entitled to have notice of meetings sent to them on
the day when the advertisement appears. In any such case, the Company shall send
confirmatory copies of the notice by post, if at least seven days before the meeting the
posting of notices to addresses throughout the United Kingdom again becomes

practicable.
DESTRUCTION OF DOCUMENTS
g::;;fy o 219. The Company shall be entitled to destroy:
3::‘::.’“:; (a) all instruments of transfer of shares which have been registered, and all other

documents on the basis of which any entry is made in the register, at any time
after the expiration of six years from the date of registration;

(b) all dividend mandates, variations or cancellations of dividend mandates, and
notifications of change of address at any time after the expiration of two years
from the date of recording;
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all share certificates which have been cancelled at any time after the expiration
of one year from the date of the cancellation;

all paid dividend warrants and cheques at any time after the expiration of one
year from the date of actual payment;

all proxy appointments which have been used for the purpose of a poll at any
time after the expiration of one year from the date of use; and

all proxy appointments which have not been used for the purpose of a poll at
any time after one month from the end of the meeting to which the proxy
appointment relates and at which no poll was demanded.

It shall conclusively be presumed in favour of the Company that:

every entry in the register purporting to have been made on the basis of an
instrument of transfer or other document destroyed in accordance with Article
219 was duly and properly made;

every instrument of transfer destroyed in accordance with Article 219 was a
valid and effective instrument duly and properly registered;

every share certificate destroyed in accordance with Article 219 was a valid
and effective certificate duly and properly cancelled; and

every other document destroyed in accordance with Article 219 was a valid
and effective document in accordance with its recorded particulars in the
books or records of the Company,

the provisions of this Article and Article 219 apply only to the destruction of a
document in good faith and without notice of any claim (regardless of the
parties) to which the document might be relevant;

nothing in this Article or Article 219 shall be construed as imposing on the
Company any liability in respect of the destruction of any document earlier
than the time specified in Article 219 or in any other circumstances which
would not attach to the Company in the absence of this Article or Article 219;
and

any reference in this Article or Article 219 to the destruction of any document
includes a reference to its disposal in any manner.

WINDING UP

If the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of an

extraordinary resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by the
Insolvency Act 1986:
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(a) divide among the members in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the
Company and may, for that purpose, value any assets and determine how the
division shall be carried out as between the members or different classes of
members;

(b)  vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees for the benefit of the
members; and

(c) determine the scope and terms of those trusts,
but no member shall be compelled to accept any asset on which there is a liability.

222. On a winding up, the assets of the company shall be distributed in proportion
to the amount of paid up nominal capital on such shares, provided that the special
voting share shall be subject to a maximum payment of the paid up nominal capital on
such share and the rights of holders of deferred shares shall be subject to the limits set
out in Article 5.

223. The power of sale of a liquidator shall include a power to sell wholly or
partially for shares or debentures or other obligations of another body corporate,
either then already constituted or about to be constituted for the purpose of carrying
out the sale.

INDEMNITY

224.  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts but without prejudice to any
indemnity to which a director may otherwise be entitled, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
any liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal,
in which judgment is given in his favour (or the proceedings are otherwise disposed
of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty on his part) or in
which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted
to him by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of
trust in relation to the affairs of the Company.

SHARE CONTROL LIMITS
225. A person must not:

(a) whether by himself, or with persons determined by the board to be acting in
concert with him, acquire shares which, taken together with shares held or
acquired by persons determined by the board to be acting in concert with him,
carry 30 per cent. or more of the voting rights attributable to ordinary shares of
the Company; or

(b)  whilst he, together with persons determined by the board to be acting in
concert with him, holds not less than 30 per cent. but not more than 50 per
cent. of the voting rights attributable to ordinary shares of the Company,
acquire, whether by himself or with persons determined by the board to be
acting in concert with him, additional shares which, taken together with shares
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held by persons determined by the board to be acting in concert with him,
increases his voting rights attributable to ordinary shares of the Company,

(each of (a) and (b) a Limif), except as a result of a Permitted Acquisition.

226. Where any person breaches any Limit, except as a resuit of a Permitted
Acquisition, that person is in breach of these Articles.

227.  The board may do all or any of the following where it has reason to believe
that any Limit is or may be breached:

(a) require any member to provide such information as the board considers
appropriate to determine any of the matters under Articles 225-231;

(b}  have regard to such public filings as it considers appropriate to determine any
of the matters under this Articles 225-231;

{c) make such determinations under Articles 225-231 as it thinks fit, either after
calling for submissions from affected members or other persons or without
calling for such submissions;

(d)  determine that the voting rights attached to such number of shares held by
such persons as the board may determine to be held in breach of these Articles
(Excess Shares) are from a particular time incapable of being exercised for a
definite or indefinite period;

(e) determine that some or all of the Excess Shares must be sold;

H determine that some or all of the Excess Shares will not carry any right to any
dividends or other distributions from a particular time for a definite or
indefinite period;

(2) take such other action as it thinks fit for the purposes of Articles 225-231
including:

(i) prescribing rules (not inconsistent with Articles 225-231);
(ii) setting deadlines for the provision of information;

(ili) drawing adverse inferences where information requested is not
provided;

(iv) making determinations or interim determinations;
{v) executing documents on behalf of a member;

(vi) converting any Excess Shares held in uncertificated form into
certificated form;

(vii) paying costs and expenses out of proceeds of sale; and
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(viii) changing any decision or determination or rule previously made.

228. An acquisition is a Permitted Acquisition if the board consents to the
acquisition or if the acquisition is made in circumstances in which the City Code on
Takeovers and Mergers (the City Code), if it applied to the Company, would not
either prohibit such acquisition, or require an offer to be made as a consequence
(whether or not the City Code actually applies to the Company).

229.  Any resolution or determination of, or decision or exercise of any discretion or
power by, the board or any director or by the chairman of any meeting acting in good
faith under or pursuant to the provisions of Articles 225-231 shall be final and
conclusive; and anything done by, or on behalf of, or on the authority of, the board or
any director acting in good faith pursuant to the provisions of Articles 225-231 shall
be conclusive and binding on all persons concerned and shall not be open to
challenge, whether as to its validity or otherwise on any ground whatsoever. The
board shall not be required to give any reasons for any deciston; determination or

" declaration taken or made in accordance with Articles 225-231.

230.  Any one or more of the directors may act as the attorney(s) of any member in
relation to the execution of documents and other actions to be taken for the sale of
Excess Shares determined by the board under Article 227.

231.  Where used in Articles 225-231, the phrases acting in concert and voting
rights shall be have the meanings ascribed to them in the City Code. Articles 225-
231 only apply whilst the City Code does not apply to the Company.
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Name and address of subscriber Number of shares taken

Date:

Witness to signatures:
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Information Memorandum (released February 27, 2002) for the shareholders of
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Information Memorandum

The distribution of this document in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law and therefore persons into
whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about and observe any such restriction. Any
failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

J.P. Margan plc, or its associated affiliates, is acting for Xstrata AG and Xstrata plc and no one else in conneclion
with the Merger, Acquisiticns and Admission and will not be responsible to anyone other than Xstrata AG and
Xstrata plc for providing the protections afforded to customers of J.P. Morgan plc, or its associated affiliates, nor
for providing advice in relation to the Merger, Acquisitions or Admission.

Important preliminary remark regarding United States securities laws

The Merger described in this document will entail the exchange of shares of Xstrata AG, a Swiss company, for
those of Xstrata plc, a company incorporated in England lwhich will be the surviving companyl, and no offer of
securities is being made to any person in any jurisdiction to whom or in which such offer is unlawful. To the extent
related disclosure requirements apply, these are of a foreign [i.e. non-US) country that are different from those of
the United States. The unaudited pro forma financial infermation annexed to this document and the other
financial information referred to in this document have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP or other
non-US GAAP and may not be comparable to the financial statements of US companies.

It may be difficult for you (as a shareholder of Xstrata AG receiving shares from Xstrata pic) to enforce your rights
and any claim you may have arising under the US federal securities laws, since the issuer is located outside the
United States, and some or all of its officers and directors may be residents of countries cutside the United States.
You may not be able to sue a non-US company or its officers or directors in a non-US court for viotations of the
US securities laws. It may be difficult to compel a non-US company and its affiliates to subject themselves to a
US court’s judgement.

For a discussion of the action to be taken by Xstrata AG Shareholders please refer to Section 9 of this
document entitled "Action to be taken by Xstrata AG Shareholders”.

?  Xstrata AG
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Information Memorandum

Sources of further Information available to Xstrata AG Shareholders
The following further materials are important for the Xstrata AG Shareholders and are available to them upon
request from Xstrata AG:

= Invitation to the Xstrata AG Shareholders’ Meeting convened for 19 March 2002;
»  Annual Report of Xstrata AG for the financial year ended 31 December 2001 lincluding auditors’ report];

¢ Copy of the Merger Agreement between Xstrata AG and Xstrata plc dated 20 February 2002, including the
following Annexes:

- audited annual financial statements of Xstrata AG {holding company] for the year ended 31 December
2001;

- audited annual consalidated financial statements of Xstrata AG and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2001;

- pro-forma unconsolidated baslance sheet of Xstrata AG [reflecting the financial pesition as if the Xstrata
AG Hive-Down had taken place as of 1 January 2002];

- fairness opinion from J.P. Morgan plc; and
- proposed Memorandum and Articles of Association of Xstrata plc.
These documents (the Other Shareholder Materials} may be obtained from the following address:

Xstrata AG
Bahnhotstrasse 2
P.O. Box 102
6301 Zug
Switzerland

Tel: +41417266075
Fax: +41 41726 6089

German translations of the Other Shareholder Materials {other than the pro forma uncensolidated balance sheet
of Xstrata AG and the fairness opinion from J.P. Morgan plc} wilt be avaitable shortly from Xsirata AG at the same
address.

4 Xstrata AG
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1. Background and Summary of Proposed Merger and other Transactions

1.4 Background

On 21 February 2002, Xstrata AG announced that it had entered into an agreement with Glencore International to
acquire the Austratian {Enex) and South African {Duiker] coal operations of Glencore. At the same time it was
announced that approval would be sought from Xstrata AG Shareholders to the merger of Xstrata AG with a newly
incorporated UK company, Xstrata plc. Xstrata plc will seek admission of its ordinary shares to the Official List of
the UK Listing Authority and to trading on the London Stock Exchange and will seek a secondary listing on SWX
Swiss Exchange.

The purpose of this document, which is being issued by Xstrata AG, is to set out the background te, and reasons
for, the Acquisitions and the Merger and to explain why the directors of Xstrata AG believe that the Acquisitions
and the Merger are in the best interests of Xstrata AG Shareholders. Shareholder approval to the Merger will be
sought at a shareholders” meeting to oe held on 19 March 2002 in the Burgbachsaal Zug, Dorfstrasse 12, 6300
2ug. Notice of the meeting was published in the Swiss Commercial Gazette on 25 February 2002 and in the Neue
Zurcher Zeitung on 26 February 2002.

1.2 Rationale for the Acquisitions and the Merger

The board of directors ot Xsirata AG believes that the acquisition of the Enex and Duiker coal operations will
realise a number of key benefits for Xstrata AG Shareholders. The addition of a third major commodity business,
which has a different pricing cycle and in which the Group will have a significant market position, will provide
critical mass and significantly enhance and diversify earnings. in addition, the cost-campetitive, cash-generative
nature of the assets will provide stable, predictable cash flows, which will allow the Group to de-leverage its
balance sheet. The London listing will broaden access to the international capilal markets, and will provide
increased liquidity for current and prospective shareholders.

It is the Group's strategy to achieve growth as a natural resources business and to enhance overalt value for its
shareholders. Xstrata plc intends to pursue this strategy by:

. using its critical mass acquired as a result of the Acquisitions, strong cash Hows and financial flexibility to
provide a platform far exploitation of high quality acquisition opportunities as they arise; )

. increasing performance whilst maintaining its position as a cost competitive producer thereby maximizing
returns; and

= actively managing the asset portfolio in order tc increase long-term returns.

The board of directors of Xstrata AG believes that the above factors, combined with the Group's strong
management team and its commercial arrangements with Glencore, will put the Group in a strong position to .
pursue its strategy of growth and increasing returns for its shareholders.

1.3 Key stegs in the implementation of the Acquisitions and the Merger
The following is a summary of the key steps involved in the implementation of the Acquisitions and the Merger.

. As a preliminary step, Xstrata AG will transfer substantially all of its assets and liabilities to its new wholly-
owned Swiss subsidiary, Xstrata [Schweiz} AG, in exchange for newly issued shares of Xstrata [Schweiz} AG,
{the Xstrata AG Hive-Down). Further information on the Xstrata AG Hive-Down is set out in section 5 below;

e  Subject to the approval of Xstrata AG Sharehalders, Xstrata AG will merge into Xstrata plc by way of an
international merger (the Mergeri. As a result of the Merger, Xstrata AG will be dissolved and Xstrata ple
will be the surviving company. Further information on the Merger is set out in section 4 below;

«  Atthe same time as the Merger becomes effective, the Acquisitions will be completed. The acquisition price
is payable partly in new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to be issued to Glencore International, partly by the
assumpticn of debt of the Enex Group and the Duiker Group and partly in cash payable to the Vendors raised
pursuant to an issue of new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares and through the Syndicated Loan Facitity. Further
information on the Acquisitions is set out in section 3, an the new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares in section 2.10
and on the Syndicated Loan Facility in section 2.8 below;

*  Application will be made for all new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, including those issued to the Xstrata AG
Shareholders pursuant to the Merger, ta be listed on the Landon Stock Exchange, with a sacondary listing
on SWX Swiss Exchange. Further information on Admission is set out in section 2.11 below; and

§  Xstrata AG
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+  Completion of the Acquisitions and the Merger is interconditional, and is subject to a number of further
conditians, including Admission of the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares.

1.4 Summary of the Merger

The Merger will be structured as a takeover of all assets and liabilities of Xstrata AG by Xstrata plc under an
international merger without liquidation of Xstrata AG in compliance with Art. 748 of the Swiss Code of Obligations
and applicable laws of England. The implementation of the Merger and completion of the Acquisitions will be
interconditional, By the time the Merger bacomes effective, the Xstrata AG Hive-Down will have been completed,
so that the assets being transferred under the Merger will substantially comprise the increased shareholding of
Xstrata AG in Xstrata {Schweiz] AG received in consideration for the contribution of its business to Xstrata
[Schweiz) AG [see section 5.2).

When the Merger takes effect, Xstrata AG and the cutstanding Xstrata AG Shares will cease to exist and the
Xstrata AG Shareholders will become entitled to receive 10 new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares of US$0.50 each for
each Xstrata AG Share previously held. The Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to which Xstrata AG Shareholders are
entitled may be obtained by delivery of their (former] Xstrata AG Shares to the Exchange Agent.

The Merger is subject to approval by a two-thirds majority of all the votes which may be cast by Xstrata AG
Shareholders present or represented at the sharehaolders meeting of Xstrata AG to be held on 19 March 2002.

Further information about the Merger is set out in section 4. A copy of the Merger Agreement is included in the
Other Shareholder Materials and a summary of the consequences of the Merger for Xstrata AG Shareholders is
set out in section 7.

1.5 Fairness opinion and directors' recommendation

The board of directors of Xstrata AG has received an opinion from J.P. Morgan plc that it considers the amounts
payable by the Group for the Acquisitions to be fair, from a tinancial point of view, to Xstrata AG, and the ratio for
the exchange of new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares for {former] Xstrata AG Shares under the Merger to be fair, from
a financial point of view, to Xstrata AG Shareholders taken as a whole. A copy of J.P. Morgan plc’s opinion is
included in the Other Shareholder Materials.

The Board of Xstrata AG recommends Xstrata AG Shareholders to vote in favour of the related resclution
approving the Merger Agreement and the dissolution of Xstrata AG at the forthcoming Xsirata AG Shareholders’
Meeting. Xstrata AG Shareholders are invited to attend the shareholders’ meeting to be held on 19 March 2002 in
person or by proxy and to vote at that meeting in favour of the Merger {see section 9).

13 Xsirata AG
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2. Xstrata plc - The Surviving Company

2.1 Incorporation.and Activity

Xstrata plc was incorporated in England and Wales and has its registered affice {equivalent to its carporate seat)
at Becket House,  Lambeth Palace Road, London SE1 7EU, UK. Xstrata plc’s head office is at Xstrata AG's offices
at Bahnhotstrasse 2, 6301 Zug, Switzerland.

Xstrata plc’s auditors are Ernst & Young LLP, London.

Xstrata plc has not engaged in any business activity since its incorparation except in cannection with the
transactions described in this document. Xstrata plc was formed to become the holding company of the Group
with effect from the Merger becaming effective.

2.2 Share Capital
At Completion the share capital of Xstrata ple will consist of:

{al issued share capital of £50,00G divided into 50,000 deferred ordinary shares cf £1 each;

b} issued share capital of at least US$94,500,000 divided intc at least 189,000,000 Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares
of US3$0.50 each; and

le} @ special voting share [see section 2.3].

All Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will be in registered form. Subject to the provisions of the CREST Regulations, the
board of directors of Xstraia pic may permit the holding of shares in any class of shares in uncertificated form
and title to such shares may be transferred by means of a relevant system (as defined in the CREST Regulations].

2.3 Xstrata plc’s Memorandum and Articles of Association

Xstrata plc's Memorandum of Association sets out, amongst other things, the objects of Xstrata plc. Xstrata plc's
Articles will set out the rights attaching to the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to be issued to Xstrata AG Shareholders
in the Merger, as well as certain other procedural matters relating to the operation of Xstrata pic.

A copy of the draft Articles forms an Annexure to the Merger Agreement which is included in the Other
Shareholder Materials. Prior to the Merger, Xstrata plc has agreed to adopt Articles substantially in the farm of
that draft.

Set out below is a summary of certain provisions of the draft Articles [see section 2.12 for a discussion of how
these rights will affect you in comparison to your rights as an Xstrata AG Shareholder]:

Yoting rights

Each Xstrata pic Ordinary Share will entitle the registered holder to attend, speak a2nd vote at general meetings
of Xstrata pic. Registered holders of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will be entitled to one vote en a show of hands
or one vote per Xstrata plc Ordinary Share on a poll. Registered holders of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, including
nominees for Swiss shareholders, may also appoint one or more proxies to attend, vote and speak in their stead,

Special voting share

The Articles have been drafted so that certain rights that Xstrata AG Shareholders currently enjoy under Swiss
law are preserved in Xstrata pic. Under English taw any provision of the Articles can always be amended by special
resolution [requiring a 75% majority of those present and voting, in person ar by proxy). Consequently, a special
voling share has been created which carries weighted voting rights. Consent from the holder of this special voting
share will be required in order to alter certain provisions of the Articles. The holder of the special voling share
will separately agree, under a voting agreement with Xstrata plc lthe Voting Agreementl, to give its consent to
alter certain provisions of these Articles only if 100% of the holders of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares agree. Those
provisions include the following:

e theright not to have changes made to the Articles which would cause 3 member to cease to be a member
or take away a member’s rights to speak and vote at general meelings, to be paid a dividend if one is
declared and to receive liquidation proceeds on a winding up;

» the right of shareholders to requisition a general meeting {if they hald Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares whese
nominal value is equivalent to CHF 1 million or more);

»  the right to at least 20 clear days’ notice of all shareholder meetings;

7 Xstrata AG
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¢ the right to appaint directors and alternate directors;
*  the right not to have membership withdrawn by consolidation of share capital;

¢  aprovision that a proxy appointment includes the right to demand a poll and confers the right to speak at a
meeting;

*  the right to inspect records;
*  the right to a special examination of transactions and other matters affecting shareholder rights; and

+  aprovision requiring the publication of notices relating to Xstrata plc in the Swiss Commercial Gazette and
at least one leading Swiss newspaper.

Dividends and other distributions

Each Xstrata plc Ordinary Share will entitle the holder to receive dividends declared and paid on the Xstrata plc
Ordinary Shares and to receive a share of any surplus available to shareholders lafter the payment of creditors’
claims) in the event of 3 liquidation.

Transfer of shares

The Xstrata plc Qrdinary Shares are freely transferable subject to payment of applicable UK stamp duty or SDRT,
and the power of the board to refuse to register transfers (duly stamped} unless certain informational
requirements set out in the Companies Act retating to the disclosure of interests in shares have been complied
with. The board would not normally exercise this power merely because Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares are held
through a bank in Switzerland (see section 2.12).

Takeover Restrictions

It is currently understood that the City Code will not apply to Xstrata plc, since despite being incorporated in the
UK, it is not resident in the UK for the purposes cf the City Code as it does not have its place of central
management in the UK. Xstrata plc has also been advised that the Swiss Stock Exchange and Securities Trading
Act which goverr.s takeovers of Swiss companies, will not apply ta it because it is not incorporated in Switzerland.
As a result, a takeover of Xstrata plc would be unregulated by each of the UK and Swiss lakeover authorities.

Xstrata plc intends to observe best corporate governance practice in the UK, and given that Xstrata plc will not be
governad by the City Cede, has incorporated provisions in the Articles to provide shareholders with certain
takeover protections which will be administered by the board of directors of Xstrata plc. Glencore International
has undertaken in the Relationship Agreement las defined in section 6.5) to observe these provisions. Broadly,
these provisions provide that where either:

ta)l 2 person [alone or together with concert parties] acquires 30% or more of Xstrata plc's voting rights; or

(b] 3 person [atone or together with concert parties| hotding between 30% and 50% of Xstrata plc's voting rights
acquires further voting rights,

then, unless such acquisition is accompanied by an unconditional general offer to shareholders in cash, or
accompanied by a full cash alternative at not less than the highest price paid by the bidder and its associates in
the preceding 12 months las if Rule 9 of the City Code applied to Xstrata plc), or unless the board of Xstrata plc
agrees ctherwise, that person will be in breach of the Articles. In that event, the board of Xstrata plc has authority
to withhald dividends, impose voting restrictions and ultimately, compulsorily to divest shares acquired or held in
breach of the Articles.

Other Provisions
The Articles contain a number of other provisions relating to, inter alia, the appointment and removal of directors,
the conduct of Xstrata plc board of directors and shareholder meetings and the variation of shareholders’ rights,

2.4 Directors, Senior Management and Employees

The board of directors of Xstrata plc will be chaired by Willy Strothotte. The other members of the board of
directors will be Michael Davis, Trevor Reid, Santiago Zaldumbide, Dr. Reto Domeniconi, lvan Glasenberg, Paul
Hazen, David issroff, Robert MacDonnel!, Sir Steve Robson and Dr. Frederik Roux. In additien, David Rough has
agreed to become a non-executive director and deputy chairman of Xstrata plc with effect from 1 April 2002,

8 Xstrata AG
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Directors’ and other interests
The directors of Xstrata plc, their family members and certain connected persons, are interested in an aggregate

of 2,820 Xstrata AG Shares lor 28,200 Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares on Comptetion of the Merger].

Directors’ Service Agreements

Michael Davis and Trevor Reid will have employment agreements with a Group company ta provide their services
as chief execulive and chief financial officer respectively to Xstrata plc and Xstrata (Schweiz) AG. These
agreements are on substantially the same terms as their current agreements. Santiaga Zaldumbide will be
engaged as a director of Xstrata plc on the terms of a letter of appointment. The appointment will be on an
indefinite basis subject to the existence of the agreement between Mr. Zaldumbide and Asturiana, pursuant to
which Mr. Zaldumbide acts as Chairman of Asturiana, and he will receive no additional remuneration for his
position as a director of Xstrata plc.

All other directors of Xstrata plc will be engaged as non-executive directors (and Mr. Willy Strothotte as chairman]
for an initial term of up to 35 months and thereafter terminable by each director on six months notice. The
appointment of the non-executive directors is terminable at any time by Xstrata plc. The aggregate of the fees
payable to the non-executive directors of Xstrata plc for the year ending 31 December 2002 (excluding
remuneration payable under employment agreements) is expected not to exceed US$750,000.

Profiles of Executive Directors

Michael Davis, aged 44, Chief Executive. Mr. Davis was appointed as Chief Executive of Xstrata AG in Cctober 2001.
He joined Gencor Limited in early 1994 from Eskom, the South African electricity utility company, where he was
an Executive Director. Mr. Davis was appointed Executive Chairman of Ingwe Coal Corporation Limited in 1995,
and Chief Financial Officer and an Executive Director of Billiton plc in July 1997,

Trevor Reid, aged 41, Finance Director. Mr. Reid was appointed Finance Director of Xstrata AG in January 2002.
Priar to joining Xstrata AG, he was Global Head of Resource Banking at the Standard Bank Group. He joined the
Standard Bank Group in 1997 from Warrior International Limited, a corporate finance boutique specialising in the
minerats sector.

Santiago Zaldumbide, aged 59, Executive Director, Chief Executive of the Zinc business and Executive Chairman
of Asturiana. Mr. Zaldumbide is a previous Chief Executive Oificer and director of Unidn Explosives Rié Tinto, and
of Petrdleos del Norte. In 1990, Petréleos del Norte became part of the Repsol Qil Group where Mr. Zaldumbide
was responsible for establishing the international siructure of the enlarged Repsol Oil Group. In 1994 he was
appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Corporacidn Industrial de Banesto and in December 1997 Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Asturiana de Zinc SL.

Profiles of Non-Executive Directors

Witly Strothotte, aged 58, is Chairman of Glencore International AG. From 1961 to 1978 Mr. Strothotte held various
positions with respensibility for international trading in metals and minerals with Frank & Schulte, € Tennant
Sons & Co and ICC Metals. In 1978, Mr. Strothotte joined Glencore International, taking up the position of head of
metals and minerals in 1984. Mr. Strathotte was appointed CED of Glencore in 1993, and held the combined
positions of chairman and CEO from 1994 until 2001. Mr. Strothotte has been chairman of Xstrata AG since 1994,
and is also currently a director of Metaleurop SA, Century Aluminium Corporation, Anaconda Nicket Ltd and
Asturiana de Zinc SL.

Dr. Reto Domeniconi, aged 695, joined the board of Xstrata AG in 1997. He was Chief Financial Cfficer and member
of the board of Nestlé S.A., Suez Lyonnaise des Eaux, and other industrial groups and banks (Chairman of Cautts
& Co. AG|. He is also currently a director of Gucci Group NV and Sulzer AG.

lvan Glasenberg, aged 45, is Chiet Executive Officer of Glencore International which he joined in 1984. He worked
in the coal department in South Africa for three years and in Australia for twa years. From 198% to 1990, he
managed Glencore International’s Hong Kong and Beijing offices. In 1991 he became head of the ccal department
and in 2002 Chief Executive Officer of Glencore International.

Paul Hazen, aged 40, joined the board of Xstrata AG in 20C0. Mr. Hazen is former Chairman and CEO of Wells
Fargo and Company. Mr. Hazen retired in April 2001 as Chairman after a 30 year career with the bank. Mr. Hazen
is currently Chairman of Accel-KKR, and senior advisor to KKR. He also serves as deputy chairman and director

- of Vodafone Plz, and as a director of Safeway, inc., Phelps Dodge Corporation, E.piphany, Inc., Willis Group Ltd.
and KSL Recreation Corporation.
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David Issroff, aged 35, joined the board of Xstrata AG in 2000. Mr. issroff joined Glencore South Africa in 1989. In
1992 he transferred to Glencere’s Head Office in Switzerland with responsibility for the marketing of ferroalloys.
In 1997 he was appointed head of the Ferroalloys Division.

Robert MacDonnell, aged 64, joined the board of Xstrata AG in 1997. Prior to joining Kehlberg Kravis Roberts &
Co. in 1976, Mr. MacDonnell was a Management Consultant at Arthur Andersen & Co. He subsequently formed
his awn firm, which specialised in small management buyouts. Mr. MacDonnell became the first non-founding
partner of KKR in 1982. As such, he participated in virtually all investment decisions until the firm expanded in
the late 1980s. Mr. MacDonnell is also currently a director of Safeway, Inc. and is a partner in US Natural
Resources, Inc, and Pacific Realty.

Sir Steve Robson CB, aged 58, retired as Second Permanent Secretary at HM Treasury in January 2001. He had
joined HM Treasury after leaving university. His early career included a period as Private Secretary to the
Chancellor of the Exchequer and a two year secondment to investars in Industry ple (3il. From 1997 untit his
retirement, his responsibilities included the legal framework for regulation of the UK financial services industry,
public private partnerships, procurement policy including the private finance initiative and the Treasury's
enterprises and growth unit. Sir Steve is a director of Cazenove plc and Royal Bank of Scotland Group.

David Rough, aged 51, was Group Director [Investments) of Legal & General Group Plc from 1 June 1991 untit 31
December 2001 when he stepped down prior to retiring from Legal & General in June 2002, As Group Director
linvestments} Mr. Rough headed all aspects of fund management within Legat & General investments. Mr. Rough
joined Legal & General Investments as UK Equities Director in January 1989, Prior to this he worked as
Investment Manager for Rayal Insurance, which he joined in 1972. Mr. Rough has agreed to become a Non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 April 2002.

Dr. Frederik Roux, aged 54, joined Johannesburg Consolidated investment Company Limited in 1976, where he
held positions in the Finance, Base Metéls, Gold and Platinum divisions. In 1990 he joined Gencor Limited where
he became Chairman of Alusaf and Executive Director [responsible for Base Metals and Heavy Minerals). Since
1997, he has pursued private business interests in game ranching and safaris in South Africa.

Protiles of Corporate Management

Brian Azzopardi, aged 34, Group Controtler, Mr. Azzopardi joined Xstrata AG in 1997. He is a fellow of the Chartered
Asscciation of Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr. Azzopardi worked for six years at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Milan and Russia in the areas of audit and business advisory. In 1995 he was appointed
as Group Financial Controller of Alfa Group, a prominent financial industrial group based in the Russian Federation.

Gavin Foley, aged 45, General Manager, Business Development. Mr. Foley joined Xstrata AG in 1998. Mr. Foley has
two engineering degrees and was employed in the South African mining industry for 10 years prior 1o becoming
3 mining investment analyst for eight years. Mr. Foley was employed in the investment banking sector in London
for two years prior to joining Xstrata AG.

Marc Gonsalves, aged 40, General Manager, Corporate Affairs. Mr. Gonsalves joined Xstrata AG in January 2002.
He has 11 years experience in the mining industry in the field of investor, media and government relations. He
was Vice President Investor Relations and Communications at BHP 8Billiton prior to joining Xstrata AG.

Benny Levene, aged 37, chief legal counsel. Mr. Levene joined Xstrata AG in 1997. Mr. Levene holds the degrees
Bachelor of Commerce. Bachelor of Laws and Master of Laws, and is admitted as an attorney of the Supreme
Court of South Africa. He was a commercial partner of Werksmans Attorneys in South Africa for four years before
joining Xstrata AG.

Profiles of Operational Management

Peter Coates, aged 55. Chief Executive of the Coal Business. Mr. Coates has a degree in mining engineering with
37 years experience. He occupied a number of senior positions prior to joining Glencore in 1999. Since 1994,
Mr. Coates has directed Glencore’s coal aperations in Australia and Colombia.

Petrus Johannes Nienaber, aged 51, Chief Executive of Xstrata's ferroalloys business. Mr. Nienaber holds both a
Bachelor and Honours degree in Engineering. Mr. Nienaber starled his career as an Iscor bursary holder at Iscor
Steelworks in Newcastle and worked for 14 years in the ferroalloy industry at both Samancor and CM! untilin 1988
he became one of the founders of what is now the Xstrata AG Group’s chrome operations.

Santiago Zaldumbide, in addition to being an Executive Director of Xstrata plc, is Chief Executive of the Zinc
business and Executive Chairman of Asturiana.
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Employees
Upon Completion of the Merger and the Acquisitions, the Group is expected to have approximately 11,900

employees world-wide.

2,5 Share Schemes = ) ;
Upon Completion of the Merger and the Acguisitions, options and awards which are outstanding {the Xstrata AG
Group Management and Employee Share Incentive Scheme and the Xstrata AG Directors’ Incentive Scheme] will
be replaced by equivalent rights over such proportionate number of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares as will ensure
that the intrinsic value of the rights immediately before and after the Merger remains unaffected. Xstrata plc will
assume responsibility for satisfying the replacement rights but no further options or awards will be granted under
the Xstrata AG Share Schemes.

it is proposed that after Admission Xstrata plc will operate a new long-term share incentive scheme for the Group
which will provide for the grant of options and contingent awards of free Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares which will
be subject to performance targets. The new plan will be consistent with the Group’s reward philosophy, which will
aim to provide superior rewards for outstanding performance and a high proportion of “at risk” remuneration for
executive directors and senior management.

2.6 Pensions

There are pension plans in which employees of the Group participate. The benefits under the plans vary in
different jurisdictions. Contributions to the plans are made by the Group, in some cases jointly with employees,
and are generally based on a fixed percentage of pensicnable salary of up to 20%.

The Group intends to establish money purchase [savings] retirement benefit plans and risk benefit insurance
plans for certain senior employees, whose participation will be at the invitation of the Group. Michael Davis and
Trevor Reid have accepted the Group's invitation to participate in the retirement benefit plans from their respective
dates of joining the Group.

It is intended that contributions to the retirement benefit plans will be calculated lin accordance with actuarial
advicel with the objective of accumulating sutficient funds over the working lifetime of each executive 1o provide
an overall target pension which will be equivalent to approximately 60% of final salary at normat retirement age,
for executives who begin participating in the plans at the age of 40. The actual benefits payable will however be
based on the amount which has accumulated in that member’s money [savings) purchase acccunt.

Such contributions are inctusive of contributions from the relevant individuals whose contracts of employment set
out the rates, if any, that they are required to pay as members. in the case of Trevor Reid the rate of contribution
will be 5% of base salary. For Michael Davis the contribution rate wilt be 0%.

Where it is mandatory for a relevant individual to participate in a retirement benefit plan in the country in which
he is employed [other than social securityl, the Group will pay contributions to such scheme in addition to those
described above.

2.7 Corporate Governance

The Combined Code provides that the board of directors of a UK public company should include 3 balance of
executive and non-executive directors, with nan-executive directors comprising at least one-third of the board.
The Combined Code further provides that 2 majority of non-executive directors should be independent of
rmanagement and free from any business or other relationship which coutd materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. The Combined Code requires the Xstrata plc board of directors to establish an
audit committee, a remuneration committee and a nominations committee. The Combined Code also requires
that a majority of the members of the nominations committee and all members of the audit committee should be
non-execulive directors the majority of whom are free from any business or other relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The Combined Code requires that all
members of the remuneration committee should be non-executive directors all of whom are free from any
business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
Willy Strotthotte will be a member of the remuneration committee although he is chairman of Glencore
International. With this exception, following the Merger and Admission, the board of directers of Xstrata plc
intends to comply with the requirements of the Combined Code.

In addition, Xstrata plc will, upon Admission, comply with a code of securities dealings in relation to the Xstrata plc
Ordinary Shares and other securities which is based on, and is no tess exacting than, the Model Code published in
the UK Listing Rules. The code will apply to the directors of Xstrata plc and relevant employees of the Group.
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2.8 Syndicated Loan Facility

Prior to Admission, Xstrata pic, Xstrata [Schweiz] AG, certain members of the Group, the underwriters of the
syndicated loan and certain other banks will enter into the Syndicated Loan Facility Agreement pursuant to which
the banks will make available to Xstrata [Schweiz] AG and certain members of the Group facilities of up to
US$2,000,000,000 as follows: (i} @ committed 364 day term loan facility up to the amount of US$400,000,000,
subject to extension; (i} a five year committed multicurrency revolving credit facility up to the amount of
US$750,000,000; and liii} a committed five year amortising term loan up to the amount of US$450,000,000.

The purpose of the Syndicated Loan Facility is to finance the Acquisitions [other than the acquisition of the Enex
Group), refinance certain existing financial indebtedness of certain members of the Group, finance the working
capital requirements and general corporate purposes of certein members of the Group and permitted
acquisitions.

The borrowings will bear interest at margins over the London inter-bank offered rate.

2.9 Qividend Policy
The directors of Xstrata plc intend to adopt a progressive dividend policy which will take inta account the

- underlying growth in earnings of the Group, as well as its capital requirements and cash flows, whilst maintaining

an appropriate level of dividend cover. However, as a company incorporated in England and Wales, Xstrata plc may
only pay dividends if distributable profits are available for the purpose; as a holding company, Xstrata plc will be
dependent upon dividends and interest distributed to it by its subsidiaries.

The directors of Xstrata plc intend that Xstrata plc will pay a final dividend in Aprit 2003 in respect of the year
ending 31 Cecember 2002 and an interim dividend in September 2003 in respect of the half year to 30 June 2003.
Thereafter, the directors of Xstrata plc intend that interim and final dividends will be paid in September ard Apri
in each year in the approximate propertions of one-third and two-thirds of the total annual dividend, respectively.

Xstrata plc will publish its accounts in US$. Any dividénds declared by Xstrata plc will generally be paid in US$
unless an Xstrata plc shareholder elects to receive dividends in pounds sterling, Euro or CHF. Fluctuations in the
exchange rate between pounds sterling, Euro or CHF and US$ will affect the pounds sterling, Euro or CHF
amount received in respect of dividend payments declared in US$ by Xstrata plc.

2.10 Creation of New Shares

All new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will be fully paid up, i.e. without the shareholders of Xstrata plc receiving them
being liable for further payment. The new Xstrata pic Ordinary Shares will be in registered form, so that only those
perscns whose names appear in Xstrata plc's register of members will be recognised as the legal holders of
Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares [see section 2.12].

New Shares for Xstrata AG Shareholders

Upon the Merger taking effect, the Xstrata pic Ordinary Shares issued for the benefit of the Xstrata AG
Shareholders wilt be registered in the name of the Exchange Agent who, pending the delivery of the Xstrata AG
Share certificates for corresponding Xstrata AG Shares and registration of the Xstrata AG Shareholders or other
nominee in Xstrata plc's register of members will act as naminee for each former shareholder of Xstrata AG. In
the Merger Agreement, Xstrata plc has undertaken to register promptly as holders of the new Xstraia plc Ordinary
Shares all former shareholders of Xstrata AG or other nominees to whom tegal title lo those shares has been
transferred following detivery of their Xstrata AG Shares to the Exchange Agent.

New Shares as Consideration for the Acquisitions

Under the Acquisition Agreement, part of the consideration will consist of the issue to Glencore International of
Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares which when added to those received under the Merger will result in Glencore
International holding 40% of the issued Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares.

Issue of Xstrata pic Ordinary Shares
Xstrata plc intends to finance and pay for a portion of the cash element of the consideration for the Acquisitions
with the proceeds of an issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares.

2.11 Listing on the London Stock Exchange and SWX Swiss Exchange

Application will te made for the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to be admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing
Autherity and to trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for Listed Securities with a secondary listing on
SWX. The Xstrata AG Shares will be delisted from SWX pursuant to the Merger.
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The Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares are expected to qualify for inclusion in the FTSE UK index series and application
has been made for their inclusion in the SP! index.

2,12 Holding of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares
Options available to Swiss holders of Xstrata AG Shares with respect to the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to which
they will become entitled in the Merger will include the following:

(a}

(b)

lel

They may require delivery of share certificates for the Xstrata ptc Ordinary Shares. In this case, the Xstrata
pic Ordinary Shares will be registered in the holder’s own name and the holder will receive all dividend
payments and sharehclder communications directly from Xstrata ple. The share certificate wilt need to be
surrendered in the case of any dealing with the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, and a replacement certificate
issued in respect of any balance of shares retained. The holding of a share certificate is likely to preduce a
delay should the shareholder wish to sell on a recognised stock exchange.

|[Former| Xstrata AG Shareholders may also choose to keep their shares with a bank in Switzerland in which
case SIS or 3 nominee of SIS will be the registered holder in the register of Xstrata ple for all shares so held.
Alt dividend payments will in this case be credited to the relevant banks for their customers. Credit Suisse,
UBS AG and Ziircher Kantonalbank will also be mandated to distribute natices and ather communications
of Xstrata plc directly to shareholders being customers of these banks. Xstrata plc’s Articles witl atlow for
SIS or its nominee, as registered holder, through the banks to grant proxies to customers in respect of the
Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares beneficially owned by those customers, altowing them to participate, speak and
vote in person at Xstrata plc shareholders” meetings, including the satellite meeting held in Switzerland
which will be in electronic communication with the main shareholder meeting in the UK.

Swiss residents who have interests in Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will also be notified of shareholder
meetings and other relevant company events in the same way as sharehalders of Xstrata AG presently are,
i.e. by publication in the Swiss Commerciat Gazette and at least one leading Swiss newspaper.

Shares held through a bank in Switzerland will be capable of being traded on SWX and bought and sold in
CHF.

The board of Xstrata plc does not generally intend tc exercise any powers under the Articles against those
who hold shares through a bank in Switzerland, for example. merely because the bank is not permitted to
disclase their identity in response to any inquiry which Xstrata plc is empowered or required under UK law
to make about interests in its shares.

The directors of Xstrata AG consider that thase who hold their Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares in this way will
remain in essentially the same position as to the enjoyment of rights to hold, trade and otherwise in respect
of those shares as in relation to their Xstrata AG shares held through a Swiss bank.

Xstrata plc is currently assessing the viability of creating a separate share register in Switzerland, based on
the SIS registered share madel. If such a system were implemented, Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares held with
a bank in Switzerland could be recorded in that register, which would facilitate direct communications with
the owners of the shares.
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3. Envisaged Enlargement of Xstrata AG Business - Acquisitions of Enex and Duiker
3.1 The Coal Business

Introduction

The Coal Business will be the Group's largest business unit in terms of profit and turnover, accounting for 80% of
EB!T, 70% of EBITDA and 61% of turnover in the year ended 31 December 2001 on an unaudited combined
constructed illustrative basis,

The Group will be one of the world's largest export thermal coal producers with interests in a portfolio of cost
competitive mines, comprising 12 operating coalmines in Australia and 14 operating coalmines in South Africa.
In the year ended 31 December 2001, the Enex and Duiker Groups' combined attributable sales were
approximately 37.1 million tonnes lincluding approximately 0.7 million tonnes of stockpile sales), with
approximately 53% of those sales coming from the Enex Group. The Group will focus primarily on the export of
thermal coal for use in electricity generation, The Group will export semi-soft coal for use in steel manufacturing
and supply thermal coal for use in domestic electricity generation and, in Scuth Alrica, for use in various
industrial applications. Xstrata plc estimates that in 2001, the Enex Group supplied approximately 20% of
Australia’s thermat coal exports and approximatety 15% of its total semi-soft coking coal exports and the Duiker
Group supplied approximately 20% of South Africa’'s thermal coal exports. The Group's Austratian aperations will
export primarily into Asia, particularty Japan. The majority of the exports of the Group's South African operations
will be to Europe. Semi-soft coal production represents approximately 20% of the Enex Group's output and is
exparted predominantly to the Asian steel industry. Approxirately 13% and 21% of the combined Enex and Duiker
Groups’ attributable sales in the year ended 31 December 2001 were sold into the Australian and South African
domestic markets, respectively. The Group will have an economic interest in the three major coal port facilities
used to load its coal for export, two in Australia [the Port Waratah Coal Terminal and the Port Kembla Ceal
Terminall and one in South Africa [the Richards Bay Coal Terminat).

The Group will manage the majority of its mining capacity. In some cases, it will employ mining contractors and,
in other cases, its mining interests will be operated by the Group's joint venture partners. In the {atter case, the
Group will participate on a management commiitee. A number of the Group’s mines will have minority
participants, which in Australia are primarily Japanese, or subsidiaries of Japanese, companies,

At the current rate of production, Xstrata plc estimates that reserves will support mining in excess of 20 years,
The Group's measured and indicated resource base exceeds 4.4 billion tonnes of coal, which provides numerous
expansion opportunities for additional productian.

The Coal Business’s marketing strategy is to take advantage of its three key marketing strengths:

. substantial production volume from a diversified asset base which is enhanced by selective blending at port,
branding and supply flexibility. The Coal Business is benefiting from an increasing trend amaong major coal
buyers to purchase from {arger coal producers in order to reduce logistical and administrative expenses. In
this respect, the Group’s volume of production is a significant competitive advantage. The Coal Business,
through selective blending, is also able to enhance the value of lesser quality coals, to minimise production
costs by producing coals according to its optimal beneficiation yield and to realise significant operational
and geological synergies among its mines;

s itsrelationship with Glencore, a leading coal trader. Glencore, which has a network of 49 field offices in over
50 countries, prepares detailed supply and demand models which facilitates the marketing of the Coal
Business's coal with the objective of achieving a superior price. Glencore also provides opportunities for
selling the Coal Business's coal onto the shorter term coal market; and

*  continuing to take advantage of the trend amongst major buyers to purchase generic coal [rather than coal
sourced from a single minel. In the past, coal producers and customers marketed and bought coal from
individual mines. This practice reflected the wide diversity of mine ownership. In conjunction with industry
rationalisation, major customers are increasingly receptive to producers marketing "generic” ceals. These
are coals that meet the customers’ specifications irrespective of the source mine. This creates significant
efficiencies for both producers and customers, which are available to the Coal Business because of its
diverse asset base and co-ordinated management.

The primary focus of the Coal Business's marketing strategy will be 1o maximise sales of its thermal and semi-
soft coking coals into the expert market. Sales to the domestic market will continve to be pursued when
attractive, both through the renewal of existing contracts and the identification of new selling opportunities. The
Coal Business will continue 1o seek to maximise sales into the premium end of the export market, which for its
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Australian operations is the large Asian power industry. The directors of Xstrata ple consider that this sector of
the market will cantinue to be the major growth area for Australian thermal coals and has traditionally paid a
premium over other coal buyers to ensure secure sources of supply.

The Coal Business' semi-soft production is exported predominantly to the major steelmakers in Japan, Korea and
Taiwan. New markets are also being developed in India, Brazit and Europe. Given the current financiat position of
_the Asian steel industry, there is an increased impetus on cost reduction which is causing these mills to maximise
the usage of lower priced semi-soit coking coals, both through the replacement of hard coking coal in the coke
blend as well as further increases in the pulverized coal injection ratio.

The main supplies and services purchased by the Coal Business are mining equipment and replacement parts,
explosives, fuel, tyres and lubricants and freight, rail and port handling services. The supplier base providing
these goods has been relatively consistent in recent years and Xstrata plc believes the Enex and Duiker Group’s
have established strong relationships with key suppliers in both Australia and South Africa.

The Enex and Duiker Groups have been active acquirors of coal mines and among the leaders in the consolidation
of the coal industry in Australia and South Africa. The directors of Xstrata plc believe there is scope for further
consolidation cf the Australian coal sector and the Group will continue to consider acquisition opportunities as
they arise. Although the directors of Xstrata plc do not expect significant acquisition opportunities to arise in
South Africa, the Group has identified opportunities for consolidation of South African operations’ reserves
through reserve swaps with other producers. in addition, other countries, such as Colombia, may cffer the Group
growth opportunities.

Industry overview

Background

Coal is ane of the world's most extensive, affordable and geegraphically diverse natural sources of energy. The
black or hard coal industry is divided into two key markets: coking and thermal coal. Thermal coal is also referred
to as steaming coal and is used in the combustion processes by electricity producers and industrial users to
praduce steam for electricity and heat. Coking coal is principally used to produce coke, which is then used as a
reductant in blast furnaces for the production of steel. Semi-soft coking coal exhibits some coking properties and
is blended with hard and semi-hard coking coals to produce coke. Some semi-soft coking coals are also used for
pulverized coal injection for direct feed inta the blast furnace. Certain grades of thermal coal can be economically
processed for use as semi-soft coking coals.

Coal is currently the cheapest fossil fuel on a contained heat basis and prices have historically remained
significantly below the price of oil or natural gas. Coal retains a number of other advantages, namely less volatile
prices, stable supply from a wide range of politically secure geographic locations and easy and safe storage and
transportation by rail or ship. These factors are expected to secure the long-term demand for coat.

In 2000, appraximately 3.6 billion tonnes of cocal were produced globaily, of which appreximately 2.9 billion tennes
was thermal coal. A similar guantity ot thermal coal is estimated to have been produced in 2001. Of this
production of thermal coal, approximately B4% was used for domestic censumption, primarily in China and the
United States.

The key coal exporting nations are Australia, China, Colombia, Indonesia and South Africa, which generally ship
coal ta the Pacific market (Asial and the Atlantic market [primarily Europe). The seaborne thermal coal market
laccounting for approximately 92% of total thermal coal exports in 2000} is the most rapidly growing segment of
the global coal industry, having expanded by 6.6% per annum over the five year period 1o 2000. It is estimated that
in 2001 the globat seaborne thermal coal market grew by 10% to 368 million tonnes and that over the five year
periad to 2000 the Pacific and Atlantic export thermal coal markets grew at an average annual rate of 8.6% and
3.0%, respectively.

Supply and demand

Growth in thermal coal demand is closely related to growth in electricity consumption, with approximately 38% of
the energy used for global electricity generation accounted for by coal. OECD electricity demand and ceal-fired
electricity generation increased at an average rate of 2.9% per annum between 1990 and 2000 and is projected to
continue increasing from 2000 to 2020, with the highest growth rates expected in Asia. Xstrata plc expects that
seaborne thermal coal imports will increase to satisfy this growing demand.

Semi-sofl coal supplies about 45% of the coal required for the steel making process. The consumption of semi-
soft coal has been increasing as steel mills strive to reduce raw material costs. When steel demand falls, the steel
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companies can also extend coking times and use a larger proportion of lower cost semi-soft coking coal in the
coke blend.

Continuing strang growth and demand for thermal coal in Asia, particularly in North Asia and more particularly
in Japan, Korea and Taiwan, is expected. At the same time, imports have been increasing into Europe, particularly
into the UK and Germany. Germany has committed to phase out its uneconomic domestic mines between 2002
and 2010 in favour of cheaper South African and Colombian imports. Demand has also been affected by the United
States, which was traditionally an exporter of thermal coal, but has since the beginning of 2001 become a net
importer of thermal ceal. .

On the supply side, there has been significant consolidation over the last four years. In 1998, approximately 44%
of the thermal coal exported from Australia, South Africa and Colombia was produced by four exporters. In 2002,
this percentage has increased to zpproximately 73%. Further consclidation is expected as the last of the oil
companies operating in the thermal caal industry finally exit the industry.

Europe has seen Colombia and South Africa becoming an increasingly important supplier of thermal coal with the
United States becoming a net importer due to growing internal demand.

In South Africa there is limited ability for expansion due to the majority of economic reserves in South Africa being
fully exploited and the ability to expand the Richards Bay Coal Terminal being limited. The Richards Bay Coal
Terminal currently has a capacity of 72 million tonnes per annum with plans in place to expand it to 82 million
tonnes per annum over the next five years. Thereafter it will not be possible to further expand capacity at the
Richards Bay Coal Terminal.

The Asian thermal coal market has historically been supplied by Australia, however the last decade has seen
growth in two further supply countries, Indonesia and more recently China.

Pricing and costs

The price of thermal coal is largely driven by the prevaiting coal demand and supply balance and market outlook.
In addition, the different qualities of thermal coal attract different prices according to their specific heat, ash,
sutphur and chemical contents. Exported thermal coal has a higher heat value, lower sulphur content (1% cr less}
and lower ash content {15% or less} than that sold into the domestic market. A significant proportion of export
coal needs to be washed in order to meet the higher quality requirements of the export market. Due to the fact
that semi-soft coal is effectively a high quality thermal coal, its price is largely driven by the thermal coat market
but is also influenced by use in the steel industry as a partial substitute for hard coking coal.

Costs associated with coal mining can be broadly categorised as labour costs, other on-site costs, reyalty
payments, freight costs and port loading costs. Export coal is generally sold free on beard at the loading port with
producers paying transport costs to, and loading costs at, the port. Accordingly, producers selling into the export
market with mines close to port with good transport (principally rail) systems have significant cost advantages.

The Australian coal industry is the second lowest cost producer and, due to its large. high quality reserves located
close to its export ports, has significant advantages over many of its majar competitors in the export thermal coal
trade. in the past, these advantages have been partially offset by relatively high casts of labour, energy and
materials, and transport |both rail and portl. Improvements in each of these areas, together with the recent
depreciation of the Australian dollar against the US$, have made Australia's export coat industry one of the most
cost competitive in the world.

South Africa is one of the lowest cost export coal producers. It has tow labour and capital costs, low transport
costs [which compensate for the relatively long distance to port], shallow mining depths and simple geology. The
depreciation of the Rand against the US$ has also helped to enhance South Africa’s global competitiveness.

Market and outlock }

There has been consistent and predictable growth in demand for coal, which has neot been significantly impacted
by economic cycles or depressed Asian economies. Seaborne coal trade has grown at 6% per annum, between
the years of 1996 and 2000 and about 5.4% per annum growth is expected between the years 2000 and 2005.

in 2000, coal prices in the Attantic market rose as a result of a number of factors, including increased thermal
coal demand in the United States, a reducticn in domestic production due to subsidy cutbacks in Europe and high
levels of economic activity. Prices remained strong in early 2001, but declined in the second half due to falling oit
and gas prices, the impact of the 11 September terrorist attacks on the United States and increased Chinese
exports, Prices have started to recover in early 2002, but have not yet reached the levels experienced in early 2001.
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Atlantic coal demand is expected to grow in 2002 and continue ta grow in 2003 particularly from the Americas,
Spain and Germany.

The Asian market experienced significant growth in 2001, with seaborne coal demand growing by approximately
15 mitlion tonnes. This was driven by the high level of ecanomic activity in‘the 'United ‘States, which represents a
significant market for Asian products. 2001 saw a rapid increase in exports from China which by the third quarter
began to have an impact on Asian market prices.

The surge of Chinese exports is not expected to be repeated in 2002 and China is expected 10 have to significantly
increase the level of its coal imports. This, coupled with decreased production and supply by the Australian
producers and the decline of exports from the United Stales into Asia is expected o lead to recovery in prices in
2002 which it is anticipated will be sustained into 2003.

3.2 Enex - Overview of the Australian Coal Operations

In the year ended 31 December 2001, the Enex Group's attributable production was 20.2 million tonnes of ceal,
approximately 90% of which was exported. This represents approximately 12% of all coal exported from Australia.
Approximately 7% of the Enex Group's export production was thermal coal. The Group owns interests in 12
operating coalmines and a number of development projects, most of which are located in or close to the Hunter
Valley of New South Wales.

The Enex Group has a 13.4% interest in the operator of the Port Waratah Coal Terminal, located at the Port of
Newcastle, New South Wales which is the world’s largest expart coal handling operation. The Enex Group also
has a 17% interest in the Part Kembla Coal Terminal, located at the Port of Wollongong, New South Wales.

The Enex Group holds mast of its interests in mines through joint ventures, in which it generally holds a
controlling interest. Given the relationships between its joint venture partners and its customers, Xstrata plc
believes that these joint ventures will provide the Group with a valuable link to its customer base.

in Australia the Enex Group has, either on its own account or through its interests in joint ventures, all underlying
mining tenements and it has access [whether under freehold, leasehold or otherwise] to all land that is required
for the Group’s current coal mining operations.

3.3 Duiker - Overview of the South African Coal Operations

The Duiker Group is South Africa’s third largest exporter of thermal coal in terms of attributable szles. In the year
ended 31 December 2001, the Duiker Group's attributable production of coal was 17.8 million tonnes and of the
Ouiker Group’s attributable sales of 17.0 million tonnes approximately 75% was exported. During that year, the
Duiker Group produced approximately 20% of all coal exported from South Africa and supplied approximately 3%
of all coal supplied to the South African market. The Duiker Group owns and manages nine operating coalmines
and has interests in a further five joint venture operating coalmines, two of which the Group manages. The Duiker
Group also has a 20.91% interest in the Richards Bay Coal Terminal. Xstrata plc believes its economic interest in
the Richards Bay Coal Terminal will provide the South African operations with a strategic advantage due to the
associated rights it has to use the coal loading facility, which is for use by sharehalders only.

3.4 Summary of Terms of Acquisition Agreement

On 21 February 2002 the Purchasers, Xstrata AG and the Venders entered into the Acguisition Agreement
pursuant to which Xstrata ple, Xstrata |Schweiz} AG and Xstrata South Africa agreed to purchase the Coal Assets
tor cash and Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares with an aggregate value of US$2,047,910,000 (which includes an agreed
amount in respect of working capital in the businesses as of 1 January 2002 of US$73,0006,000), in addition to
which Xstrata plc has agreed to assume indebtedness and procure the repayment of shareholder loans (as
described belowl, resulting in a total value of US$2,573,000,000.

The purchase price camprises:

a) US$995,452.000 for the shares of Glencore Overseas AG, to be satisfied by Xstrata plc by the allotment to
Glencare International of such number of new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares [at the price at which such new
Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares are issued in respect of the share issue referred to below in this section] as will

result in Glencore International owning {together with the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares received by it in the
Merger] 40% of the issued Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, and as to the balance in cash;

Ib}  US$150,000,000 in cash for the shares of Duiker Marketing AG, 1o be paid by Xstrata [Schweiz) AG to
Glencore International; and
le}  US$922,458,000 in cash for the shares of Duiker, to be paid to the Duiker Mining Shareholders.
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Xstrata plc will also assume net indebtedness of the Duiker and Enex Groups and will procure the repayment of
sharehalder loans ta Glencore International.

The cash element of the purchase price will be satisfied in part from the proceeds of an issue of Xstrata plc
Ordinary Shares and as to the balance from the Syndicated Loan Facility.

Following the Merger, Xstrala [Schweiz} AG and Xstrata South Africa will be wholly-owned subsidiaries of Xstrata
ple. The effeclive date of the Acquisitions is 1 January 2002.

Completion of the Acquisitions is conditionat upon:

fal the Merger becoming effective in accordance with Swiss law. The Merger will become effective
simultaneously with Completion;

[b) Xstrata plc or Xstrata South Africa, as the case may be, having received, in terms satisfactory to it,
confirmations andfor approvals from the requisite regulatory authorities, including under the Foreign
Acquisitions and Takeovers Act, 1975 {Austratia), the South African Competition Act No. 89 of 1998 and from
the Exchange Controt Department of the South African Reserve Bank;

[} Admission, which will occur simultaneously with Campletion; and

(dl the delivery to Glencore International of written cansents, in terms satisfactory to Xstrata plc, from retevant
third parties.

The Vendors have agreed to give a tax covenant and certain warranties and indemnities in relation to Glencore
Overseas AG, Duiker Marketing AG and Duiker. Liabitity for claims under this covenant and these warranties or
indemnities is limited to: (i} US$995,452,000 in respect of the Enex Group; (il US$150,000,000 in respect of Buiker
Marketing AG; and (i} US$922,458,000 in respect of Duiker and ils subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings.
Claims must be brought on or before the expiry of 18 months from the date of Completion or, in the case of tax
matters, before the end of the lwo month period following the expiry of the statutery limitation lin the relevant
jurisdiction].

Glencore has agreed for a period of 3 years following Completion to co-operate with Xstrata plc in pursuing any
opportunity which involves the mining of coal or any related processing business carried on in whole or in part
within Australia or South Africa to allow Xstrata plc the first opportunity to enter into such a transaction.

Xstrata plc may terminate the Acquisition Agreement in certain circumstances grior to Comptetien, including in
the event of @ material adverse change in the business, financial position or prospects of the Enex Group or the
Duiker Group.

Xstrata AG has unconditionally and irrevocably agreed to guarantee the obligations of Xstrata {Schweiz] AG and
Xstrata South Africa and Glencore International has unconditionally and irrevocably agreed to quarantee the
obligations cf the other Vendors, under the terms of the Acquisition Agreement.
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4. Summary of Terms of the Merger

Prior to Completion of the Merger and the Acquisitions, under the Xstrata AG Hive-Down, Xstrata AG will become
the holding company of Xstrata [Schweiz] AG, which will be the holding company of all the other subsidiaries of
Xstrata AG. The Xstrata AG Hive-Down is further described in section 5.2,

Pursuant to the Merger the entire undertaking of Xstrata AG, including all of its assets and liabilities, will be
transferred to Xstrata plc in consideration for which Xstrata plc will issue Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to the
former sharehotders of Xstrata AG in proportion to their respective holdings of Xstrata AG Shares, on the basis of
10 (ten) Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares of US$0.50 for each 1 [one] Xstrata AG Share.

Following completion of the Xstrata AG Hive-Down [which will take place before Completion of the Merger], the
assets and liabilities of Xstrata AG being translerred pursuant to the Merger will substantially consist of its
lincreased] shareholding in Xstrata [Schweizl AG las an asset] and for a term of up to two years the contingent
{joint and several] liability with Xstrata [Schweiz) AG in respect of the liabilities transferred to Xstrata [Schweiz] AG
pursuant to the Xstrata AG Hive-Down.

The Merger will be effected as follows:

[a} as of 20 February 2002 Xstrata plc and Xstrata AG entered intc the Merger Agreement {3 copy of which is
inctuded in the Other Shareholder Materials);

Ib)  the shareholders of Xstrata AG will vote on a resolution to approve of the Merger and dissolution of Xstrata
AG, which will require a two-thirds majority of all votes capable of being cast by those shareholders present
or represented at the meeting, at the annual shareholders’ meeting of Xstrata AG scheduled for 19 March
2002; and

lc]  Xstrata AG will submit the requisite documentation to the Commercial Register in the Canton of Zug,
Switzerland, for registration of the Merger.

The Merger will become effective upon entry into the Commercial Register, which will take place simultaneously
with Completion. Upon Completion, Xstrata plc will be the ullimate holding company of the Group.

As a result of the Merger:

la) Xstrata AG Shareholders will be entitled, against delivery of the certificates for their Xstrata AG Shares to
the Exchange Agent to receive from the Exchange Agent 10 (ten] Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares of US$0.50 each
for each Xstrata AG share;

(bl the assets and liabilities of Xstrata AG will be transferred to Xstrata plc; and

{c]  Xstrata AG will cease to exist as a legal entity and the Xstrata AG Shares will cease ta confer membership
rights {other than the right to cbtain Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares in exchange for them).
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5. State of Xstrata AG and Pre-Merger Restructuring

5.1 Financial Information on Xstrata AG
Financial information on Xstrata AG, is set out in the annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2001
included in the Other Shareholder Materials.

5.2 Contribution of Xstrata AG’s Business to Xstrata (Schweiz) AG for Shares

Description of Xstrata AG Hive-Down

Xstrata AG has formed a new Swiss subsidiary (Xstrata [Schweiz) AG] and will transfer substantially all its assets
and liabilities to Xstrata [Schweiz) AG in exchange for new shares of that company. Xstrala [Schweiz] AG will
increase its present share capital of CHF 100,000 to approximately CHF 500 million and issue new shares to
Xstrata AG in consideration for the transfer of substantially all assets and liabilities to Xstrata {Schweiz] AG as a
contribution in kind [Sacheinlagel. The contribution will be made on the basis of book values of the assets as at
31 December 2001 and with assets and liabilities, passing with effect from 1 January 2002, with the excess of
assets over liabilities amounting to approximately CHF 880 million to be allocated as to approximately CHF 500
million to the nominal value of the newly issued shares of Xstrata |Schweiz) AG and as o lhe balance of
approximately CHF 380 mitlion to share premium {Agio.

Following completion of the Xstrata AG Hive-Down, which is expected to take place early in March 2002, Xstrata
AG will own 100% of Xstrata [Schweiz} AG and certain immaterial other assets and liabilities, including shares
held for Xstrata AG's management and bcard share option incentive schemes, treasury shares and certain
agreements with advisors in connection with the preparation and implementation of the transactions described
in this document.

Consequences for Xstrata AG Shareholders

The Xstrata AG Hive-Oown witl not have any consequences for Xstrata AG Shareholders, other than for transaction
costs incurred by the Group and, in the event that the Merger and the Acquisitions are not completed as planned
(and Xstrata AG remains in existencel, all of Xstrata AG's current businesses will be held through a 100% owned
subsidiary.

Consequences for Xstrata AG Creditors

Except for those few creditors whose claims will not be transferred in connection with the Xstrata AG Hive-Down,
Xstrata AG creditors will continue to have claims against @ Swiss company with virtually the same amgunt of
assels as Xsirata AG had before. Subject to these exceptions, for Xstrata AG creditors the Merger (although
constituting an “emigration merger” into 3 foreign country} will have substantially the same consequences as a
domestic merger into a newly formed Swiss company.
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6. The Group After the Merger and the Acquisitions

6.1 Post Merger and Acquisitions Group Structure
Following completion of both the Acquisitions and Merger, the Group will comprise three major businesses:

¢  Coal: The Group's Coal Business, comprising of the Australian and South African operations, is one of the
world's largest export thermal coal producers with interests in 26 operating coalmines, 12 of which are
located in Australia and 14 of which are located in South Africa.

»  Zinc: The Group's zinc business, which consists of a zinc mining, smelting and refining operation in Spain,
is one of the largest (in terms of capacityl and among the lowest cost producers of zinc metal in the world.

*  Ferroalloys: The Group’s ferroatloys business, comprising the chrome and vanadium operations, is the
world's {argest {in terms of both attributable production and attributable sales) and among the lowest cost
producers of ferrochrome, and Xstrata believes that the Group is one of the world's leading producers of
primary vanadium, with integrated production facilities in South Africa and Australia.

The following chart summarises the Group’s business structure after the Merger and Acquisitions [including
additional activities}: ‘

XSTRATA
’ [ [ I
Coal Business Zine Business Ferroatloys Additional
Business activities
Australian South African Chrome Vanadium
operations operations operatlons operations

Magnesium Forestry
operation operation

6.2 Post Completion [Pro forma) Financial {nformation
Unaudited pro forma financial information on the [combined] Xstrata Group following the Merger and the
Acquisition, restated as of 31 December 2001, is set out in Annexure A.

6.3 Accounting - Summary of Differences between UK GAAP and IAS

The unaudited pro forma financial information on the Xstrata Group, set out in Annexure A is presented in
accordance with UK GAAP, which differs in certain respects from International Accounting Standards {IAS) (on the
basis of which Xstrata AG used ta present its accounts]. Xstrata plc intends to present its financial information in
accordance with UK GAAP. The principal relevant differences between I1AS and UK GAAP that the directors of
Xstrata plc believe would impact profit or shareholders’ equity, relate to the following:

Associated entities

Investments in entities over which the Xstrata AG Group, the Enex Group and the Duiker Group do not exercise
control {associates and joint venturesl are accounted for by the equity method by the Xstrata AG Group, the Enex
Group and the Duiker Group.

UK GAAP requires the consolidated financial statements o show separately the Xstrata AG Group, the Enex Group
and the Duiker Group proportion of operating profit or loss, exceptional items, inventery holding gains or losses,
interest expense and taxation of associated undertakings and joint ventures. In addition the turnover of joint
ventures should be disclosed.
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UK GAAP also requires the Xstrata AG Group’s, the Enex Group's and the Duiker Group’s share of the gross assets
and gross liabilities of joint ventures to be shown on the face of the balance sheet. Under |AS the tnvestments
would be proportionally consolidated on a line by line basis through both the balance sheet and profit and loss
statement, and not be separately identifizble in any primary statement.

Deferred taxation
Under UK GAAP 3s adopted, full pravision is required for deferred tax in respect of all timing differences using tax
rates likely to apply in the future when the timing differences reverse.

Provision for delerred tax in respect of assets revalued for accounting purposes is only made where a
commitment exists to sell the asset at the balance sheet date.

Under IAS, deferred taxation would be provided for temporary differences between the firancial reporting basis
and the tax basis of the Xstrata AG Group's, the Enex Broup's and the Duiker Group's assets and liabilities at
enacted tax rates.

Ordinary shares held for future awards to employees

Under UK GAAP, company shares hetd by the Xstrata AG Group, the Enex Group and the Duiker Group to hedge
future requirements of share option schemes and are recorded in the balance sheet as fixed assets - investments.
Under IAS, such shares are recorded in the balance sheet as a reduction of shareholders’ interest.

Cash flow

Under UK GAAP, cash flows are presented for lil operating activities; il dividends from joint ventures; liii)
dividends from associated undertakings: liv) servicing of finance and returns on investments; Ivl taxation; [vi)
capital expenditure and financial investment; lvii) acquisitions and dispesals; {viii) dividends; lix] financing; and [x}
management of liquid resources. IAS only require presentation of cash Hows from operating, investing and
financing activities.

Under [AS, cash flows in respect of taxation and interest form part of the operating activities, whereas UK GAAP
requires these cash flows to be shown separately on the face of the cash flow.

1AS defined cash and cash equivalents, which inctudes cash and depaosits with less than three months to maturity.
Under UK GAAP, only those short-term deposits which are repayable on demand or can be withdrawn at any time
without notice and without penalty or where a maturity or pericd of notice of no more than 24 hours or one
working day has been agreed, are classified as cash equivatents. Short-term deposits not fulfilling these criteria
are classified as liquid resources and disclosed separately within the cash flow statement.

6.4 Taxation

Scope of this summary ‘

The following paragraphs, which are intended as a general guide only, are based on current Swiss and UK tax law
and the current praclice of the Swiss and UK tax autharities. They may not apply to certain categories of
shareholders such as dealers. The statements are a general guide, and should be treated with appropriate
caution. if you are in any doubt as to your taxation position or if you are subject to tax in any jurisdiction other than
Switzerland, you should consult an appropriate professicnal adviser immediately. Except where express reference
is made to the position of persons not resident in Switzerland, the paragraphs apply only to Xstrata AG
Shareholders who are resident for tax purposes in Switzertand, and only in Switzerland, do not have a branch or
agency outside Switzerland to which such Xstrata AG Shares are attribuiable, and are the beneficial owners of
Xstrata AG Shares and hold such Xstrata AG Shares for investment purposes, and do not apply to Swiss securities
dealers as defined by the applicable Swiss legislation.

UK tax rules affecting holders (wherever resident, including Switzerland) of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares
Although Xstrata plc is incorporated in England and Wales, the directors of Xstrata plc currently intend to conduct
its aflairs in such a way that it will be regarded as resident in Switzerland and not in the UK for the purposes of
UK and Swiss taxation and for the purposes of the UK-Switzerland double tax treaty. This pesition will, however,
be reviewed from time to time and it is possible that Xstrata plc could in the future become resident for the
purposes of taxation in the UK or elsewhere, in which event the UK and Swiss tax treatment of dividends paid by
Xstrata ple would be different from the treatment described in this document.

This section is written on the basis that Xstrata plc is and remains resident in Switzerland and will therefore be
subject to the Swiss tax regime and not [save in respect of UK source income) the UK tax regime. Dividends paid
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by Xstrata plc will, on this basis, be regarded as Swiss dividends rather than UK dividends, and will accordingly
be treated for UK and Swiss tax purposes in the same way as dividends paid by Xstrata AG, as described below.
No UK tax will generally be charged on dividends received by a Swiss resident shareholder on the Xstrata plc

Ordinary Shares.

However, Xstrata AG Shareholders should note that, because Xstrata PLC is incorporated in England and Wales,
transfers of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will, unlike transfers of Xstrata AG Shares, and regardless of the tax
residence of the transferor or transferee or the place of execution of the transfer documentation, be subject to
UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax [described below] in addition to any appticable Swiss securities transfer
tax [also as described below).

Further, a registered holding of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will have a UK situs for UK inheritance tax purposes.
Therefore, a gift of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, or a transfer of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares on the death cf the
holder, may attract a liability to UK inheritance tax [described below] even where the transferring shareholder is
domiciled solely in Switzerland.

Tax treatment of the Mergar transaction

Swiss taxation of the Merger

For Swiss resident individual Xstrata AG Shareholders who hold their Xstrata AG Shares as private assets the
exchange of their Xstrata AG Shares for Xstrata plc Grdinary Shares under the Merger should not entait any
income tax consequences.

For Swiss resident individual Xstrata AG Shareholders who hold their Xstrata AG Shares as a business asset, and
for corporate Xstrata AG Shareholders, the Merger should nct lead to 8 crystallization of the built in gain on the
exchange of Xstrata AG Shares for Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares. The lax basis of such Xstrata AG Shareholders in
their Xstrata AG Shares will be rolted over in to their holdings of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares. Accordingly, the
exchange should not entail any income tax consequences.

The Merger should also na! attract any Swiss securities issue or transfer tax or cther Swiss tax consequences for
Xstrata AG Shareholders.

UK taxation of the Merger

Xstrata AG Shareholders wha are neither resident nor ordinarily resident in the UK, and who do not carry on any
trade in the UK through a branch or agency, will not generally be liable to any UK tax on income or gains in
respect of the Merger.

No UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax {SDR7] will be payable on the issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares te
the Exchange Agent or its nominee on their behall under the Merger. No UK stamp duty or SORT will be payable
by Xstrata AG Shareholders on the transfer of Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares from the Exchange Agent or its nominee
to the person beneficially entitled to those Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares or his nominee, unless the transferee is, or
is @ nominee ‘or, a provider of clearance services {other than SIS] or an issuer of depositary receipts.

Swiss taxation of dividends paid an the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares

Withholding Tax on Dividends and other Distributions

Just asin the case of dividends paid cn Xstrata AG Shares, dividends paid and similar cash or in kind distributions
made by Xstrata plc to a holger of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares lincluding dividends on liquidation and stock
dividends] are subject to a Swiss feceral withholding tax lthe Withholding Tax at the rate of 35%. The Withholding
Tax must be withhetd by Xstrata ple from the gross distribution and paid to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration.
The Withholding Tax withheld is refundabte in full to - or as the case may be fully creditable against the income
tax liability of - a Swiss resident recipient of a distribution, if he is the beneficial owner of the Shares at the time
of the payment and duly reports the gross distribution received on his persenal tax return.

A recipient of a distribution of Xstrata plc who is not a resident of Switzerland for tax purposes and does not hold
the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares in connection with the conduct of a trade or business in Switzerland through a
permanent establishment or a fixed place of business [a non-resident holdenr and qualifies as a resident of a
country which maintzins a bilateral treaty for the avoidance of double taxation with Switzerland may be entitled
lo a full or partial refund of the Withholding Tax under the provisions of the applicable treaty. Non-resident
holders shoutd be aware that the procedures for claiming treaty refunds [and the time frame required for
obtaining a refund} may differ fram country to country. Non-resident holders should consult their own tax advisers
regarding the procedures for claiming any refund of the Withholding Tax.
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Income Tax on Distributions

A Swiss resident recipient of dividends and similar distributions (including dividends on liquidation and stock
dividends] of Xstrata PLC generally will be required to include such amounts in his personal income tax return lin
the same way as in the case of similar amounts received from Xstrata AG]. A Swiss corporate entity that owns at
least 20% of the capital of Xstrata ple or Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares with a market value of at least CHF 2 million
may qualify for the participation exemption. The dividends received which qualify for the participation exemption,
after certain expense allocation as defined by the applicable legislation are in essence tax exempt.

A nan-resident holder is not liable for any Swiss federal, cantonal or municipal income taxes with respect to
dividends or other distributions paid on the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares merely as a result of holding the Xstrata
plc Ordinary Shares other than the Withholding Tax to be withheld by Xstrata plc from such dividends or other
distributions. ‘

Swiss taxation of capital gains on disposals of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares

A Swiss resident who holds Xstrata ptc Ordinary Shares as part of his privale property is generally not subject to
any Swiss federal, cantonal or municipal income taxation on gains realised upon the sale or other disposal of
Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares. Private gains realised upon a repurchase of Xsirata plc Ordinary Shares by Xstrata
PLC may, however, be re-characterised as taxable income if certain conditions are met. Book gains realised on
Xstrata pic Ordinary Shares held as a business asset of 3 Swiss resident are included in the taxable income of
such person.

Capital gains realised by a Swiss corporation which has owned at least 20% of the capital for a holding period of
at least one year may be exempt under the participation exemption subject to cenditions. Any such corporation
should take its own professional advice on its tax position in respect of its holding of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares.

A non-resident hotder of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares is generally not subject to any Swiss federal, cantonal or
municipal taxation on gains realised on a sale or other disposal of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares unless the Xstrata
plc Ordinary Shares so disposed of can be attributed to a permanent establishment or lixed place of business
maintained by such person within Switzerland during the relevant tax year.

Swiss Wealth and Capital Taxes
Holders of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares resident in Switzerland or otherwise subject to Swiss taxation lindividuals
cr legal entities} are generally subject to annual wealth or annual capital taxes on their hotdings.

Swiss Securities Transfer Tax on sales and transfers of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares

If 2 sale or transter of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares occurs through or with a Swiss bank or another Swiss
securities dealer as defined in the Swiss Federal Stamp Duty Law, such transfer is subject to the Swiss security
transfer tax lin z2ddition to the UK stamp duty or SDRT chargeable on such sale or transfer as described belowl.
The Swiss securities transfer tax is charged at the rate of 0.15% on the fair market value for securities issued by
a Swiss entity and 0.3% for securities issued by a foreign entity.

The Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares are considered to be issued by a non-Swiss entity. Accorcingly, any subsequent
sale of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares which is subject to the Swiss security transfer tax as described above is taxed
at a rate of 0.3%, whereas the rate chargeable on a sale of Xstrata AG Shares is 0.15%.

In addition to the above mentioned securities transfer tax, the sale of shares through or by a member of SWX may
be subject to 3 stock exchange tevy up to a maximum rate of 0.02%.

Swiss securities dealers are subject to the Swiss securities transfer tax on any transfer of Xstrata plc Ordinary
Shares, regardless the fact that the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares may be traded on the London Stock Exchange.

UK stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax [SDRT)

Atransfer on sale of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will be liable to ad valorem UK stamp duty, generally at the rate
of 0.5% [rounded up to the nearest £5) of the consideration paid. An agreement to transfer Xstrata plc Ordinary
Shares will narmally give rise to a charge to SORT at the rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of the consideration
for the Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares. The liability to SDRT will arise on the date the contract is made for, in the case
of 3 conditional agreement, on the date on which such condition is satisfied] atthough the liability will generally
be cancelled, and any SDRT already paid repaid, generally with interest, if an instrument of transfer is executed
in pursuance of the agreement and duly stamped within six years of the date on which the liability arises.
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Under the CREST system for paperless share transfers, no stamp duty or SORT will arise on a transfer of shares
into the system, unless the transfer into CREST is itself for consideration in maney or money's werth, in which
case a liability to SORT will arise, usually at the rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of consideration given.
Transfers of shares within CREST are generally liable to SDRT [at a rate of 0.5% of the consideration paid) rather
than stamp duty, and SDRT on relevant transactions settled within the system or reported through it for regulatory
purposes will be collected and accounted for to the Inland Revenue by CRESTCo Limited.

Under the system administered by SIS for share dealings on SWX, a sale or transfer of shares on SWX wilt
generally be liable to SORT [at a rate of 0.5% of the consideration paid] rather than stamp duty, and SORT on
relevant transactions settled within the system will be collected and accounted for to the Intand Revenue by SIS.

Where Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares are issued or transferred {a] to, or to a nominee or agent for, a person whose
business is or inctudes the provision of clearance services or (b} to, or to a nominee or agent for, a person whose
business is or includes issuing depasitary receipts, UK stamp duty or SDRT will generally be payable. The UK
stamp duty and/or SCRT is generally payable at the rate of 1.5% {rounded up to the nearest E5 in the case of stamp
duty] of the consideration payable, or in certain circumstances, the value of the Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares.
Clearance services may however elect, provided certain conditions are satisfied, for the normal rate of UK stamp
duty or SORT (0.5%) to apply to issues or transfers of shares into, and to transactions within, such services instead
of the 1.5% rate applying to an issue or a transfer of shares into the clearance service. Such an election has been
made by SIS in respect of the clearance service it provides for transactions on SWX.

UK inheritance Tax

The Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares will be assets situated in the UK for the purposes of UK inheritance tax. A gift of
such assets by, or the death of, an individual holder of such assets may [subject to certain exemptions and reliefs]
give rise to a liability to UK inheritance tax even if the holder is neither domicited in the UK nor deemed to ke
domiciled there under certain rules relating ta long residence or previous domicile. For inheritance tax purposes,
a transfer of assets at less than full market value may be treated as a gift and particular rules apply to gifts where
the donor reserves or retains some benefit,

4,5 Relationship with Glencore
in addition to the Group's existing agreements with Glencore, the following arrangements will be in place at
Completion of the Acquisitions:

Coal Business

On 5 January 1995, Cumnock No.1 Colliery Pty Limited [Cumnock], a member of the Enex Group, entered into a
sales and marketing agreement with Glencore International. Pursuant to this agreement Glencore Internationat
provides sales and marketing services to Cumnock and Cumnock appoints Glencore International as its agent to
market coal. Glencore International is entitled tc @ commission of US$0.75 per tonne for all coal sold by Cumnock.

On Completion, Duiker Marketing AG and Xstrata [Schweiz) AG will enter into an agresment [the Market Advisory
Agreement] with Glencore International. Pursuant to such agreement, Glencore International will, for a fee of
US$0.50 per attributable tonne of coal experted by the Group from Australia or South Africa, act as the Group's
market adviser with respect to its expart production of coal [other than for Cumnack while it is not a wholly owned
subsidiary). Glencore International will advise the Group regarding the placement of its export coal in the world
market, the future planning for that placement and market opportunities available for the future sale of export
coal. Giencore International will also provide the Group's marketing department with real time market
intelligence and access to Glencore international’s network of global offices. In providing such services Glencare
international has agreed not to act for the greater benefit of itself to the disadvantage of the Group.

The Market Advisory Agreement will remain in full force and effect for a period of 20 years, with a review of the
fee at the end of each fifth year thereof. The Market Advisory Agreement may be terminated by Duiker Marketing
AG after giving 45 days notice if any person and its affiliates holds, directly or indirectly, 50% or more of the issued
share capital of Glencore International. The Market Advisory Agreement may also be terminated by either party
with immediate effect if:

»  the other party commits a material breach of the agreement and fails to remedy the breach, if capable of
remedy, within 30 days if given written notice; or

*  the other party enters into liquidation or is declared insolvent.

Xstrata {Schweiz) AG has agreed to guarantee the perfarmance by Duiker Marketing AG of its obligations under
the Market Advisory Agreement,
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Relationship with controlling shareholder

Following the Completion of the Merger and Admission, Glencore international will own 40% of the issued
ordinary share capital of Xstrata plc and will be regarded as a controlling shareholder of Xstrata plc for the
purposes of the UK Listing Rules.

As Glencore International will be Xstrata pic’s controlling sharehalder, Glencore Internationat and Xstrata plc will
enter into an agreement (the Relationship Agreement] on Completion which will, conditional upon Admission,
regulate the ongoing relationship between them. The principat purpose of the Relationship Agreement will be to
ensure that the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of Glencore and that transactions and
relationships with Glencore are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms. In so doing the Relationship
Agreement will ensure therefore that Xstrata plc complies with its obligations under the UK Listing Rutes. The
Relationship Agreement will continue for sa long as the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares are listed on the Official List
and traded on the London Stock Exchange and Giencore International is Xstrata plc’s controlling sharehalder
under the UK Listing Rules. Currently, a controlling shareholder is a person who holds either 30% or more of the
votes exercisable at generat meetings of Xstrata plc or has the right ta control the appointment of the majority of
the Directors.

Under the Relationship Agreement:

{al  Xstrata pic and Glencore International will agree that transactions and relationships between the Group and
Glencore will be conducted at arm's length and on a normal commercial basis;

bl  Xstrata plc and Glencare International will agree to ensure that Xstrata plc is capable, at alt limes, of
carrying on its business independently of any member of Glencore;

{c]  Glencare International will only be permitted to nominate a maximum of three directors of Xstrata plc or, if
higher or lower, such number of directors of Xstrata plc as equals one less than the number of directors
who are independent of Glencore. In this respect, Glencore International has initially nominaled Messrs.
Strothotte, Glasenberg and Issroff to Xstrata plc's board;

{dl  Directors of Xstrata plc nominated by Glencore International shall not be permitted to vote on any
resolutions of Xstrata pic’s board to approve any aspect of Xstrata pic's involvement in or enforcement of any
arrangements, agreements or transactions with any member of Glencore; and

le]  Glencore International undertakes to procure that ‘Glencore shall not exercise its voling rights to procure
amendment to the constitutional documents of Xstrata plc which would be inconsistent with or undermine
the Relationship Agreement.

The directors of Xstrata plc believe that the terms of the Relationship Agreement as described above will enable
the Group to carry on its business independently of Glencore. :
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7. Summary of Consequences for Xstrata AG Shareholders
Some of the more important consequences for {former} Xstrata AG Shareholders arising following Completion of
the Merger and the exchange of their Xstrata AG Shares for Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares are set forth below:

{al participation in a substantially bigger company than Xstrata AG being a natural resources Group comprising
Xstrata AG's present business and the Coal Business [see sections 3 and é above);

{bl  participation in a public limited company established under the laws of England but which will continue to
be managed from Switzerland;

[c]  substantially the same shareholder rights as when they were Xstrata AG Shareholders, except that their
shares will be in regisiered rather than bearer form. In particular, shareholders’ meetings will be arranged
to allow participation by shareholders in Zug, Switzerland, and announcements of Xstrata plc will continue
to be made in the Swiss Commercial Gazetle and at least one leading Swiss newspapers [in addition to
registered shareholders being directly notified by maitl;

lal  listing of a larger company on two major stock exchanges, which is expected to increase liquidity;

lel as opposed to the regime applying in respect of the Xstrata AG Shares, the acquisition of voting rights in
Xstrata plc exceeding 30% of the total voling rights will require a tender offer for all cutstanding Xstrata plc
Crdinary Shares as would be required by the City Code if it applied to Xstrata plc, failing which the directors
of Xstrata plc may impose sanctions under the Articles;

{th  Xstrata plc is expected to remain resident in Switzerland for tax purposes, so that the income, capital and
net wealth consequences for shareholders in relation to sales or purchases of shares and dividends are
expected to remain the same as applied to their shareholdings in Xstrata AG. As opposed to sales and
transfers of Xstrata AG Shares, sales and transfers of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares will be subject to UK
stamp duty and/or stamp duty reserve tax, as described in section 6.4 and where applicable to a higher rate
of Swiss securities transfer tax. Furthermore, UK tax on inheritance and gifts may apply to shareholders
who are individuals; and

{g) the directors of Xstrata AG consider that those who hold their Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares as described in
section 2.12(b) will remain in essentially the same position as to the enjoyment of rights to hold, trade and
otherwise in respect of those shares as in relation to their Xstrata AG Shares held through a Swiss bank.
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8. Recommendation of the Board of Directors of Xstrata AG

The board of directors of Xstrata AG, after review and negotiations of and relating to the transactions, and after
having sought professional advice and procured a fairness opinion from J.P. Morgan plc as described in this
document, considers that the Merger is in the best interests of Xstrata AG and its shareholders. Accordingly, it
has approved the Acquisition Agreement, supported Xstrata plc and other Group companies in procuring
additional financing for the Accuisitions by way of an issue of new Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares and the Syndicated
Loan Facility, and approved the Merger Agreement. The effectiveness of the Merger remains subject to approval
by the Xstrata AG Shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting tc be held on 19 March 2002. The board of directors
of Xstrata AG recommends that Xstrata AG Shareholders vote in favour of the related resolution.

9. Action to he taken by the Xstrata AG Sharehalders
Xstrata AG Sharehelders are invited to participate {perscnally or by proxy) at the shareholders’ meeting of 19
March 2002 and to exercise their votes in accordance with the motion and recommendation of the Xstrata AG
Directors. For this purpose they are encouraged to procure entry cards:

* inthe case of customers of UBS AG or Credit Suisse, from their respective bank; ar

* inthe case of all other Xstrata AG Shareholders from Xstrata AG, Bahnhofstrasse 2, 6301 Zug, Switzerland,
tetephone +41 41 726 60 75, fax +41 41 726 40 89;

which will be made available against depositing of their Xstrata AG Shares or delivery of a deposit - confirmation
from a bank [with blocking confirmation].

Xstrata AG Shareholders unable to personally attend the meeling are ercouraged to issue a proxy to another
person attending the meeting [pursuant to the form on the back of the entry card).
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10. Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms
10.1 Definitions
Acquisitions means the acquisition of the Coal Assets pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement.

Acquisition Agreement means the sale and purchase agreement dated 21 February 2002 setting out the terms
of the Acquisiticns, as further described in section 3.4.

Admission means the admission of the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares to the Official List and to trading on the
London Stock Exchange’s market for listed securities.

Articles means the articles of association of Xstrata pic proposed 1o be adopted prior to Admission, a summary
of which is set out in section 2.3, ,

Asturiana means Asturiana de Zinc, S.L., a limited liability company incorporated in Spain las constituted by the
merger of Asturiana de Zinc S.A. and Xstrata Spain S.L.].

CHF means Swiss francs.
City Code means the (London] City Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

Coal Assets means the entire issued share capital of each of Glencore Overseas AG [of which Enex is 2
wholly-owned subsidiaryl, Duiker Marketing AG and Duiker,

Coal Business means the husinesses of the Enex Group and the Duiker Group or, as the context may require, the
business of the Group after Completion comprising the coal operations in Australia and South Africa, as further
described in section 3.1.

Combined Code means the principles of good governance and code of best practice appended to the UK Listing
Rutes.

Companies Act means the Companies Act 1985 [UK), as amended.
Completion means the simultaneous completion of the Acquisitions, the Merger and Admission,

CREST means the system for the paperless settlement of trades in listed securities, of which CRESTCo Limited
is the operalor.

CREST Regulations means The Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 {UK}, as amended.
Duiker means Duiker Mining {Pty] Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in South Africa.

Duiker Group means Duiker and Duiker Marketing AG and their subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings and,
where the context requires, their associated undertakings.

Duiker Mining Shareholders means Duiker Coal Investments Limitad, Duffield Trading Limited, Glencere Finance
(Bermuda) Limited and Stychus Invest AG

Enex means Enex Resources Limited, a public company incorporated in Australia with limited liability and a
member of the Enex Group.

Enex Group means Glencore Overseas AG and its subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings and, where the
context requires, its associated undertakings,

Exchange Agent means Credit Suisse, as agent for the exchange of Xstrata AG Shares for Xstrata ple Ordinary
Shares under the Merger Agreement.

FSMA means the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (UK], as amended.

Glencore means Glencore International and its subsidiaries and affiliates or, as the context requires, any
subsidiary or affiliate thereof.

Glencore International means Glencore Internationat AG, a limited liability company incorporated in Switzerland.

Group means Xstrata plc and its subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings and, where the context requires, its
associated undertakings, as constituted immediately following Completion of the Merger and the Acquisitions.

London Stock Exchange means London Stack Exchange ple.

Merger means the merger of Xstrata AG and Xstrata plc pursuant to which Xstrata plc will become the ultimate
holding company of the Group, as further described in section 4.
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Merger Agreement means the agreement dated as of 20 February 2002 entered into between Xstrata AG and
Xstrata plc setting out the terms of the Merger, as further described in section 4.

Official List means the official list maintained by the UK Listing Authority fer the purpases of Part Vi of the FSMA,

Other Shareholder Materials means the further documents available to Xstrata AG Shareholders in connection
with the Xstrata AG Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on 19 March 2002.

Purchasers means Xstrata plc, Xstrata (Schweizl AG and Xstrata South Africa.
SIS means S!S SegalnterSettle AG.
Swiss Admission means the admission of the Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares ta listing on SWX.

Swiss Listing Rules means the listing rules of SWX made under Article 8 of the Federal Act on Stock Exchange
and Securities Trading 1995 (Switzerland), as amended.

SWX means SWX Swiss Exchange.

Syndicated Loan Facility means the U5$2,000,000,000 loan facility arranged by Barclays Capital [the investment
banking division of Barclays Bank PLCl, Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein [acting through Dresdner Bank
Luxembourg S.A} and J.P. Maorgan plc on the terms set out in the Syndicated Loan Facility Agreement.

Syndicated Loan Facility Agreement means the loan facility agreement to be entered into between certain
members of the Group and Barclays Capital {the investment banking division of Barctays Bank PLC), Dresdner
Kteinwort Wasserstein {acting through Bresdner Bank Luxembourg S.A.] and J.P. Morgan plc, as mandated lead
arrangers, and the other banks named therein as lenders, setting out the terms of the Syndicated Loan Facility.

UK GAAP means generally accepted accounting practice as used in the UK.

UK Listing Authority means the Financial Services Authority acting in its capacity as the competent authority for
the purposes of Part VI of the FSMA and in the exercise of its functions in respect of the admission 1o the Officiat
List otherwise than in accordance with Part Vi of the FSMA.

UK Listing Rutes means the listing rules of the UK Listing Autharity, made under Section 74 of the FSMA,

United States or US means the United States of America, its territcries and possessions, any state of the United
States of America and the District of Columbia.

US$ means US dollars.

Vendors means Glencore International and certain of its subsidiaries.

Xstrata or the Company means Xstrata AG or, following the Merger, Xstrata plc.
Xstrata AG means Xstrata AG, a limited liability company incorporated in Switzerland.

Xstrata AG Group means Xstrata AG and its subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings and, where the context
requires, its associated undertakings, as constituted immediately prior to the Merger and the Acquisitions.

Xstrata AG Hive-Down means the transfer of Xstrata AG's business including its assets and liabilities to Xsirata
[Schweiz] AG as described in section 5.2.

Xstrata AG Share 5chemes means the Xstrata AG Group Management and Employee Share incentive Scheme,
the Xstrata AG Directors’ Option Scheme and the Xstrata AG Directors’ Incentive Scheme.

Xstrata AG Shares means bearer shares in the capital of Xstrata AG with a nominal value of CHF 10 each.
Xstrata AG Shareholders means holders of Xstrata AG Shares.

Xstrata AG Shareholders’ Meeting means the shareholders’ . meeting of Xstrata AG at which a resolution will be
proposed to approve the Merger and the dissolution of Xstrata AG, convened for 19 March 2002.

Xstrata plc means Xstrata plc, a public limited company incorporated in England and Wales with registered
number 4345939 which will be the surviving company in the Merger.

Xstrata pic Ordinary Shares means ordinary shares in the capital of Xstrata plc with a nominal value of US$0.50
each. :

Xstrata [Schweiz) AG means Revolution AG [to be re-named Xstrata {Schweiz] AGJ, the limited liability Swiss
company to which the business of Xstrata AG will be transferred pursuant to the Xstrata AG Hive-Down.

Xstrata South Africa means Xstrata South Africa [Proprietary| Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in
South Africa,
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10.2 Glossary of Technical Terms
attributable production means that part of mine or operation production in which the Group has an economic
interest. [t therefore excludes production attributable to minority interests in controlleg subsidiaries and the
interests of joint venture partners.

attributable sales means that part of sales from a mine or operation in which the Group has an economic
interest, It therefore excludes sales attributable to minority interests in controlled subsidiaries and the interests
of joint venture partners. '

indicated Resources means the resources for which tonnage, densities, shape, physical characteristics, grade
and mineral content can be estimated with a reasonable level of confidence.

Measured Resources means the resources for which tonnage, densities, shape, physical characteristics, grade
and mineral content can be estimated with a high level of confidence.

reserves means those parts of mineral resources for which sufficient information is available to enable detailed
or conceptual mine planning and for which such planning has been undertaken. Reserves are classified as either
proved or probable.

resources means all of the polential minerals in a defined area based on points of observation and extrapolations
from those points. Potential minerals are defined as minerals which have been or could be beneficiated to give a
quality acceptable for commercial usage in the foreseeable future and excludes minor mineral occurrences.

thermal coal means coal used in generating steam for electricity production.
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Annexure A Unaudited pro forma financial information

Unaudited Pro Forma combined Net Assets of Xstrata plc as at 31 December 2001

The Iollowing unaudited pro forma statement of combined nel assets of Xstrata plc as at 31 December 2001 is prepared for itlustrative
purposes only and may not, because of its nature, give a true picture of the financial pesition of the Group, It is prepared to illustrate
the effect on the nel assets of Xstrata plc of the Acquisitions, the Merger and the issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares. as if the
Acquisitions, Merger and the issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, had taken place on 31 December 2001, and is based on the unaudited
balance sheets of Xstrata plc, Xstrala AG, Enex and Duiker prepared in accordance with UK GAAP as at 31 December 2001. Adjustments
have been made as described in the ncles below.

At 31 December 2001

Adjust-  Proforma
Xstrata plc  Xstrata AG Enex Duiker Xstrata ments  Xstrata pic
Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Sub-total Note2-4  nstassets
usseso US$000 US$000 Us$003 Us$0o0 US$000 US$000

Fixed Assets R
Goodwitl - 125,140 - - 125,140 - 125,140
Tangible assets - 771.680 640.946 205351 [1.417,977} 1841830 3.459.807
Loans - 5313 - - 5313 - 5313
Other - 7,789 - - 7,749 - 7,789
Investments - 22,941 19,970 39,135 82,046 - 82,045

Current Assets

- 932,843 460,916 244,486 11,838,265 1,841,830 3,680,095

Stocks - 144,748 56,777 24,648 226,191 . - 226,191
Debtors : - 188,171 89,513 45,093 kryXay) - 322,717
Cash and short term deposils - 45,886 42,804 11,243 §9.913 {65,980) 33,933
- 378,805 189,094 80,982 448,881 (65,9801 582,901
Creditors: amaunts lalling due within one year - §221,726)  100,175) (68,943) | 1390,848) 104,988  [283,860]
Net Current Assets : - 157,079 88,915 12,039 258,033 41,008 299,041
Total Assets less Current Liabilities - 1089942 749,831 256525 12,096,298} 1882838 3,979,136
Creditors: amounts falling due after
mare than one year - (421,990]  {521.145) {21,307) | (964.448]| (828918] {1.793.344]
Provision for liabilities and charges - 11256,835] 180,721) [57.972) | (265.508) - [265,508}
- 541,117 147,98y 177.246 B66.,344 | 1,053,920 1.920,264
Minarity Interests - (1,994§ 1791471 - 181,141} - 81,1411
Net assets - 539,123 48,834 177,244 785,203 | 1,063,920 1,837,123
Notes:

1

32

The consclidated net assets of Xstrata ple, Xstrata AG, Enex and Duiker at 31 December 2001 and the profit and loss accounts for the year then
ended nave been extracled without materia: adjustment from the Accouniants’ Reports to be containea in the listing particulars ot Xstrata plc to
te published in dus course. :

Acquisition retatec allocalions include:
la} payment of consideraticn (including the assumptian of certain grocup borrewings!;

Ie} a fair value adjustment calculated as follows:

us$ooo
Cansideration fer the acquisition of the Enex Group 999,452
Net assets of the Enex Group 168,834}
Considaralion for the acquisition ¢f the Duiker Group 1,092,458
Net assets of the Duiker Group (177,248}
Fair value allocation 1,841,630

A full assessment of fair values of assets and liabilities will be undertaken prior 1o the end of the first accounting period of Xstrata plc.

The adjusiments reilect the proceeds of the issue of shares and new debt, the repayment of existing borrowings and the related fees and expenses
incurred.

The otker adjustments retlact the asumplion of certzin debts payable by Enex Group and Duiker Group to related parties as part of the Acquisitions
consideration payable by Xstrata plc, together with the repayment of existing Xstrata AG debt.

No account has been taken of any trading or other lransactiens since 31 Decemter 2001 lor Xstrata pic, Xsirata AG, Duiker and Enex. Na account
has been taken ol any other further fair value adjustments that may be necessary.
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Unaudited pro forma financial information

Unaudited Pro Forma combined Profit Statement of Xstrata plc for the year ended

31 December 2001

The following unaudited pro forma combined profit statement of Xstrata ple for the year ended 31 Oecember 2001 is prepared for
illustrative purposes anly and may not, because of its nature, give a true picture of the results of the Group, It is prepared to illustrate
the effect on the profit for the year of Xstrata pic of the Acquisitions, the Merger and the issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares as if the
Acquisitions, the Merger and the issue of Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares had taken place on the first day of the period ended 31 December
2001, and is based on the unaudited profit and loss accounts of Xstrata AG, Enex and Duiker prepared in accordance with UK GAAP for
the year ended 31 December 2001. Xstrata ple did not trade during the period. Adjustments have been made in accordance with the

notes referred to.

Year ended 31 December 2001

Adjustments
Xstrata AG Enex Duiker Xstrata ple Xstrata ple Pro forma
Note ? Note 2 Note 2 Sub-totat Nots 2-9 Xstrata plc
Us$000 Us$000 Us$oas US$000 USs$000 Us$co0
Turnover
Continuing operations 346,969 291,199 N 325 1,009,493 - 1,009,493
Acquisitions 266,634 371,152 - 637,786 - 637,784
613,603 462,351 371,325 1,647,279 - 1,647,279
Operaling costs 1521,157) [504,717) {226,921] [1,254,795) 146,000) {1,300,795}
Operaling profit
Continuing operations 47,649 51,894 144,404 253,949 146,000) 207,949
Acquisitions 44,797 93,738 - 138,535 - 138,535
32446 155,634 144,404 392,484 {46,000 346,484
Continuing operations: ‘
Profit/lioss] on sale of operations 11,954) 1466) 56,788 54,368 - 54,368
90,492 185,668 201192 646,852 [44,000} 400,852
Discontinued operatians:
Profit/llzssi on sale of tangible
fixed assets 145,034} 1,479 131 {63,424} - {43,424}
Exchange difference - 129,473) - 129,473 29.473 -
Net Interest Payable {21,554} {5,677} (7,104} {34,335) [36,385) (70,720}
Protit on ordinary activities
selore taxation 23,904 121,497 194,219 339.620 {52,912 286,708
Tax on profit on ordinary
activities (10,6351 {23.561] [40,1331 (74,329) 9.096 165,233}
Profit on ordinary activities
alter taxation 13,269 97,935 154,085 245,291 (43,816} 221,475
Minority interests:
Equity {2,018) 113,195) - 115,211} - 115,211}
Profit for the financial year
attributable 10 members
of the parent company 11,253 84,741 154,086 250,080 {43.814) 204,284
Notes:
b The fair value adjustment arising on the Acquisitions is amortised over the estimated useful tlives of the underlying assets;
? Interest on debl raised as part of this transaction has been included. For this purpese, an amount of US$$36.385 million has been included dased
upen an interest rate of 3.5% an incremental interest bearing debt adjusted for the tax elfect of this charge;
8 Elimination of exchange differences arising on a US$ loan in Enex refinanced as part of this transaction.
9 Where appropriate, taxation effects ¢f the above adjustments have been laken into account,
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Unaudited pro forma financial information

Pro Forma combined Segmental Information for the year ended 31 December 2001

The following pro forma cambined segmental information for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2001 is prepared for
illustrative purpeses only and may not, because of ils nature, give 3 true picture of the results of the Group. it is prepared to illustrate
the effect on the segmental analysis of Xstrata plc of the Acquisitiens, the Merger and the issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares, as if
the Acquisitions, Merger and the issue of Xstrata plc Ordinary Shares had Laken place on the first day of the year ended 31 December

2001,
Xstrata AG EnexGrovp  Dulksr Group Adjustments
Yoar anded Year ended Year ended Xstrata pic Xstrata ple Pro forma
31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2001 Sub-totat Note 12 Xstrats pte
uUs$000 us$000 Us5s000 US$000 Us$000 US$000
Turnover
Coat - 662,351 31,325 1,033,676 - 1,033,676
Zinc 266,634 - ' - 246,634 - 266,634
Chrome 257,659 - - 257,659 - 257,659
Vanadium 63,498 - - 43,498 - 63498
Magnesium 25 - - 25 - 5
Forestry 25,787 - - 25,787 - 25,787
Totat 613,600 642,351 371,325 1,647,279 - 1,647,279
Xstrata AG Enex Group Duiker Group Adjustments
Year ended Year ended Year ended Xstrata plc Xstrata ple Pro forma
31 Dac 2001 31 Dac 2001 31 Dec 2001 Sub-totat Note 12 Xstrata ple
US$000 ] US$000 US$000 U5$000 US$000
Profit before tax
Coal - 121,497 194,219 315,716 (48,0001 269718
Zinc 44,798 - - 44,798 - 44,798
Chrome 59.318 - - 59318 - $9.318
Vanadium (42,3601 - - 162,360) - {42,360
Magnesium (5,040 - - (5.0401 - {50401
Farestry 541 - - 581 - 561
Common costs {33,373} - - [33.373) 16.912) {40,285)
Total 23,904 121,497 194,219 339,620 {52,912} 286,708
Xstrata AG Enex Group Duiker Group Adjustments
Year ended Year ended Year ended Xsirata plc Xstrata ptc Pro forma
31 Dac 200% 39 Dac 2009 31 Dec 2001 Subd-total Note 12 Xstrata plc
ussaoo ussooo Us$o00 ussoeo Us$o000 Us$000
Tangible fixed assets
Coal - 640,944 205,351 846,297 1,841,830 2,488,127
2inc 387,785 - - 387,765 - 387,765
Chrome 224,287 - - 224,247 - 224,267
Vanadium 104,601 - - 104,602 - 104,601
Magnesium 21,757 - - 21,757 - 21,757
Forestry 32,418 - - 32418 - 32,618
Others 672 - - 672 - 672
Total 771,680 640,946 205,351 1,817.977 1,841,830 3,459,807
Xstrata AG Enex Group Dulker Group ' Adjustments
Year ended Year ended Year enged Astrata pic Xstrata pic Pro forma
31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2004 31 Oec 2001 Sub-totat Note 12 Xstrata ple
Us$000 U55000 Us$o00 US$000 us$ooe Us$000
Net current assets
Coat - 88,915 12,039 100,954 - 100,954
Zinc 95471 - - 95471 - 95,471
Chrome 98,857 - - 98,857 - 98,857
Vanadicm 24,021 - - 24,021 - 24,021
Magnesium 1792 - - 792} - 792}
Forestry 1,144 - - 1,144 - 1,144
Unallocated assets {61,623) - - 161,623) 41,008 120,614}
Total 157,078 88,915 12,039 258,033 41,008 299,041
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Unaudited pro forma financial information

Xstrata AG EnexGroup  Duiker Group Adjustments
Year ended Year endad Year ended Xstrata pic Xstrata ple Pro forma
31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2009 21 Dec 2001 Sub-total Note 12 Astrata ptc
Us$poo Us$000 US$000 V55000 Us$000 Us$000
Net assets (Note 10}
Coal - 48,834 177,244 246,080 1,841,830 2,087,910
Zinc 548,009 - - 548,009 -~ 548,009
Chrome 187,990 - - 187,990 - 187,990
Vanadium 106,642 - - 106,642 - 106,642
Magnesium 25,344 - - 25,344 - 25,344
Forestry 21,782 - - 21,782 - 21,782
Unaitocated assets {356.444) - - 1350,844) {787,210] (1,138,554}
Total §39,123 58,834 177,244 785,203 1,053,920 1,839,123
Xstrata AG EnexGroup  Dulker Group Adjusiments
Year ended Year ended Year ended Xstrata plc Xstrata ple Pro forma
31 Dec 2001 31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2001 Sub-total Note 12 Xstrata piz
usgoco " Us$o0e usscon usseoo Us$000 Ussoas
Net assets (Nate 10}
Americas 47,124 - T - 47,128" - 47,126
Africa 352,197 - 177,246 629,443 915,212 1,444,655
Europe 548,009 ~ - 548,009 - 548,009
Australia 157,545! 68,834 - 11,269 928,618 937.887
Unallocated assels (350,644} - - 1350.844) 1787,910) {1,138,55¢4)
Total 539,123 68,834 177,244 785,203 1,053,920 1,839,123

Notes

10 Adjustments to net assets reflect the divisian’s share of the adjustment made in respect of the Group's net assets in npe 2.

1 The above informaticn has bean prepared or 3 pro farma basis and inctudes the resut's of acquisitions from the date af acquisition. If the results

of the

d from the first day of the accounting period, then the lurnover by segment would be US$1,345 million,

U5$383 millicn, US$238 million, US$43 millian, USE25,000 and US$24 mitlion for the ccal, zinc. chrame, vanadium, mgnas-um and (orestry
business units respectivety. Similarly, EBIT for the coal, zinc, chrome, vanadium, magnesium and forestry business units would be US$311 miltion,
US$47 miltion, US359 million, US$142) million, US$!5) mitlien and US$1 million respectively and EBITDA USS4 14 miltion, US$101 miltion, US$es

mitlisn, U539 mitlion, USS{4) million and US$3 mitlion.

12 Adjustments to segmental information include:

{i Amortisation of US$L6 millicn per annum as described in rote é.

[ii} US%6.9 million comprises US$I34.4] million incremental interest and elimination of loreign exchange adjusiment of US$29.5 million in

Enex, a5 descrited in notes 7 and 8 respeclively.

i) US$1,841.8 million farr value adjustment an the Acquisition, as described i1 note 2.

fivl US$41 mitlion adjustments in respe<l of proceeds of the issue of Xsirata plc Ordinary Shares and debt raised. net of recayment of existing
debt, as described innotes 2, Jand 4,

ful US$782,910,090 adjustment.in respect ot net new debt following the proceeds of the issue of Xstrata ple Ordinary Shares, the payment of
retated expenses, the payment for the Acquisilion and the repayment of existing borrowings as described in notes 3 and &.

il US$P18,212,000 and US$926,418,000 are the allocation of the tair value adjustment in note 2
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